
 

 

 

 

 
1 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 7 NOVEMBER 2013 AT 3.00 PM 
 

THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR,  THE GUILDHALL 
 
Telephone enquiries to Vicki.plytas@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
Email:  
 

 
Membership 
 
Councillor Terry Hall (Chair) 
Councillor David Fuller (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Michael Andrewes 
Councillor John Ferrett 
Councillor Donna Jones 
Councillor Phil Smith 
 
Standing Deputies 
 
Councillor Peter Eddis 
Councillor Aiden Gray 
Councillor Les Stevens 
Councillor Sandra Stockdale 
Councillor Alistair Thompson 
Councillor Neill Young 
 

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.) 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk 
 
Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 

 1  Apologies for Absence  
 

 2  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 3  Minutes - 26 September 2013 (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2013 as a 
correct record. 
 
RECOMMENDED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 
2013 be confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

 4  Update on actions identified in the minutes  
 

 5  Update Report from the External Auditor  
 

  The External Auditor will provide a verbal update. 
 
RECOMMENDED that the verbal update from the External Auditor be 
noted. 
 
 

 6  Draft Equality and Diversity Strategy 2014-17 - (INFORMATION ONLY 
ITEM) (Pages 11 - 76) 
 

  An updated set of documents will be provided at the meeting as the 
consultation does not end until today.  Members will be able to ask questions 
and feed any comments they have to Cabinet.  
 

 7  2013 Budget Consultation Report - Residents (INFORMATION ONLY 
ITEM) (Pages 77 - 210) 
 

  The purpose of the report is to provide members with an overview of analysis 
of responses to the 2013 budget consultation. 
(Please note that hard copies of the appendices will not be attached as they 
are lengthy.  Copies have been placed in Group Rooms and are available to 
view on the website.  A full copy will be available at the meeting). 

 8  Audit Performance Status Report to 18 October 2013 for Audit Plan 
2013/14 (Pages 211 - 222) 
 

  The purpose of this item is to update the Committee on the Internal Audit 
Performance for 2013/14 to 18 October 2013 against the Annual Audit Plan, 
highlight areas of concern and areas where assurance can be given on the 



 
3 

 

internal control framework. 
RECOMMENDED  
(1) that Members note the Audit Performance for 2013/14 to 18 October 
2013 
(2) that Members note the highlighted areas of control weakness for the 
2013/14 Audit Plan. 
(3) that Members note the changes in the Audit Plan 
 

 9  Treasury Management Mid Year Review for 2013/14 (Pages 223 - 254) 
 

  The purpose of the paper is to inform members and the wider community of 
the Council's Treasury Management position at 30 September 2013 and of the 
risks attached to that position, and to revise the list of approved investments. 

 
RECOMMENDED that the recommendations set out in paragraph 3 of the 
report be adopted. 
 

 10  Appointment of Independent Persons.  
 

  An interview panel constituted in accordance with the Council's regulations 
(that included three members of the Governance and Audit and Standards 
Committee) agreed that Carole Damper and Bill Bailey should become 
independent persons.   The Committee is asked to confirm the appointment of 
Carole Damper and Bill Bailey for a period of three years from 21 October 
2013 and to recommend to Council that the appointments be ratified. 

 11  City Solicitor Report - Scheme of Delegation (Pages 255 - 262) 
 

  (report to follow) 
 

 12  Data Breach Reporting (Pages 263 - 266) 
 

  (Please note that appendix 1 is exempt so if the Committee wishes to 
discuss this, the meeting will need to move into exempt session at that 
point)  
 
The purpose of the report is to inform the Committee of any Data Security 
Breaches actions agreed/taken since the last meeting.  
 
RECOMMENDED that Members of the Governance and Audit and 
Standards Committee note the breaches that have arisen and the action 
determined by CIGP 
 

 13  Exclusion of Press and Public  
 



 
4 

 

  That in view of the contents of the following item on the agenda the 
Committee is RECOMMENDED to adopt the following motion: 
 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government 
Act, 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act, 1985, the press and public be excluded for the consideration of the 
following item(s) on the grounds that the report(s) contain information 
defined as exempt in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act, 1972”. 
 
The public interest in maintaining the exemption must outweigh the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
(NB The exempt/confidential committee papers on the agenda will 
contain information which is commercially, legally or personally 
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  Members are 
reminded of standing order restrictions on the disclosure of exempt 
information and are invited to return their exempt documentation to the 
Senior Local Democracy Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for 
shredding.) 
 
Item       Exemption Para No.* 
 
12. Data Breach Reporting - Appendix 1 
Paragraph Exemption Nos:   1,2 and 3 
 

1. Information relating to any individual 
2. Information that is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3.Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 



 
 

 
53 

 

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING of the Governance & Audit & Standards 
Committee held on Thursday, 26 September 2013 at 3.00 pm in Conference 
Room L, the Civic Offices, Portsmouth 
 
(NB These minutes should be read in conjunction with the agenda for the 

meeting which can be found at www.portsmouth.gov.uk.) 
 

Present 
 

 Councillor Terry Hall (Chair) 
 Councillor Michael Andrewes 

Councillor Donna Jones 
Councillor Phil Smith 
Councillor Les Stevens (In place of Councillor David 
Fuller) 
 

 
Officers 

 
 Michael Lawther, City Solicitor 

Chris Ward, Head of Finance and S151 Officer 
Michael Lloyd, Directorate Finance Manager (Technical 
& Financial Planning) 
Elizabeth Goodwin, Deputy Chief Internal Auditor 
Lucy Harper, Internal Auditor 
Jon Bell, Head of HR, Legal & Performance 
Iwona Defer, Equalities & Customer Research Officer 
Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager 
 

 
49. Apologies for Absence (AI 1) 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor David Fuller.  Councillor 
Les Stevens attended the meeting as his standing deputy.  Apologies for 
absence were also received from Councillor John Ferrett. 
 

50. Declarations of Members' Interests (AI 2) 
 
Councillor Terry Hall declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 9 in 
that she is a trustee (not council appointed) of PRENO (Portsmouth Race 
Equality Network Organisation). 
 

51. Minutes - 27 June 2013 (and Exempt Appendix to Minutes) (AI 3) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2013 
(including the exempt appendix to the minutes) be confirmed and signed 
by the chair as a correct record. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

 
54 

 

52. Updates on Actions identified in the Minutes (AI 4) 
 
The following matters were confirmed:- 
 

· It remained the intention of the Director of Public Health to provide 
training as mentioned on page 42 of the minutes. 

· With regard to whistleblowing, the City Solicitor confirmed that he had 
made enquiries and concluded that a refresher course of training was 
needed across the city council and this had been scheduled. 

· The issue regarding home to school transport mentioned on page 45 
was being considered. 

· Mr Jon Bell confirmed that information on disclosure and barring had 
now been received. 

· The City Solicitor confirmed that the paper referred to in exempt 
minute 46 could now be published, as the exemption had been lifted. 

 
53. Update Report from the External Auditor (including LG Sector Update) 

(AI 5 ) 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

 

Mr Mark Justesen, External Auditor, Ernst & Young, introduced the report and 
said that everything was on track in accordance with the timetable included in 
the report.  He advised that the LG Sector update was a general information 
report which was not specific to Portsmouth City Council but provided 
information on what was happening across the wider region.  In response to a 
query Mr Justesen confirmed that Ernst & Young, PCC's external auditors, 
were able to make comparisons with other authorities through the value for 
money profile and CIPFA as could officers and local authorities themselves. 
 

RESOLVED that the update from the external auditor be received. 
 

54. Annual Audit Results Report 2012/13 (AI 6) 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

 
Mr Mark Justesen introduced the report and said that the authority had 
produced a good set of accounts. There were very few amendments and 
those there were had been dealt with appropriately.  He said there were a 
number of errors that had been corrected as a result of audit findings but 
these were not significant for reporting to members as they were generally 
small and mainly related to technical disclosure points to comply with the 
Code.  
The Director planned to issue an unqualified audit opinion once in receipt of 
the signed Letter of Representation, which had been prepared using the 
standard Ernst & Young template but with additional representations sought 
on: 

· the restated comparatives resulting from a change in accounting policy 
for Solent LEP and  

· the use of an internal expert for valuation of the Council’s non-current 
assets.    

He said that there was nothing he needed to draw to members' attention 
except that the Council needs to prepare Harbour Accounts in companies act 

Page 2



 

 
55 

 

format for 2012/13, and then submit them to the Secretary of State once 
audited. 
 
He said that page 8 showed the value for money results which concluded that 
PCC had sufficient arrangements to demonstrate compliance with the Audit 
Commission’s 2 VFM criteria. 
 
Under ‘Resilience’ Mr Justesen reported that the Council had performed well 
in 12/13, delivering a £5.4m improvement on the budget although there were 
still challenges in delivering the savings target for 13/14.  He said the auditor's 
view was that given the savings that need to be delivered over the medium-
term, it would be more prudent to adopt a strategic approach over a longer 
term rather than have an annual budget.   
 
Under ‘securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness’ Mr Justesen reported 
the Council was part way through a journey that needed to be completed in 
time to inform the setting of the 14/15 budget. Work on the corporate ‘plan on 
a page’ was progressing but needed to be completed to be able to drive 
service and financial planning, and subsequent performance management 
against them. 
 
The fees would be slightly higher than set out in the initial fee letter for three 
reasons: 

· the audit of the harbour accounts 

· the additional of two new grant claims in 12/13 and 

· time associated with dealing with and responding to electors 

The Letter of Representation was signed by Mr Chris Ward and by Councillor 
Terry Hall, Chair of the committee. 
 
RESOLVED that the Annual Audit Results Report 2012/13 be noted. 
 

55. Annual Governance Statement 2012/13 (AI 7) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
 
The Chair of the Committee agreed to amend the order of the published 
agenda as it was necessary to approve the Annual Governance Statement 
prior to signing off the statement of accounts. 
 
Ms Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager, outlined the report. 
 
The Chair of the committee requested that in paragraphs 2.2.2 and 2.2.3 
reference to the City Mayor be deleted and replaced by reference to the 
Leader and this was agreed. 
 
During discussion the following matters were raised. 
 

· It was confirmed that currently the annual governance statement does 
not go to the Cabinet Member for Resources portfolio and Mr Jon Bell 
agreed to talk to Councillor Hugh Mason to check whether he would 
find this useful. 

Page 3



 

 
56 

 

· Mr Mark Justesen, external auditor, commented that this was a very 
thorough document especially in comparison to those that other 
authorities produce. 

 
RESOLVED that the Committee 
 
(a) note the progress made against the 2011/12 annual governance 

issues as set out in Appendix A; 
 
(b) approve the 2013 local code of governance in Appendix B for 

publication; 
 
(c) approve the 2012/13 Annual Governance Statement in Appendix C 

for publication (subject to any amendments requested by the 
Committee). 

 
56. Statement of Accounts 2012/13 (AI 8) 

 
(TAKE IN STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS) 

 
Mr Chris Ward, Head of Financial Services, advised the Committee that the 
accounts were virtually unchanged since the presentation they had received 
on 19 September.   He said that the accounts had to be approved by 30 
September 2013 and to be signed by the Chair of the committee and himself.  
He advised that the auditors had not had any issues with the accounts.  Mr 
Ward advised that there was a statutorily prescribed way of presenting these 
accounts and the only point where a comparison could be made with the 
council's accounts occurred at the entry which said contribution to/withdrawal 
from council's reserves.  He advised that he drawdown figure amounted to 
£0.5m (where expenditure was more than income), but the budget had 
planned on a £5.8m drawdown and so this gave a £5.3m underspend.  
In addition, it had been anticipated that the deficit on collection rates would 
amount to £200k whereas the actual deficit was £27k.  There was therefore 
an improvement and the council's share of that amounted to £147k.  Overall 
the council's position was £5.4m better than anticipated.  Mr Ward advised 
that a report about where it is recommended that this money should go would 
be presented to Cabinet and Council and it was anticipated that £5m would be 
set aside to supplement capital reserves in the knowledge that there were 
known future calls on the council's reserves for example in relation to the City 
Deal, the Hard, Dunsbury Hill Farm and the City Centre Development. 
 
Following a short discussion the committee approved the statement of 
accounts which were duly signed by the Head of Financial Services, Mr Chris 
Ward and the Chair of the Committee, Councillor Terry Hall. 
 

57. Update on the Council's compliance with its Equality Duty and Equality 
Impact Assessment Process (AI 9 ) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
 

Page 4



 

 
57 

 

Ms Iwona Defer provided an overview of the report which updated the 
committee on the compliance of council services with the equality duty and 
the equality impact assessment process since the last report dated 27 June 
2013.  She said that some services were consistently compliant but others 
were less so.  She said that Traffic & Environment Service had improved its 
compliance rate since the last report and that Children's Services would soon 
be 100% compliant. 
 
The Chair commented that she was pleased that this committee received 
regular updates as she felt this was an incentive to all services to be 100% 
compliant. 
 
RESOLVED (1) that the Committee notes the contents of the report; 
 

 (2) that the Committee continues to monitor the compliance 
of the Council services with the Equality Duty and the 
Equality Impact Assessment process adopted by the 
Council, on a quarterly basis; 
 

 (3) that the City Solicitor continues to report on such 
compliance to the Committee on a quarterly basis. 

 
58. Revision to Equality & Diversity Strategy 2014-17 - "Information only" 

report (AI 10) 
 
Ms Iwona Defer presented the report which informed the Committee about a 
planned revision of the current equality and diversity strategy and outlined the 
approach that would be applied to consultation and engagement with staff, 
residents and key partners which would assist with developing and refreshing 
the strategy.  In response to queries the following points were clarified: 
 

· It was not compulsory to have an engagement plan but it provided 
useful guidance on consultations. 

· Training on equality impact assessment was provided on an ad hoc 
basis. 

· It was confirmed that the EIA team checks reports before decisions are 
made and uses the future work programme to perform checks on 
whether an EIA had been undertaken and if not they would be asked 
why not. 

 
The Committee noted the report. 
 

59. Compliance with the Gifts and Hospitality Protocol (AI 11) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
 
The City Solicitor introduced the report and said that it updated members on 
gifts and hospitality.  By way of background he said that the limits had not 
been increased since 2002 and invited members to consider whether they 
wished to make any amendment to those figures.  He said that it was unusual 
for anyone to be given a gift of more than £25 in value so did not anticipate 

Page 5



 

 
58 

 

any need to revise that figure, subject to members' views.  However the figure 
of £25 in relation to hospitality was perhaps a little low now as when officers 
go to social functions the dinner typically costs more than £25.  The City 
Solicitor advised that members could leave things as they were as the 
Monitoring Officer had power to agree hospitality amounts over the limit by 
exception or members could increase the limit. If however members felt that a 
change to the current amounts was in order, then they could recommend that 
to Council. 
 
With regard to the two staff mentioned on page 5 of Appendix A, these 
amounts were more than should have been accepted and therefore they will 
need to make a donation to the Lord Mayor's Charity. 
 
During discussion the City Solicitor advised that where there was a potential 
contract to be offered, no gifts or hospitality at all were acceptable. 
 
Following discussion it was proposed by Councillor Terry Hall and seconded 
by Councillor Donna Jones that the amount that may be accepted by an 
employee for hospitality be increased to £40.  Upon being put to the vote this 
was carried. 
 
RESOLVED (1) that the report be noted; 
 
 (2) that the committee recommends to council that the 

current level up to which hospitality may be accepted be 
increased to £40. 

 
60. Audit Performance Status Report to 30 August 2013 for Audit Plan 

2013/14 (AI 12) 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

 
The Deputy Chief Internal Auditor outlined the report and said there were two 
new critical exceptions highlighted in this report and two from the 2012/13 
audit plan.  She said that there was a small increase in the level of exceptions 
as compared with previous years.  One of the reasons for this was that a 
number of schools had requested Audit to audit them and this had not 
happened in the previous two years.  This contributed to the number of 
exceptions. 
 
During discussion the following matters were clarified: 
 

· With regard to 6.2 of the report concerning purchase cards, a member 
of the committee asked whether more training was necessary.  The 
Head of HR, Legal and Performance said that the cards had not been 
used improperly but that the accounting rules had not been followed 
correctly.  The City Solicitor said that there were very few areas of real 
concern.  He said that one of the functions of Internal Audit was to 
discover areas where procedures needed to be tightened up and that 
the areas of concern had been communicated through PCC to ensure 
proper compliance in future. 
 

Page 6



 

 
59 

 

· With regard to 6.4 of the report on the Northern Quarter development, 
this project had originated in the 1990s and proper contracts had not 
been signed.  The Deputy Chief Internal Auditor confirmed that matters 
were in hand to arrange for proper contracts to be signed with the 
consultants. 

 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) Members note the Audit Performance for 2013/14 to 30 August 

2013; 
 
(2) Members note the highlighted areas of control weakness for the 

2013/14 Audit Plan. 
 

61. Audit Charter & Code of Ethics (AI 13 ) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT AND CODE) 
 
The Deputy Chief Internal Auditor introduced the report.  She said that the 
purpose of the report was to gain members' approval for the revised 
Portsmouth City Council's internal audit charter to ensure that it complies with 
the new standards and code of ethics following the introduction of the "public 
sector internal audit standards" by the Institute of Internal Auditors.  Members 
were satisfied with the contents of the charter and code of ethics. 
 
RESOLVED that Members approve the revised Internal Audit Charter and 
Code of Ethics. 
 

62. Treasury Management Outturn 2012/13 (AI 14) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
 
Michael Lloyd introduced the report advising that the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy's (CIPFA) prudential code requires local 
authorities to calculate prudential indicators before the start of and after each 
financial year.  He advised that those indicators that the Council is required to 
calculate at the end of the financial year area are contained in Appendix A of 
the report.  He further advised that the CIPFA code of practice on treasury 
management also requires the Section 151 Officer to prepare an annual 
report on the outturn of the previous year and that this information is shown in 
Appendix B of the report.  He advised members that the purpose of the paper 
is to report on the outturn prudential indicators for 2012/13 and the treasury 
management decisions taken over the course of 2012/13.  The committee 
was advised that the report was before them for noting as it would be going to 
Cabinet and Council for decision. 
 
The Chair commented that the information given in Appendix B was both 
interesting and clear. 
 
RESOLVED that the recommendations set out in paragraph 4 of the 
report relating to Appendices A and B be noted. 

Page 7



 

 
60 

 

 
63. Treasury Management Monitoring Report for the First Quarter of 2013/14 

(AI 15) 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

 
Michael Lloyd introduced the report which informed members and the wider 
community of the council's treasury management position at 30 June 2013 
and of the risks attached to that position.  Mr Lloyd drew members' attention 
to the economic background outlined in Appendix A. 
 
The Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer said that the report 
would be taken to Cabinet for decision and was before this committee for 
noting. 
 
RESOLVED that the actual treasury management indicators for the first 
quarter of 2013/14 set out in paragraph 4 of the report be noted. 
 

64. Performance Management Update - Q1, 2013-14 (AI 16) 
 

(TAKE IN REPORT) 
 

Ms Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager, introduced the report which 
provides a summary of information received as part of Quarter 1 reporting for 
2013-14 and an indication of how work around cost benchmarking will be 
taken forward.  Ms Nash explained that for the first quarter of the reporting 
period, heads of service were asked to provide performance reports against 
their business "plans on a page" and issues raised are outlined in 4.2 of the 
report. 
 
During discussion the following matters were clarified: 
 

· With regard to value for money (VFM) and cost benchmarking, there 
are difficulties with some of the benchmarking data available namely 
that we are not necessarily comparing like for like.  It was confirmed 
that in the absence of alternative credible information and judgement 
from services, the data available in the CIPFA value for money toolkit 
should be presented.  It was confirmed to the committee that the 
intention was to present outcomes of VFM work to this committee in 
the coming month. 

· The committee was advised that a new post had been created within 
the HR, Legal and Performance improvement service team specifically 
to look into how money could be generated by services and also how 
to prevent loss. 

· The Head of Financial Services advised that the trend for schools to 
move to academy status was challenging.  If the academy was a trust 
academy, there would be an infrastructure in place already for them to 
use rather than the local authority.  He said that it was important to 
produce a good offer to non-trust academies. 

 
RESOLVED that the committee notes the report and  
 

Page 8



 

 
61 

 

a) notes the performance issues as set out in section 4; and  
 
b) approves the approach to cost benchmarking set out in section 7. 
 

65 Data Breach Reporting (AI 17) 
(TAKE IN REPORT) 

 
The City Solicitor introduced the report and said that Appendix 1 is exempt but 
that it only set out the specific instances of the data breaches concerned and 
therefore the report itself could be dealt with in open session.  He advised that 
should the committee wish to discuss any of the matters in detail that 
appeared in the exempt appendix then the committee would have to do so in 
exempt session. 
 
The City Solicitor advised that in 2011 PCC signed an undertaking following a 
reportable data breach to the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO) and 
the ICO followed this with an on-site audit. One of their recommendations was 
to establish a central body for information governance.  The Corporate 
Information Governance Panel (CIGP) had since been formed and was 
chaired by the City Solicitor in the role of Senior Information Risk Owner 
(SIRO).  The CIGP had been formed broadly to establish policy and 
procedures for information governance and to maintain a log of data breaches 
and determine onward action. 
 
The City Solicitor advised that eight potential breaches have been reported to 
CIGP for the rolling year June 2012-2013.  The CIGP determines the severity, 
remedial actions and need for onward reporting to the ICO. 
 
The City Solicitor advised the committee that substantial fines could be issued 
by the ICO for serious breaches of the Data Protection Act and Privacy and 
Electronic Communications Regulations.  Although every effort is made to 
impress upon employees the importance of complying with the regulations, on 
occasion human error was the cause of a potential breach and little more 
could be done in those circumstances.  The City Solicitor advised that the new 
photocopiers that had been introduced throughout the council would lead to 
much better security as they now required an ID card at the point of collection. 
 
RESOLVED that members of the Governance and Audit and Standards 
Committee note the breaches that have arisen and the action determined 
by CIGP. 
 
The meeting concluded at 4.55 pm. 
 
 
 
 

  

Councillor Terry Hall 
Chair 

 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Report on results of the Equality & Diversity Strategy consultation 

 

1. Introduction 

Portsmouth City Council's Equality & Diversity Strategy 2010-13 expires at the end of 
this year. The Equality & Diversity Team has therefore been working on refreshing 
the current strategy for years 2014-17 in order to keep it in line with its legal duties 
and its current policy, and to ensure that its focus is still relevant and important to 
Portsmouth residents, visitors and council staff. The revised strategy will be 
launched on 3rd December 2013, following approvals from the Governance and Audit 
& Standards Committee on 2nd November 2013, and the Cabinet on 2nd December 
2013.  

A consultation on the refreshed strategy commenced on 1st August 2013 and will 
finish on 31st October 2013.  

 

2. Methodology 

The consultation is aimed at all Portsmouth residents as the strategy covers people 
protected under the Equality Act 2010 because of their age, gender, disability race, 
religion or belief, sexual orientation, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
and marriage and civil partnership.  

Therefore, we have employed the following methods of consulting to reach the 
widest possible audience: 

· Service management has been asked for feedback and ideas on how to 
improve on the strategy. An email was sent to all service managers on 2nd 
October 2013 by the Head of Customer, community & democratic service 
asking for their input into the strategy revision process by 31st October 2013. 
The following questions have been asked: 
- tell us whether you think that we should continue working on the 

current equality priorities 

- are there any other equality issues / priorities that the council should 
focus on 

- are there any specific actions that your service would like to / is able 
to take to support the achievement of any of the current / new (if you 
can propose any) priorities? 

- are there any other improvements that we could make to our current 
strategy? 

 
· Email has been sent to a number of diverse community groups inviting them 

to take part in the consultation including: Portsmouth Disability Forum, Age 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



2 
 

UK Portsmouth, Pompey Pensioners, different BME community groups, 
Chatterbox for LGBT people, Chrysalis for transgender people. 
 

· Email has been sent to key partner organisations: Community Action in 
Portsmouth, the University of Portsmouth, Hampshire Constabulary, 
Portsmouth College, Highbury College, Friendship Centre, and Hampshire 
Fire & Rescue.  
 

· On-line survey (with an option of requesting a word version of a paper copy). 
 

· Respondents can provide their views via email to 
equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or by calling 023 9268 8559. 
 

· The following drop-in sessions have been made available: 
o 22nd October, 2-4pm, in Ground Floor Meeting Room 3, Civic Offices 
o 24th October, 6-8pm, in Southsea Library 
o 30th October, 10am-12pm, in Cosham Community Centre. 

 
· Individual sessions have been offered to community groups.  

 
· Information about the consultation has been available on the council website, 

both on the Equality & Diversity web pages and the consultations web page. 
 

· The consultation has also been publicised through the Voluntary and 
Community Sector newsletter, which is sent to many voluntary and community 
groups and organisations in the city.  
 

· A PowerPoint presentation has been prepared providing a simple summary of 
the focus and priorities contained in the current Equality & Diversity Strategy 
(2010-13). The presentation has been available as part of the on-line survey, 
published on the Equality & Diversity web pages of the council website, and 
has been sent with all communications about the future strategy consultation 
to key partner organisations and community groups.  
 
 

3. Results so far 

 
3.1. Feedback from service management 

So far, we have only received one response from service management, namely from 
Corporate Assets, Business & Standards.  

Q1 Tell us whether you think that we should continue working on the current 
equality priorities 

Page 12



3 
 

Answer:  

· "the existing strategy is still relevant but the priorities could be more about 
inclusion in the Shaping the Future of Portsmouth vision, i.e. enabling all groups 
to participate in this and benefit from the city's development. 

· We need to include bodies like the LEP and Health and Wellbeing Board in 
helping to deliver the strategy. 

· We also have the census info and the latest JSNA to provide up to date 
information on inequality in Portsmouth." 
 

Q2 Are there any other equality issues / priorities that the council should focus 
on 
Answer: 

· "With the increase in the ageing population and the effect this can have on a 
person's life needs to be considered as an equality issue. Many older people will 
have decreased incomes, become less physically able, be a carer, become 
socially isolated, live in unsuitable housing for their needs. The JSNA data shows 
where in the city they are concentrated. 

· Poor schools results and lack of skills in the working population still needs to be 
tackled to prevent the inequalities groups become more disadvantaged through 
poverty and lack of engagement in the city's regeneration." 
 

Q3 Are there any specific actions that your service would like to / is able to 
take to support the achievement of any of the current / new (if you can propose 
any) priorities? 
Answer: 

· "Our approach to housing which is to work closely with Social Care to support 
vulnerable people to live independently (older people, people with physical or 
learning disabilities).  

· The employment, learning and skills services that support people to gain skills 
not learned in school, and who have barriers to learning and employment. This is 
not completely new work, but has more of a focus on allowing disadvantaged 
people being able to participate in 'Shaping the Future of Portsmouth'." 
    

Q4 Are there any other improvements that we could make to our current 
strategy? 
Answer: 

· "Only those mentioned above."  
 

3.2. Survey 

There has been a low response to the on-line survey. Only 10 persons have chosen 
to provide their views on the future strategy using this method. 

Question 1 - Do the 5 priorities in the current strategy continue to reflect the needs of 
people in Portsmouth?  

· 9 of 10 persons have answered this question.  

Page 13



4 
 

· The majority of respondents agreed that all 5 priorities continue to reflect the 
needs of people in Portsmouth.  

· 66.7% of respondents agreed whilst 33.3% respondents were unsure whether 
Priorities 1 (Promoting fairness and diversity by tackling inequalities, 
disadvantage and discrimination) and 5 (Promoting community engagement) 
continue to reflect the needs of people in Portsmouth. 

· 55.6% of respondents agreed whilst 44.4% were unsure whether Priority 2 
(Leadership and partnerships) continue to reflect the needs of people in 
Portsmouth.  

· 55.6% of respondents agreed, 22.2% disagreed, and 22.2% were unsure 
whether Priority 3 (Employment and training) continue to reflect the needs of 
people in Portsmouth. 

· 55.6% agreed, 11.1% disagreed, and 33.3% were unsure whether Priority 4 
(Service delivery and access) continue to reflect the needs of people in 
Portsmouth. 

· Some respondents have further commented that: 
o There is a need for "more programmes to tackle more easier the issues 

such as discrimination, social depreciation, exclusion by poverty…" 
o "introduce more empowerment to all citizens in the community" 
o "More emphasis required on encouraging, promoting and supporting 

young people with disabilities into employment". 

 

Question 2 - If you feel that the council should continue working on any of the 5 
current priorities, please can you tell us what specific actions you think the council 
needs to take to achieve these priorities?  

· 4 of 10 respondents answered this question.  

· "Since the cut back in Employment Advisors, disabled young people are 
struggling to access and secure employment and as a result, are NEET. This is 
an urgent issue that needs to be addressed by the PCC to ensure that these 
young people are NOT being discriminated against and automatically being 
dismissed as too hard to reach or impossible to employ." 

· "don't believe enough information reaches some of the groups especially in the 
disability area". 

· "In order of priority: Community engagement; service delivery/access; promoting 
fairness; employment training. They are in this order as I feel there is work to be 
done with building bridges before you tackle employment and training, as 
although this is a priority, there is existing inequality in some service provision 
which needs to be dealt with first." 
 
 
 

Page 14



5 
 

Question 3 - Are the 5 priorities important to you?  

· 9 of 10 respondents answered this question. A large majority (75% and above) of 
those who have responded feel that all the 5 priorities are important to them. 
None of the respondents disagreed and few (between 12.5 and 22.2%) were not 
sure.  

 

Question 4 - Are there other equality issues that the council should focus on? 

· 4 of 10 respondents answered this question.  

· Those who have responded have raised the following issues: 
o "with equality and diversity it is important that children are reached early in 

their lives to value these things, therefore perhaps the council could work 
with schools more in the running of events and helping with highlighting 
the value behind being different." 

o "Better provision of information" 
o "Ensuring that young people with mental health problems are not 

discriminated against." 
o "Gender inequalities in the workplace".  

 

Question 5 - How else can the council improve on the current strategy? 

· 6 of 10 respondents have answered this question. 

· Those who have responded have suggested the following improvements to the 
current strategy: 

o "The council should enable access to buildings, especially their own" 
o "To keep consulting with the community as needs regularly change and 

the strategy should identify that it should be regularly updated according to 
the needs of people in Portsmouth." 

o "To consult with under-represented communities and find a way of 
understanding barriers / issues." 

 

3.3. Email / telephone responses 

We received the following comments and suggestions for improvements to our 
current Equality & Diversity Strategy via an email received on 22nd July 2013: 

Section 5 Context mentions: "In addition to these issues, there have been 
significant changes in the population of Portsmouth in recent years, including 
inward migration from the new European Union states in Eastern Europe, and 

Page 15



6 
 

further increases in the number of overseas students living in the city. These 
issues are further covered in Section 6"  

I have did not come across any further information about the number of 
overseas students living in the city. Some general statistics will help build a 
more accurate profile of the BME community in Portsmouth. 

Section 7 mentions: "As well as limitations to the quality of data, there are 
also issues of scope – we currently lack useful data on the needs of asylum 
seekers and refugees and gypsy and traveller communities." Will this become 
an action in the Single Equality Scheme?  

There also seems to be no mention of BME youth in terms of population and 
community engagement strategies. I feel that it is important to understand the 
statistics behind BME youth and how to engage them in community 
development in and around their areas. This can possibly come under the 
ethnicity section. 

  

3.4. Drop-in sessions 

Unfortunately, despite many drop-in sessions having been made available at 
different times of the day and different accessible locations in the city, there has 
been no take up for any of the sessions.  

The drop-in sessions have been widely publicised via various channels: PCC 
website (consultation and equality & diversity pages), voluntary and community 
sector newsletter, an email to key partner organisations, an email to all our contacts 
for different community groups including BME groups, Portsmouth Disability Forum, 
Hilsea Youth Club - Learning Difficulties and Disabilities Group, Chatterbox - social 
groups for LGBT people, Chrysalis - charity supporting transgender people, Age UK, 
Pompey Pensioners, and many others.  

 

3.5. Individual sessions 

Individual sessions have been on offer throughout the consultation period. Groups 
and organisations have been encouraged to contact us to express an interest in us 
organising a session at time and in a location that suited them, where specific issues 
could be explored.  

We have organised three such sessions: 

3.5.1. Portsmouth Disability Forum (PDF) 

The future strategy was discussed at PDF meeting in October 2013. No specific 
issues have been raised or comments made about the future strategy. The members 

Page 16



7 
 

of PDF who attended said that they would contact us if they wished to provide their 
feedback.  

 

3.5.2. Chatterbox - social group for LGBT people 

A session for held with the group in October 2013 and the following issues have 
been raised / comments made: 

· Valuing Diversity Survey (2009) was inadequate. It was too general; no 
specific questions were asked that would be relevant to LGBT people. Data 
from the survey is fundamentally unsound.  

· LGBT includes lots of different people who might have different problems. 
There are LGBT communities, not community. 

· There is a trust / confidence issue in people identifying themselves as LGBT. 
More effort needs to be made to approach LGBT people to gain their 
confidence before engaging with them more fully.  

· Hate crime against LGBT people is massively under-reported.  

· Lack of data / information about LGBT community in Portsmouth. Chatterbox 
chair will signpost us for more information.  

· There are issues with housing and hounding for LGBT people. Chatterbox 
would like to see a policy of zero-tolerance towards people living in council 
housing and harassing other local residents because there are LGBT. Often, it 
is the victim who is moved on to another accommodation, rather than 
perpetrators being evicted. Chatterbox have given a few examples of persons 
they know who have suffered verbal and emotional abuse as well as anti-
social behaviour (such as dog poo being put through their letter box) because 
of undergoing a gender reassignment. Victims are often scared to report or 
have no confidence in effective response by the police. Therefore, they suffer 
in silence and are isolated.  

· The council is doing a good job in terms of keeping in contact with the Muslim 
community and supporting Muslim residents, such as with the recent issues 
around the development of an Islamic school in Portsmouth. However, it is 
important that the council also reaches the wider Muslim community, not just 
the self-appointed leaders, who might have a completely different outlook to 
the general Muslim community.  

· Transgender people particularly suffer from not being understood by other 
people. There is a need to raise awareness of LGBT.  

· There I also a need to promote religious tolerance by demonstrating 
similarities between religions to the general public.  

 

 

Page 17



8 
 

3.5.3. Gateway project volunteers 

The volunteers from different BME communities in the city have listened to a talk 
about the future strategy, but no specific equality issues have been raised or 
suggestions made for improvements to the current strategy.  

 

4. Conclusion 

The consultation is open until 31st October 2013. Despite low numbers of 
respondents and therefore the consultation results not being statistically valid or 
demographically representative, some useful qualitative information and feedback 
has been obtained, which will help steer out future work in the Equality & Diversity 
field.  

Clearly more engagement and work need to be done with Portsmouth's LGBT 
community to better understand the issues they face and come up with actions to 
tackle them.  

An issue has also been raised about the lack of council's engagement with the BME 
youth. Furthermore, young disabled people's employment has been raised an issue 
that will need further exploration.  

We continue to lack useful data on the needs of asylum seekers and refugees and 
gypsy and traveller communities. Some work will therefore need to be done in this 
area to gain an understanding of the issues and support needs of those 
communities.  

 

Page 18



E
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

 -
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 f
a

ir
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 b

y
 t

a
c
k

li
n

g
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
, 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 a
n

d
 d

is
c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

E
ns

u
re

 t
ha

t 
E

m
e
rg

en
cy

 
R

es
p
on

se
 P

la
n
s 

co
ns

id
er

 t
he

 
ne

ed
s 

of
 d

is
a
bi

lit
y 

gr
o
up

s

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
E

xe
rc

is
e
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
di

sa
bl

e
d 

p
eo

pl
e

C
in

dy
 J

on
e
s

R
es

t 
C

en
tr

e 
P

la
n

P
or

ts
af

e 
P

la
n

A
ll

P
or

ts
af

e 
e
xe

rc
is

e 
d
ue

 in
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3.

Im
pl

e
m

en
t P

ri
or

ity
 D

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
-2

0
1
4
 

w
ith

 a
 p

ur
p
os

e 
o
f 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
su

p
po

rt
 t
o
 m

o
st

 v
u
ln

e
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

e
op

le
 a

nd
 

fa
m

ili
es

 o
f 

9-
1
9 

ye
a
r 

ol
ds

 w
ho

 d
o 

no
t t

ra
di

tio
n
al

ly
 a

cc
e
ss

 u
ni

ve
rs

a
l 

se
rv

ic
es

.

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
S

til
l t

o
 b

e
 c

on
fir

m
ed

, b
u
t 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

ou
n
d 

N
E

E
T

, 
te

e
n 

pa
re

nt
s,

 o
ff

en
di

n
g,

 
do

m
e
st

ic
 a

b
us

e,
 a

nd
 

re
du

ci
n
g 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n 

lo
ok

e
d 

a
ft

er
.

M
ar

k 
R

od
w

el
l

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

T
ru

st
 P

la
n 

20
11

-2
01

4
A

, 
S

E
T

he
 n

e
w

 I
T

Y
S

S
 w

as
 

la
un

ch
ed

 in
 a

ut
u
m

n
 

20
12

. E
-s

af
et

y 
o
ff

ic
er

 h
a
s 

be
en

 a
p
po

in
te

d 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 m

or
e 

vu
ln

er
a
bl

e
 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

in
g
 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 a

t t
h
em

. A
 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t 

w
o
rk

e
r 

fo
r 

do
m

e
st

ic
 a

b
us

e 
h
as

 a
ls

o 
be

en
 a

p
po

in
te

d.

C
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
pu

pi
ls

 in
cl

u
di

n
g 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 

S
pe

ci
al

 E
du

ca
tio

n
al

 N
ee

d
s 

an
d 

Lo
ok

e
d 

A
ft

er
 C

hi
ld

re
n

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
C

lo
se

 a
tt

ai
n
m

e
nt

 g
ap

s 
fo

r 
vu

ln
er

a
bl

e
 p

u
pi

ls
 

us
in

g 
pu

p
il 

pr
em

iu
m

;

R
ai

se
 a

sp
ira

tio
n
s 

fo
r 

ke
y 

gr
ou

ps
 in

cl
ud

in
g
 

gi
rls

, b
oy

s 
an

d
 B

M
E

 
pu

pi
ls

.

K
ar

en
 

O
’C

o
n
n
o
r,

 
Li

nd
a
 J

ac
ob

s

E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
C

om
m

is
si

o
ni

n
g 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n

A
LL

R
ec

e
nt

 d
at

a 
an

al
ys

es
 

ha
ve

 f
o
cu

se
d
 o

n
 th

e
se

 
gr

ou
p
s.

F
u
rt

h
er

 im
pr

ov
e
 th

e 
p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
re

-b
ir
th

 t
o
 5

’s
 i
n
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 la
n
gu

ag
e
, 

lit
er

a
ry

, 
pe

rs
on

a
l, 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 

em
ot

io
na

l d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
nt

Ju
n
e 

2
01

2
 f

or
 

E
C

A
T

, 
o
ng

o
in

g
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ot
h
er

 t
w

o
 

m
e
as

ur
es

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
a)

 Im
pl

em
en

t 
E

ve
ry

 
C

hi
ld

 a
 T

al
ke

r 
(E

C
A

T
) 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e;

b)
 In
cr

ea
se

 t
he

 n
um

b
er

 
of

 2
 y

r 
ol

d
s 

ac
ce

ss
in

g
 

fu
nd

in
g
 b

y 
1
00

%
 (

fr
o
m

 
12

0 
in

 J
an

 2
0
12

 to
 2

40
 

by
 S

e
pt

. 
20

1
3)

;
c)

 Im
pr

ov
e 

se
tt

in
gs

 r
at

e
d 

G
oo

d 
o
r 

O
u
ts

ta
n
di

n
g 

b
y 

O
fs

te
d)

C
at

he
ri
ne

 
K

ic
kh

am
, 

M
a
rc

 
H

ar
de

r,
 

A
nt

ho
n
y 

H
ar

p
er

E
du

ca
tio

n 
a
nd

 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
C

om
m

is
si

o
ni

n
g 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n

A
, 
D

P
ro

vi
si

o
na

l E
Y

F
S

P
 

re
su

lts
 s

ug
ge

st
 

P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 a
he

ad
 o

f 
na

tio
na

l.

2
9
 O

ct
o
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 19



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

M
on

ito
r 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

, h
ar

a
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
di

sc
rim

in
at

io
n
 b

y 
al

l e
q
ua

lit
y 

st
ra

nd
s

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
R

ed
uc

ed
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

co
m

pl
a
in

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d
 a

n
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 s

a
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls

Jo
 D

u
ck

en
fie

ld
C

or
po

ra
te

 c
om

p
la

in
ts

 
st

ra
te

g
y

A
ll

N
ew

 c
om

pl
a
in

ts
 

da
ta

b
as

e 
in

 s
til

l i
n
 

de
ve

lo
p
m

en
t t

o
 e

n
ab

le
 

m
o
ni

to
rin

g 
by

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 

ch
a
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s 
as

 d
ef

in
e
d 

in
 th

e
 E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
 2

0
10

. 
A

s 
at

 J
un

e
 2

0
13

 n
u
m

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

a
in

ts
 h

as
 g

on
e 

do
w

n
 f

ro
m

 5
5
4 

st
ag

e 
1 

co
m

pl
a
in

ts
 in

 2
01

1
/2

0
12

 
to

 5
0
2 

in
 2

0
12

/1
3
.

A
ct

iv
el

y 
en

co
ur

ag
e
 r

e
po

rt
in

g
 o

f 
ha

ra
ss

m
e
nt

 &
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
tio

n 
&

 
m

o
ni

to
r 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n
 w

ith
 

ou
tc

om
es

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
In

cr
ea

se
 o

f 
in

ci
de

n
ts

 
re

po
rt

ed
B

ru
ce

 M
ar

r
S

af
er

 P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 
P

ar
tn

e
rs

hi
p
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

A
LL

H
at

e 
cr

im
e 

se
rv

ic
e
 is

 n
o
w

 
em

be
dd

e
d 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 to

 
re

po
rt

 h
o
m

o
ph

o
bi

c,
 

tr
a
ns

ph
ob

ic
, r

a
ce

, a
nd

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 h

a
te

 c
ri
m

e
. 
•�7

6
%

 (
n
.1

3
) 

fe
lt 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
as

 
ve

ry
 g

o
od

; 
6%

 (
n
.1

) 
fe

lt 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

as
 g

oo
d 

an
d 

18
%

 (
n.

3)
 d

id
 n

ot
 g

iv
e 

a 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e
 q

u
es

tio
n.

E
ns

u
re

 E
q
ua

lit
y 

im
pa

ct
 

as
se

ss
m

e
nt

s 
ar

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
an

d
 

th
ei

r 
ac

tio
n 

ar
e 

in
te

gr
a
te

d
 in

to
 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 

se
rv

ic
es

A
ll 

he
a
ds

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

N
/A

A
LL

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

in
 th

e
 E

IA
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

- 
98

%
 o

f 
3 

ye
ar

lin
g
 r

o
lli

n
g 

E
IA

s 
w

er
e 

co
m

pl
e
te

d
 a

s 
at

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
.

R
ed

uc
in

g 
h
om

e
le

ss
ne

ss
 a

nd
 th

e 
us

e
 o

f 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

o
m

m
od

a
tio

n
20

13
/1

4
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
N

um
be

r 
of

 h
om

e
le

ss
 

ac
ce

p
ta

n
ce

s.
 o

f 
ho

m
e
le

ss
 p

re
ve

nt
io

ns
. 

U
se

 o
f 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

o
da

tio
n

O
w

en
 B

uc
kw

el
l

Im
pl

e
m

en
t t

h
e 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

ho
m

e
le

ss
ne

ss
 

st
ra

te
g
y,

 w
h
ic

h 
in

co
rp

o
ra

te
s 

a 
ra

n
ge

 o
f 

in
iti

a
tiv

e
s 

to
 p

re
ve

n
t 

ho
m

e
le

ss
ne

ss
 a

nd
 

de
al

 w
ith

 it
s 

co
n
se

qu
en

ce
s

A
LL

T
hi

s 
ta

rg
et

 is
 o

n-
go

in
g.

  
In

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 r

e
po

rt
ed

 to
 

ce
n
tr

al
 g

o
ve

rn
m

e
nt

 a
s 

re
qu

ir
e
d.

  
M

ai
n
 o

n
-g

oi
ng

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e
 is

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 th

a
t 

on
ly

 e
m

er
g
en

cy
 c

as
es

 
ar

e 
p
ut

 in
to

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

o
da

tio
n
.

2
9
 O

ct
o
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 20



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

N
ar

ro
w

 th
e 

ga
p 

be
tw

e
en

 t
he

 
m

o
st

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

o
pl

e
 a

n
d 

th
ei

r 
pe

er
s 

at
 

ke
y 

st
ag

e
s

20
15

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
at

ta
in

m
e
nt

 in
 E

n
gl

is
h
 &

 
M

at
hs

 a
t k

ey
 s

ta
g
es

Li
nd

a
 J

ac
ob

s
E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
C

om
m

is
si

o
ni

n
g 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n

A
LL

P
ro

gr
e
ss

 w
ill

 b
e
 k

no
w

n
 

on
 2

0
13

 f
ig

ur
es

 in
 th

e
 

au
tu

m
n 

on
ce

 f
ig

ur
e
s 

pu
bl

is
h
ed

.

A
lle

vi
a
te

 p
ov

er
ty

 a
nd

 b
re

ak
 t

he
 

cy
cl

e
 o

f 
de

pr
iv

a
tio

n
O

ng
oi

n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 a
lle

vi
a
te

 
po

ve
rt

y 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

be
tte

r 
fo

cu
se

d
 o

n
 

br
ea

ki
ng

 th
e
 c

yc
le

 o
f 

de
pr

iv
at

io
n

K
at

e 
K

e
nn

a
rd

T
ac

kl
in

g 
P

ov
e
rt

y 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

A
, D

, 
E

, 
S

E
A

ft
er

 t
he

 n
e
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
e
nt

 a
nd

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

w
er

e
 a

p
pr

o
ve

d
 in

 2
0
11

, 
m

u
ch

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

e
n 

co
m

pl
e
te

d
, e

.g
. 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
 to

 m
on

ey
 

ad
vi

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 c
o-

or
di

n
at

ed
 w

eb
si

te
 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
, c

o-
or

d
in

a
te

d
 

w
or

k 
on

 f
u
el

 p
ov

er
ty

, 
w

or
k 

on
 r

ai
si

n
g 

ed
uc

at
io

n
al

 a
tta

in
m

en
t.

P
ro

vi
d
e 

 s
u
pp

o
rt

 to
 th

os
e 

(m
a
in

ly
 

fe
m

a
le

) 
ex

pe
re

in
ci

ng
 d

o
m

e
st

ic
 

ab
us

e

M
A

R
A

C
 

es
ta

bl
is

h
ed

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
T

he
 m

e
as

ur
e
 is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 

by
 th

e 
S

a
fe

r 
P

o
rt

sm
o
ut

h 
P

ar
tn

e
rs

hi
p

B
ru

ce
 M

ar
r

C
om

m
u
ni

ty
 S

a
fe

ty
 &

 
V

io
le

n
ce

 a
g
ai

n
st

 
W

o
m

en
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n 

st
ra

th
e
gy

A
LL

C
A

A
D

A
 s

el
f 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

co
m

pl
e
te

d
. A

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 in

 
re

sp
on

se
 d

ra
ft

ed
.

F
ul

l d
om

es
tic

 a
bu

se
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g
 r

e
vi

e
w

 
co

m
pl

e
te

d
 a

n
d 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
ns

 b
ei

n
g 

im
pl

e
m

en
te

d
.

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e
 r

a
ng

e
 o

f 
e
du

ca
tio

n
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
a
nd

 y
o
un

g
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 s

pe
ci

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

et
te

r 
m

ee
t t

h
ei

r 
ne

e
ds

20
13

-1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
E

nh
an

ce
d 

re
so

u
rc

ed
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
pu

pi
ls

 w
ith

 
au

tis
m

, 
se

ns
o
ry

 
im

pa
ir
m

e
nt

 a
nd

 
en

ha
nc

ed
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n 

fo
r 

le
ar

n
er

s 
w

ith
 L

e
ar

n
in

g
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

a
nd

 
D

iff
ic

u
lti

e
s 

at
 p

os
t 

16
.

E
ric

 B
e
ll

E
du

ca
tio

n 
a
nd

 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
C

om
m

is
si

o
ni

n
g 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n

A
, 
D

E
nh

an
ce

d 
re

so
u
rc

ed
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
se

cu
re

d 
fo

r 
S

en
so

ry
 

Im
pa

ir
m

e
nt

 a
t S

t 
E

dm
un

ds
 S

ec
o
nd

a
ry

 a
n
d 

fo
r 

A
u
tis

m
 a

t 
C

ity
 o

f 
P

or
ts

m
ou

th
 B

oy
s 

sc
h
oo

l.

2
9
 O

ct
o
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 21



P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

 -
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s

A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

A
ut

is
m

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
O

ur
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
p
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 

na
tio

na
l s

tr
at

eg
y

Ja
ck

ie
 

C
ha

rl
es

w
or

th
N

at
io

n
al

 A
u
tis

m
 

st
ra

te
g
y

D
T

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

h
as

 b
e
en

 
de

ve
lo

p
ed

 a
nd

 is
 n

ow
 

be
in

g
 d

e
liv

er
e
d.

  
T

h
e 

au
tis

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

as
 

re
ce

nt
ly

 s
u
bj

ec
t 
to

 a
 

te
nd

e
r 

p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ne

w
 c

o
nt

ra
ct

 is
 c

u
rr

en
tly

 
be

in
g
 a

w
ar

de
d
.

H
ou

si
ng

 M
a
na

ge
m

en
t t

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p 

ne
w

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 p

ol
ic

y/
 g

ui
d
an

ce
 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n
s 

an
d
 

co
n
so

rt
iu

m
 li

nk
 g

ro
up

A
ug

us
t 2

01
2

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
Le

ss
 is

su
es

 to
 r

e
so

lv
e
 

w
ith

 R
A

s 
an

d
 g

ro
up

s.
S

ue
 E

dg
er

le
y/

 
B

ill
 M

o
od

y
H

ou
si

ng
 

M
an

a
ge

m
en

t 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n

A
LL

D
ra

ft
 g

ui
da

n
ce

 o
ut

 f
or

 
co

n
su

lta
tio

n
 w

ith
 

re
si

de
n
ts

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
12

.

Jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 v
ol

u
nt

ar
y 

an
d 

st
at

ut
or

y 
or

g
an

is
a
tio

ns
 e

.g
. 

P
ol

ic
e,

 F
ire

, P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
A

w
ar

e
ne

ss
 r

a
is

ed
 o

f 
eq

ua
lit

y 
is

su
e
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
es

e 
se

rv
ci

e
s 

th
a
t c

an
 

be
 a

d
re

ss
ed

 in
 o

n
e 

co
h
es

iv
e
 u

n
it 

ra
th

er
 

th
an

 w
o
rk

in
g 

in
 s

ilo
's

.

A
ll

N
/A

A
LL

V
ar

io
u
s 

ev
e
nt

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 a
rr

an
g
ed

 in
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
ith

 
P

or
ts

m
ou

th
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

, 
P

ol
ic

e,
 F

ire
 a

n
d 

P
C

C
 

se
rv

ic
es

W
o
rk

in
g 

w
ith

 d
iff

er
e
nt

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 

ch
a
ra

ct
e
ris

tic
 g

ro
u
ps

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
he

 
ci

ty
 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 o
ur

 
se

rv
ic

es
 is

 a
ce

iv
ed

 /
 e

n
ga

ge
m

en
t 

of
  
g
ro

up
s 

to
 ta

ck
le

 a
ny

 
in

eq
u
al

iti
es

.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
M

or
e
 a

w
ar

e
ne

es
 o

f 
o
ur

 
se

rv
ic

es
 t
o
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

 t
o 

th
e
 c

ity
. 

A
n 

in
cr

e
as

e 
o
f 

ta
ke

 u
p
 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

A
LL

N
/A

A
LL

A
 c

on
tin

ui
n
g 

e
ng

a
em

en
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r.
 P

C
C

 
of

fic
er

s 
a
tte

n
di

n
g 

va
ri

ou
s 

ev
en

ts
/m

e
et

in
gs

 t
o
 

en
su

re
 w

e
 h

e
ar

 o
f 

an
y 

eq
ua

lit
y 

is
su

e
s 

ra
is

e
d 

w
hi

ch
 c

a
n 

b
e 

fe
d
 b

a
ck

 t
o
 

th
e 

re
le

va
n
t o

ff
ic

er
.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 22



P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

 -
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g

A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

M
on

ito
r 

st
af

f 
p
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f 

eq
ua

lit
y 

vi
a 

st
a
ff

 s
ur

ve
ys

 &
 

va
lu

e
s 

w
o
rk

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
E

m
p
lo

ye
e
 s

ur
ve

y
Jo

n
 B

el
l

N
/A

A
ll

E
m

p
lo

ye
e
 o

p
in

io
n 

su
rv

e
y 

co
m

pl
e
te

d
 in

 2
01

2.
 

R
eg

ul
a
r 

P
u
ls

e 
su

rv
ey

s 
ar

e 
u
nd

e
rt

a
ke

n
.

E
ns

u
re

 o
ur

 m
an

da
to

ry
 E

&
D

 
tr

a
in

in
g 

re
fle

ct
s 

n
ew

 le
gi

sl
a
tio

n
 &

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
gu

id
e
lin

e
s

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
E

va
lu

a
tio

ns
 a

n
d 

n
um

be
r 

of
 c

ou
rs

es
 a

va
ila

b
le

Jo
n
 B

el
l

N
/A

A
ll

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

tr
an

sf
o
rm

a
tio

n
 

re
vi

e
w

 in
 t
h
is

 a
re

a 
da

ta
 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
lle

ct
e
d 

to
 r

e
fle

ct
 

th
is

.

E
qu

al
 p

ay
 a

ud
it

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
M

ea
su

re
s 

in
tr

o
du

ce
d 

to
 

ad
dr

e
ss

 a
ny

 is
su

e
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fr

o
m

 t
he

 a
ud

it

Jo
n
 B

el
l

C
en

tr
a
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

le
gi

sl
a
tio

n
A

ll
A

n 
E

qu
a
l P

a
y 

au
d
it 

w
as

 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t i

n
 2

0
12

. 
It 

an
al

ys
ed

 th
e
 b

a
si

c 
pa

y 
an

d 
to

ta
l g

ro
ss

 p
a
y 

of
 

m
e
n 

an
d
 w

o
m

e
n 

in
 e

a
ch

 
pa

y 
ba

n
d.

 R
eg

u
la

r 
E

qu
al

 
P

ay
 A

u
di

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
.

P
ro

vi
d
e 

su
p
po

rt
iv

e,
 s

u
st

ai
n
ab

le
 

em
pl

o
ym

en
t f

or
 p

eo
pl

e
 w

ith
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

P
o
rt

sm
o
ut

h 
C

ra
ft

 &
 M

a
nu

fa
ct

ur
in

g 
In

du
st

rie
s(

P
C

M
I)

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
F

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

o
p 

P
C

M
I t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
po

si
tiv

e
 

ou
tc

om
es

 f
or

 p
eo

pl
e
 

as
si

st
ed

 to
w

a
rd

s 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e
 e

m
pl

o
ym

en
t.

D
er

ek
 C

h
ris

tie
R

eg
en

er
a
tio

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

D
13

 p
e
op

le
 w

ith
 d

is
a
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
P

C
M

I.
 

O
ne

 h
a
s 

ju
st

 m
o
ve

d 
in

to
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e
 e

m
pl

o
ym

en
t 

el
se

w
h
er

e
 h

a
vi

n
g 

ga
in

ed
 

sk
ill

s 
an

d
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 a
t 

w
or

k.
 A

no
th

e
r 

pe
rs

on
 h

a
s 

be
en

 r
ec

ru
ite

d.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 23



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

W
o
rk

 w
ith

 th
e
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

W
o
rk

 a
nd

 P
en

si
o
ns

 (
D

W
P

) 
pr

im
e
 

co
n
tr

ac
to

rs
 a

n
d 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
l 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l 

W
o
rk

 P
ro

gr
a
m

m
e 

m
ee

ts
 lo

ca
l 

ne
ed

s.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
"S

uc
ce

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
 e

ng
a
gi

n
g 

pe
op

le
 f

ro
m

 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. P
eo

pl
e 

as
si

st
ed

 to
w

a
rd

s 
w

or
k 

th
ro

u
gh

 P
C

M
Is

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n
 th

e
 W

o
rk

 
P

ro
gr

a
m

m
e
."

D
er

ek
 C

h
ris

tie
N

/A
A

LL
D

el
iv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

be
g
an

 o
n 

18
 

Ju
ly

 2
01

1
. A

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
e 

pr
of

ile
d
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
of

 s
ta

rt
s 

an
d 

jo
b
 o

u
tc

om
es

 h
a
ve

 
gr

ea
tly

 im
p
ro

ve
d 

fo
r 

ye
ar

 
2,

 w
ith

 c
u
st

om
e
r 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
ra

te
s 

hi
gh

er
 

th
an

 t
he

 n
a
tio

n
al

 a
ve

ra
g
e 

fo
r 

W
or

k 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 24



P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

 -
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s

A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

C
om

pl
e
te

 r
em

od
e
lli

n
g 

o
f 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 li
vi

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

F
e
br

u
ar

y 
2
01

4
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
M

or
e
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
 m

o
de

ls
 

of
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

de
liv

er
y 

ai
m

ed
 a

t 
be

tte
r 

m
e
et

in
g 

th
e
 in

d
iv

id
ua

l 
su

p
po

rt
 n

e
ed

s 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
u
se

rs
, 
a
nd

 
im

pr
o
ve

d
 o

u
tc

om
es

 
ar

ou
n
d 

p
re

ve
n
tio

n
 o

f 
ho

m
e
le

ss
ne

ss
 a

nd
 

de
te

ri
or

a
tio

n 
in

 h
e
al

th
.

D
om

in
ic

 D
ew

A
du

lt 
S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e

D
A

bo
ut

 t
o 

u
nd

er
g
o 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n
 w

ith
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

us
e
rs

 a
n
d 

st
a
ke

h
ol

d
er

s.
 

T
en

de
r 

do
cu

m
e
nt

s 
d
ue

 t
o 

be
 is

su
e
d 

Ju
l 1

3
.

In
cr

ea
se

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
vi

a 
di

g
ita

l 
ch

a
nn

e
ls

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
R

e-
de

ve
lo

p 
m

us
eu

m
s'

 
w

eb
si

te
s,

 d
ev

e
lo

p
 a

  
d
ig

it
a
l 
"f

ro
n
t 

e
n
d
” 

fo
r 

th
e
 

ar
ch

iv
e
 a

n
d 

lo
ca

l h
is

to
ry

 
ca

ta
lo

g
ue

 e
n
tr

ie
s 

to
 

im
pr

o
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 t

he
 

re
co

rd
s 

by
 t

he
 p

u
bl

ic
.

A
ll 

C
ul

tu
ra

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

a
ge

rs

N
/A

A
LL

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 a

ct
io

n.

In
cr

ea
se

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
vi

a 
di

g
ita

l 
ch

a
nn

e
ls

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
•!D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
e
b
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

se
ar

ch
a
bl

e
 

ar
ch

iv
e
 s

er
vi

ce
 f

or
 

pu
bl

ic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 C
on

a
n 

D
oy

le
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n
•!E

x
p
lo

re
 t
h
e
 

im
pl

e
m

en
ta

tio
n
 o

f 
an

 o
n
-

lin
e 

m
us

ic
 s

tr
e
am

in
g
 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

lib
ra

ry
 

m
e
m

b
er

s
•!D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 e

 b
o
o
k
 

le
nd

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e
 in

 
lib

ra
ri
es

A
ll 

C
ul

tu
ra

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

a
ge

rs

N
/A

A
LL

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 a

ct
io

n.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 25



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

In
cr

ea
se

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
vi

a 
di

g
ita

l 
ch

a
nn

e
ls

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
•�D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

su
p
po

rt
 o

n
 U

ni
ve

rs
a
l 

C
re

di
t 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
an

d
 

m
a
na

ge
m

en
t 

•�R
o
le

 o
u
t 
B

o
o
k
s
 o

n
 

pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n

•�E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
la

s
m

a
 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 s

cr
ee

ns
 a

re
 

op
er

a
tio

na
l i

n 
al

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
en

tr
es

 b
y 

D
ec

e
m

be
r 

20
13

A
ll 

C
ul

tu
ra

l 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

a
ge

rs

N
/A

A
LL

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 a

ct
io

n.

C
om

m
is

si
o
ne

d
 D

is
ab

le
d
G

o 
to

 
pr

od
u
ce

 a
 1

0
00

 v
en

ue
 a

cc
es

s 
gu

id
e
 f

or
 d

is
ab

le
d
 p

e
op

le
.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
P

ro
vi

d
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e
 

w
ith

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ve
nu

es
 to

 e
n
ab

le
 th

e 
di

sa
bl

e
d 

pe
rs

o
n 

to
 

m
a
ke

 in
fo

rm
ed

 c
ho

ic
e
s.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

us
a
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

ve
nu

es
 b

y 
di

sa
bl

ed
 

pe
op

le
.

G
in

a 
pe

rr
ym

a
n

N
/A

D
T

he
 g

u
id

e
 w

a
s 

la
u
nc

he
d 

in
 2

0
12

 a
nd

 P
C

C
 o

ff
ic

er
s 

w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 d
is

a
bi

lit
y 

gr
ou

p
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ity
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
10

0 
m

or
e 

ve
nu

es
 

to
 b

e
 a

d
de

d
 to

 th
e
 g

u
id

e
 

fo
r 

2
01

3.

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

, 
w

h
er

e
 p

o
ss

ib
le

, 
im

pl
e
m

en
t c

ha
ng

es
 

re
co

m
m

en
d
ed

 in
 o

ur
 r

ec
e
nt

 
A

cc
es

s 
A

ud
it 

R
ep

or
t o

f 
th

e 
P

or
ts

m
ou

th
 R

eg
is

tr
y.

 I
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

a
r 

w
e 

w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

se
ve

n
 k

e
y 

is
su

e
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

 
su

m
m

ar
y.

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

13
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
ns

 s
e
t 

ou
t i

n
 th

e 
A

cc
es

s 
A

ud
it 

R
ep

or
t.

 In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

ho
w

 
w

e 
ca

n
 b

ri
ng

 in
 c

h
an

ge
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ee
t t

h
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
es

 r
eq

u
ire

d 
by

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d
 D

oc
um

en
t M

 
(2

00
4
) 

of
 t

he
 B

ui
lid

in
g 

R
eg

ul
a
tio

ns
.

Lo
rr

a
in

e
 P

or
te

r
D

is
cu

ss
 f

ea
si

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d
 c

ha
ng

e
s 

w
ith

 A
ss

e
t 

M
an

a
ge

m
en

t S
e
rv

ic
e
s.

A
LL

T
hr

e
e 

of
 t

he
 s

ev
e
n 

ke
y 

is
su

e
s 

ha
ve

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 
ad

dr
e
ss

e
d 

an
d
 a

ct
io

ne
d.

 
F

ur
th

er
 in

ve
st

ig
a
tio

n 
is

 
re

qu
ir
ed

 f
o
r 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
fo

u
r.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 26



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

C
om

pl
e
te

 a
 r

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

di
sa

bl
e
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
o
lli

n
g 

st
at

io
n 

ve
nu

es
 

in
 th

e
 c

ity
.

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
A

ud
it 

o
f 

al
l 7

7 
po

lli
ng

 
st

at
io

n
 v

e
nu

e
s 

w
ith

 a
 

vi
ew

 to
 im

p
ro

vi
ng

 
ac

ce
ss

.

Ia
n 

F
itc

he
tt

N
/A

D
A

ud
it 

is
 p

la
nn

e
d 

to
 s

ta
rt

 
in

 s
um

m
er

 2
01

3.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e
 c

om
pl

e
tio

n
 

tim
e 

ha
s 

no
w

 c
ha

n
ge

d 
fr

om
 N

ov
em

b
er

 2
01

3 
to

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
14

. 
P

rio
rit

y 
fo

r 
2
01

3 
re

vi
e
w

 o
f 

po
lli

n
g 

di
st

ric
ts

 a
n
d 

po
lli

ng
 

pl
ac

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

o
se

 th
at

 
ha

ve
 n

o
t b

e
en

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 

fo
r 

a
 lo

ng
 t

im
e
.

In
tr

od
uc

e 
bu

s 
im

pr
ov

e
m

e
nt

s 
th

ro
u
gh

 t
he

 B
et

te
r 

B
u
s 

F
u
nd

A
pr

il 
20

14
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
•�O

n
 b

u
s
 W

I-
F

i
•�N

e
x
t 

s
to

p
 A

u
d
io

 &
 

vi
su

al
 a

nn
ou

nc
em

en
ts

•�B
u
s
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

•�I
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 L
E

D
 

lig
ht

in
g.

H
ay

le
y 

C
h
iv

e
rs

Lo
ca

l A
u
th

o
rit

y 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n
A

LL
W

i-
F

i h
as

 b
ee

n
 in

st
al

le
d 

on
 m

o
st

 b
u
se

s 
fo

r 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

op
e
ra

to
rs

 in
 

th
e 

T
fS

H
 a

re
a.

 I
nt

er
na

l 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 L

E
D

 li
gh

tin
g
 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
st

al
le

d
 o

n
 

m
o
st

 b
u
se

s 
fo

r 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

op
e
ra

to
rs

 in
 

th
e 

T
fS

H
 a

re
a.

 N
ex

t s
to

p 
an

d 
vi

su
a
l 

an
no

un
ce

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

on
go

in
g
.

P
re

ve
n
tio

n 
of

 u
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

 
ho

sp
ita

l a
dm

is
si

o
n.

 
T

im
e
ly

 d
is

ch
a
rg

e
s 

in
 c

o
nj

un
ct

io
n
 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
e
rs

 u
si

n
g 

a 
w

h
ol

e
 

sy
st

em
 a

pp
ro

a
ch

.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
R

ed
uc

ed
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
‘k

n
o
w

n
’ 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 
C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 a

pp
ro

a
ch

 
to

 f
a
ci

lit
at

e 
di

sc
ha

rg
e
, 

re
du

ce
d 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n 

an
d
 

de
ve

lo
p
m

en
t o

f 
tr

us
te

d 
as

se
ss

m
e
nt

.

G
le

ny
s 

Jo
ne

s
A

du
lt 

S
o
ci

al
 C

ar
e
 

S
er

vi
ce

 B
us

in
e
ss

 P
la

n
A

, D
C

om
m

u
ni

ty
 te

am
 s

ta
ff

 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 

ad
m

is
si

o
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pe

op
le

 in
 c

om
m

u
ni

ty
 

ba
se

d 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

C
en

tr
a
l v

ir
tu

a
l w

ar
d
 M

D
T

 
m

o
de

l n
o
w

 r
ol

le
d 

ou
t 

ac
ro

ss
 c

ity
.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 27



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

D
ev

el
o
pm

en
t 

of
 P

re
pa

id
 c

ar
ds

20
12

/1
3

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
Im

pr
o
ve

d
 o

p
tio

ns
 f

or
 

pe
op

le
 t

o 
m

an
a
ge

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 b
ud

ge
ts

, 
re

du
ci

n
g 

bu
re

au
cr

ac
y 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 n

u
m

be
rs

 
of

 p
eo

p
le

 d
ire

ct
in

g
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

su
pp

or
t

A
ng

el
a
 D

ry
er

A
du

lt 
S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e
 

S
er

vi
ce

 B
us

in
e
ss

 P
la

n
A

, D
P

re
pa

id
 c

ar
ds

 p
ilo

te
d 

w
ith

 
ca

re
rs

 h
a
ve

 b
e
en

 v
er

y 
su

cc
es

sf
u
l b

ut
 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 g

o
ve

rn
a
nc

e 
co

n
ce

rn
s 

w
ith

 c
ar

e
d 

pr
ov

id
er

 h
a
s 

m
ea

nt
 t

he
 

pi
lo

t 
is

 o
n
 h

o
ld

 u
nt

il 
a 

ne
w

 
pr

ov
id

er
 h

a
s 

be
e
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
.

E
xp

a
ns

io
n
 o

f 
S

h
ar

e
d 

L
iv

e
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n
 o

f 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
of

 S
h
ar

e
d 

L
iv

e
s 

ca
re

rs
.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
P

eo
pl

e
 m

o
ve

 to
 m

or
e 

in
de

p
en

de
n
t l

e
ss

 
in

st
itu

tio
n
al

is
e
d 

m
od

e
ls

 
of

 s
up

po
rt

.
Im

pr
o
ve

d
 o

u
tc

om
es

 f
or

 
re

si
de

n
ts

S
ar

a 
Ja

m
es

A
du

lt 
S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e
 

S
er

vi
ce

 B
us

in
e
ss

 P
la

n
A

, 
D

T
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
ur

re
n
tly

 
su

p
po

rt
s 

39
 p

e
op

le
 t
o
 li

ve
 

in
de

p
en

de
n
tly

 w
ith

 
S

ha
re

d 
Li

ve
s 

fa
m

ili
e
s.

B
et

w
e
en

 J
a
nu

ar
y 

20
11

 
an

d 
M

ar
ch

 2
0
13

, 1
8
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d
s 

w
e
re

 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

to
 o

ff
er

 a
 r

a
ng

e 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 t

ot
a
l 

nu
m

b
er

 o
f 

ho
u
se

ho
ld

s 
is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 4

2.

E
m

b
ed

 p
e
rs

on
a
lis

at
io

n
 in

 a
ll 

ca
re

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
se

rv
ic

es
.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
P

eo
pl

e
 m

o
ve

 to
 m

or
e 

in
de

p
en

de
n
t l

e
ss

 
in

st
itu

tio
n
al

is
e
d 

m
od

e
ls

 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

h
oi

ce
.

Im
pr

o
ve

d
 o

u
tc

om
es

 f
or

 
re

si
de

n
ts

.

S
ar

a 
Ja

m
es

A
du

lt 
S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e
 

S
er

vi
ce

 B
us

in
e
ss

 P
la

n
A

, D
A

ll 
P

C
C

 r
es

id
en

tia
l 

ho
m

e
s 

en
d
ea

vo
u
r 

to
 

su
p
po

rt
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

us
in

g 
a 

pe
rs

on
 c

en
tr

ed
 

ap
pr

o
ac

h.
 P

eo
pl

e
 a

re
 

en
co

ur
ag

e
d 

to
 r

e
m

a
in

 
in

de
p
en

de
n
t i

n
 th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f 
da

ily
 li

vi
n
g.

M
on

ito
r 

B
la

ck
 M

in
or

ity
 E

th
ni

c 
us

a
ge

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g
 o

p
tio

ns
 t
o
 

en
su

re
 e

q
ua

lit
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
.

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
A

na
ly

se
 s

ta
tis

tic
s 

fr
om

 
ho

us
in

g 
o
pt

io
ns

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n.

E
la

in
e
 

B
as

ta
bl

e
/ K

a
te

 
E

ng
lis

h

E
qu

al
ity

 &
 D

iv
e
rs

ity
 

S
ta

rt
eg

y
E

N
ew

 a
ct

io
n
 to

 b
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 28



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

Im
pr

o
ve

 b
us

 c
u
st

om
e
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
 

th
e 

ci
ty

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

D
ft

 B
e
tte

r 
B

us
 F

un
d

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

14
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
B

us
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 to
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 

to
 a

 s
in

gl
e
 'C

u
st

om
er

 
C

ha
rt

er
', 

in
cl

u
di

n
g 

st
an

da
rd

is
e
d 

la
te

n
es

s 
th

re
sh

o
ld

 a
t w

hi
ch

 a
 f

re
e 

tr
a
ve

l v
o
uc

he
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

ha
nd

ed
 o

ut
 t

o 
pa

ss
e
ng

er
s.

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

e
m

en
te

d
 th

ro
u
gh

 
th

e 
B

e
tte

r 
B

us
 F

un
d
.

D
an

ny
 

Jo
h
ns

on
, B

us
 

co
m

pa
n
ie

s 
&

 
T

fS
H

Lo
ca

l A
u
th

o
rit

y 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n
A

LL
F

irs
t b

u
s 

in
 P

or
ts

m
ou

th
 

ha
s 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 a

 
C

us
to

m
e
r 

C
ha

rt
er

 a
n
d 

C
us

to
m

e
r 

P
an

el
. 

N
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 f
ro

m
 

S
ta

ge
co

ac
h 

at
 th

is
 p

o
in

t 
in

 ti
m

e 
(J

u
ly

 2
01

3)
.

Im
pr

o
ve

 b
us

 c
u
st

om
e
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
 

th
e 

ci
ty

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

D
ft

 B
e
tte

r 
B

us
 F

u
nd

A
pr

il 
2
01

3
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
A

ll 
bu

s 
o
pe

ra
to

rs
 w

ill
 

pu
bl

is
h
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

cu
st

o
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 

tr
a
in

in
g 

pr
o
gr

a
m

m
e
s 

on
 

T
fS

H
 w

e
bs

ite
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
be

 im
pl

e
m

en
te

d
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
B

e
tte

r 
B

us
 F

u
nd

.

D
an

ny
 

Jo
h
ns

on
, B

us
 

co
m

pa
n
ie

s 
&

 
T

fS
H

Lo
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n
A

LL
N

o 
pr

o
gr

e
ss

 a
t t

h
is

 t
im

e 
(J

ul
y 

2
01

3)

R
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
e
ss

 o
f 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

tr
a
di

n
g 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

is
su

es
, 

(in
cl

ud
in

g
 d

o
or

st
ep

 c
al

le
rs

),
 

es
p
ec

ia
lly

 f
o
r 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

up
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

u
ni

ty
, 

an
d
 

su
p
po

rt
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
to

 o
b
ta

in
 

re
dr

e
ss

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

p
ria

te
.

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
S

uc
ce

ss
 o

f 
ca

m
pa

ig
n
s 

an
d 

ac
hi

e
ve

m
en

t o
f 

go
od

 o
u
tc

om
e
s 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 s

u
pp

o
rt

ed

P
et

er
 E

m
m

e
tt,

 
D

av
e 

T
a
yl

o
r

Lo
ca

l A
u
th

o
rit

y 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n.
A

, D
A

 n
um

b
er

 o
f 

ac
tiv

iti
e
s 

ha
ve

 b
e
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 a
 p

ur
p
os

e 
to

 in
fo

m
r 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

b
ou

t 
co

n
su

m
e
r 

rig
ht

s,
 il

le
ga

l 
m

o
ne

y 
le

nd
in

g
, s

ca
m

s,
 

co
ld

-c
al

lin
g
, d

is
ta

nc
e
 

se
lli

ng
, o

n
lin

e 
sh

o
pp

in
g
 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
. 

S
es

si
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

e
en

 h
el

d 
w

ith
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
gr

o
up

s 
an

d
 

st
ud

en
ts

.

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

P
C

C
 

bu
ild

in
g
s 

to
 b

e 
p
hy

si
ca

lly
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
In

cr
ea

se
d 

%
 o

f 
b
ui

ld
in

g
s 

th
at

 a
re

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e
 f

or
 

di
sa

bl
e
d 

p
eo

pl
e

Ji
m

 B
ea

n
N

/A
D

P
C

C
 b

ui
ld

in
g
s 

co
nt

in
u
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ro

gr
a
m

m
e 

o
f 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
 in

cl
u
di

n
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
ac

ce
ss

 
im

pr
o
ve

m
en

ts
, 
su

ch
 a

s,
 

gr
ou

n
d 

flo
or

 C
um

b
er

la
nd

 
H

ou
se

.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 29



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

C
on

tib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s 
ta

ck
lin

g
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 &
 t

he
 

pr
ev

e
nt

io
n 

of
 h

o
m

el
es

sn
es

s.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
In

co
m

e
 a

n
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

m
a
xi

m
is

a
tio

n
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

ho
m

e
le

ss
ne

ss
 a

nd
 

th
re

a
t o

f 
ev

ic
tio

n.
 

D
ev

el
o
p 

B
e
ne

fit
 t

ak
e 

up
, 

B
A

C
S

 p
ay

m
en

t a
nd

 
D

ire
ct

 D
eb

it 
ta

ke
 u

p
 a

n
d 

a 
ra

n
ge

 o
f 

m
e
th

o
ds

 to
 

m
a
xi

m
is

e
 r

es
id

en
ts

' 
ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 C
ou

n
ci

l T
ax

 
di

sc
o
un

ts
 a

nd
 

ex
e
m

pt
io

n
s.

E
d 

W
oo

dh
o
us

e 
an

d 
A

la
n 

K
ni

g
ht

T
ac

kl
in

g 
po

ve
rt

y 
st

ra
te

g
y

A
LL

In
 2

0
12

/1
3 

w
e
 h

e
lp

e
d 

68
 

cu
st

om
er

s.
£
6
0
,4

8
2
.6

8
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

be
ne

fit
/D

H
P

 a
n
d 

£
1
4
,0

0
8
.7

7
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 

be
ne

fit
. 

T
hi

s 
is

 e
qu

iv
a
le

n
t t

o
 a

n
 

a
n
n
u
a
lis

e
d
 £

1
3
5
,0

0
0
.F

o
r 

cu
rr

en
t 

ye
ar

 a
 f

un
d 

of
 

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

co
u
nc

il 
ta

x 
su

p
po

rt
 

ha
rd

sh
ip

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

.

U
se

 t
he

 c
o
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ro
le

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

a
t S

u
pp

o
rt

in
g 

P
e
op

le
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 s
u
st

ai
n
ab

le
 a

nd
 

m
e
et

 lo
ca

l p
ri
or

iti
es

.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
60

%
 o

f 
S

up
po

rt
in

g
 

P
eo

pl
e
 c

lie
nt

s 
ac

h
ie

vi
ng

 
in

de
p
en

de
n
t l

iv
in

g 
(N

I1
41

).
98

%
 o

f 
cl

ie
n
ts

 
su

p
po

rt
ed

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

in
de

p
en

de
n
t l

iv
in

g.
 

(N
I1

42
).

D
om

in
ic

 D
ew

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
e
op

le
 

P
ro

gr
a
m

m
e

A
LL

In
 th

e
 p

e
rio

d 
20

12
/1

3
, 

79
%

 (
in

cr
e
as

e 
by

 3
%

 
si

nc
e
 2

0
11

/1
2)

 c
lie

n
ts

 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

gr
ea

te
r 

in
de

p
en

de
n
ce

 in
 s

ho
rt

 
te

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

an
d
 9

3
%

 
(in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
9%

 s
in

ce
 

20
11

/1
2
),

 h
av

e
 

m
a
in

ta
in

ed
 t

he
ir 

in
de

p
en

de
n
t l

iv
in

g 
in

 lo
ng

 
te

rm
 a

cc
o
m

m
od

a
tio

n.

D
el

iv
e
r 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
 u

nd
er

 
D

is
ab

le
d
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

G
ra

nt
s 

(D
F

G
) 

an
d 

a 
ra

ng
e
 o

f 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ac
ka

ge
s

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
H

om
e 

ad
a
pt

at
io

n
s 

de
liv

er
e
d 

to
 m

e
et

 t
he

 
p
e
o
p
le

’s
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
U

p
ta

k
e
 

of
 th

e 
H

o
m

e
ch

ec
k 

se
rv

ic
e.

B
ru

ce
 L

o
m

a
x

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

a
te

g
y 

&
 

A
ge

in
g
 P

op
ul

a
tio

n 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

A
, D

14
7 

di
sa

b
le

d
 a

d
ap

ta
tio

ns
 

de
liv

er
e
d 

an
d 

13
8
2 

H
om

ec
he

ck
 v

is
its

 m
a
de

 
in

 2
0
12

/1
3.

D
ev

el
o
p 

th
e 

T
e
le

ca
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 to

 
en

ab
le

 m
or

e
 p

e
op

le
 t

o 
b
en

e
fit

 
fr

om
 a

ss
is

tiv
e 

te
ch

no
lo

g
y.

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
Y

ea
r 

on
 y

e
ar

 in
cr

e
as

e 
in

 
th

e 
n
um

b
er

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 

be
ne

fit
tin

g
 f

ro
m

 
T

el
e
ca

re
 a

n
d 

de
ve

lo
p
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e
 

em
er

g
in

g
 n

e
ed

s 
fo

r 
as

si
st

iv
e 

te
ch

n
ol

o
gy

N
ig

el
 B

a
ld

w
in

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
, 
D

30
8 

n
ew

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

w
e
re

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
 t

he
 

T
el

e
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

 2
0
12

.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 30



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

Im
pr

o
ve

 m
et

ho
d
s 

of
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n
 

to
 u

n
de

rs
ta

nd
 c

us
to

m
er

 a
n
d 

th
ei

r 
ne

ed
s 

an
d
 g

iv
e 

fe
ed

b
ac

k

R
ev

ie
w

 e
ve

ry
 s

ix
 

m
o
nt

hs
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
F

ee
d
ba

ck
 f

ro
m

 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

e
rs

Ja
m

es
 

S
an

dy
/D

av
e 

A
da

m
s

E
ns

u
re

 t
ha

t 
ne

w
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
in

cl
u
de

s 
sp

e
ci

fic
 p

la
n
s 

to
 

im
pr

o
ve

 c
o
un

ci
l 

ap
pr

o
ac

h 
to

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

A
LL

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

Le
ad

s 
m

e
et

s 
on

 s
ix

 w
ee

kl
y 

ba
si

s.
 A

 r
e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n
s 

ha
s 

be
e
n 

un
de

rt
ak

en
. 

N
ew

 
co

n
su

lta
tio

n
 a

p
pr

o
va

l 
pr

oc
es

s 
ag

re
e
d 

in
 M

ar
ch

 
20

13
. C

om
m

u
ni

ty
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t g

u
id

a
nc

e 
re

fr
e
sh

ed
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3.
 

C
op

no
r 

an
d 

H
ils

ea
 

N
ei

gh
b
ou

rh
o
od

 F
or

um
 

se
t 

up
.

D
ev

el
o
p 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 
be

tte
r 

un
de

rs
ta

n
di

n
g 

of
 c

u
st

om
e
r 

ne
ed

s 
an

d
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

n
s

M
uc

h 
w

ill
 b

e
 

pi
ck

ed
 u

p 
th

ro
u
gh

 
tr

a
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

or
ks

tr
ea

m
s 

an
d 

ov
er

a
ll 

se
rv

ic
e
 

re
vi

e
w

.

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
A

ll 
se

ct
io

n
s 

ha
ve

 b
et

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

n
di

n
g 

of
 

cu
st

om
er

 n
e
ed

s 
an

d
 

ex
p
ec

ta
tio

n
s,

 w
ith

 
m

e
as

ur
es

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 

as
se

ss
.

A
ll 

M
a
na

g
er

s
U

se
 o

f 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

s,
 c

us
to

m
er

 
se

g
m

en
ta

tio
n
 a

n
d 

an
al

ys
is

 to
ol

s 
an

d 
al

l 
ot

he
r 

ap
pr

o
pr

ia
te

 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 

A
LL

Im
pr

o
ve

 d
is

ab
le

d
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

in
 

pr
in

ci
p
al

 p
ub

lic
 c

on
ve

n
ie

n
ce

s
20

13
-1

4
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
N

um
be

r 
of

 to
ile

ts
 w

ith
 

di
sa

bl
e
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s-
25

. 
C

lo
su

re
s 

of
 1

2 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

by
 e

nd
 O

ct
ob

e
r 

20
13

 
re

du
ci

n
g 

av
a
ila

b
le

 t
oi

le
ts

 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

le
d
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

to
 

13
.

T
. N

ea
le

N
/A

D
Im

pr
o
ve

m
en

ts
 m

a
de

 t
o 

T
an

gi
e
r 

ro
ad

/B
af

fin
s 

pu
bl

ic
 t

oi
le

t t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
di

sa
bl

e
d 

pe
rs

o
ns

 to
ile

t.
A

 
lis

t 
of

 m
a
in

ly
 m

in
o
r 

im
pr

o
ve

m
en

ts
 is

 in
 th

e
 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 b

ei
n
g 

co
lla

te
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 in
te

nt
io

n
 o

f 
cr

ea
tin

g 
a 

w
o
rk

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
- 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fu

n
di

n
g.

T
ac

kl
in

g 
an

d
 p

ro
se

cu
tin

g
 B

lu
e
 

B
ad

ge
 f

ra
ud

 a
n
d 

ab
u
se

.
O

ng
oi

n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
M

an
a
ge

m
en

t 
as

se
sm

en
t,

 f
ee

d
ba

ck
 

fr
om

 P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 F
or

u
m

.
F

ee
d
ba

ck
 f

ro
m

 
co

u
rt

s/
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
M

ot
or

in
g
 U

K
.

M
ic

ha
e
l 

R
ob

in
so

n
N

/A
D

C
on

si
de

re
d
 b

y 
th

e 
in

du
st

ry
 a

s 
a 

le
ad

er
 in

 t
he

 
fie

ld
. H

a
ve

 b
ee

n 
no

m
in

at
ed

 f
or

 a
n
 a

w
ar

d
 

by
 D

is
a
bi

lit
y 

M
o
to

ri
ng

 U
K

 
fo

r 
e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 31



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

fu
lly

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
us

 s
to

ps
 f

ro
m

 a
 

ba
se

lin
e 

of
 7

0 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
08

 in
 

lia
is

on
 w

ith
 b

us
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d 

C
ol

as

15
0 

by
 M

a
rc

h 
20

09
, 2

3
0 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0,

 3
10

 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
11

, 
39

0 
by

 M
a
rc

h 
20

12
, 4

7
0 

by
 

M
ar

ch
  

20
13

, 
55

0 
by

 M
a
rc

h 
20

14
, 6

3
0 

by
 

Ja
n
ua

ry
 2

01
6

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
T

o 
im

pl
em

e
nt

 a
 f

ur
th

er
 

70
 f

ul
ly

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 b
us

 
st

op
s 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3.

T
o 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 b

us
 

op
er

a
to

rs
 a

nd
 C

ol
as

 
th

ro
u
gh

 t
he

 P
un

ct
ua

lit
y 

Im
pr

o
ve

m
en

t 
P

ar
tn

e
rs

hi
p
 a

n
d 

T
ra

n
sp

or
t L

ia
so

n
 G

ro
u
p.

Jo
h
n 

H
o
ug

h
to

n
LT

P
3

A
, D

F
ro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
12

 u
nt

il 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
13

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
n
al

 1
11

 b
u
s 

st
op

s 
ha

ve
 b

e
en

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d 

m
a
ki

n
g 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 
47

2
 

st
op

s.
O

n 
ta

rg
et

.

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

fu
lly

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
us

es
 (

S
up

e
r 

L
ow

 
F

lo
or

s 
- 

S
LF

) 
o
pe

ra
tin

g 
in

 
P

or
ts

m
ou

th
 f

ro
m

 a
 b

a
se

lin
e 

o
f 

65
%

 o
f 

bu
se

s 
in

 M
a
rc

h 
2
00

8
 in

 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 b
us

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
.

75
%

 M
a
rc

h 
20

10
   

  
  
  
8
0%

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
  

  
  
  

85
%

 M
a
rc

h 
20

12
   

  
  
  
9
0%

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3,
 

95
%

 M
a
rc

h 
20

14
, 1

0
0%

 J
an

 
20

16
 (

fo
r 

si
n
gl

e
 

de
ck

 b
u
se

s)
 a

nd
 

Ja
n
 2

0
17

 (
fo

r 
do

ub
le

 d
ec

k 
bu

se
s)

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

S
LF

 b
u
se

s 
op

er
a
tin

g 
a
t 

pe
ak

 p
er

io
d
s 

by
 2

5
.4

%
. 

D
ep

en
de

n
t o

n 
ca

p
ita

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t b
y 

F
ir
st

 
H

am
ps

hi
re

 &
 D

or
se

t.
 A

ll 
S

ta
ge

co
ac

h 
b
us

 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
. 

  
   

  
  
  

 
Im

pr
o
ve

d
 a

cc
es

si
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

B
us

 c
o
m

pa
ny

's
 

/ 
D

a
nn

y 
Jo

h
ns

on

N
/A

A
, 
D

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

pe
ak

 S
LF

 b
us

e
s 

op
er

a
tin

g 
in

 P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 
is

 n
ow

 (
Ju

ly
 2

01
3
) 

8
5%

 
O

n 
ta

rg
et

Im
pr

o
ve

 p
as

se
n
ge

r 
In

fo
rm

a
tio

n
, 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
o
tio

n 
fo

r 
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
e
d 

pa
ss

en
g
er

 c
h
oi

ce
.

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
C

om
pr

e
he

ns
iv

e
 

tim
et

ab
le

 b
o
ok

, 
P

ub
lic

 
T

ra
n
sp

or
t M

ap
 a

nd
 

H
os

p
ita

l B
us

es
 le

af
le

t 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

W
e
b 

lin
ks

 to
 b

u
s 

op
er

a
to

rs
, 

N
at

io
na

l R
a
il 

E
nq

ui
ri
es

, r
ai

l a
nd

 f
er

ry
 

op
er

a
to

r 
w

e
bs

ite
s.

Li
nk

 o
n 

P
C

C
 w

e
bs

ite
 to

 
T

ra
ve

lin
e.

D
ev

el
o
p 

Q
u
ic

k 
R

es
p
on

se
 f

o
r 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

.

D
an

ny
 J

oh
ns

on
 

/  
 J

oh
n
 

H
ou

gh
to

n

Lo
ca

l A
u
th

o
rit

y 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n
A

LL
T

he
 "

P
o
rt

sm
o
ut

h 
C

ho
ic

e"
 

(P
u
bl

ic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 G
u
id

e
) 

bo
ok

le
t u

pd
at

ed
 

qu
ar

te
rly

. T
h
e 

P
u
bl

ic
 

T
ra

n
sp

or
t M

ap
 a

nd
 

H
os

p
ita

l B
us

es
 le

af
le

t 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

an
d 

re
g
ul

a
rly

 
up

da
te

d
.M

y 
Jo

u
rn

e
y 

w
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
Q

R
 c

o
de

s 
on

 
an

d 
in

 p
ub

lic
 tr

a
ns

po
rt

 
bo

ok
s 

an
d
 m

a
ps

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 32



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

In
tr

od
uc

e 
th

e
 te

xt
 4

 ti
m

es
' s

er
vi

ce
 

m
o
bi

le
 p

ho
n
e 

te
xt

in
g 

(S
M

S
) 

se
rv

ic
e,

 w
h
ic

h 
al

lo
w

s 
pe

op
le

 t
o 

ge
t b

us
 ti

m
et

ab
le

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 

an
yt

im
e
, a

n
yw

he
re

 b
y 

se
nd

in
g
 a

 
te

xt
 m

e
ss

a
ge

.

C
om

pl
e
te

 a
nd

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 a

ll 
bu

s 
st

op
s.

 1
5
6 

bu
s 

st
op

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 p
h
ys

ic
al

ly
  

m
a
rk

e
d 

up
 a

s 
of

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

T
ar

g
et

 f
o
r 

co
m

pl
e
tio

n
 

Ja
n
ua

ry
 2

01
6

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
M

or
e
 in

fo
rm

ed
 

pa
ss

e
ng

er
s.

F
or

 e
ve

ry
 b

us
 s

to
p 

in
 

P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 t
o 

di
sp

la
y 

a 
co

d
e 

to
 e

n
ab

le
 t

he
 T

e
xt

 
4 

tim
e
s'

 s
er

vi
ce

T
ra

ve
lin

e 
/ 

  
Jo

h
n 

H
o
ug

h
to

n
N

at
io

n
al

 in
iti

at
iv

e
A

LL
A

ll 
bu

s 
st

op
s 

in
 

P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 h
av

e 
th

is
 

fa
ci

lit
y 

no
w

 a
ll 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 m

ar
ke

d
 

w
ith

 a
 s

ig
n,

 w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
e
s 

a 
bu

s 
st

op
 c

od
e.

P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 D
ia

l a
 R

id
e

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
D

oo
r 

to
 d

o
or

 t
ra

n
sp

or
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 

fin
d
 it

 d
iff

ic
u
lt 

o
r 

im
po

ss
ib

le
 t

o 
u
se

 p
u
bl

ic
 

tr
a
ns

po
rt

.

D
an

ny
 J

oh
ns

on
N

/A
A

, 
D

T
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e
 is

 a
 

co
n
tr

ac
te

d 
se

rv
ic

e
 w

ith
 

an
 e

n
d 

d
at

e
 o

f 
2
01

4
 

ex
te

nd
ab

le
 b

y 
a
 f

ur
th

er
 2

 
ye

ar
s.

 T
hi

s 
co

n
tin

ue
s 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e
 c

on
tr

ac
te

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
(J

u
ly

 2
0
13

)

E
ng

lis
h 

N
at

io
na

l C
on

ce
ss

io
n
ar

y 
T

ra
ve

l P
as

s 
an

d 
sc

he
m

e.
O

ng
oi

n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
O

n 
E

lig
ib

le
 S

er
vi

ce
s;

 
B

et
w

e
en

 p
la

ce
s 

in
 

E
ng

la
n
d;

 B
et

w
ee

n 
09

30
 

ho
ur

s 
an

d
 2

3
00

 h
ou

rs
 

on
 n

o
rm

a
l w

ee
kd

a
ys

 
an

d 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e 
at

 
w

ee
ke

nd
s 

or
 o

n 
pu

b
lic

 
ho

lid
ay

s.

D
an

ny
 J

oh
ns

on
 

/ W
ay

ne
 L

ay
to

n
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
eq

ui
re

m
e
nt

A
, D

T
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e
 is

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

qu
ir
em

en
t 

pl
a
ce

d 
on

 
th

e 
co

u
nc

il 
bu

t 
th

e
 

C
om

pa
ni

o
n 

pa
ss

 is
 a

 
P

or
ts

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
in

iti
a
tiv

e
.

P
o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 I
n
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 –

 u
s
in

g
 

sp
o
rt

 t
o
 p

o
si

tiv
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

o
ci

al
 in

cl
u
si

on
 o

f 
th

os
e 

re
co

ve
rin

g 
fr

o
m

 m
en

ta
l 

ill
ne

ss
.

20
13

/1
4

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
R

ef
oc

u
s 

on
 c

o
re

 a
im

 o
f 

sp
o
rt

 a
nd

 e
xe

rc
is

e
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d
 r

e
m

ov
al

 
fr

om
 t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

o
f 

un
su

ita
bl

e
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

.

C
hr

is
 R

ic
ha

rd
s

S
po

rt
 a

nd
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 
ac

tiv
ity

 s
tr

a
te

g
y.

 
N

at
io

n
al

 f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

sp
o
rt

 &
 v

is
io

n
 f

or
 2

02
0

D
P

C
C

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 
th

is
 s

er
vi

ce
.

N
ew

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u
ct

ur
e
 is

  
su

cc
es

sf
u
lly

  
d
el

iv
er

in
g 

im
pr

o
ve

d
  p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 
ev

en
ts

  
&

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
.

A
lte

rn
a
tiv

e 
m

et
h
od

s 
o
f 

de
liv

er
y 

be
in

g
 e

xp
lo

re
d 

in
 

th
e 

fa
ce

 o
f 

po
te

n
tia

l 
bu

dg
et

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n
 / 

lo
ss

.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 33



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

Li
br

a
rie

s 
O

n-
L
in

e
 to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e
 

ho
us

eb
ou

nd
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

th
at

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 c

a
nn

ot
 a

cc
e
ss

 li
br

ar
ie

s

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
P

ar
tic

ip
a
tio

n
Li

nd
y 

E
lli

ot
t

Li
br

a
ry

 d
ev

el
o
pm

en
t 

pl
an

 &
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t s

tr
a
te

g
y

D
A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 5

 y
ea

r 
de

ve
lo

p
m

en
t p

la
n
 is

 a
n
 E

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y 

w
h
ic

h 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 
do

w
n
lo

a
d 

se
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d 

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ai

m
 is

 to
 in

cr
e
as

e 
vi

rt
ua

l v
is

its
  a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
at

 h
o
m

e.

C
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

d
ev

el
o
p 

th
e 

6
0+

 
F

e
st

iv
a
l t

o
 p

ro
vi

de
 t

as
te

r 
se

ss
io

n
s 

to
 le

a
rn

 n
ew

 s
ki

lls
.

M
ar

ch
 1

3
O

ng
oi

n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
P

ar
tic

ip
a
tio

n 
&

 b
re

a
dt

h
 

of
 c

ou
rs

es
D

av
id

 E
va

n
s

“T
a
c
k
lin

g
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
 i
n
 

P
o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 –
 A

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
”,

 
A

gi
ng

 p
op

ul
a
tio

n 
st

ra
te

g
y

A
C

ul
tu

ra
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

a
re

 
co

n
tin

u
in

g
 w

ith
 t

hi
s 

w
or

k 
an

d 
d
ev

el
o
pi

n
g 

th
is

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fu

rt
he

r.
 

T
he

 n
u
m

be
r 

o
f 

e
ve

nt
s 

co
n
tin

u
es

 t
o
 in

cr
ea

se
 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

is
.

Y
ou

n
g 

pe
o
pl

e
 a

g
ed

 1
1-

19
 w

ith
 a

 
le

ar
n
in

g
 d

is
a
bi

lit
y 

( 
so

 a
ny

 y
ou

n
g 

pe
rs

on
 w

h
o 

is
 s

ta
te

m
en

t)
 o

n 
a 

M
on

d
ay

 a
t 

H
ill

se
a 

yo
u
th

 c
lu

b

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
N

um
be

r 
of

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 p

ar
tic

ip
a
tin

g
S

ar
ah

 R
ea

d
N

/A
D

A
ro

un
d
 3

0
 y

ou
n
g 

pe
o
pl

e
 

at
te

n
d 

re
gu

la
rl
y.

 F
un

di
n
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 e
xt

en
de

d 
to

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

4 
in

cl
ud

in
g
 th

e 
ho

lid
ay

 p
ro

gr
a
m

m
e.

Y
ou

n
g 

pe
o
pl

e
 a

g
ed

 1
3-

25
 w

ith
 a

 
le

ar
n
in

g
 o

r 
ph

ys
ic

al
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 o
n 

a 
W

e
dn

e
sd

ay
 n

ig
h
t a

t 
H

ill
se

a 
yo

u
th

 
cl

ub

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
N

um
be

r 
of

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 p

ar
tic

ip
a
tin

g
M

ar
ily

n
 

La
w

re
nc

e
N

/A
D

A
ro

un
d
 3

0
 y

ou
n
g 

pe
o
pl

e
 

at
te

n
d 

re
gu

la
rl
y.

T
he

 4
U

 p
ro

je
ct

 f
o
r 

ga
y,

 le
sb

ia
n
, 

bi
se

xu
al

 , 
tr

an
sg

en
d
er

 o
r 

se
xu

al
ly

 
un

su
re

 y
o
un

g 
p
eo

p
le

 a
ge

d 
1
2-

2
1

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
N

um
be

r 
of

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 p

ar
tic

ip
a
tin

g
S

ar
ah

 R
ea

d
N

/A
S

O
O

n 
av

e
ra

ge
 1

2-
2
0 

yo
u
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
tte

nd
. 

W
e 

of
fe

r 
1-

2-
1 

se
ss

io
ns

 t
o
 y

o
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 d
o
 n

o
t w

an
t 

to
 a

tt
en

d
 th

e 
g
ro

u
p.

 W
e 

al
so

 c
on

du
ct

 w
o
rk

sh
o
ps

 
in

 s
ch

oo
ls

 o
n
 

ho
m

o
ph

o
bi

a
 a

n
d 

ho
m

o
ph

o
bi

c 
b
ul

ly
in

g.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 34



P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

 -
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

A
nt

ic
ip

a
te

 a
 n

e
ed

 f
o
r 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n 
on

 r
e
le

va
nt

 c
ou

n
ci

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
a
nd

 
en

su
re

 th
a
t w

e 
fu

lfi
ll 

ou
r 

d
ut

y 
to

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
m

ea
ni

n
gf

ul
ly

 
co

n
su

lt 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

di
sp

ro
p
or

tio
n
at

e
 im

p
ac

t 
o
n 

eq
ua

lit
y 

gr
ou

p
s.

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
E

xc
ha

n
ge

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 

w
ith

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n
 L

e
ad

s 
on

 m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
ct

s 
re

qu
ir
in

g
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n
, 

m
o
ni

to
rin

g 
o
f 

th
e
 F

ut
ur

e
 

W
o
rk

 P
ro

gr
a
m

m
e.

Ja
m

es
 S

an
dy

N
/A

A
LL

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

ev
ie

w
 

w
or

k 
un

d
er

ta
ke

n 
b
y 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 &
 

tr
a
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
te

am
 a

 
fo

rw
ar

d
 p

la
n 

of
 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
iti

a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 J
u
ne

 2
0
13

 
an

d 
cl

o
se

ly
 a

lig
n
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 f
or

w
a
rd

 
pl

an
.

In
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

 th
e
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g
, 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

of
 h

e
al

th
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

un
d
er

 
th

e 
H

e
al

th
 a

n
d 

S
o
ci

al
 C

ar
e
 A

ct
 

20
12

.

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
W

o
rk

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e
 L

o
ca

l 
H

ea
lth

w
a
tc

h.
Ja

m
es

 S
an

dy
N

/A
A

LL
W

o
rk

 is
 o

ng
oi

n
g 

to
 a

lig
n
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l e
ng

ag
e
m

e
nt

 
pl

an
s 

an
d
 a

ct
iv

iti
e
s 

of
 th

e 
C

C
G

, 
P

H
T

 a
nd

 S
ol

e
nt

 
N

H
S

 T
ru

st
s,

 H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 
P

or
ts

m
ou

th
 a

nd
 P

C
C

.

E
ns

u
re

 t
ha

t 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
&

 
co

n
su

lta
tio

n
 in

fo
rm

s 
eq

ua
lit

y 
pr

io
ri
tie

s 
&

 t
ha

t t
h
er

e
 is

 a
n
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
fe

e
db

a
ck

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 

pl
ac

e

P
la

n 
to

 c
on

du
ct

 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e
 f

ro
m

 
S

ep
t 2

01
1
 to

 
as

se
ss

 
re

le
va

nc
e
 a

n
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

.

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
F

ac
to

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 

de
ve

lo
p
ed

 in
 t

he
 

C
om

m
u
ni

ty
 e

ng
a
ge

m
en

t 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

- 
C

om
m

u
ni

ty
 

E
ng

ag
em

e
nt

 S
ta

te
m

e
nt

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

(A
ug

us
t 2

01
1
)

Ja
m

es
 S

an
dy

N
/A

A
LL

A
 n

ew
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n
s 

ap
pr

o
va

l p
ro

ce
ss

 h
a
s 

be
en

 a
g
re

e
d 

(M
ar

ch
 

20
13

) 
w

hi
ch

 d
em

an
ds

 a
 

ro
bu

st
 b

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

 f
o
r 

co
n
su

lta
tio

n
 w

or
k 

an
d
 

se
ts

 c
le

ar
 d

ea
dl

in
es

 f
or

 
th

e 
re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

m
o
ni

to
rin

g 
of

 d
at

a.
 It

 a
ls

o
 

cl
ea

rly
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e
 E

IA
 

pr
oc

es
s.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 35



A
c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s
M

e
a

s
u

re
s

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e

S
o

u
rc

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

S
tr

a
n

d
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

D
ev

el
o
p 

op
p
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

aw
ar

en
e
ss

 o
f 

fu
nd

in
g
 s

tr
ea

m
s 

(I
n
te

rn
al

 a
n
d 

ex
te

rn
al

) 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

en
do

rs
e 

th
em

 c
o
nd

iti
o
na

lly
 o

n 
gr

o
up

s 
ev

id
e
nc

in
g 

th
ei

r 
co

m
m

itt
m

en
t t

o
 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s.

O
ng

oi
n
g

O
ng

oi
n
g 

/ 
In

 
pr

og
re

ss
R

es
e
ar

ch
 in

to
 w

id
e
r 

fu
nd

in
g
 o

p
po

rt
un

iti
e
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s.
 

R
eq

ui
re

m
e
nt

 t
ha

t a
ll 

co
m

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
ha

ve
 

an
 e

q
ua

l o
p
po

rt
un

iti
e
s 

po
lic

y 
th

a
t i

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
 2

0
10

.

M
an

d
y 

Li
n
dl

e
y

N
/A

A
LL

A
ll 

P
C

C
 f

u
nd

in
g
 to

 t
he

 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
ec

to
r,

 
w

he
th

er
 th

ro
ug

h 
gr

an
t o

r 
co

n
tr

ac
t 

is
 d

e
pe

n
de

nt
 

up
on

 th
e
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

ev
id

e
nc

in
g 

th
at

 it
 

co
m

pl
ie

s 
w

ith
 e

qu
al

iti
es

 
le

gi
sl

a
tio

n
.

2
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
-A

g
e,

 D
-D

is
ab

ili
ty

, E
-E

th
ni

ci
ty

, 
G

-G
en

de
r 

in
c 

tr
an

sg
en

de
r,

 R
B

-R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
be

lie
f,

 S
E

-S
o
ci

o-
e
co

no
m

ic
, 

S
O

-S
ex

ua
l o

rie
n
ta

tio
n
, A

LL
-A

ll 
eq

u
al

ity
 s

tr
an

ds

Page 36



1 

 

 

 

 
Equality & Diversity Strategy  

(2014-2017) 

 

DRAFT Vr2 

@28.10.13 
  

Page 37



2 

 

Foreword  

In the current economic context it is increasingly important that we consider the needs of all service users, the 
potential impact of any changes to council services or future plans, as well as access to employment 
opportunities. Throughout this process we must ensure that we tackle inequalities and disadvantage through 
close working with partner agencies. We must also be open about the challenges we face and be proactive in 
engaging the city’s diverse communities through easily accessible information, consultation and advice. 

 

Portsmouth has a good track record on equalities and has used the development of this strategy as an 
opportunity to check the relevance and effectiveness of previous plans, as well as bring our work in line with 
the significant changes in legislation introduced by the Equality Act 2010. It is a simpler document than its 
predecessors and includes a single equality scheme action plan which will help realise our identified aims. 

 

This strategy outlines our approach as a council to equalities and diversity issues for the next three years 
(2014-2017). It continues to recognise our growing diversity as a city and the council’s commitment to ensuring 

that high quality services are available to all. It builds on our previous strategies, outlines our continuing 
priorities and considers changes in relation to the national policy context. 

 

This renewed strategy seeks to reflect changing demands and to help ensure that future services align with 
changing needs. It has a central role in setting a framework for our engagement with and understanding of all 
groups and communities across Portsmouth and asserts a positive approach to the recognition of those with 
the protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010. 

 

Portsmouth's diversity continues to evolve and this refreshed strategy considers our priorities in light of more 
limited resources. It seeks to ensure a continued focus through revised monitoring and assessment. 

In refreshing this strategy, we have consulted a variety of community groups, organisations and individuals 
across the city to ensure balance and to build on our work to date. I would like to thank those of you who took 
time to give us feedback and who have helped shape this final document. 

 

Whilst the council will continue to lead, facilitate and promote equalities issues with our partner agencies, we 
all have a role to play in ensuring that Portsmouth is a positive and welcoming place that celebrates its growing 
diversity. 

 

We hope you will find this an accessible strategy- it has been structured to demonstrate how our priorities fit 
with the wider work of the council and needs of the city. We welcome your feedback and would encourage you 
to help us work toward achieving its aims. 

 

David Williams 

Chief Executive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



3 

 

 

 

Introduction 

This document sets out Portsmouth City Council's approach to equality and diversity issues over the next three 
years (2014-2017).  

 

We have re-visited our equalities objectives for the council and for the city, based on:  

· an assessment of our progress since the Equality & Diversity Strategy (2010-2013) and our previous 
strategies;  

· a review of the latest data on outcomes for communities in the city;  

· the results of a range of surveys and consultations; 

· changes in the diverse population of Portsmouth; and, 

· changes in the legislative context and policy framework. 

 

This document also outlines what we have done to progress our previous single equality scheme (SES), the 
equality & diversity action plan and its reporting, as well as providing a summary of the council's workforce 
diversity. 

 

How to use this document and how it is structured 

This document has been prepared as an interactive pdf (portable document format) to enable the reader to 
access key facts and figures and get an overview of Portsmouth's growing diversity and related equality 
issues. 

 

This document is available in large print, Braille and audio formats or in another language on request from 023 
92834789 or by emailing equalities@portsmouthcc.gov.uk  

 

Index: 

· Our commitment and priorities  

· Legislative and policy context 

· Links to other plans and strategies 

· Equality & Diversity at Portsmouth City Council 

· Understanding our city 

· A Picture of Portsmouth Diversity infographic- methodology & sources 

· Data Sets- 

o Key facts about Portsmouth's population 

o Race 

o Age profile of Portsmouth's diverse communities 

o Languages spoken in Portsmouth 

o Ethnicity  

o Gender 

o Young people 

o Religion 

Page 39



4 

 

o Disability 

o Mental Health 

o Carers 

o LGBT 

Our commitment 

 

‘Portsmouth City Council’s approach to equality and diversity primarily focuses on our customers to 
ensure that our services meet people’s needs, both now and in the future. For us, this means all 
our customers in all our communities. We are working towards making our services more 
accessible by planning ahead and taking action based on listening to and involving our 
communities.  

 

Our aim is to have a workforce that is reflective of the communities in Portsmouth, and is open to 
new ideas, ways of working and diversity. We are raising awareness on equality and diversity with 
our staff through an improved training programme that focuses on mainstreaming these principles 
into all of our work. 

 

Our improved Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) programme works across all our services and 
functions. This programme helps us to meet our legal requirements under equalities and human 
rights legislation, as well as helping us to measure the impact of our services on all of us in relation 
to age, disability, gender, transgender, race, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy and 
maternity as well as in relation to community cohesion'. 

 
Our Equality & Diversity Action Plan (previously Single Equality Scheme Plan) works 
alongside this refreshed equality & diversity strategy and has been developed in line with identified 
needs and priorities. The relating action plan will ensure that equality and diversity issues are at 
the forefront of the plans that we make, services we develop and actions we take. 

 

Our priorities 

Our Equality & Diversity Action Plan has five key priority areas which are supported by the 
council’s existing business plans and strategies. They are: 

 

(1) Promoting fairness and diversity by tackling inequalities, disadvantage, and 

discrimination Inequalities and disadvantage occur in many different settings, depending on 

the issue, and vary between the equality strands on the same basis. Therefore, Priority 1 
requires a whole range of actions – some corporate in nature that look at issues holistically, 
and some service-specific actions that will improve particular outcomes for communities – 
below we have included just some of the key actions that the council will take. As with all of our 
priorities – further actions are included in the Equality & Diversity Action Plan. 

(2) Leadership and partnerships The council has a role in shaping the communities it serves as 

well as simply commissioning and providing public services.  The council cannot achieve its 
aims in isolation and we will continue to work to ‘identify local needs and to address these at a 

strategic level’. 

Page 40



5 

 

(3) Employment and training Access to employment opportunities and training services are vital 

in addressing socio-economic deprivation. Our research shows that people from diverse 
communities in the city may be more likely to suffer deprivation than the wider population, with 
some communities feeling that discrimination remains an issue when applying for jobs. The 
council’s role as an employer is one area where it can take very direct action on this issue. The 
council is one of the largest employers in Portsmouth and as such can do a great deal to break 
down barriers and tackle discrimination. 

(4) Service delivery and access All of Portsmouth’s residents have the right to expect to be able 

to easily access services, advice, and information provided or funded by the council. The 
equality act places additional duties on the council to consider the needs of all of its 
communities in the design and delivery of services.  

(5) Promoting community engagement Delivering on all of the priorities in this strategy and 

addressing entrenched inequalities cannot be delivered by the council alone, but will be best 
achieved by involving and engaging communities in the decision-making process, in service 
design, and in developing our future plans.  

 

Legislative context  

 
The Equality Act came into force on 1st October 2010. The act brought together over 116 separate 
pieces of legislation into one single act. Combined, the new act provides a legal framework to protect 
the rights of individuals and to advance equality of opportunity for all. 
 
The act covers discrimination because of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 
 
The act simplifies and strengthens previous legislation to provide a new discrimination law which 
protects individuals from unfair treatment and promotes a fair and more equal society. 
 
The general equality duty (set out in the equality act) places upon public authorities a requirement 
to: 

· Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited 
by the act.  

· Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not.  

· Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do 
not.  

 
The act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  
 

· Removing or minimising difficulties suffered by people due to their protected characteristics.  
· Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are different 

from the needs of other people.  
· Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities 

where their participation is extremely low.  
 

Page 41



6 

 

Specific Duties were introduced by the Government in September 2011 with an aim of facilitating an 
efficient and effective compliance of certain public bodies with the general Equality Duty. This 
includes: 

· Publishing information to demonstrate compliance with the general equality duty annually;  
and 

· Preparing and publishing one or more equality objectives that will contribute to satisfying the 
three aims of the general Equality Duty (as above) every four years.  

The council regularly publishes 'Equality Impact Assessments' (EIAs) on proposed, new, changed 
or terminated services, policies, strategies, projects and functions. This helps to evidence how it has 
considered, and, if necessary, mitigated any discriminative impact on our residents and visitors. 
Significant EIAs are published on the council's website, with others available on request.  

The Equality & Diversity Action Plan works to highlight the specific, timed and measurable equality 
actions that council services have set for themselves (also available on our website). The plan is 
reviewed on an annual basis.  

A ban on age discrimination was introduced by the Government in October 2012. The objective of 
the ban is to eliminate any age-related discriminative practices in the provision of goods, services or 
facilities, and in the carrying out of public functions. The council has been committed to age equality 
in the way it provides public services and exercises its functions long before the ban was introduced. 
However, the new law provisions provide us with an opportunity to closely examine our policies and 
practises to ensure that our residents are afforded fair treatment, regardless of their age.  

For more detailed guidance on the Equality Act 2010 visit:  

https://www.gov.uk/equality-act-2010-guidance 

 

For more information on equality and human rights law, visit the Equality and Human Rights 
Commission website at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/ 

 

This strategy builds on the council's previous strategies (2006-2009), (2010-2013) and the following 
other information sources: 

 

· Survey, questionnaire and consultation results 

· Service business plans 

· Relevant performance indicators and monitoring data 

· Inspection reports (e.g. Audit Commission, LGA Peer Review) 

· Feedback from partner agencies and other stakeholders 

· Complaints, compliments and concerns received 

· Government statistics and data (national and local) 

 

Consultation summary 

Page 42



7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Links to other plans and strategies 
 
This Equality and Diversity Strategy does not stand alone but is informed by and works in partnership 
with a number of strategies and plans for the City.   
 
Portsmouth's Regeneration Strategy, 'Shaping the Future of Portsmouth' (2011), sets out a 
vision for Portsmouth as 'the great waterfront city'.  This strategy aims to deliver economic growth and 
prosperity and achieve a better quality of life for all of the people of Portsmouth.  The Portsmouth 
Plan (2012) is Portsmouth's core planning document and translates this vision into a spatial strategy 
to guide future development.      

A wealth of other strategies and plans for Portsmouth have been developed by the city council and its 
partners and aim to improve people's wellbeing and quality of life, and to protect and support our 
more vulnerable residents.  Some of those that relate closely to the Equalities and Diversity Strategy 
are listed below: 
 

The Joint Health & 

Wellbeing Strategy 

(2012/13 - 2013/14)  

 

Sets out how GPs and the council will work together to 
achieve their vision for everyone in Portsmouth to be 
supported to live healthy and independent lives, with care 
and support that is integrated around the needs of the 
individual at the right time and in the right setting.   

Safer Portsmouth 

Partnership Plan 

(2013-18) 

Contains the Safer Portsmouth Partnership's priorities for 
reducing crime and substance misuse, making the city a 
safe place to live in, work and visit. 

The Children's Trust 

Plan (2011-14) 

A strategic multi-agency plan which outlines how public 
service partners intend to improve the lives of children and 
young people in Portsmouth. 

Tackling Poverty 

Strategy (2011)   
The aspiration of this strategy is to make the vision for 
Portsmouth a reality for every resident in the city, regardless 
of their social and economic background.  It seeks to identify 
and assist those in the city suffering from deprivation, to 
improve their opportunities and wider life chances. 

Ageing Population This strategy aims to ensure that older people's needs are 

Page 43



8 

 

Strategy (2010-2020).   catered for and that their contribution to society is valued. 

Carers Strategy  

(2011-2015) 

 

Developed by the city council and NHS Portsmouth, the 
strategy’s priorities and actions explore how the council and 
the health service can work together to support carers. 

Homelessness 

Strategy (2008-13) 

 

This strategy sets out a picture of homelessness in 
Portsmouth, identifies priorities for preventing homelessness 
and outlines the partners and resources involved in delivery. 

To guide the way in which we work to achieve our overall vision, the council has defined a set of 
guiding principles which have in turn informed a number of ways of working:  

· We focus on what's important 

· We take pride in our work 

· We value others 

· We make a positive difference 

 

These 'ways of working' define the standards of behaviour we expect in how we work, and how we 
treat our customers and others. 

Progress since 2010  

Portsmouth City Council’s Equality & Diversity Strategy for 2010-2013 set out an ambitious vision for 
the council to be “viewed as a trusted and valued organisation which genuinely acts in the best 
interests of the people of Portsmouth” (This in turn built on our previous strategy commitments). 

 

The strategy set out the following criteria for success: 

 

· Increased service take-up by specific groups such as for example people with 
disabilities or older people  

· positive action initiatives to provide specialist services or to ensure equal access to the 
same life opportunities based on researched need  

· Residents’ Survey and other surveys indicating greater satisfaction by equality strand 
groups  

· more information produced in plain English and other appropriate languages and 
formats  

· survey results telling us that our community relations are good and people agree that 
they live in a city where everyone feels that they belong 

 

Portsmouth City Council uses positive action to ensure equal access to a wide range of services, but 
some barriers to access remain. Data from the 2009 Valuing Diversity survey pointed to improving 
satisfaction with many aspects of life in the city across a number of equality strands, but the survey 
evidence also pointed to some stark differences in perception.  

Page 44



9 

 

 

We will continue to collect information regarding the community perceptions of the city's public 
services (e.g. education, employment, health) and to address issues relating to access to services 
and wider discrimination. 

Page 45



10 

 

Equality & Diversity at Portsmouth City Council  

Our approach to equality and diversity primarily focuses on our customers and their needs, to ensure 
that we serve all of our communities in the city.  

 
A key element of our work is the council’s on-going programme of equalities impact assessments 
(EIAs). Under this process, the council’s services and functions, which have been identified as 
potentially raising equality issues, are reviewed through a three-year rolling programme. In addition to 
this, all relevant changes to services, policies and strategies are required to have an EIA before 
approval from elected members is sought. 

 

In addition to the role of the Strategic Director’s Board (SDB), the council oversees this work via 
Cabinet portfolio holders, the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee, Heads of 
Service reports and officer working groups. 

 

The council's equality diversity work is supported through the communities engagement team within 
customer, community and democratic services (CCDS). It provides support to services and advice on 
best practice, legislative requirements, monitoring and manages the EIA process. 

 

Action Plan and monitoring 

The council’s single equality scheme (SES) is now succeeded by our equality & diversity action plan 
which provides a condensed list of our aims and objectives. It sets out our key actions on promoting 
equality with regard to age, disability, gender, gender reassignment, race, religion or belief and sexual 
orientation, (as well as socio economic deprivation). 

 

We are required to publish equality objectives in response to our specific duties in legislation. The 
Equality & Diversity Action Plan serves the purpose of detailing our current key 'equality objectives' 
under the umbrella of wider equality & diversity priorities.  

 

Workforce Diversity and Management 

All Portsmouth City Council's recruitment and human resources policies are designed to be compliant 
with existing legislation and ensure that discriminatory practices are avoided. 

Under Specific Duties introduced in 2011 as part of the Equality Act 2010, the council has a legal 
obligation to publish equality information relating to its employees on an annual basis. The council 
currently monitors the diversity of its workforce with relation to age, gender, disability and race as well 
as gender pay gap.  

Gender 

The council, like most authorities, has a predominantly female workforce, with 77% female and 
23% male employees.  

Ethnicity 

Page 46



11 

 

Data held by the council indicates that 5.5% of our staff are from BME groups - this figure has 
remained unchanged since the previous strategy. However, this is likely to be an under-
estimate, as 19.6% are listed as undisclosed. The BME figure does not reflect the diversity of 
the city, as the most recent data suggest that 16% of our resident population are from BME 
groups.  

Age of council staff  

The council has 33.6% (increase from 29.7% recorded in the previous strategy) of its staff over 
the age of 50, while only 5.3% are under 25 (down from 6.4% recorded in the previous 
strategy).  

Disabled staff 

1.3% of the council staff have disclosed having a disability. 28.3% are listed as 'undisclosed'; 
however, this high percentage includes staff who joined the authority prior to the introduction of 
any monitoring system to collect information on disability. In addition, because this data is 
captured at the time of recruitment, it does not reflect any staff that become disabled whilst 
working for the council. AS such, this figure is almost certainly an under-estimate of the true 
position.  

Gender Pay 

A significantly larger proportion of female employees at the council work on the lowest 4 pay 
bands (out of 20 pay bands) than our male employees - 21% male and 41% female staff.  

Even though women make up 77% of the total workforce at the council, when we look at the 
top 5% of earners, women only make up 53.5% of this group.  

Clearly, the council's current workforce does not match the profile of Portsmouth, with a large 
gender imbalance (though this is typical of local government) and under-representation of 
disabled people and people from BME communities.  

Page 47



12 

 

Understanding our city 

A themed ‘picture of Portsmouth’ remains a key part of this strategy. Using the latest official data 
sources, we have adopted an 'infographics' approach to mapping the changing demographics of the 
city in an attempt to make its content simpler and more accessible. The ‘picture of Portsmouth’ was 
originally published on the council's website in November 2009 and in Flagship magazine. The picture 
of Portsmouth remains an on-going project subject to continued revision and new data sets, as they 
are relevant or become available. 

 

The council has a vast amount of data from surveys conducted with local people and whilst these are 
useful, they are limited as a resource to help us understand the views of people within individual 
equality strands 

The sample sizes are also often too small to be meaningful in this context. In light of this we will 
continue to align our wider engagement activity with the work of the equalities team. 

 

Portsmouth City Council is committed to involving residents in the decision-making process wherever 
possible, and seeking the views of the people of Portsmouth on our services through surveys, 
neighbourhood forums and a variety of other engagement and consultation mechanisms. 

 

The process of developing this strategy has been informed throughout by the views of residents and 
stakeholders, not least through the results of the Valuing Diversity survey and other major surveys 
commissioned by the authority.  

 

This strategy has been endorsed by the council's Governance and Audit and Standards Committee 
(Date) and by the Cabinet (Date) as the executive decision maker. 

Page 48



13 

 

A Picture of Portsmouth Diversity infographic 

 

Methodology  

We have further developed our equality & diversity-themed ‘picture of Portsmouth’ based on the 
diversity of our residents and some equality issues. Our aim in this research has been to create a 
clear ‘picture’ of the city, both to inform this strategy and as an on-going piece of work to help the 
council and its partners to understand changes to the profile of the Portsmouth population. 

 

Sources 

For the initial ‘picture’, we looked at six equality ‘strands’, consistent with changing legislation: 

· Ethnicity 

· Gender  

· Age 

· Disability 

· LGBT  (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender) 

· Religion or belief  

 

Within each ‘strand’ identified, where applicable, we have looked at the history of each community in 
Portsmouth; how many people there were/are; the geographical distribution of the strands, and what 
this might tell us about people’s needs for public services. 

 

In addition to the information on specific strands, we have also provided an overview of the socio-
economic data available for Portsmouth. The following sources were used to inform this work: 

 

· The latest official data from the government and Office for National Statistics 

· Our own management information 

· Informal research 

· Feedback from communities 

· Information from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 

· The ‘valuing diversity’ survey  

· The 2007 & 2010 indices of multiple deprivation  

· The ‘Speaking Out 3’ survey – survey of LGBT (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender) 
communities.  

· Safer Portsmouth Partnership – mapping work on religion or belief within the city. 

 

There remain limits to the availability of data within each strand, and even where data does exist, it is 
often dated or incomplete. We will periodically review this work to help strengthen the range and 
quality of the data available across all strands, helping to better inform policy and service planning. 
We still lack useful data on the needs of asylum seekers and refugees and gypsy and traveller 
communities. 

 

There remains a challenge in effectively ‘joining-up’ strands to identify those who fall into a number of 
categories at the same time and how this potentially affects their needs. For example; disabled 

Page 49



14 

 

people among LGBT groups, or the various overlaps between BME communities and different faith 
groups.  We have limited data on the complexity within the Muslim communities in the city, both in 
terms of country of origin, and also the various denominations of Islam. 

 

DATA Sets 

 

  

Page 50



15 

 

Key facts about Portsmouth's population:  

· Portsmouth is a compact city covering 15.5 square miles with 79% of the population living on 
Portsea Island.  

· The city continues to be the most densely populated unitary local authority area in the UK outside 
of London (5,081 people per sq km). 

· Portsmouth's population has grown by 9.8% (n. 18,355) between 2001 and 2011 reaching 
205,056 on the Census 2011 day. According to the mid-2011 population estimate by ONS (based 
on Census 2011), Portsmouth currently has 205,400 residents.  

· The 9.8% increase in the city’s population masks considerable differences at ward level 

§ Three wards have seen significantly above-average population growth since 2001 - Central 
Southsea (+18%), Charles Dickens (+22%) and St Thomas (+31%)  

§ Two have seen below-average increase – Copnor (+2%) and Hilsea (+3%), and 

§ Two have seen their population decrease: Nelson (-2%) and Paulsgrove (-1%).   
 

· Most growth since 2001 has been in the working age groups, the 16-44 year old age group 
increased by 13%. There was also an increase in children aged 0-4 years (23%)1.  
 

· According to ONS Sub-national Population Projections (based on the 2011 Census) there will be a 
further 6% growth in Portsmouth's population between 2011 and 2021 to reach 218,314.  

  

                                                           
1
 Hampshire County Council's Census 2011 Facts and Figures for Portsmouth available at 

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/2011_census_portsmouth_summary_factsheet.pdf. Accessed on 8 October 2013.  

Page 51



16 

 

Key facts about Portsmouth's levels of deprivation: 

· Despite Portsmouth’s attractive waterfront location in one of the UK’s wealthiest regions, the 

city has pockets of deprivation that are some of the worst in the country.  

· Results from the 2010 Index of Multiple Deprivation show that Portsmouth’s relative position 

has deteriorated compared with 2007 compared with England - Portsmouth is ranked 76rd of 
326 local authorities in England, compared with 93rd of 354 authorities in 2007 (where 1 is the 
most deprived). 

· For the overall index, 14 areas in Portsmouth are placed in the worst 10% of areas in England, 
an increase from 12 in the 2007 Index. 

· 15% of Portsmouth’s residents are income deprived based on the 2010 Indices of Deprivation. 
 

     

The map on the left shows overall scores (taking 
account of all seven indicators: Income, 
Employment, Health deprivation and disability, 
Education, skills and training, Barriers to housing 
and services, Crime and disorder, and Living 
Environment) for deprivation levels in Portsmouth. 

 

Source: Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2010 
(Overall) by Local Authority Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA) 

(grey boundary) - JSNA maps accessed in June 2011. (The decile with the highest scores 
represents the 10% most deprived areas in Portsmouth; the green lines indicate ward 
boundaries).  
 

· The map indicates that Charles Dickens, Paulsgrove, Cosham and St. Thomas wards have 
LSOA areas with some of the worst deprivation levels in Portsmouth.  

· Drayton & Farlington and Copnor are wards with least deprivation in comparison with the rest 
of Portsmouth.  

· More people are suffering from employment deprivation (11,300 residents) than in 2007, when 
the figure was 10,500. 

 

Please see the JSNA website for more information on deprivation in Portsmouth: 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19067.html. 

Page 52



17 

 

Race 
According to the Gateway Report (Portsmouth City Council, March 2013), 14,998 residents arrived in 
Portsmouth from overseas from 2001-2011 and the resident population of Portsmouth includes 
25,000 people born outside the UK. 

Portsmouth is an ethnically diverse city with the Black Minority and Ethnic (BME)2 residents 
comprising 16% (n. 32,743) of its total population, according to ONS Census 2011. This represents a 
significant increase in the size of the BME residents when compared with Census 2001 data which 
recorded the percentage of the city’s BME residents at 8.14%.  

The make-up of Portsmouth’s BME communities has also undergone a considerable change. African, 

Mixed: White and Asian, and Polish have joined Bangladeshi, Indian and Chinese amongst the six 
largest ethnic groups in the city.  

The biggest BME communities in Portsmouth: 
 
· Bangladeshi or British Bangladeshi – 1.8% of Portsmouth's total population (n. 3,649) 
· African – 1.4% (n. 2,958) 
· Indian or British Indian – 1.4% (n. 2,911) 
· Chinese – 1.3% (n. 2,611) 
· Mixed: White & Asian – 1.2% (n. 2,381) 
· Polish – 0.8% (n. 1,676) 
 
Other sizable BME communities in Portsmouth: 
 
· Other Western European3 – 0.6% (1,289) 
· Mixed: White & Black Caribbean – 0.5% (n. 1,103) 
· Arab – 0.5% (n. 1078) 
· White Irish – 0.5% (n. 1,071) 
· European Mixed – 0.5% (n. 1,063) 
· Mixed: White & Black African – 0.5% (n. 935) 
· Other Eastern European4 – 0.4% (800) 
· Filipino – 0.4% (n. 735) 
· Kurdish – 0.3% (542) 
· Caribbean – 0.3% (540) 
· Pakistani or British Pakistani – 0.3% (539) 
 
Other White5 communities have seen the greatest growth (by 20% to account for 3.8% of 
Portsmouth’s population – up from 2.2% 2001). African ethnic group has also made a significant gain 
in numbers (growing by 12.8% to account for 1.4% of the city’s population – up from 0.3 in 2001).  
                                                           
2
 BME population – population from all ethnic groups with the exception of White British.  

3
 Other Western European – All Western European except White: English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British, Black British, 

Italian, Greek, Greek Cypriot, Cypriot, European Mixed, and Black European. 

4
 Other Eastern European – All Eastern European except Serbian, Polish, Kosovan, Croatian, Bosnian, Baltic States, Albanian, 

European Mixed, and Black European.  

Page 53



18 

 

St. Thomas ward has the highest numbers of non-White resident population (n. 4,012, 24.1% of its 
total population), followed by Charles Dickens (n. 3,444, 18.5% of its total population), Central 
Southsea (n. 2,705, 16.2%) and Fratton (n. 2,144, 14% of its total population).  

Portsmouth’s school pupils (aged 5 and over) are slightly more diverse both in numbers and ethnic 

make-up according to the recent (January 2013) School Survey (all Portsmouth schools including 
Academies) carried out by Portsmouth City Council.  

§ 17.8% (n. 4270) of pupils have been recorded to belong to ethnic minority groups. 
 

§ The largest ethnicities amongst pupils are Any Other White Background6 (3.61%; n. 866) (just 
under half of which are expected to be Polish as 1.42% of pupils have  Polish as their main 
language), Bangladeshi (3.53%; n. 847), African (2.03%, n. 488), and Any Other Asian 
Background7 (1.83%, n. 440).  

 
Country of birth 
According to Census 2011, 87.8% of Portsmouth's population were born in the UK. This represents a 
reduction from 92.5% in 2001.  
 
Europe at 4.8% 
 
Middle East & Asia at 4.5% 
 
Africa at 2% 
 
The Americas & Caribbean at 0.6% 
 
Antarctica & Oceania at 0.2% 
 
According to ONS Census 2011, there are 25,423 full-time students aged 16-74 years in Portsmouth, 
5,500 of whom are assumed to be overseas students by the Gateway Report (Portsmouth City 
Council, March 2013). 
 
 
Trends in births 

There has been a significant increase in the number of births to non-British born mothers since 2001. 
By 2011 such births accounted for 22% of all births (increase from 11% in 2001)8.  

Data and graph for live births by country of birth of mother are under Ethnicity on JSNA website (Go 
to http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk and search 'Joint Strategic Needs Assessment').  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
5
 Other White – all White communities except White British, White Irish and White Gypsy or Irish Traveller.  

6
 Any Other White Background – Any White Background except White British, White Irish, White Irish Traveller, and White Romany. 

7
 Any Other Asian Background – Any Asian Background except Bangladeshi, Pakistani, Chinese, Indian, and Mixed White/Asian. 

8
 Hampshire County Council's Factsheet 'Trends in Births and Deaths for Portsmouth since 1991'. 

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/trend_b_d_factsheet_2011_-_portsmouth.pdf. Accessed on 8 October 2013. 

Page 54



19 

 

 
 
 
Age profile of Portsmouth's diverse communities 
 

 

· The above graph indicates that Mixed ethnic group has the highest proportion of children aged 0-
15 (47.4%), followed by Black or Black British ethnic group with 24.6% children of the same age.  

 
· White residents of Portsmouth, on the contrary, have the lowest proportion of children (17.2%), 

but by far the highest proportion of older people aged 65 and over (14.7%) compared with other 
ethnicities (3% for Asian or Asian British) and even less for others).    

 
  

31,180 

2,592 

2,692 932 
404 

123,220 

2,756 

9,387 2,784 
1,697 

26,782 

119 395 61 55 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

White Mixed Asian or Asian British Black or Black British Other ethnic group

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 p

op
ul

a
tio

n
 

Resident population by ethnic group and broad age group 

Portsmouth City, 2011 

0-15 years old 16 - 64 years old 65 years and over

Source: 2011 Census Table DC2101EW 

Page 55



20 

 

Level of English (all usual9 Portsmouth residents aged 3 and above) 

· 93% (n. 196,712) speak English as their main language.  
 

· 6% (n. 11,566) do not have English as their main language but can speak English well or very 
well.  

 
· 1% (n. 2,113) cannot speak English very well and only 0.2% (n. 328) of such residents cannot 

speak English.  
Charles Dickens and St. Thomas wards have the highest numbers of residents whose English is not 
their main language and who either cannot speak English very well or cannot speak English at all.  

 
Languages spoken in Portsmouth 
 
The most common languages spoken in Portsmouth other than English include:  

§ Polish (1%, n. 1,914),  
§ Bengali (with Sylheti and Chatgaya) (0.8%, n. 1,517),  
§ All Other Chinese (other than Mandarin Chinese or Cantonese Chinese) (0.6%, n. 1,180),  
§ Arabic (0.5%, n. 979),  
§ Kurdish (0.3%, n. 541), and  
§ French (0.3%, n. 511).  
§ Tagalog / Filipino, German and Greek are not far behind with 0.2% of Portsmouth residents 

having these as their main languages.  
 

Just over 100 languages (other than English) are spoken by pupils in Portsmouth schools as their first 
language according to the School Census 2013. The most common first languages (other than 
English) similarly to last year figures are: 

§ Bengali (4% of total pupils, n. 850),  
§ Polish (1% of total pupils, n. 341),  
§ Arabic (0.8% of total pupils, n. 181),  
§ Tagalog / Filipino (0.7% of total pupils, n. 157), and  
§ Kurdish (0.6% of total pupils, n. 135).  

  

                                                           
9
 For 2011 Census purposes, a usual resident of the UK is anyone who, on census day, was in the UK and had stayed or intended to 

stay in the UK for a period of 12 months or more, or had a permanent UK address and was outside the UK and intended to be 

outside the UK for less than 12 months. 

Page 56



21 

 

Migration - Employment 

After a significant drop in National Insurance (NI) registrations from the EU Accession countries in 
2009/10, the numbers of applications from these countries have seen a steady increase. The trend is 
similar for EU countries.  

The number of NI applications from Asia and Middle East has however dropped sharply (by 41.4%) 
between 2010/11 and 2011/12 after a 5-year period of steady rise.  

The highest numbers of registrations for NI in Portsmouth in 2011/12 were from Polish (n.240), 
Romanian (n.180) and Chinese (n.150) nationals, followed by Indians, Nigerians and Hungarians with 
110 registrations each. Since 2008/09 the number of certificates issued to Polish nationals has 
decreased by half.  

There has also been a significant decrease in such certificates being issued to Spanish, French, Iraqi, 
and Slovak nationals.  

However, NI registrations from Romanian people have seen a sharp increase by 1.5 times (157%) 
(from 70 to 180) in the same period. A rise in such registrations can also be noted among Hungarian, 
Italian and Portuguese.  

 

Source: Department for Work and Pensions, 2013 

 

Increase in NI registrations

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Pakistan Portugal Latvia Hungary Italy Bulgaria Rep of Lithuania Romania

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

Page 57



22 

 

 

Source: Department for Work and Pensions, 2013 

 
Home Office Research Report 72 - "Social and Public Service Impacts of International Migration 
at the Local Level", July 2013 makes the following findings: 
  
· Portsmouth sits within 'High Migration' cluster of Local Authorities and is classified as belonging to 

'Diverse Conurbation Centres' group, which is characterised by: 
 
Ø High rates of African and Asian migration, child and international student migration, and a high 

proportion of supported asylum seekers.  
 

Ø Urban areas, mainly large conurbations, with high levels of worklessness, a high proportion of 
social housing and higher employment levels in migrant-dense industries. 

 
For more details, see the full report (particularly p. 22), available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/210324/horr72.pdf.  
 

  

Decrease in NI registrations

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Poland Slovak
Republic

Nigeria France India Spain Iraq Peoples
Republic of

China

Germany Malaysia Bangladesh

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

Page 58



23 

 

 

Ethnicity - Employment 

The Annual Labour Force Survey (Annual Labour Force Survey ONS Crown Copyright Reserved 
from Nomis on 8 January 2013) shows that10: 

· In 2010-2011 of 10,800 people aged 16-64 years in Portsmouth from ethnic minorities, 46% were 
in employment and 44% were economically inactive.  
 

· This can be compared with economic activity rates for all Portsmouth residents aged 16-64 years 
of 72% (62% employees and 10% self-employed) and for England where 59% of people from 
ethnic minorities were in employment and 32% were not economically active.  

 
· The survey indicates that of the 4,500 people from ethnic minorities who are in employment about: 

2,100 were in public administration, education and health, 1,100 were in other service sectors and 
800 were in manufacturing.   

 

Ethnicity - views on employment 

· The Valuing Diversity Survey 2009 asked people if they had concerns over discrimination when 
applying for jobs in Portsmouth.  

· Almost three quarters of all respondents had concerns. 66% of BME respondents felt that it was 
specifically their ethnic background that would make it more difficult for them to apply.  

· 57% of Polish respondents noted that difficulties in understanding English would cause problems 
for them in accessing employment. 

 

Ethnicity - deprivation 

There is an evident relationship between Portsmouth wards with high deprivation levels (as per the 
Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2010) and wards with high concentrations of ethnic minority 
residents, particularly in St. Thomas, Charles Dickens and Central Southsea. However, some wards 
such as Paulsgrove have high deprivation levels but very low numbers of ethnic minority residents.  
 
Ethnicity - perceptions of safety 

· Valuing Diversity Survey 2009 shows that almost half of Portsmouth residents (45%) feel unsafe 
after nightfall, which is above the national average (37%) according to the MORI’s Place Survey 

norm for unitary/metropolitan authorities.  
· The Valuing Diversity Survey indicates that Asian respondents are more likely to feel unsafe than 

White respondents (53% versus 37%). 

· East European and Black communities feel reasonably safe after dark (compared to the White 
population).  

                                                           
10

 Source: The Gateway report, p.13, availale at: 

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/API_STR_JSNA_POP_ETH_EuropeanIntegrationFundGatewayBaselineReview.pdf.  

Page 59



24 

 

· 77% of the respondents from the Asian community stated the lack of CCTV cameras and other 
security measures were a problem in their local area.  

· Over 80% of the respondents to the Valuing Diversity Survey 2009 from the Asian community felt 
that ‘teenagers hanging around in the streets’ was a problem in their area, while a majority of 

other ethnic groups felt that this was ‘not a problem’.  

· The respondents from the Asian community tended to be more concerned about all of the anti-
social behaviour problems included in the survey than other ethnic groups. 

 

Race Hate Crime 
Race hate crime is defined as any incident that constitutes a criminal offence, which is perceived by 
the victim or any other person as being racially or religiously motivated.  

 
During 2012/13, 208 racially or religiously aggravated violent offences were reported to the police.  In 
previous years the number of racially or religiously motivated hate incidents were:  
        

2009/10 = 225 
 2010/11 = 196 
 2011/12 = 233 

 
§ Where age was provided by victim, the figures show that the majority of victims of racially or 

religiously aggravated violent offences were aged 26-45 (62.5%). 
 

§ The majority of victims were males (83.4%). The biggest ethnicities amongst the victims who 
provided this information were White - North European (32%) and Asian (31.3%).  
 

The Hidden Violence Team received reports of 488 incidents of race hate from 413 referrals in 
2012/13. There has been a 3.6% (n. 17) increase of such incidents and a 2.2% (n. 9) increase in 
referrals since 2011/12.  
 

§ The most common types of incidents continue to be Verbal (76%, n. 371), Harassment / 
Intimidation / Bullying (38.7%, n. 189) and to a lesser extent Physical (15.7%, n. 77).  

 
§ The biggest numbers of incidents took place outside victim's home, on street / park, outside 

public space, at work (employee) and inside victim's home.  
 

§ Where age was provided by victims, the majority of victims were aged 30-59 (56.8%), followed 
by victims aged 19-29 (29%). Where gender was provided by victims, the majority of victims 
constituted males (64%).  

 
NOTE: These numbers may not be a true representation of race hate crime in Portsmouth due to 
under-reporting by the victims who often lack confidence in adequate police response, or are 
unaware of the law and support available.  

Page 60



25 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Gender 
Gender split of Portsmouth's population is roughly 50/50 with slightly fewer women than men. 
 

Men = 103,201 

Women = 101,855 
 
However, at ward level, data shows more females than males in Baffins, Copnor, Cosham, Drayton & 
Farlington, Hilsea, Milton, Nelson and Paulsgrove wards.  
 

Although in general there are slightly more males than females at all age bands up to 59 years, there 
are significantly more females than males aged 70 years and over with the percentage difference 
rising with age. 
 
Data indicates that in Portsmouth women tend to live longer than men by about 6 years.   
For more information on life expectancy by gender, visit JSNA web pages at: 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19094.html.  

 

The city's population is forecasted to increase by 1.4% (n. 1400) between 2012 and 2018, when the 
number of residents is expected to reach 200,400.  

 

 

 

 

AGE 

-400

-200

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

2012-2015 2012-2018

P
o

p
u

la
tio

n
 c

h
a

n
g

e

Estimated population change by gender
Portsmouth City, all ages, 2012-2018

Males Females

Source: Hampshire County Environment Department's 2011 based Small Area Population Forecasts

Page 61



26 

 

 
Portsmouth has become a younger city overall since 2001, although the older population (85+ years) 
has seen above average growth during that period, with expansion of this age group projected to 
continue.  
 
There has been significant growth in the 0 - 19 years population and a decrease in the 65 years and 
over population.   
 

Older people 

The number of people aged 65 years and over has declined by 1,260 between 2001 and 2011 (from 
15.4% to 13.4% in terms of proportion of population), but the number of very old people aged 85 
years and over has grown by 440 between 2001 and 2011. The proportion of the population aged 85 
years and over has also increased and currently stands at 2.2% of the population11.  

 

Young people 

Between 2001 and 2011, the growth in the 0 - 19 years population has been driven by dramatic 
increases in the 0 - 4 and 16 - 19 years populations, while the 5 - 15 years population has actually 
declined. 

According to Hampshire County Council's 2011 Census Facts and Figures for Portsmouth, between 
2001 and 2011 there has been an increase in the percentage of the population aged 15-29 years 
(from 23.3% to 27.2%).  
 
There has been a decline amongst adults aged 30-39 years (from 16.2% to 13.3%). 
 

                                                           
11

 The Hampshire County Council's Factsheet 'Trends in Ageing across Portsmouth 1981 to 2001', available at: 

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/portsmouth_ageing_factsheet_2011.pdf. The data in the factsheets comes from the Office for National 

Statistics (ONS) 2011 Census and NOMIS. 

Page 62



27 

 

 

 

According to Census 2011, the age structure of the city’s population has changed considerably over 

the last ten years, again with significant variation at ward level. 

· The 0 – 4 years population has grown by 23% at Local Authority level.  Wards with above-
average increase: Eastney & Craneswater, Fratton, Milton and St Thomas (significantly so at 
56%). 
 

· The 5 – 9 years population has remained static at city level having fallen in eight wards, but 
grown in the remaining six – especially Eastney & Craneswater (+34%) and St Jude (+30%). 

 
· The 10 – 14 years population has fallen by 7.3% at city level, with only three wards showing an 

increase in this age group: Drayton & Farlington, Eastney & Craneswater and Milton. 
· Four wards have made a significant contribution to the city level increase of 25% in the 15 – 19 

years age group: Central Southsea (with an increase of 76%), Charles Dickens, Fratton and St 
Thomas. 
 

· The 20 – 24 years population has grown by 36% at city level, with all but one ward (Nelson) 
seeing an increase.  Two wards have seen significant growth in this population: Central 
Southsea (+68%) and St Thomas (+101%). 

 
· The 25 – 64 years age group has seen growth consistent with the whole population at city 

level, but risen more sharply in Charles Dickens, St Jude and St Thomas. 
 

· The 65 – 74 years population has remained static at city level, but risen relatively sharply in 
Copnor and fallen correspondingly sharply in Charles Dickens and St Jude. 

15 10 5 0 5 10 15

0-4

5-9

10-14

15-19

20-24

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75-79

80-84

85-89

90 and over

Age Band Percentage of Total Population by Gender

Males England

Females England

Males Portsmouth

Females Portsmouth

Source: Office for National Statistics  2011 Census © Crown Copyright 2012

Resident population by gender and 5 year age bands, Portsmouth City and England, 2011

Page 63



28 

 

· The city’s 75 – 84 years population has fallen across all wards, giving a 16% reduction at city 
level.  Baffins, Drayton & Farlington and Hilsea have seen the least reduction in this age group, 
while Fratton, Paulsgrove and St Jude have seen the most. 

 
· The city’s 85+ years population has grown by 12%.  Central Southsea, Charles Dickens and 

Nelson have bucked this trend, while Baffins, Copnor, Drayton & Farlington and Paulsgrove 
have all seen a higher than average increase. 

 

 
Young people 
The distribution of births by age of mother has changed over the period. More children are now born 
to older mothers, with fewer to younger women aged 20 and below. For graphs with more details, see 
the Factsheet at: http://www3.hants.gov.uk/trend_b_d_factsheet_2011_-_portsmouth.pdf.  
 

Age - Population projections 

Portsmouth's population will have grown by 6.3% between 2011 and 2021 - less than Southampton 
(+7.1%), the South East (+9.3%) and England (+8.6%)12. 
 

· Although the number of 0 - 4 year olds is projected to fall slightly over the period, overall the 0 - 
15 years population is projected to increase by 6.4% and will continue to account for 18.4% of 
the total population. 
 

· The projected fall in the 16 - 19 years population (-11.5%) means that the working age 
population (16 - 64 years) is projected to grow by only 4.4%.  Consequently, by 2021 the 
working age population will account for 66.8% of the total population - down from 68.2% in 
2011. 

 

· Overall, the 65+ years population is projected to grow by 17.1% and account for 14.8% of the 
population in 2021 (up from 13.4% in 2011).  The 85+ years population is projected to see the 
greatest increase of any age group - growing by 20.7% (n. 897) to account for 2.4% of the 
population (up from 2.1% in 2011). 

 
For further information on Children and Young People and Older People profile and needs, you can 
access the following resources: 

· Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Portsmouth - 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19059.html; 

· Children and Young People's Needs Assessment - 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/API_STR_JSNA_POP_CYP_Childrens_Needs_Assessm
ent_Final.pdf; 

· Ageing Population Strategy 2010 - 2020 - http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19468.html; 

· The Older People's Health and Wellbeing Atlas - 
http://www.wmpho.org.uk/olderpeopleatlas/default.aspx; 

                                                           
12

 The ONS sub-national population projections (SNPP) based on the 2011 Census released on 28 September 2012.  

Page 64



29 

 

· Safer Portsmouth Partnership - http://www.saferportsmouth.org.uk/ 

· Tackling Poverty in Portsmouth - A strategy for the city - 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/API_STR_JSNA_SEC_POV_STRATEGY270212Printed.
pdf.  

 

 

MARITAL AND CIVIL PARTNERSHIP STATUS 

· 36.9% of the adult population in Portsmouth are married, a decline from 42.3% in 200113. 

  

· Those that are single (never married) account for 43.5%, an increase from 36.4% in 2001. 0.3% of 
Portsmouth's population are in a civil partnership.  

 

· 126 civil partnerships ceremonies took place in Portsmouth in the three years period 1 June 2010 
to 1 June 2013.  

 

  

                                                           
13

 Hampshire County Council's Census 2011 Facts and Figures for Portsmouth, available at:  

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/2011_census_portsmouth_summary_factsheet.pdf. Accessed on 8 October 2013. 

Page 65



30 

 

 

RELIGION 
 

· There are a number of faiths practised in Portsmouth, partly because of the ethnic diversity in the 
city.  

· Portsmouth is famous for having two cathedrals – The Roman Catholic Diocese of Portsmouth, 
and St Thomas’ Cathedral.  

· The city is home to a range of other places of worship, including several mosques and a 
synagogue. 

 

2001 (%)   2011 (%) 

Christian  68.1 (n. 127,084)   52.2 (n. 106,999) 

No Religion  20.0 (n. 37,252)  35.0 (n. 71,826) 

Muslim  2.1 (n. 4,010)  3.5 (n. 7,162) 

Buddhist  0.4 (n. 740)   0.6 (n. 1,162) 

Sikh   0.2 (n. 321)  0.2 (n. 468) 

Hindu   0.4 (n. (816)  0.6 (n. 1282) 

Jewish  0.1 (n. 235)  0.1 (n. 235) 

Other   0.4 (n. 727)  0.5 (n. 1,050) 

Not Stated  8.3 (n. 15,516) 7.3 (n. 14,872) 

 

§ Although Christianity has declined significantly since 2001, it remains the largest religion in 
Portsmouth at 52.2%.  

§ The percentage of people who declare having no religion has however increased by 75.6%.  

§ Islam has also seen a significant increase in its followers in Portsmouth (by 81%).  

§ The city is home to significant Hindu, Buddhist, Sikh, and Jewish communities, which all, 
except Jewish, have also experienced a significant rise in members.  

§ Baffins, Charles Dickens and Dayton and Farlington wards have the highest number of 
Christians.  

The greatest numbers of Muslims in Portsmouth are concentrated in St. Thomas (n. 1,672) and 
Charles Dickens (n. 1375) wards and represent 42.5% of all Muslim population of Portsmouth.  
 
The biggest concentrations, although small in numbers, of Buddhists are in St. Thomas (n. 178) and 
St. Jude (n. 158) wards, followed by Charles Dickens (n. 127) and Central Southsea (n. 121). 
 
St. Thomas has by far the biggest number of Hindu people (n. 274), followed by Central Southsea (n. 
150), Eastney & Craneswater (n. 132) and Charles Dickens (n. 127).  
 
Sikh and Jewish communities are relatively small in Portsmouth. St. Thomas (n. 75), Central 
Southsea (n. 54) and Charles Dickens (n. 48) have the highest numbers of Sikh residents, whilst 
Eastney & Craneswater (n. 41), St. Thomas (n. 37) and Central Southsea (n. 32) have the highest 
concentrations of Jewish communities.  
  

Page 66



31 

 

 

Religion or belief – How safe do people feel? 

 

The Valuing Diversity Survey 2009 found that: 

· Muslims in particular feel much less safe in the city after dark than Christians.  

· 60% of Muslims said that they felt that ‘the lack of CCTV cameras and other security measures’ 

was a problem in their local area. Only 44% of Christians felt the same.  

· In general, the Muslim community and other non-Christian groups were more concerned than 
Christians about all aspects of community safety.  

· Muslims were more likely than Christians to feel that crime in their area has gone up over the last 
two years.  

· A large majority of Muslims and all non-Christians think that racial and/or other hate crimes are a 
problem in their local area, while only 31% of Christians think this.  

· This is a very clear difference in the way that crime is perceived or experienced between the 
various faith communities in the city.  

· The Valuing Diversity Survey asked people if they had concerns over discrimination when 
applying for jobs in Portsmouth. Almost three quarters of all respondents did have such concerns, 
but only 35% of Muslim respondents said that it was specifically their religion that was the cause 
of such discrimination.  

· Muslim respondents were concerned that they lacked qualifications (42%) or lacked experience 
(49%).  

 
For more information, visit our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment web pages at: 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19062.html.  
 
 
DISABILITY 
 
Long -term health problem or disability - Census 2011 
(A long-term health problem or disability that limits a person's day-to-day activities, and has lasted, or 
is expected to last, at least 12 months. This includes problems that are related to old age. People 
were asked to assess whether their daily activities were limited a lot or a little by such a health 
problem, or whether their daily activities were not limited at all.) 

 

15,068 (7.3%) Portsmouth residents said that their day-to-day activities are limited a lot. 

3.3% (n. 6,759) of Portsmouth residents aged 16-64 years said that day-to-day activities limited a lot.  

 

17,791 (8.7%) residents feel their day-to-day activities are limited a little.  

4.6% (n. 9,447) of residents aged 16-64 years said their day-to-day activities limited a little. 

 

Page 67



32 

 

7,995 (3.9%) residents reported experiencing bad health whilst 2,359 (1.2%) residents said they were 
of very bad health.  

 

 

Physical disability 

There were 3,429 adults registered as having a physical disability as at 31 March 2013. This 
represents 3.3% (n. 110) increase since last year.  

· 18 - 64 years olds - 1,269 

· 65+ year olds - 2,128 - representing 62% of all persons registered with physical disability.  

· No age known - 32 
Charles Dickens (n. 548) and Paulsgrove (n. 343) wards have the highest numbers of adult residents 
registered with a physical disability. The same wards show the highest numbers of such residents in 
both age bands 18-64 years and 65+ years.  

Ward 18-64 years 65+ years 

Charles Dickens  n. 240 (22.2 per 1,000 residents) n. 304 (94.2 per 1,000 residents) 

Paulsgrove n. 169 (20.1 per 1,000 residents) n. 172 (85.1 per 1,000 residents) 

 

Sensory impairments 

There were 1,119 adults registered in Portsmouth with a hearing impairment as at 31 March 2013. 
There has been an increase in such registrations since last year (6.9%, n. 78). 

· 18 - 64 year olds - 322 

· 65 + year olds - 869 

· No age known - 8 
There majority of adults with a hearing impairment are aged 65 + years (77.6%).  
Charles Dickens and Paulsgrove wards have the highest numbers adults registered with a hearing 
impairment (155 and 107 respectively).  
 
There were 976 adults registered as having a visual impairment as at 31 March 2013. There has 
been a slight decrease in such registrations since last year (1.6%, n. 16).  

· 18 - 64 year olds - 267 

· 65 + year olds - 707 

· No age known - 2 
The majority of adults registered as having a visual impairment are aged 65 years and over (72.4% of 
all people registered).  

The largest numbers of people registered with a visual impairment reside in Charles Dickens (n. 105) 
and Hilsea (n. 78) wards. 

There were 491 people registered as blind as at 31/3/2013. 

 

Page 68



33 

 

 

 

 

Learning disability 

About twenty people in every thousand have a learning disability. It is estimated that 4235 of 
Portsmouth residents (across all age ranges) have a learning disability, but only 961 of those people 
are likely to be known to various services14. 

The biggest proportion of population with a learning disability is estimated to be among young people 
aged 20-24 (249 females and 377 males) and 25-29 (198 females and 308 males)15.  

In 2011/12, Portsmouth GPs recorded that they were aware of 734 adults aged 18+ years with a 
learning disability (0.34% of the registered population aged 18+ years)16. The highest numbers of GP 
registered adults with a learning disability live in the Alexandra, City Centre and Farlington areas. 

In 2011/12, Adult Social Care provided a service to 578 people aged 18+ years relating to learning 
disability (increase of 84 clients compared to 2010/11). In the same period, Adult Social Care 
provided a service in the community for 451 people with a learning disability aged 18+ years. The 
highest numbers of such people were in Hilsea (n. 68) and Fratton (n. 44), followed by Charles 
Dickens (n. 36) and Nelson (n. 34).17  
 
People with a learning disability are amongst the most vulnerable in society and are at increased risk 
of social exclusion. They have a range of health and behavioural problems and generally have poorer 
health than people who do not have a learning disability.  
 
There is a higher prevalence of "learning difficulties" in South Asian communities in comparison with 
other ethnic groups. This has been linked to high levels of material and social deprivation. National 
statistics estimate that about 25% of new service users for people with a learning disability provided 
by adult social care will belong to minority ethnic communities.18  
 
Data from the Advocacy Service (SEAP) obtained in early 2012 suggested that the main presenting 
problems for people with learning disabilities were care/treatment (30%) and housing (35%).19 People 
with learning disability also experience difficulty in finding suitable employment.  
 

                                                           
14

 (Source: Public Health England website http://www.improvinghealthandlives.org.uk/numbers/howmany/laestimates/. Accessed 2 

July 2013.) 
15

 See 7 above. 
16

 Health and Wellbeing of Adults with a Learning Disability - Portsmouth's Profile 2012-13, p. 16. Available at: 

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/API_STR_JSNA_BURD_LD_Profile2012.pdf.  
17

 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Briefing Note, Portsmouth City - People with a learning disability, available at: 

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/API_STR_JSNA_BURD_LD9.pdf.  
18

 See 9 above, pp. 12 - 13.  
19

 See 9 above, p. 19.  

Page 69



34 

 

Prevalence of discriminatory abuse or 'hate crime' among people with a disability is currently being 
researched by the council, which will include information of experiences of hate crime by people with 
a learning disability.  
  

Page 70



35 

 

 

For more information visit:  

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment: http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19094.html 

Public Health England: Learning disability - numbers 
http://www.improvinghealthandlives.org.uk/numbers/howmany/ & Learning Disability Profile for 
Portsmouth http://www.improvinghealthandlives.org.uk/profiles/index.php?view=E06000044  

Health and Wellbeing of Adults with a Learning Disability - Portsmouth's Profile 2012-13: 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/API_STR_JSNA_BURD_LD_Profile2012.pdf.  

Mental health 

Common mental disorders are mental conditions that cause marked emotional distress and interfere 
with daily function – including different types of depression and anxiety, and include obsessive 
compulsive disorder. 

About 21,800 Portsmouth residents aged 16-64 years are predicted to be affected by at least one 
common mental disorder and is set to increase to about 22,700 by 2020 - according to Adult 
Psychiatric Morbidity Survey, 2007 (Source - 'Mental Health Briefing Note on JSNA web pages at 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19094.html. Accessed on 2 July 2013.) 
 
There is a strongly positive correlation (0.8) between deprivation (IMD, 2007) and people aged 18+ 
years receiving services for mental health problems from Adult Social Care (see Interactive Maps on 
JSNA website at http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19473.html).  
 
In 2011/12, Adult Social Care provided services for mental health problems to 1,545 clients aged 18+ 
years (1,298 clients in 2010/11). (Source - 'Mental Health Briefing Note on JSNA web pages at 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19094.html. Accessed on 2 July 2013.) 
 
In 2011/12, Adult Social Care provided services in the community for mental health problems to 887 
clients aged 18-64 years (7.0 clients per 1,000 residents aged 18-64 years) and to 324 clients aged 
65+ years (10.2 clients per 1,000 residents aged 65+ years). (Source - 'Mental Health Briefing Note 
on JSNA web pages at http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19094.html. Accessed on 2 July 2013.) 
 
In total, Adult Social Care provided services in the community for mental health problems to 1,211 
adults aged 18+ years. Where rates could be calculated, the highest crude rates were in Charles 
Dickens (155 clients, 11.0 clients per 1,000 population) and St Jude (77 clients, 7.5 clients per 1,000 
population). (Source - 'Mental Health Briefing Note on JSNA web pages at 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19094.html. Accessed on 2 July 2013.) 
 
For more information, visit JSNA web pages at http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/living/19094.html.  
 
  

Page 71



36 

 

 

Carers 

Census 2011 asked residents of Portsmouth if they are a provider of unpaid care - "A person is a 
provider of unpaid care if they look after or give help or support to family members, friends, 
neighbours or others because of long-term physical or mental ill health or disability, or problems 
related to old age. This does not include any activities as part of paid employment." 
 

17,010 (8.5%) of Portsmouth population declared providing unpaid care.  

10,794 (5.3%) residents have declared providing 1-19 hours of unpaid care a week. The largest 
numbers of such carers reside in the following wards: 

· Baffins (n. 1,010; 6.7%) 

· Drayton & Farlington (n. 996, 7.6%) 

· Copnor (n. 877, 6.4%) 

· Cosham (n. 846; 6.1%) 
2,239 (1.1%) residents have reported providing 20-49 hours of unpaid care a week. The largest 
numbers of such carers reside in the following wards: 

· Charles Dickens (n. 241, 1.3%) 

· Paulsgrove (n. 207, 1.5%) 

· Fratton (n. 187, 1.2%) 
4,103 (2%) residents have declared providing 50 or more hours of unpaid care a week. The largest 
numbers of such carers reside in the following wards: 

· Charles Dickens (n. 495, 2.7%) 

· Paulsgrove (n. 419, 3%) 

· Baffins (n. 359, 2.4%) 

· Cosham (n. 354, 2.6%) 
37.5% (n. 2686) more females have reported being an unpaid carer than males.  

Although the largest numbers of unpaid carers in Portsmouth are aged 25 - 49 (n. 6,385, 37.5%), 
followed by 50 - 64 years age group (n. 5,544, 32.5%), there is a relatively large number of older 
people aged 65 years and over having unpaid care responsibilities (n. 3.474, 20.4%).  A large 
proportion of intensive (50 hours of more a week) care is provided by older people aged 65 years and 
over (33.34%).  

6.2% of all unpaid carers have reported experiencing bad or very bad health.  

91.4% (n. 15,669) of unpaid carers are of White British decent, meaning that there are 8.6% (n. 
1,467) unpaid carers of BME background in Portsmouth. The majority of BME unpaid carers are 
Asian or Asian British (n. 648, 44%) followed by White Other (n. 311, 21%). 

According to Adult Social Care data, the following numbers of carers received a needs assessment, 
or review and a specific carers service, or advice and information between 1 April 2012 and 31st 
March 2013: 

Page 72



37 

 

· 18-64 year olds -  914 

· 65+ year olds - 656 
As part of Carers Strategy 2013-14, the Council has undertaken a review of support services 
available to carers in Portsmouth to ensure they meet their needs. The report is available at: 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/API_STR_JSNA_BURD_CARERS_DemandForCareAndAvailab
lityOfCarersPortsmouthJuly2013.pdf.  

LGBT 

· Official statistics on LGBT communities in the UK are hard to come by, as this data has not been 
routinely collected in the past. However, the government estimates that 5-7% of the UK population 
are lesbian, gay or bi-sexual.   

· The LGBT community is estimated to be several thousand people in Portsmouth.  

 

Homophobic Hate Crime 

There were 50 incidents of homophobic and transphobic hate crime in 46 referrals made to Hidden 
Violence Team in 2012/13 (Information provided by Hidden Violence Team at Portsmouth City 
Council on 21 June 2013). This represents a slight decrease in both referrals (17.3%, n. 8) and 
incidents (10%, n. 5).  

· The most common types of incidents included homophobic related, verbal and harassment / 
intimidation / bullying.  

· The majority of incidents occurred inside victim's home.  

· Where the age of victims was provided, the majority of victims were aged 30-59 (53.8%) followed 
by victims aged 19-29 (30.7%).  

· Where gender of victims was provided, the majority of victims were males (70%).  
 
It is not possible to provide an accurate picture of the homophobic crime due to the unwillingness of 
the LGBT communities to participate in surveys and provide information.  
 
‘The Speaking Out 3 Survey’ 2010 had a response from only 92 persons: 
 
· 59% of the respondents said they were subjected to homophobic incidents or crimes in the year 

before the survey, which indicates a 12% increase since the 2003/04 Speaking Out Survey, and a 
12.5% increase in comparison with homophobic hate crime reported nationally.  
 

· Verbal abuse is the most common type of incident and 43% of participants experienced it in the 
year preceding the survey.  

 

The Valuing Diversity Survey (2009) conducted in Portsmouth shows that: 

· The majority of respondents from the LGBT community said that they did feel safe walking alone 
in Portsmouth after dark.  

Page 73



38 

 

· 46% of the LGBT community regarded hate crime (including racial hate crime) as a problem in the 
local area.  

 
'European Union survey of discrimination and victimisation of lesbian, gay, bi-sexual and 

transgender persons' 

 

The European Union Agency for Fundamental Rights (FRA) conducted the 'European Union survey 
of discrimination and victimisation of lesbian, gay, bi-sexual and transgender persons' in 2012, which 
provides results by country. The survey results provide valuable evidence of how LGBT persons in 
the EU have experienced discrimination, harassment and violence in different areas of life.  
 
The EU LGBT survey 2012 results show that a large number of UK respondents were discriminated 
against in various areas of life, in particular in employment and education. Many respondents have 
also experienced violence and harassment, particularly in public places. Yet, such discrimination, and 
incidents and violence and harassment are seldom reported to the police or other authorities. 
 

Discrimination because of sexual orientation  

· In the UK, 44% of respondents felt discriminated against or harassed in the 12 months preceding 
the survey on the grounds of sexual orientation. Lesbian women were most likely to feel this way 
(53%). 
 

Discrimination in employment 

· In the UK, 13% of respondents felt discriminated against in the 12 months preceding the survey 
when looking for a job because of being LGBT. This figure rises to 40% of the transgender 
respondents who were looking for a job in the 12 months before the survey. 

· Almost one in 5 (19%) respondents who were employed felt discriminated against in the 12 
months preceding the survey because of being LGBT.  

 

Discrimination in healthcare and social care 

· In the UK, 14% of respondents in the UK felt personally discriminated against in the 12 months 
preceding the survey because of being LGBT by healthcare personnel (e.g. a receptionist, nurse 
or doctor). This figure rises to 18% of bisexual women, 19% of lesbian women, and 26% of 
transgender persons.  

· 5% of respondents experienced difficulty in gaining access to healthcare and 8% felt they had 
received unequal treatment when dealing with medical staff. These figures are significantly higher 
among transgender respondents (25% and 21% respectively).  

· 12% of respondents felt personally discriminated against in the 12 months before the survey by 
the social service personnel because of being LGBT. The figures indicate that the discrimination is 
exacerbated by a lesbian women (14%) or transgender person (26%). 

 

Page 74



39 

 

Discrimination in education 
· In the UK, 15% of respondents felt personally discriminated against in the year preceding the 

survey because of being LGBT by school / university personnel. Again, this figure rises 
significantly among transgender respondents (22%).  

· 50% of respondents said that they either always or often experienced negative comments or 
conduct at school during their schooling before the age of 18 because of being LGBT. This figure 
rises to 58% among respondents who identify themselves as gay men. 

Reporting of discrimination 

· In the UK, only 13% respondents said that they or anyone else had reported the most recent 
incident of discrimination. 10% Bisexual men and transgender persons (both 20%) were more 
likely to say that they or anyone else had reported the most recent incident of discrimination.  

· In answer to the question why the most recent incident of discrimination was not reported, the 
most common answers were: 

o 60% said that nothing would happen or change; 
o 52% stated it was not worth reporting - it happens all the time; 
o 44% said the incident would not have been taken seriously; 
o 34% said it was too much trouble, no time; 
o 29% did not know how or where to report it. 

 
Violence and Harassment 

· In the UK, 49% of respondents said they had been physically/sexually attacked of threatened with 
violence once in the 12 months preceding the survey.  

· 23% of respondents said they had been physically/sexually attacked of threatened with violence 
twice and 11% respondents 3 times in the 12 months before the survey.  

· 10% of respondents said they had been physically/sexually attacked of threatened with violence 
between 6-10 times or more than 10 times in the 12 months preceding the survey.  

 
Further information: 

· 'Living Together: British attitudes to lesbian, gay and bisexual people in 2012' (2012) - Survey by 
Stonewall, which can be accessed at: 
http://www.stonewall.org.uk/documents/living_together_2012.pdf.  

· '"I exist" survey of lesbian, gay, and bi-sexual people in the UK' - Lesbian and Gay Foundation 
2012 - explores health issues, homophobic bullying and discrimination in education and 
workplace. It can be accessed at: 
http://ripassetseu.s3.amazonaws.com/www.lgf.org.uk/_files/documents/dec_12/FENT__13557603
19_10723_I_Exist_National_ReportV.pdf.  

· 'The Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans Public Health Outcomes Framework Companion 
Document' - available on the Lesbian and Gay Foundation website at: http://www.lgf.org.uk/policy-
research/the-lgbt-public-health-outcomes-framework-companion-document/.  

· Headline findings from transgender surveys (Home Office, ‘Headline findings from our 

transgender e-surveys’ London: Home Office, 2012) - available at: 

Page 75



40 

 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/85499/transgender-
survey.pdf.  

Page 76



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Agenda item: 7 

  
Title of meeting:  
 

Governance & Audit & Standards Committee 
 

Subject: 
 

2013 Budget Consultation Report - Residents 

Date of meeting: 
 

7th November, 2013 

Report by: 
 

Head of Customer, Community and Democratic Services 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

 
 
 
 
1. Requested by    

 
 Administration of Portsmouth City Council 

 
2. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide members with an overview of analysis of 
responses to the 2013 budget consultation.  

 
3. Background 

 
The 2013 budget consultation invited comments and ideas from all residents and council 
staff. The consultation was promoted externally via a budget edition of Flagship, online 
articles and press releases, and internally via the intranet and all-staff emails. Responses 
could be submitted electronically or via forms printed in Flagship. In addition, Chris Ward, 
head of finance, explained local government budgets at two city-wide public meetings 
(North - Springfield School and South - Guildhall) and six neighbourhood forums. 
Attendance figures and questions asked can be found at appendix 1 (page 15-17).  
 
4. Methodology  

 
Residents and staff were asked to comment on 4 questions: 
Q1. How do you think the council could become more efficient? 
Q2. Which council service would you be prepared to see changed or reduced? 
Q3. Which council services would you be prepared to pay more for? 
Q4. Which council services do you value most and would like protected? 
 
Additional comments could also be submitted. 
 
It should be noted that this consultation is NOT quantitative in nature and cannot provide 
us with statistically robust data in that sense. It can however, provide a barometer, giving 

Agenda Item 7

Page 77



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

insight and providing a useful platform on which to build a more detailed questionnaire 
type process, should we decide to do this in future years. 
 
The qualitative nature allows people to respond more creatively and hopefully provide 
ideas and suggestions that they could not submit in a more traditional questionnaire. 
Although this free flow approach provides challenges for analysis, we have coded each 
response by topic to allow us to do some basic analysis on volumes for certain subjects. 
Full verbatim responses are also available as Appendix 2 (page 18-76). Each question is 
also broken down by whether the comments were from residents or staff. Although there 
are many pages, it is worth taking the time to read through the comments, in the 
respondents own words, to get a feeling of what matters and is really important to the 
individuals who responded. 
 
5. Response rates  

 
As of 5pm on Tuesday 1st October the following responses had been submitted: 
Residents = 240  
Staff = 236 
Total = 476 
 
This report gives detailed analysis of the responses made by residents ONLY. Verbatim 
responses from staff are available in Appendix 3 (page 77-127) for information. Further 
analysis of this data will follow. Of those residents responding, 66% provided a postcode. 
Those providing postcodes live in the following areas:   
 

· PO1 - 9.4% 

· PO2 - 20.8% 

· PO3 - 11.3% 

· PO4 - 18.9% 

· PO5 - 17.0% 

· PO6 - 22.7% 
Areas within Portsmouth that are economically more robust are over represented within 
this sample. 
 
6. Points for clarification 

 
Some of the feedback focused on areas where the council has no scope, demonstrated a 
lack of understanding about how something works, or suggested something that we do 
currently. This final point in particular demonstrates that we could be more vocal about 
some of the very good ideas we have already implemented to reduce council spending. 
Common themes that could be clarified are as follows: 
· Residents believing we are responsible for moving services from St Mary's to QA 

· The lack of control over third parties, such as the bus operators. Residents perceive 
some level of control as we provide subsidies. 

· Lack of understanding regarding the narrow nature of specific grants and that they are 
not inter-changeable. 

Page 78



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

· Although Flagship is cited as a cost cutting option by some, many are unaware that the 
magazine is funded by advertising and negates the need for services to print other 
materials as they can include information in Flagship. These points should be 
reiterated, and by doing so helps those who called for its cancellation to understand 
how useful it is and how it does not impact on services but helps them. 

· In terms of council housing, some people are unaware that housing is funded by the 
rents paid on these properties. 

 
7. Method of response analysis   

 
Although this consultation cannot provide us with statistically validated responses, we can 
identify key themes mentioned by responders and give some indication of the importance. 
 
Broadly, all responses for all questions fell into one of the following areas. Some areas are 
far more granular than others, for instance cycle lanes are classed alone and not included 
in transport due to the frequency they were mentioned throughout the responses.  
 
The areas are as follows1: 

1) Pay structure 

2) Ways council works/Contracts/Procurement 
3) Shared working 

4) Channel shift - move to online services 

5) Enforcement 
6) Fees 

7) Benefits 

8) Waste 

9) Environment 
10) Seafront 
11) Leisure 

12) Schools/Education 

13) Charities 

14) Child protection/Child services 

15) Services for the Elderly 

16) Health 

17) Toilets 

18) Landlords/Housing 

19) Transport/Traffic 

20) Cyclists/Cycle lanes 

 
By coding responses we are able to ascertain the levels of importance to this particular 
group of responders. One needs to bear in mind some sections can include various 
different aspects, for example environment includes street wardens and street lighting 
comments amongst other things. 

                                            
1
   Please note these numbers and the order are not significant in any way and are for coding purposes only. 

Page 79



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

4 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

8. Overall key findings 

 
Some of the participants acknowledged how difficult finding £30 million of cuts would be 
and that they felt the council was already doing a reasonable job. 
 
"Portsmouth is a great place to live and work…the UK's only island city. We have to pull 
together to get through the recession and ensure there is a good local economy". 
 
Of course, not all participants shared these views. Individual responses can be seen in 
detail in the appendix section of this report. 
 
Overall, there is a sense that many would like the council to work in a more business-like, 
private sector manner. There is a call for a reduction in bureaucracy, and a tougher stance 
with contracts/contractors to provide relevant and robust services.  
 
Other popular ideas included further reduction of PCC buildings and more home working, 
reduction in the number of councillors per ward and turning street lights off. 
 
Some residents were also prepared to see charging for bus passes, minimal charges for 
leisure activities to help maintain services, and a reduction in the number of hours street 
lights are switched on for.  
 
Many appreciated the more open method of budget consultation adopted this year, but still 
struggled with the 'nuts and bolts' of council finances and felt that there could still be more 
transparency and openness around the process.  
 
One resident also expressed that it might be a good idea to have an on-going forum to aid 
budget cuts and provide the council with good ideas on our website. 
 
  

Page 80



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

5 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
9. Responses to Q1: How do you think the council could become more efficient? 

One-hundred and eighty-six individuals submitted ideas/comments in response to question 
1, covering 225 themes in their comment, which means some respondents offered up 
more than one idea/theme. 155 respondents submitted only one themed response to the 
question, accounting for 83.3% of the individuals. 
 

 
 
Figure 1.0: How do you think the council could become more efficient?  
The chart above shows the majority of comments (58.7%) about this question relate to 
how we organise ourselves, including contract management, procurement and generally 
doing things more effectively. Some comments highlight the fact that respondents feel we 
need rigorous management of our contractors, with a perception that they currently offer 
poor value for money. Some examples include:  
 
"By checking that contractors are working on the roads and highways. They charge you to 
do the work and there is no-one there for weeks on end. You need a site foreman 
checking on the work and men." 
 
"Don't have two different tenders for waste." 
 
"By being very careful about out sourcing to contractors as the motivation for many is to 
make a profit rather than have residents as their priority. It may seem like a good deal at 
the time, but I wonder how many times the contractor uses up the full year's budget before 
the end of the year and have to receive more money to continue running essential 
services…" 
 
 
There is also a theme relating to representation on the council, with a number of 
respondents questioning whether the number of councillors could be reduced.  
 

2.2 

58.7 

4.4 3.1 1.8 1.8 1.3 
3.6 

6.7 

1.3 2.2 1.3 2.2 0.9 0.0 0.4 0.9 0.4 

5.8 
0.9 

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

%
 

Popular Responses to Q1 

Page 81



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

6 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

"Do we really need three councillors for each ward and the cost they incur?" 
 
"By the reduction in the number of councillors who are in receipt of over £10000 per year 
for talking a great deal but doing very little - fewer 14 would be more efficient." 
 
"A reduction by at least one third initially of total number of ward councillors, saving 
approx. £188,500 per annum. A lowering of the ceiling of Chief Officer salaries and/or 
reduction in their hours of work by half. Thereby achieving a saving approx. £840.000 per 
annum. Total savings approx. £1,028,000 per annum. 
 
 

 
 
Figure 1.1: Breakdown of council ways of working and procurement. 
The above pie chart shows a break down on the bar labelled 'Ways of working/Contracts' 
on figure 1.1 and allows us to see how diverse and large each segment within this 
particular area is. We can see that residents believe we can predominantly save money in 
this area by having fewer meetings and cutting red-tape (25%), and through better 
recruitment combined with staff reduction (18%). 
 
  

10% 

1% 

14% 

8% 

10% 

18% 

25% 

8% 

4% 2% 

Breakdown of ways of working and 

procurement 

Combining Departments

Checking for waste

Consulting with Public

Improved Project Management

Better Procurement/Contract

Management

Better Recruitment/Staff

reduction

Fewer meetings/less red-tape

Page 82



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

7 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Other areas where respondents put forward a number of ideas included: shared working 
(4.3%), channel shift (3.1%), waste (3.6%), environment (6.7%) and Transport (5.8%).  
 
Shared working was seen by some as a good cost efficiency measure: "The council should 
look to continue to pool more services with other local authorities to reduce costs. Also the 
council could consider placing some services in charitable trust, allowing tax relief." 
 
A number of respondents expressed frustration at not being able to carry out certain 
transactions online, while others thought certain transactions should only be available 
online or over the phone in order to reduce costs: "Move everything online: printed guides 
could become downloadable pdf documents. The council newsletter and social media 
could be replaced with an RSS website newsfeed. There is not organisation that has 
existed for some time that does not carry out procedures in inefficient ways, involving 
redundant procedures, unnecessary task handovers and unnecessary activities. Review 
how council tax payments are accepted. Every other payment has to be made in a small 
number of payments by means of notes or a limited number of coins, or as a cheque, giro 
payment, postal order or bank transfer (Direct debit). Some citizens have no bank account 
but they manage to make all other payments in bank/shop approved methods. Council tax 
should be made the same - jarfuls of coins and multiple small payments are expensive to 
administer and should no longer be accepted. Anyone with a bank account should be 
asked to pay by direct debit." 
 
Environment was another popular theme in the responses to this question, covering a 
number of topics from how our community wardens work, to reducing energy bills and 
improving how we maintain communal and outdoor spaces.  A number of respondents 
suggested controlled 'switch-off of street lightening, while others suggested lower 
maintenance perennial planting should be adopted, and community gardening projects 
encouraged to maintain flower beds and communal areas. 
"I think the council should be seeking to reduce energy bills. One option would be to try 
and reduce lighting bills by identifying street lamps that could be turned off and turning 
lights at bus stops off during the early hours when no buses are running. I also think that 
there could be a greater use of renewable energy to reduce electricity consumption..." 
 
Transport was also a popular theme. A number of responses related to areas like road 
improvements perceived as unnecessary, and development of the park and ride at Tipner, 
highlighting a lack of understanding that money invested in some projects is Government 
funding and is ring-fenced. Lennox Road layout changes were also mentioned these 
changes were viewed as a waste of time and money: "Stop wasting money on 
unnecessary road projects…the new park and ride on the M275 and the pointless cycle 
path along the sea front to name but a few…"  

Page 83



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

8 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

10. Responses to Q2: Which council services would you be prepared to see changed 
or reduced? 

 
In general, some respondents found it difficult to identify savings and many opted to 
highlight changes or better uses of resource rather than an outright cut. One-hundred and 
eighty-three individuals submitted ideas/comments in response to question 2 and they 
provided 202 types of comment, which means some respondents offered up more than 
one idea/theme to the question. 143 respondents (78.1%) submitted only one themed 
response to the question. 
 

 
 
Figure 2.0: Which council services would you be prepared to see changed or 
reduced? 
 
As with question one, the way we work and procurement methods were a common theme, 
from drafting in volunteers to staff being required to cycle rather than drive to save money 
on travel. Again, some respondents mentioned reducing the number of councillors per 
ward as a way of reducing expenditure. 
 
Transport was a key area with similar themes to Q1 including some respondents feeling 
that changes to road layouts is perceived to be a waste of time and money:  
"Traffic and transportation Department - there seems to be a lot of unnecessary work on 
roads and sign posts. The recent work on Villiers Road in Southsea was ill conceived of 
and had to be reversed. Signs have sprung up all over Southsea - Public Footpath for 
small alleyways between houses. Surely expensive and not needed. Less signs, less 
cluttered streets - save money." 
There were a number of responses about bus passes, including suggesting changes to 
who is entitled to a bus pass. This is interesting because geographic indicators from the 
postcode data, as well as attendees at the consultation meetings, suggest that many 

0.5 

21.8 

1.0 
0.0 

1.0 
2.0 2.0 

6.4 

7.9 

1.5 

14.9 

4.0 

1.0 

3.0 
4.0 

1.5 1.0 

6.4 

16.8 

3.5 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

%
 

Popular Responses to Q2 

Page 84



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

9 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

respondents are likely to be from the older demographic and so potentially be directly 
affected by the suggestion.   
 
"Increase the age of free bus passes for the elderly - especially as retirement age is to be 
increasing!  Also as Government encourage us to work at least up to seven years after 
normal retirement age (I worked until I was 81 and would still be working now if it were not 
for ill health reasons.)" 
 
"I'd like to see the re-introduction of half fares on buses for elderly people and people with 
disabilities, free fares should be means tested so that the neediest are not disadvantaged." 
 
Leisure was another key theme where some respondents felt spending could be reduced, 
including funding to the King's Theatre, museums, events and the Guildhall. Leisure was 
perceived as unnecessary by some respondents in times of austerity. The Pyramids centre 
was mentioned by a number of respondents who felt subsidies were a waste of money. 
Other suggestions including reducing buildings and charging for events.  
 
"The amount of money wasted on the Pyramids. This money could be used to keep the 
toilets open." 
 
"The support given to the Pyramids at Southsea appears to be a waste of money - it is 
underused and not easily accessible unless you own a car." 
 
"Bandstand events could be charged for." 
 
"Sell off the museum, put the exhibits in central library there is so much unused space in 
the building…" 
 
"Reduce subsidies to leisure facilities like the Pyramids, Guildhall, Kings Theatre and 
Theatre Royal."  

Page 85



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

10 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

11. Responses to Q3: Which council services would you be prepared to pay more 

for? 

 
One-hundred and ninety individuals submitted ideas/comments in response to question 3 
and they provided 197 types of comment. Again some respondents offered up more than 
one idea/theme to the question, some simply said that they were unqualified to provide an 
answer and did not know.  
 
It should be noted that not all comments recorded actually answered the question. 
Although number of comments were recorded in support of charities, the respondents did 
not indicate they would be prepared to pay more for the service, just that more budget 
allocation should be made available. Respondents also viewed this question in two other 
ways: either how much more council tax they may be prepared to pay, and/or whether an 
extra charge could apply directly for a service.  
 

 
 
Figure 3.0: Which council services would you be prepared to pay more for? 
 
Although responses to this question were varied, with some respondents prepared to pay 
more council tax if it supported children's services, elderly care, education and health, and 
others prepared to pay for leisure facilities, bus passes for the elderly, toilets, waste 
collections and educational services for children, leisure figured most prominently in the 
responses. Suggestions included paying for events, such as the bandstand, through to 
paying more to reserve or order a library book. A breakdown of the leisure responses and 
the things people would be willing to pay extra for can be seen in Figure 3.1. 
 

0.0 

5.6 

0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

5.1 5.1 

2.0 

24.4 

6.6 7.1 
8.1 

5.1 
3.6 

11.2 

1.5 

8.1 

1.5 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

%
 

Popular Responses to Q3 

Page 86



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

11 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Figure 3.1: Breakdown of Leisure for Q3 
 
A number of responses (11.2%) related to public toilet provision and a number of 
respondents said they would prepared to pay to use public toilets. "Public toilets privatise 
them or charge for use. Do not close! Unless viable alternative…" 
 
"A 20 pence entry fee to use toilets, The proceeds to be ploughed back into them." 
 
"We need our toilets." 
 
"Public conveniences, their current removal is scandalous, and all public complaints made 
by ratepayers are totally ignored. I have never seen a council response to justify their 
closure." 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

12 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

12. Responses to Q4: Which council services do you value the most and would like 
protecting? 
One-hundred and ninety individuals submitted ideas/comments in response to question 
4, providing 446 types of comment. This suggests this is an emotive question, as 
respondents were demanding the retention of services that they value and are unwilling 
to lose.  

. 
 

 
Figure 4.0: Which council services do you value the most and would like 
protecting? 
 
Again, leisure was one of the key themes, accounting for 16.6% of responses, which are 
broken down in figure 4.1 below. Some respondents cited the need to promote Portsmouth 
as a tourist destination, linked to a need for improvement and support of cultural and 
leisure facilities. A number of these respondents also acknowledged charges could also be 
used in certain areas without affecting the overall appeal of the city's offering to tourists. 
 
"Museums - essential to tourism, attracting visitors to city. Libraries - access to informal 
education, enjoyment for less well off." 
 
"Museums, art galleries and libraries and help retain the history of our great city. They are 
vital for visitors to this area to educate our children and future generations." 
 
"I love going to the Guildhall - it's a brilliant venue and attracts great acts and puts 
Portsmouth on the map." 

1.6 2.0 1.6 1.6 2.0 1.6 1.6 

12.8 

7.8 

3.1 

16.6 

5.6 6.1 

8.7 

7.4 

4.9 
5.6 

2.7 

4.7 

1.8 

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

%
 

Popular responses to Q4 

Page 88



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

13 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Figure 4.1: Breakdown of Leisure for Q4 
 
Other key themes included waste collection and other environmental services. A number 
of respondents value and think waste collection (12.8%) and street cleanliness (7.8% - 
environment) should be protected, although some respondents suggested some reduction 
in service.  
 
"…weekly refuse collections at least during the summer should be maintained. Perhaps 
savings could be made if collections become fortnightly for limited winter months - 
November to February say." 
 
"Weekly bin collection! Portsmouth is densely packed with houses and very small gardens, 
it would be a real health risk to withdraw this weekly service." 
 
"Waste disposal - they do a valuable job for the community, Also road sweepers, They are 
keeping the city tidy and clean." 
 
"Weekly household collection and green waste collection was a good idea." 
 
Services for children and for the elderly also figured prominently in the responses to this 
question, with many indicating they would like these services to be protected.  
 
"Children's services and education. They are our future. Teach and educate them to be 
responsible citizens who are healthy and fit…" 
 
"I value council social services and I would like them protected and it would be beneficial 
to increase the resources they have available to them." 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by Louise Wilders, CCDS 
 
 

Page 89



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

14 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Appendices: 
 
APPENDIX 1 
Neighbourhood Forums involved in the budget consultation 
 
APPENDIX 2 
The word for word feedback of all those who responded to the 2013 Budget Consultation 
process. 
 
APPENDIX 3 
Staff Responses 
 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 
Title of document Location 

Public Feedback Forms Hard Copies 
Online Public Feedback Forms U Drive 
Emailed Public Feedback Public Consultation Inbox 

Electronic Staff Feedback U Drive/Consultation Inbox 
 

Page 90



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

15 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

APPENDIX 1 
Neighbourhood Forums involved in the budget consultation are as follows: 
Summary of Drayton & Farlington neighbourhood forum Tue 10th Sept 2013 
Present 

· 5 Committee Members 

· 2 Cllrs 

· 50 residents 

· 3 Officers,  

· (2 Community Wardens, 1 PCSO, 9 Springfield Students (left after presenting, 
before finance presentation)) 

 
Questions: 

1. If the average rise in council tax for band B is 35p per week what is the average for 
band D, E & F going to be? 

2. How specific are specific grants, was this the reason for Palmerston Road's partial 
pedestrianisation? 

3. What are the council Tax collection rates 
4. Does the council have any control on the levels of private rents? 
5. How much would be saved by discontinuing bus passes? 
6. How much are the reserves and how much will they be reduced to? 
7. How long can we continue to squeeze costs? 
8. How will the council be able to make savings in 10 years time? 

 
Summary of Stamshaw & Tipner neighbourhood forum wed 11th Sept 2013 
Present 

· 4 Committee Members 

· 2 Cllrs 

· 10 residents 

· 4 Officers 

· (2 PCSOs (left after presenting before finance presentation)) 
 
Questions: 

1. Don't business rates go straight to the government? 
2. Don't the council have a lot of assets it could use to reduce the level of cuts? 
3. What capital grants/spends are there planned for the next few years? 
4. How much are the reserves and how much do the council build in as contingency 

funds? 
5. What will ruin the plans for the budget? 
6. Who is fighting the Portsmouth corner with the government? 
7. Won't continued immigration cause even greater pressure on our budget? 

 
Responses were given to the questions at the meetings. 
  

Page 91



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

16 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Summary of Old Portsmouth and Gunwharf neighbourhood forum Thurs 19th 
September 7pm 
 
Present 

· Committee members 

· 3 councillors 

· 100 residents 

· 2 Officers 

· 1 Police officer 
 
Questions: 

1. Will there be an increase in council tax? 
2. Does the council feel it has achieved its efficiency goals to date? 
3. The latest Chief Executive receives £200K per annum an increase on the previous 

salary of £83K, Why did the leader approve? Did it reflect that he used to work for 
SOLAS? 

4. Portsmouth have been allocated 26.1% of all asylum seekers, why? 
5. Have you looked into sharing services? 
6. How much has been spent on the enquiry into Cllr Hanncock? 

 
Summary of questions at City North public budget presentation, Friday 20th 
September 7pm 
 
Present 

· 2 Cllrs 

· 4 Residents 

· Chris Ward, The Leader & Security 

· 3 Officers,  
 
Questions: 

9. What is the expected response rate to the questionnaire and how is this 
representative of the city population? 

10. Are there any ways of generating extra funding? 
11. Could the cost of the mobile library be used to keep the public toilets open instead? 
12. What does the council spend on translation? 
13. Highways maintenance costs seem high for the quality and amount of work that is 

now taking place? 
14. How much is spent of interest and debt repayments. 

 
Responses were given to the questions at the meeting. 
 
 
 
Summary of questions at the public budget presentation, Wednesday 25th 
September 6:30pm 

Page 92



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

17 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Present 

· 14 Members of the public 

· Chris Ward, The Leader 

· 1 Cllr 

· 3 Officers 
 
Questions: 

1. What about underspends reported this year, can they be used to offset future cuts? 
2. Have future budget pressures been factored in? 
3. What is the timescale for the budget this year? 
4. Will the ideas that come in be representative of the population? 
5. Are the council looking at joint working between departments to reduce costs? 
6. Is the impact of savings in one area assessed in relation to increasing costs in 

another area or in the future? 
7. Is the amount of duplicate equipment being looked at to reduce overheads/storage 

costs? 
8. How much is the capital budget, could people be given advanced warning of the 

major projects that are hoped to take place? 
 
Responses were given to the questions at the meeting. 
 
Summary of questions at the Fratton neighbourhood forum budget presentation, 
Thursday 26th September 12pm 
Present 

· 14 Members of the public 

· Chris Ward, The Leader 

· 1 Officer 
 
Questions: 

9. The council tax figures displayed were queried 
10. What happens with business rates? 
11. Bus pass cost was raised. 
12. Student costs to the city in loss of council tax and increased costs of rubbish 

treatment were raised. 
13. Car Parking costs were highlighted. 
14. The proposed increase in Council Tax to offset future losses was supported.  

 
Responses were given to the questions at the meeting. 
  

Page 93



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

18 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Summary of questions at the East Southsea neighbourhood forum budget 
presentation, Monday 30th September, 7pm 
 

· 80 residents 

· 3 Cllrs 

· 4 committee members 

· 4 officers 

 
Questions: 

1. Why is it not a good idea to reduce across the board? 
2. Shouldn't the council be more entrepreneurial? Do we borrow ideas from other 

councils? 
3. What is the council doing to reduce care costs and promote adoption? 
4. Does PCC seek competitive quotations when they outsource work? 
5. Critically important to get these cuts right - how do we know what the longer term 

effect might be? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 94



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

19 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

APPENDIX 2 
The following copy is the word for word feedback of all those who responded to the 2013 
Budget Consultation process. Text appears as it was submitted to PCC - so in some cases 
the text does not always reflect the question asked. 
Q1. How do you think the council could become more efficient? 
1. Cut the oversized pay structure of senior council officers and use savings on public 

facilities 
2. Retain all toilet blocks in the city 
3. Develop rigorous enforcement of road safety, speeding, parking, cycling, littering, dogs 

on lead, dogs off beach rules, etc with spot fines. 100 x £80 fines per day = £2.9 
million/yr. Incentivise good behaviour, make the city more enforcement, culture aware. 
Some fiscal buoyancy it'll be a better place to live. 

4. Make the cycle lanes clearer. Open up the toilets and provide a fair bus service that 
serves the poor as well as the privileged but make people pay for it not just a few. 

5. Keeping parking fees down or reduced for parking 
6. Ensuring house owners especially landlords are liable for up keeping their properties 

including the disposal of rubbish and storage. I am concerned that the children's 
centres that are still open have enough funding to be effective. 

7. Combining departments whose work is similar and overlap there by avoiding wastage 
and cost 

8. Support charities to provide more core services. Better integration with health services. 
Cut staff costs, Cut empty homes and use as shop space. Better use of volunteers. 
Better support for local charities. 

9. By making sure all claimants for housing benefit and council tax relief are in genuinely 
straitened circumstances - get a tighter hold on the black economy. 

10. By Continually checking for waste and obtaining the best value for us tax payers 
11. Consult with local people, listen and only change if it can be clearly shown to be 

beneficial and therefore not waste money. E.g. one way systems in Palmerston Rd, 
constant change to Eastern Rd pay out and cycle lanes which are not used. 

12.      
 
 

13. Turn off lights at night in council buildings (SAVE THE PLANET!). Would it be possible 
to have street lights sensitive to movement/noise/traffic etc. so light would only run on 
explicit traffic etc., at night between the times of 10pm and 5am? Could this save 
electricity? More staff to work from home and reducing travel and salaries like a person 
not having to have a car/pay transport costs and spend time travelling. 

14. The LA waste time and money on building projects through lack of appropriate 
management. The Spinnaker Tower being the main case. However, even within my 
school money has been wasted through inefficiencies of the services involved with 
smaller building projects. 

15. Fine the University and landlords for night noise and poor waste management issues. 
Where problems persist revoke HMO licence. Increase NDR for pubs and use that 
money to pay for public conveniences and street cleaning over weekends. 

Page 95



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

20 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

16. More recycling lessons could be learned from Sandwell Council in the West Midlands - 
they recycle almost all their household waste. 

17. Stop the perks and make money available for policing. Don't have two different tenders 
for waste collection 

18. Listening to residents and gathering residents opinions before making decisions - less 
secrecy 

19. Energy efficiency - install double glazing in all windows and roof insulation for all 
council buildings. Work towards collecting as much council tax as possible - attachment 
of earnings for non-payers. 

20.     
 
 
 
21. Stop farming are in the community out to shoddy firms. Bring care back in house where 

it can be properly monitored and properly funded. 
22. Stop employing people to tell tales and nit-pick! 
23. Fewer meetings…reduce bureaucracy. Better management and better management of 

managers! Is every member of staff really earning their salary? 
24. Lopping of trees are badly needed in Penarth Avenue, PO6 2AJ. 
25. By listening to the public, not making decisions behind closed doors and then telling the 

public a load of lies. 
26. Spend less on pyramids, theatres and more on the teenagers who need services such 

as: Off the Record. The members of the public who wish to go to the theatre can pay 
more for seats. Distressed Teenagers have no choice if Off the Record and similar 
units close down. The future of the City is in their hands. So look after them now. 

27. I feel that the council has concentrated very much on being efficient over recent years 
managing to keep so much in spite of reduced funding… 

28. Check overhanging council trees in the gardens. We cannot get our Free sat on our TV 
because of it and will not pay £30 a year to collect mainly leaves belonging to the 
council. Being pensioners we have to have my daughter sweep them up for us and 
there are bagfulls. 

29. I believe Portsmouth City Council are doing a great job of maintaining our city There 
are a lot of unsightly buildings not in use and owners of these buildings should receive 
penalties for the damage they cause or attract. 

30. Appoint someone with a modicum of sense and intelligence to sort the traffic chaos that 
has recently been changed in Southsea and Milton. i.e. the dangerous roundabout at 
Locksway Road and the traffic lights at Velder Avenue. 

31. Don't build any monument type things. Allow or encourage schools to buy supplies as 
cheaply as possible and sell off surplus desks and chairs etc. or pool unwanted 
furniture. 

32. By the reduction in the number of councillors who are in receipt of over £10000 per 
year for tor talking a great deal but doing very little- fewer 14 say would be more 
efficient. 

Page 96



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

21 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

33. Turn street lights off between 1 and 5 am. Charge pensioners/council tenants for 
gardening services. Stop free plates, cups etc. at surestart centres. 

34. Saving money - dealing with drunks, litter and noise in Southampton. 
35. By having surgeries in the Guildhall, bearing in mind we have an elderly but positive… 

who could have the opportunity to outline things in the Guildhall. 
36. By reducing administrative roles within the council offices and re-directing the money to 

services to vulnerable people. 
37. Invest in organisations that are active and working - making a difference to both people 

and those around them. 
38. Don’t use consultants instead of existing qualified members of staff. Allow staff more 

flexible working. 
39. I would like to see lists of council employees, i.e. how many parking wardens patrol 

shopping areas etc. I would like to know how Portsmouth benefits from 'Twinning' with 
other cities. 

40. By having less managers on high salaries and more ground staff. Not getting staff to 
re-apply for their own jobs and then getting less qualified people to take their jobs and 
demoting the qualified staff - this is wasting tax payer money and causing bad morale. 

41. Look at all departments and see where waste occurs plus a close look at all those who 
have contracts to do things such as litter clearance who obviously don't so it properly. 

42. Reducing the number of councillors 
43. I think flagship is great and I always read it, however I am not convinced everyone 

does when I see them lying around in blocks of flats, could distribution be looked at? 
44. Meet the people of Portsmouth more! 
45. Continue evaluating all paid employees with suggestions as to how many can be 

reduced from confidential staff surveys. Do not employ consultants the staff know the 
answers. Reduce heating in all civic offices etc. by one degree centigrade. 

46. By cutting the pay to the people at the top to enable more to be spent on things for the 
community. 

47. Tighter restrictions on those claiming benefits fraudulently/unnecessarily. 
48.     
 
 
49. Do we really need three councillors for each ward and the cost they incur? How much 

profit is made from the parking system, i.e. a balance sheet showing income from 
parking charges set against the costs of wardens' wages, parking machines and 
maintenance pulse services used to traffic wardens around the city? 

50. By putting what's most important first, i.e. people 
51. More careful monitoring of projects to avoid loss of money/fiasco 
52. Better planning, there appears to be no overall plan for Portsmouth. Ad hoc approach 

was alright during the 50s and 60s - but now land is getting scarce - all I can see are 
blocks of flats. The eastern side of Portsmouth could be better. 

53. Sack some staff from the top ranks. 
54. Maybe lower street light levels - mainly on main roads (no side roads) 

Page 97



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

22 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

55. Use less consultants and surveys which lead nowhere or are put on hold for so long 
that they are no longer relevant. Check contracts carefully and cancel those that do not 
fulfil their promises. An efficient office staff that do not miss refusal dates. 

56. All senior staff should reside within city boundaries and therefore make a real 
investment in the city and local outcomes. Review the number of reports prepared with 
no intention of implementation, e.g. air quality had been reviewed twice in the last three 
years. Has anything changed? This requires highly paid officer input. 

57. Provide residents with annual parking tickets for display on vehicles. This would save 
time with parking attendants checking cars. This would be at a reasonable sum. 
Charge student properties council tax. Presumably they do already pay for water, gas 
and electricity, why not for emptying bins, providing fire and police services, street 
lighting and all other public amenities. Introduce a Hotel tax/tourist tax as on the 
continent. Require all landlords to register with the Council and pay Houses in Multiple 
Occupation Tax due to the effect these properties have on the area, bringing down 
house values and reducing people's amenity. It is suspected that many landlords never 
pay income tax on their income from letting, so this would bring something into the city. 

58. Promote the staff suggestion scheme strongly and act on the ideas where appropriate. 
59. Helping to fund specialised organisations such as PARCS/Domestic Abuse. 
60. Working cross departments and sharing resources with outside agencies such as the 

university, IBM, other councils and MOD etc. 
61. Stop wasting money on changing traffic lights which no one uses to cross with in the 

case of Elm Grove/Albert Road/Victoria Road South are dangerous enough. Green 
man shows for pedestrians to cross and traffic in Elm Grove is Green to turn right into 
VRS and Albert Road. An accident waiting to happen 

62. Work to keep skilled practitioners on the front line and do not replace them with 
inexperienced staff. Psychological support for all practitioners and less management 
led practise. Ensure practitioners advocate for users not managers. All senior 
managers to have time shadowing front line practitioners. Ensure caseloads are 
limited. Enable and invite service user participation proactively. Above all walk the walk 
don't just talk the talk. 

1.By partnering with adjacent local authorities to share corporate services (e.g. HR, 
payroll, estate) combine contracts (e.g. waste, recycling) and/or similar partnering 
with local branches of Government Departments over use/sharing of buildings and 
other common resources.  2. Make council housing totally self-funding.  3. Maximise 
use of "Community payback" resources for suitable projects 
Difficult to find new ways given that PCC have already done a great deal to operate 
more efficiently over the last 3 years.  I'm not aware as just an ordinary member of 
the public where (if any) there are inefficiencies and can only leave that to PCC 
local managers to decide. 

63. Keeping paths/parks etc. more tidy & placing more "poo" bins around the area 
64. DO a great job on the whole although why you gave pensioners money back a few 

years ago I really don't understand!! 
65. Share administration tasks e.g. HR, Pension & Salary administration, IT with other 

councils/organisations.  Given the prevalence of e-working & working from home etc. 

Page 98



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

23 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Examine if the main council office still represents the most cost effective solution for 
PCC,   Sublet PCC offices. 

66. As central government is calling for more volunteers to run public organisations, the 
council should be run by councillors who are VOLUNTEERS. This would cut costs and 
also ensure that the councillors are committed to the City. 

67. By being very careful about outsourcing to contractors as the motivation for many is to 
make a profit rather than have residents as their priority. It may seem like a good deal 
at the time, but I wonder how many times the contractor uses up the full year's budget 
before the end of year and have to receive more money to continue providing essential 
services or doesn't provide the best service for the clients, just the most 
convenient/profitable for them. I am aware of a contractor (not for Portsmouth City 
Council and it was 10 years ago), which used to take back handers on certain jobs (like 
fitting kitchens) so used to make cases for fitting many more than were actually 
required as this was how they made some extra profit. I am now incredibly weary of 
outsourcing! keeping as much in house may be harder but you will have much more 
control and residents will be the priority! 

68. Employing fewer people. Cutting completely any translation services. 
69. By not wasting money on loads of 'Public Footpath' signs on paths that everybody 

knows are already there and keeping lights burning in closed public toilets. 
70. Having attended budget consultations over the last three years, read the current 

information re council on this website inc the accounts 2012-13 and attended the 
Guildhall consultation council I am basing my views on data has been gathered so far. 
It has been encouraging to see that the council has re-organised its management 
structure over this year. A point I made at the Guildhall consultation was that Senior 
Management appear to have been awarded a pay rise which, although small, is odd 
given the 'pay freeze' policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                           Reading the accounts I noted a large overspend 
on private firms dealing with children's fostering and children's homes. As I said at the 
Guildhall consultation, this is an area which could usefully be explored in terms of more 
efficient procurement. I wonder if it is the most efficient use of resources to outsource 
these services- would they not be better run by council teams. 

71. Increase recycling and therefore reduce the need for expensive collection and 
processing of refuse 

72. Stop wasting money. Put Money back into charities in Portsmouth who struggle to get 
funding those charities that help those living in Portsmouth. 

73. By listening to people's views before decisions are made and not spending large 
amounts on schemes such as road closures unless they really fit the needs. There 
seems to be an attitude of "we know best" followed by token consultation. Make 

Page 99



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

24 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

parking near the shopping centres easier to attract more business. Less on culture and 
the arts - they are a minority interest. 

74. Greater use of internet for routine form-filling etc. 
75. Remove more managers.  Get councillors to actually act on officers' advice.  Don't do 

things just to spend grant money. 
76. More use of online services e.g. issuing council tax demands and encouraging 

payments to be paid online. More attention to debt recovery- the level of debt is 
excessively high and presumably eventually written off.        Reduce the number of city 
councillors- having over 40 councillors is not necessary or cost effective for a city of 
this size.  Better traffic management e.g. traffic lights are poorly timed and hamper 
vehicle progress through the city. Better road planning- make the correct decision the 
first time-avoid costly road amendments e.g. the mini roundabout at Locksway Road. 

77. Speak to people on the street more regularly. 
78. By only employing people who live in Portsmouth or Southsea.  If they don't live here 

then they only see and understand what's going on in their town and not Portsmouth.  
Meet the people and you have a better town altogether. 

79. By not wasting money on private and expensive consolations, then not putting in 
positive out comes in to place. 

80. By avoiding over spends on capital projects, renegotiate contracts on outsourced 
services, i.e. road main thence and repairs 

81. By being more public and open The service 
82. Less wasted funds on expensive parking schemes. More communication between 

council agencies to prevent duplication of resources 
83. Shut down some of the housing offices, far too many around.  Stop paying out for taxis 

for kids to go to school or other places. Stop printing in god knows how many 
languages. 

84. Also, despite huge geographical advantages of the Civic Offices, the building is dated, 
uneconomic etc. Perhaps staff could be split into smaller buildings at satellite sites - 
which may benefit attempts to cut back on traffic congestion and issues around parking 
for staff who need their cars for work, The Civic Offices or its land, could then be sold 
for redevelopment for more modern offices, hotel, whatever. 

85. By less spin and more realism 
86. Move towards online services Less bureaucracy 
87. make sure proposed project are well thought out and use cheaper contractors  
88. Scrutinise costs further an ask the question "do we really need to do this?" 
89. Less paperwork & postage. I understand my ballot form has to be signed by hand but 

why can I not sign up for postal voting online? 
90. There is enormous scope to still reduce staff numbers.  However this is a management 

issue.  Management are rarely there to manage/keep an eye on the amount of time 
people spend on idle chat/internet/sickness/making tea/coffee. Arriving late/leaving 
early and hope no one notices Managers are as inefficient as half the staff.  Get rid of 
the lib dems, they are wholly responsible for the state this council and city is currently 
in 

Page 100



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

25 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

91. Let professional staff do their jobs and listen to their recommendations, which are 
based on best value and customer service.  Politically-motivated decisions lead to 
inflated project costs for the benefit of a handful of people to the detriment of other 
residents and the wider city picture.  Implement a Residents' Parking Policy and stick to 
it, to save areas being surveyed over and over at unnecessary cost or consultation 
being carried out on schemes that officers know will not work - wasting even more of 
residents' time and council money / resource when residents reject them. 

92. Take more notice of the officers employed by the council and less of the councillors 
who only support spending effective for their re-election. 

93. Cut down on the employees with large salaries 
94. The council has just borrowed money to buy Portsmouth out of negative housing 

subsidy. We need to know what the cuts are. How much etc... What is being taken 
away? We know now father efficiency just means cuts. BE HONEST WITH US 

95. The council should look to continue to pool more services with other local authorities to 
reduce costs. Also, the council could consider placing some services in a charitable 
trust, allowing for tax relief. 

96. The same as so many places become efficient in the inner workings within the 
institution. Don't waste money on projects that either are run inefficiently or prove to be 
mistakes, thus wasting funds. Have proper design and implementation, with less time 
wasting. 

97. 1. Reducing further the number of senior managers by merging departments.  2. 
Reducing the excessive pay of senior council officials.  3. Change to the councillors' 
stipend. Fundamentally local councillors should be unpaid.  4. Stop the excessive use 
of signage in all areas. There is no need for most of this and its maintenance in the era 
of smartphones and GPS.  5. Close museums.  6. Conduct a bottom up spending 
review based on the mandatory duties. 

98. Reduce the number of rubbish collections to fortnightly, as most other local authorities 
do now, meaning the Recycle can be collected on alternate weeks to the rubbish 

99. Think more long term, engage with possible local partners in the private & voluntary 
sector and look at achieving many small, free or very cheap goals as opposed to 
immediate, large projects. 

100. Spending less money on new housing, shopping facilities and construction and 
using this budget for upgrading existing properties housing, sites  and empty housing 
with compulsory purchase if needs be to maximise  provision of homes. 

101. Care about tourism and international visitors 
102. The council has to be more ruthless in cutting public services. Whilst in an   ideal 

world we would provide everything for everyone; chipping away at services is not doing 
it. Some services need to be slashed drastically and the consequences accepted by a 
strong council 

103. More money from council tax and central government for better services. 
104. No comment 
105. Support and link in more to local organisations and projects- support the 

programmes in-kind wherever possible 

Page 101



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

26 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

106. Move everything online: printed guides could become downloadable pdf 
documents.    The Council newsletter and social media could be replaced with an RSS 
website newsfeed.      There is no organisation that has existed for some time that does 
not carry out procedures in inefficient ways, involving redundant procedures, 
unnecessary task handovers, and unnecessary activities.    Review how council tax 
payments are accepted.  Every other payment has to be made in a small number of 
payments by means of notes or a limited number of coins, or as a cheque, giro 
payment or postal order or bank transfer (direct debit, etc.).  Some citizens have no 
bank account but they manage to make all other payments in bank/shop approved 
methods.  Council tax should be made the same - jarfuls of coins and multiple small 
payments are expensive to administer and should no longer be accepted.  Anyone with 
a bank account should be asked to pay by direct debit. 

107. Stop wasting money. 
108. By adopting lean working practices and having an internal structure which allows 

those doing the job to have a mechanism for real change to working practices. 
109. First of all I would like to congratulate the council for the terrific strides you have 

made with regards to tourism and cleanliness in Southsea with regular litter bin 
collections and excellent workman clearing the adjacent litter that is sometimes left. As 
the proprietor of a guest house I notice the good first impression given to my 
customers, however, a few things that are not well accepted by my customers is that 
there is no tourist information office at the 'Hard' and are instead directed to the 'D-Day 
museum' when not really having their bearings seems and is a long way off for them, 
surely the old office was extremely beneficial to everyone? another thing that would be 
very welcome would be a parking pass that enabled a tourist to use anywhere within 
the major attractions (excluding Gunwharf's private parking) as the charges are quite 
expensive and if one is not sure how long you are likely to be at a certain attraction, it 
grates on the nerves and the pocket if you drive off to the next attraction and have to 
pay again, can there not be some sort of visitor day pass for say three  hours at a 
particular site that is valid for the next attraction for another three hours and so on, 
although my B&B is within walking distance for most of my customers, but for those 
that cannot walk far they have mentioned that the charges are excessive and are 
disgruntled, which is a shame. 

110. Focus resources on establishing the city at the forefront of tourism 
111. Allow those who work in services greater influence on how they are run. End 

unhelpful interference from Councillors. 
112. Utilise the unemployed more; make them do voluntary work for their money, 

cleaning, litter collecting, etc. 
113. Outsource all non-core services, reduce the number of mangers/team leaders, stop 

staff working from home, make staff use public transport and end free parking,  this will 
make for lower fuel bills and make the Council Greener. 

114. I think the council should be seeking to reduce energy bills. One option would be to 
try and reduce lighting bills by identifying street lamps that could be turned off and 
turning off lights at bus stops during the early hours of the morning when no busses are 

Page 102



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

27 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

running.    I also think that there could be a greater use of renewable energy to reduce 
electricity consumption. One idea I have thought of is to install solar on the roof of 
council buildings but try and avoid the capital cost by leasing the roof space for a 
peppercorn rent and allow private companies or individuals to invest in the panels and 
keep the Feed In Tariff payments - the council would benefit from a reduction in 
imported electricity from the grid. It may also be possible to consider setting up a co-
operative for the public to buy shares in to invest in deploying solar. 

115. Far more efficient communication between utility providers who undertake repair 
works, liaise with each other and ensure all wok is carried out simultaneously instead 
or digging up the same piece of road three or four times to do varying repair works... 
Surely this would be far more cost effective 

116. Protect a diminishing arts development role by extending the role of and 
outsourcing to the Portsmouth Cultural Trust. 

117. It frustrates me that the council had the money for a seafront cycle route, but didn't 
realise it. 

118. Into my consultation I think the council is very professionally and give me the 
expectations of services where I need although I am aware in the services and the 
support sometimes I  lack some services the possibilities of services which I need.  
However in term of efficiently I don't think could be more efficiently that means have 
excellent coordination of services. 

119. There needs to be more communication between the Council and the people living 
in the city and people who work for the Council so that they can pass information to 
people living in the city or visitors. 

120. Recruiting more permanent staff rather than a high and continuous turnover of 
temporary staff. Lowering salaries 
 

121. Don't know enough about its budgets to comment 
122. Not an expert, sorry.  Don't like the Hot Wall Development plan, I'm afraid. The 

arches are not usable as artists' studios, and the council is not the best organization to 
try and run a restaurant to finance the development. The hot walls are good as they 
are, if you need to do something with them use them as venue for free events, or small 
shows. 

123. Cut the number of Councillors to 2 per ward.  Council housing given to a housing 
association to run.  Get rid of the not so helpful City Help Desk so you have contact 
with the department who have the knowledge and expertise.  Get rid of the Community 
Wardens as we have PCSO's who do a similar role and more. 

124. Employ litter and dog enforcement officers on minimum wage, but give them 10% of 
any fine they give.    Next time a concession is put out to tender ensure that the 
contract states only cups that are reusable are used. This would stop polystyrene cups 
littering everywhere.  Stop giving employees the extra sandwich day off over 
Christmas. This costs us charge payers tens of thousands of pounds (I inquired 
through freedom of information).  If you are going down this route inform all staff at 
beginning of year to save a day's leave. They already get generous holidays plus their 

Page 103



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

28 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

average 9.5 days sick a year (your figures)   Do we need the civic offices any more? 
Smaller more efficient properties could be used, making use of conference calls etc. 

125. By being more contact friendly 
126. The council could become more efficient by ensuring that staff levels are adequate 

so that a cycle of sick leave and absence is not created. 
127. Commission more 
128. By spending money more wisely and not wasting our funds on the football club.  

How about raising the education level in the city, which remains one of the worst in the 
UK? 

129. Outsource to the voluntary sector to provide specialist community 
work/advice/support 

130. Outsource IT, HR, Finance and examine overheads not related to Frontline 
131. Giving staff a pay freeze, I haven't had a pay rise since 2008. 
132. The Councillors to become more statesman work together listen to your council 

officers. Represent all residents but don't allow the very vocal few to drive decisions. 
133. Empower staff to make their own small changes and savings by recognising their 

achievements when they do. At the very least, this will encourage a motivated 
workforce which is value for money itself, but at best staff will find many small ways to 
make savings that will add up. Unfortunately this isn't going to happen through a 
process, it's a culture change that will involve holding managers to account when they 
make stupid decisions or demotivate their staff. For example, something as small as 
the fact snr managers in every department I've worked in have had 'special' stationery. 
Why waste that money? You need to be encouraging managers to take on board 
suggestions, even if it means admitting their own mistakes. 

134. Stop wasting money on unnecessary road projects.... the new park and ride on the 
M275 and the pointless cycle path along the sea front to name but a few. Maybe spend 
the money on improving road surfaces and not needing to try and charge people to 
park everywhere in the city. 

135. Investigate benefit fraud and increase prosecutions.  Make bin collections 
fortnightly. 

136. Get rid of some of the unnecessary jobs. 
137. One department of PCC communicating more efficiently with another and also 

outside agencies. 
138. By working in smarter ways and investing in issues before things reach a crisis. 
139. Children and education - the sure start centres are great and I used various 

services after my first child. I would have been happy to make a nominal donation to 
the sessions I attended. It was sometimes difficult to attend sessions due to their 
timings and my children's nap times however.  Environment and community safety - 
look at how we as a community can recycle more, e.g. current exclusions from green 
bins for example Yoghurt pots, shredded paper etc. 

140. Better communication, working together as a whole team rather than each 
department being a separate 'business' 

Page 104



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

29 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

141. Bear down on all waste in all departments. There are still too many admin people, 
overcomplicating the way things can be managed. Too many council processes are too 
complicated, and red tape needs cutting 

142. Stop punishing motorists. Punish bad cyclists. Support pedestrians 
143. By working in active partnership with the voluntary and private sector across the 

city. Despite so many recent internal reviews, PCC still has a reputation as being 
cumbersome and difficult to work with particularly for small traders and often the 
voluntary sector. 

144. I actually think PCC is very good with what it provides & the current cost of this! 
Perhaps stopping non-essential services for those who won't pay council tax & also 
reclaiming monies from them? 

145. no real overall knowledge to make a valid judgement 
146. Reduction of repetition of services. 
147. Strategic work and projects to be tied up more effectively so as not to waste time 

and money.  Improved Understanding of impact of reactive measures to reduce costs. 
148. Invest in jobs and service and refuse to implement cuts from central government. 
149. Engage brain before taking decisions 
150. I haven't seen any signs of inefficiency 
151. Less managerial staff.  Stop pouring money into the Pyramids 
152. Stop 6 staff from Health and Wellbeing attending same meeting.  More use could be 

made of cascading info 
153. 1. Reduce the number of lower level management/ senior roles.  2. More 

enforcement and fining of people for littering, not picking up dog mess, parking on 
yellow lines, cycling on pavements etc.  3. Reduce the number of empty properties.  4. 
Sell council buildings and move staff into the Civic Offices.  5. Give a higher priority to 
energy-saving measures e.g. ensure lights and PCs are switched off when not in use 
(Too many staff leave their monitors on overnight and over the weekends). 

154. By ensuring that contracts that are awarded are carried out to the specification as 
laid out in the contract.  By managing meetings more efficiently, not everyone needs to 
attend.  By approaching contracts more efficiently - value for money. 

155. Remove all political agendas from local government: it is a business, and as such 
should be run by a competent business team whose judgement is not impaired by 
following the party line 

156. Better benefit checks.  People on benefits having to do voluntary working if they are 
fit. 

157. have recycling bins in all offices for waste paper even if it needs to be shredded first 
158. Stop daft schemes like the Osborne Road planters.  Have advertised scheme links 

working on the website before they are published. 
159. Don't know 
160. The Council could avoid duplication of effort. For example why does it run 

neighbourhood forums when there are lots of community run organisations which could 
offer as good or better consultation opportunities without the need for officer input, 
separate publicity etc. .  Our parks and open spaces are beautiful, but is it why not 

Page 105



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

30 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

changes to lower maintenance planting, meadow land planting on hard to maintain 
areas such as such as sloping areas such as the banks in Winston Churchill Avenue or 
by Southsea Castle. Park planting could be undertaken by community gardening 
projects like Southsea Greenhouse or Landport Community Garden how involve a wide 
range of people in growing. Mental Health and other community projects could adopt 
an area of a park or a flower bed to maintain. More council information services could 
be delivered from buildings in the community in the way Southsea Library is used, so 
that this becomes the norm for service delivery and smaller council offices are needed. 
Businesses which operate after midnight could pay an additional payment to cover the 
cost of the additional cleaning and policing required. 

161. I think it is more important to become more effective than just focus on efficient 
162. Reduce spending on adult social care, children and learning support, community 

safety and housing. As someone entitled to use (or with family entitled to use) the first 
2 on this list I feel embarrassed that people who are significantly less than me are 
asked to support these unnecessary facilities. 

163. A reduction by at least one third initially of total number of ward councillors, saving 
approx. £188,500 per an. A lowering of the ceiling for Chief Officer Salaries and /or 
reduction in their hours of work by half. Thereby achieving a saving of approx. 
£840,000 per annum.Total savings approx. £1,028,000 per an. 

164. Volunteers, particularly elderly bored could be helping skilled council employees in 
doing the unskilled parts of their job, in parks and gardens. Unemployed or people on 
benefits could be caring assistants, street sweeping or any unskilled, non risky pursuits 
freeing up skilled trained and paid staff from unskilled parts of their jobs. Benefits 
should become part of the workforce, good for council budget and the recipients feeling 
of worth. 

165. Review balance of controllable spending (75%) on special interest groups 
compared to that which works for all the citizens (25%). You'll find the cost of 
administration of the former is huge compared to the latter, and that's where the 
savings lie. 

166. Streamline some services and make cuts on those services that are less in 
demand. 

167. Office staff who do not deal directly with the public should work from home. 
168. By micro management of spending. By better and closer control and monitoring of 

third party suppliers using KPIs and targeted deliverables/productivity. Short term 
investment of funds received for delayed or staged payment type projects. 

169. Joining forces with other local authorities to reduce internal head count and allow 
joint procurement of services to reduce overheads. Strategic use of outsourcing where 
it delivers value. 

170. Reduce the number of councillors and senior managers 
171. Greater promotion of services through social media, community engagement 

through champions and volunteer services in the city. Making more use of the assets in 
the city. Promoting more of the success through these channels as well as better 
relationships with the media 

Page 106



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

31 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

172. If you can reduce the number of managers by 18 how about reducing the number of 
councillors by a third? 

173. Plan for the future not just next year. Budgets are likely to be cut in the future too 
plan your services for 5 or 10 years' time. E.g. social care provision is going to get 
bigger and more expensive. Develop more internet services and apps. Have high street 
services available 

174. Dispose of the lease of the mayoral car and get the mayor to use the local public 
transport. 

175. Combine back office services and management with other councils 
176. You policy to support cyclists simply doesn't work. Either create real lanes or stop 

wasting money on markings that are a farce. 
177. Ask the council leader GV-J to speak with the deputy PM to inform him how 

damaging the cuts are to the city. 
178. Charge for use of public toilets not get rid of them. People need toilets. If none are 

available people will urinate in bushes/trees. Biggest part of budget (nearly 50%) is 
non-controllable spending....attack this! 

179. Using less buildings, listening to what the people have to say 
180. When cutting grass areas clean up properly instead of blowing grass cuttings into 

the gutters this then leads to increased flooding.  Also it is a waste of time to clean the 
streets before the dustcarts have collected the rubbish, time and effort wasted? 

181. With such little flexibility in the budget, most of the spend is committed. This could 
be easily managed by middle managers. A swinging rationalisation of senior 
management could save millions. Such strategic positions can be replaced in future 
years when strategy becomes more important than tightening our belts, keeping calm 
and carrying on.   What percentage of the spend is on IT Services. Many other councils 
have saved millions in collaborative shared risk outsourcing deals, are PCC exploring 
such options. Most in house IT departments have highly paid long serving employees 
whose roles could easily be fulfilled by cheaper (not necessarily offshore) resources. 

182. Leaflets and magazines could be cut ; make a small  charge for the peoples 
network 50p in libraries ; no unnecessary trips for councillors ( fact finding) 

183. Concentrate on core activities/services such as Education, Social Care, Benefits, 
184. I think the council could save a massive amount of money on the above if there 

were fewer buses, ie cut out the 'Every 10 minutes' as per the slogans on number 21 
through Anchorage Park which are constantly empty or carrying one or two 
passengers. Every 10 minutes is totally unnecessary, every half an hour should be 
more than sufficient and would cut down the subsidising, currently at half a million 
pounds, considerably. 

185. Stop sending the street cleaner around the day before waste collection and then the 
street cleaning machine the day after - seems a dreadful waste of time and money and 
not well planned. 

186. Now you are looking at extending the area of paid parking charges I suggest you 
make available annual parking season tickets for sports grounds etc 

Page 107



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

32 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

187. Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the PCC budget.  I completely respect 
the way the Council spends its money to maintain the maximum possible level of 
service to the community.  The result, for me, is a city that can boast superb open 
spaces, better social housing than one sees in most places, excellent libraries, frequent 
refuse services, steadily improving schools and a very good (and indeed 
generous)leisure and cultural offering. 

188. "Move everything online: printed guides could become downloadable pdf 
documents. 

189. The Council newsletter and social media could be replaced with an RSS website 
newsfeed.   

190. There is no organisation that has existed for some time that does not carry out 
procedures in inefficient ways, involving redundant procedures, unnecessary task 
handovers, and unnecessary activities. 

191. Review how council tax payments are accepted.  Every other payment has to be 
made in a small number of payments by means of notes or a limited number of coins, 
or as a cheque, giro payment or postal order or bank transfer (direct debit, etc.).  Some 
citizens have no bank account but they manage to make all other payments in 
bank/shop approved methods.  Council tax should be made the same - jarfuls of coins 
and multiple small payments are expensive to administer and should no longer be 
accepted.  Anyone with a bank account should be asked to pay by direct debit. 

192. "You could be more efficient by outsourcing work more carefully, or employ our own 
workers. I was horrified to read about the newly painted shelter at Eastney that cost 
£47,000 with rusting screws already. Or even ask for volunteers to give their time 
towards preserving our beachside/local Heritage., and make it a group event/ 
commitment.  

193. I  have noticed that a couple of our old shelters on the promenade next to the 
gardens by the Pyramids are rusting badly. They are such an integral part of 
our seafront, and would be a great loss. 
 

 
  

Page 108



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

33 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Q2. Which council services would you be prepared to see changed or 

reduced? 

 

1. Traffic and Transportation Department - there seems to be a lot of unnecessary 
work on roads and sign posts. The recent work on Villiers Road in Southsea was ill 
conceived of and had to be reversed. Signs have sprung up all over Southsea - 
Public Footpath for small alleyways between houses. Surely expensive and not 
needed. Less signs, less cluttered streets = saves money. 

2. Increase the age for free bus passes for the elderly - especially as retirement age is 
to be increasing! Also as Government encourage us to work at least up to seven 
years after normal retirement age ( I worked until I was 81 and would still be 
working now if it were not for ill health reasons) 

3. Sell management of City museum. 
4. Greater effort should be made to evict council tenants who cause trouble and make 

no effort to pay their rent. ( I am in a place where there is all council tenants)  
5. Concessionary fares for everybody with a slight difficulty on buses and income 

related bus passed for elderly - NOT Free 
6. More help for people in Portsmouth to get their library books and CDs for the 

disabled or infirm. 
7. Stop subsidising the Pyramids - it's should stand alone and pay its own way. 
8. Reduce services which cost the most to run while helping the least numbers. 
9. Parks and gardens - cheaper ways - shrubs etc. Reduce sport spending, leisure 

and culture (or charge more). All sports spending, leisure and culture (or charge 
more). All sports privatised - those on benefit free passes or reduced rates 
museums. 

10. The council has done a good job in creating housing in dead space - 
Somertown/WC avenue/Watts Rd - good small scale developments not council 
house ghettos. More of this. Spend capital for income. 

11. The amount of our money wasted on the Pyramids. This money should be used to 
keep the toilets open. 

12. Council plans to develop Hot Walls area into Arts Facility. Expensive Hard 
Interchange upgrade. Abandon the Northern Quarter plans. Decide that Southsea is 
not a tourist resort and just keep it for the local residents - close pyramids. 

13. Traffic wardens: Most of Portsmouth Councillors must live outside the city. As I see 
traffic wardens continually booking cars at 7:30am when people coming home the 
night before cannot before cannot park. They could at least leave it until 9 when 
people have gone to work. You are taking people's money which is highway 
robbery. 

14. Could some street cleaning and parks be done by local volunteers (unemployed 
getting expenses or work experience for their CVs)? Existing worked might train 
and upgrade their jobs - perhaps doing less hours for reduced pay? Indeed 
education for future prospects.  

Page 109



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

34 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

15. Services need to be effective but efficient. Too many cuts will impact on the public 
and cause issues in other areas. School admissions could be handed back to 
schools. 

16. Recognise move to protect the most vulnerable so some of the 'nice to haves' which 
could be community led such as flowerbeds, reduction in street lighting in some 
areas, council opening hours.. 

17. Some housing benefits - especially young single mums 
18. Those that have allowed this area to become saturated with student bedsits to the 

detriment of the council taking paying residents now live with squalor, noise and 
filth. 

19. More emphasis on street cleaning and stricter control on waste. 
20. As above - utilise local knowledge and expertise to promote events and activities 

which would save the council money in the long run. 
21. Reduce all this Tennis lark. 
22. I'd like to see the re-introduction of half fares on buses for elderly people and people 

with disabilities. Free fares should be means tested so that the neediest are not 
disadvantaged. 

23. Re the new Brown Bin Garden waste collection. I note that this will now replace the 
present Green Waste Sacks. There are many of us who do not want or who will be 
unable to have this type of receptacle. Would it be possible to have the option of a 
bag similar to those issued by Fareham Council which is PVC type bag with 
handles collected fortnightly? I live in a terrace house so a bin at the front is not 
practical and too large for those of us who are elderly with small gardens and do not 
create large quantities of garden waste. Whereas a bag is more easily transportable 
through the house after being filled up in the back garden. I would gladly pay a 
reasonable annual fee for such a system. 

24. Why don't Councillors pursue more school reorganisations, so there are fewer 
schools to support? All services are important, especially those for vulnerable 
children and adults. 

25. The overhanging branches cause much unnecessary work in the garden and 
roadways. This would then save the council much money in road maintenance. 

26. Reduce the amount of money spent on cutting the verges, when the grass is no 
longer in a growing season. Just arrange a shorter contract for grass cutting. 

27. I am very proud of this city - I like it the way it is. 
28. None - I already have my travel tokens cancelled. Bus travel is of no use to me. 

NHS foot care specialists I have now to pay for. Are we going back to mediaeval 
times by closing toilets? A breach of human rights.  I wouldn't have thought up this 
in a 1000 years. Farcical and £35K to knock down two. And one for sale at 
Bransbury Park - shame on you. Also stop issuing taxi licences. Drivers struggle to 
make a living already. For the council coining it by making money on charges for 
these licenses - I think so. Also stop councillors taking computers home - they can 
buy their own. I could go on - Re boot sales on the common. I think the health and 

Page 110



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

35 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

safety issues and H&S people should have a look around - no way out if there is an 
emergency. 

29. Resources - I believe the council should do more regulated checks on families on 
benefits. There are too many people in Portsmouth cheating the system. How is it 
that I would more than 50 hours a week to may for my home, bills and taxes  etc. 
and I struggle to pay for a holiday yet those on benefits get a nicer house than mine 
and have all the latest gadgets and can have as many holidays abroad - for 
forgetting clothes and shopping every week. 

30.     
 
 
 

31. better as well as wasting so much money. 
32. The councillors in each ward - we have far too many. 42 reduced to 14 as could 

officers should be given advice from Councillors and in America less is much better. 
33. Waste and recycling to fortnightly and four weeks 
34. Improving visual aspects in the city and Southsea. 
35. I like many others applaud all is being undertaken for us, except for the dragging of 

feet, of the building…(rest of comments are unreadable) 
36. Some cultural, leisure and sporting projects could be put on-hold until this period of 

austerity is over. 
37. I would increase the services at PARCS as the capped initial sessions they offer is 

not enough given the strength of work and limited funds is why. 
38. Scrap free swimming for over 60s; all those I know in this category could well afford 

to pay. 
39. Don't subsidise buses. Private parking, wardens, keepings an eye on it all  
40. The support given to the Pyramids at Southsea appears to be a waste of money - it 

is underused and not easily accessible unless you own a car. 
41. Council tax reduced - as all service have been cut as well as police services, this is 

making us pay more for less. The streets are filthy, e.g. Southsea and Commercial 
Road - we need street cleaning. 

42. Please do not reduce rubbish/litter clearance services. There are huge problems 
with this already. I see lots of areas covered in litter/rubbish and it's bad for people 
and wildlife. 

43. Cancel Flagship and Housetalk. Both very readable but savings on publication and 
delivery would help council economy. Re-start when economic times are better. 
Scrap plans for bathing huts at Eastney. Waste of money at this time. 

44. Are all car parks used to maximum potential? Could enterprise centres be run by 
separate company?! How useful are Neighbourhood forums? 

45. Road tarmacing etc., traffic lights and road works 
46. Switch off all residential road lights from midnight until 5am. Make libraries 5 days a 

week including Sat, i.e. Mon, Tue, Thurs, Fri, Sat - staff rota. Charge rates for 

Page 111



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

36 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Charity shops selling any new goods. Evaluate Business waste collections including 
market clearance. 

47. I feel that lots of money is spent on parking services and its 'policing' - not confident 
that this is fully necessary? 

48. We don't need weekly rubbish services. Mountjoy contract needs to be addressed 
urgently!!! There is too much wastage, e.g. carpenters sent out to do plumbing jobs, 
wasting hours, waste for parking passes. I have many more than that. 

49. Reduce the time and money wasted on so called improvement schemes such as 
pedestrianisation of the lower part of Palmerston Road, the cycle and parking 
fiascos on the eastern part of the seafront. Mini roundabout which do not slow down 
traffic but only inconvenience buses and coaches. 

50. Alcohol 
51. They all serve a purpose - child protection services I feel could do with more 

funding. If you don't put the right work into it then it's not going to work. 
52. Council house/community housing maintenance is done by contractors. Would it be 

financially more economical to employ PCC own workmen? Obviously contractors 
must make money which cost the council. With the current unemployment it would 
not be too difficult to employ workers. 

53. Cut down some trees which are higher and overgrow and dangerous in high wind. 
54. Please get rid of the awful lollypop things on the roundabout at top of Commercial 

road 
55. Portsmouth is bursting at the seams and yet more and more flats and houses are 

being built. Confine development now to Tipner and stop any further large scale 
development on Common land. 

56. A review of car parking charges should be undertaken to see if the quick return 
justifies the decline in Commercial Road shops and lost business rate revenues. 
Free car parking for out of town stores deters people from using the city centre - are 
we getting value for money? 

57. Staff using bicycles instead of cars in the city to reduce car allowances. Councillors 
revert to getting expenses only plus a fee for attending each meeting rather than a 
standard fee whether they attend or not. 

58. All those which enhance and promote the City's heritage offer to residents and 
visitors should be developed and funded. 

59. Road sweeping 
60. Less money on help to cut smoking 
61. Health and Social care stop spending money on alcohol and drug treatments. If the 

victims' got themselves into their situation. More money spent on elderly care, day 
care for disabled -  

  

Page 112



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

37 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

62. Anything which does not target front line services and inequality such as corporate 
events with big budgets, training which has little chance of implementation as there 
is no budget to follow and luxury items such as marketing and publications. 

63. When I look down the list of services PCC provides, it's so difficult to identify any 
that I'd want to see reduced as they're all so vital to the local community.  Possibly 
cut back on financial support given to theatres as these have their own trusts and 
supporters to rise funding. 

64. The traffic department should take a look at what mess they have caused, driving in 
Portsmouth couldn't be in a worse mess even if the department was scrapped 
completely. Stop students bringing their cars in. 

65. It seems some services have already been reduced 
66. maybe reduce some streetlights and or amount of days seafront lights on  Mapping 

coming soon signs in the pavement seem rather a waste of money  Person calling 
at doors to discuss my journey didn't really seem worth the money  Give me space 
posters!! are they going to change anyone's behaviour 

67. The TV in the Guildhall Square could be removed.  Review the cost of Flagship to 
PCC  Cap/stop subsidy for the Pyramids  Consider selling off pyramids for a hotel 
development 

68. There should be a change in the way that Chief Executive Posts are filled in that the 
Chief Executive and other high-salary council posts are appointed to those who can 
show that they have resided in the City for at least one year before appointment. 
This would stop the appointment of individuals who are highly paid but who know 
nothing whatsoever about Portsmouth and are only taking on the job for the salary. 
In this time of severe cuts, no-one on the City Council should be paid more than the 
minimum wage. If they cannot fulfil their duties with this salary then they should not 
stand for appointment.  The Council needs to take back in-house all security and 
housekeeping jobs. This would eliminate third-party payments which inflate costs 
but do not get paid to people actually doing the work.  All artwork owned by the City 
Council should be sold and the revenue paid into the budgets for Social Services for 
the elderly and children (the sale of art works owned by councils is already taking 
place elsewhere in the UK and Councils have no remit to act as art collectors) 

69. Toughie - because most services are essential! but sadly as much as I enjoy the 
arts & culture, people should come first. 

70. I don't think politicians spend money wisely, so would be happy to see cuts across 
the board with the exception of the below. 

71. Cut more staff. I have two examples, one from a colleague and one from a relation 
that proves that most council workers are less effective than the private sector. 

72. Discussion at the Guildhall focused on a range of suggestions. It appears that 
previous discussions regarding the Colas project have been fruitful in moving 
creative approaches to the contract forward. I would be keen to hear more about 
the possibility of street sweeping being reduced somewhat. From the council 
accounts, it appears that 'spend to save and spend to invest reserves are being fed 
and protected-  

Page 113



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

38 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
 
                                                      A very small point is that, the allotment inspector 
has survived all efficiency drives and continues to visit allotments and photograph 
plots and send out letters- all costs money and takes time- this could easily be 
taken over by allotment committees thus making them self-managing. 

73. Stop subsidising the Pyramids centre and pass the responsibility for this to the 
company running it 

74. Avoid schemes like the farcical seafront parking which now produces less revenue 
than it would have done. Avoid more expenditure on almost unused cycle tracks. 

75. None! 
76. Reduce social services 
77. Despite Government guidelines expenditure on cycle lanes is a waste- their 

infrequent use by a tiny minority does not justify their high cost- they certainly do not 
encourage get fit cycle ownership!!   Museum artefacts and art work which is not on 
display to the public. Why were such items purchased [at public expense] if they 
were never to see the light of day! If the cost of insurance is too high- sell them! 

78. Cycle lanes, fines for not using them. 
79. If people live in flats and have a communal garden then why not ask the tenants if 

they want to take care of their gardens - provide a lawn mower and spade etc. for 
that block of flats and hence saving on grass cutting year in year out. 

80. I think all the public services are valuable.  I would like to try and save as many that 
can be saved. 

81. Waste collection, large bins at end of roads, less to empty saving amount of 
collection crews, works well in Brighton. Less money spent in sure start areas on 
children's days out to give parents a break, also small charge at children's 
supervised play areas. 

82. The services we have at present are there for a reason or the people of the city 
would not have the service in the first place  ..."Any service that is not used by the 
public" 

83. Mail shots from child services should be reduced - billing, council communications 
should move to an online service. Residents should specifically opt out in order to 
receive mail via the post. 

84. Parking wardens. 
 
85. Staff numbers appear to be have cut to the bone. So consider reducing the number 

of electoral wards, especially across the south of the city, or reducing from three to 
two the number of councillors for each ward.  Consider dual management of more 
services with Southampton - in which the two unitary authorities share senior 
managers to perform the similar roles across both authorities (in the same way that 
public health responsibilities have been shared), providing taxpayers won't be 
burdened with extreme redundancy packages...so perhaps move in response to 

Page 114



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

39 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

retirements etc..  Depending on the profits to the city of the ferry port, is it also time 
to consider selling off the council's interests here - IF it helps preserve vital services. 

86. None I think they are all cut to the bone already. Although still see significant waste 
of money on projects such as the lollypops on Commercial road roundabout 

87. adult social care 
88. none 
89. Anything that is being subsidised.  School escorts are a terrific drain on finances, 

school crossing patrol; place the onus on schools and parents 
90. Subsidised bus services.  Commercial companies should be encouraged / forced to 

promote their services better and make public transport more attractive.  Drop the 
"softly softly" approach to the enforcement of parking restrictions, leading to 
improved enforcement and income levels.  Continue to support the government's 
attempts to bring welfare costs down and change the "benefit" culture. 

91. Member services reduced.  A more open and democratic policy for planning and 
development within the city. 

92. Assuming services were set up where there was a need it would be difficult to see 
any cuts 

93. We are now down to the bone I think. 
94. Free bus passes 
95. PCC should look to reduce the amount of property it owns - starting with moving out 

and disposing of the incredibly inefficient council offices and leasing alternative 
office space 

96. Too late now, but it is hard to see how the new Park and Ride at Tipner will be 
successful, particularly being on the island. Make the council departments lean and 
mean, but also well run, with proper management structure and good morale. 

97. 1. Adult social care and health.  2. Children's social care.  3. Playgrounds, sports 
centre and museums.  4. Council housing and housing benefit. 

98. Rubbish collection 
99. None, to be honest. 
100. Reduce social services cost Upgrade parking costs while at same time 

equally working closer with Bus Company to improve the park and ride schemes in 
order to reduce car travel to Gun Wharf and major shopping centres. Make less 
frequent but economic repairs to roads 

101. 1. Some councils have passed their libraries to private hands which has 
saved them a lot in running costs. Alternatively the libraries should be reduced and 
as a radical alternative just provide council internet cafes since the majority of users 
only want internet access. This could be incorporated into the super connected city 
roll out.     2. The closing of Sure Starts was held back last time. I am not sure this 
was a good idea. The government is talking about providing additional funding for 
child care hours so unless the council can "Claim" this money then I think we should 
be reducing this service    3. Despite the tie in we currently have to weekly bin 
collections I think consideration should be given at the earliest opportunity to going 

Page 115



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

40 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

to 2 week collections with a limit on what can be collected. This may encourage 
more recycling as well as saving money. 

102. free meals for all infant school pupils 
103. I don't want to see any services reduced. 
104. Parking enforcement 
105. The coloured lights along the seafront could be reduced, switched on only 

during peak tourist season and/or replaced with much cheaper bulbs than originally 
proposed in the seafront development scheme.  Save money by switching off the 
coloured lights outside tourist season.  Contract other spending on seafront 
developments not fronted by private businesses.    Rely on simple signage rather 
than installing any interactive media for navigation on the streets.    Could consider 
reducing slightly the discount offered for Portsmouth leisure card holders.    Sell 
current social housing and buy cheaper property elsewhere - many of the houses 
available as social housing are far better than can be afforded my many middle 
earning professionals in Portsmouth.    Simplify planting and gardens - invest in 
interesting perennial, low maintenance designs.    If possible, limit free bus travel to 
OAPs who are local residents and introduce a means-tested fee for the bus pass 
amounting to at least 50% of the price of a bus the average number of bus journeys 
made by elderly people. 

106. On street parking charges - not fair and does not help businesses Residents 
Parking - it creates more problems than it solves. 

107. None 
108. At present I pay 'BIFFA' over £300.00 per year to have my rubbish taken 

away, my neighbour who also has a B&B with more rooms than I have put their 
rubbish out for general collection, I have spoken to the refuse department at the 
council offices who say that they are satisfied with the arrangement my neighbours 
have (no other collection is made from them apart from the weekly council 
collection) I would like my rubbish collection reduced to allow me to have the same 
facilities as my neighbour i.e. FREE 

109. No reductions - stand up to central government and oppose ideological cuts. 
110. Benefits. See above. 
111. IT services   Financial services,  Asset management  Libraries,  Media,  Help 

desk, 
112. No comment 
113. None 
114. Arts Services outsourced 
115. I would like to see the police acting on dangerous driving and speeding 

around the city, and enforcing the 20mph zones- which the council spent a lot of 
money creating, and which currently the police do not enforce. I would like to see a 
huge push for cycling in the city, and especially encouraging safe family cycling, 
rather than the lip service attempt so far. And proper enforcement of clearing up 
dog mess. 

Page 116



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

41 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

116. - the help the people to live independently  where will be increase it means 
the governance funding going to decrease literally saving more money with 
controllable budget in the result of services can be differently  - the funding services  
as well as the savings requirements are introduced in the proposals by the 
governances services  - the scope for savings are instable due the priorities of 
contracts  into the services  also the proportion of budget into the current 
assessment into the governances services. 

117. Housing 
118. Roadworks/ "improvements" to the traffic system. Parking fines. 
119. as above 
120. Be more inventive with the municipal planting. It's stuck in the 1950's for 

most of the sea front which is a shame. The new planting around the bottom of the 
M275 is a good development. Do more of that! 

121. Housing, Social Services, City Help Desk, Community Wardens. 
122. City Rangers.  Seafront Manager. What has he achieved?  Chief executive.  

Why do we need one? 
123. None 
124. The recycling services which are inadequate. Other councils allow residents 

to re-cycle glass and food stuffs. The brown bin for re-cycling garden waste is 
hopelessly impractical, most other councils allow residents to have multiple very 
large box shaped canvas like plastic weave backs which can hold significant 
amounts and are easy to store away. 

125. Tighter checks and restrictions on those fraudulently / unnecessarily claiming 
benefits, or those claiming benefits but not spending the money on their children / 
necessary items. 

126. I would be prepared to see savings in planning services. 
127. Street cleaning and gardening. Also I think community wardens /parking 

attendants etc. should be one job 
128. Funding to progress football and more funding towards education and 

athletics. 
129. Neighbourhood wardens - never see them anyway. 
130. Organisations always change 
131. The proposed alterations to Cosham high street. 
132. I can understand the difficult decisions required to be taken, however please 

protect bus services. Many people need those bus services to provide access to 
health services, jobs, shopping and to visit friends and family. Without them many 
will be isolated in their homes. 

133.      
 
 
 
                                                     B) Our recruitment processes are so poor we are 
advertising a job that isn't fully explained, so we're going to attract a poor calibre of 

Page 117



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

42 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

candidate, which is also wasteful.   I'd also be willing to see a lot less of the "My 
Journey" type projects. Surely we're all aware by now that bikes exist, and that 
walking is healthy? What might encourage more people to get out of their cars is 
improving the pavements so that they are more accessible to disabled people, 
better enforcement and raising awareness of traffic offenses such as parking across 
dropped kerbs, that discourage people from walking, and improving cycle lanes so 
they don't suddenly end with nowhere to go - if you build it, they will come! 

134. Get rid of residents parking schemes, it is too expensive to run and in some 
areas has not improved parking problems.    Also drop the amount of Christmas 
light switch ones - Make the Commercial Road Xmas lights bigger and better and 
drop the other ones (southsea/cosham) that are run by the council. 

135. Using escorts to transporting children to school when their parents are at 
home and have a car. 

136. No reduction is acceptable on access to public toilets.  I do not believe there 
was sufficient public consultation. 

137. Painting of council houses/flats and fences 
138. None 
139. I think services have been cut as far as they can go 
140. Greater pressure needs to be applied to ensure all council social spending 

goes to the people who deserve it, not people who are taking advantage of the 
system. 

141. Parking charges reduced 
142. I'd be prepared to see any services changed in the interest of better, more 

innovative working that could also save costs. A radical plan for the local authority is 
needed to work in partnership to maintain service levels, not continue to hack away 
at them until there's nothing left. More transparency and accountability in 
commissioning would also be useful - it's very hard for local people to understand 
why money continued to be poured into supporting a failing operator for the 
Pyramids against officer recommendations while frontline services are being cut. 
We also don't seem to use our assets efficiently, preferring to sell them off for short 
term gain rather than arrange better contracts that could see the city with a steady 
income stream. PCC seems to be lacking a long term plan, a clear strategic 
direction in the current economic climate and leadership - I'd certainly be prepared 
to see that change. 

143. Although I & my family make use of them because our income is very tight, 
there are many subsidised leisure activities & family/children's services in 
Portsmouth which are not essential and these could be reduced, although we would 
be sad to see them go. Also, I vehemently disagree with the policy of free nursery 
places for 2 year olds unless there is substandard care at home. I strongly believe 
that 2 year olds need the emotional security of home and family and that nursery 
and playgroup places should begin at 3 years of age. This would also save you 
some money. 

144.                                    - translation. 

Page 118



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

43 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

145. Transport - roads, school transport, cycling, H and S  Tourism and facilities 
146. None 
147. Funding of the Pyramids and grants to the Kings Theatre, which is supposed 

to be self-funding. 
148. None. I would prefer council tax went up and services remained the same. 
149. Weekly recycling collections would encourage more recycling and be very 

handy. 
150. Bandstand events could be charged for. 
151. Health and Wellbeing funding for Older persons should be increased not 

decreased in our efforts to encourage independent living 
152. Stop subsidising the pyramids.  It's a waste of money.   Drastically reduce 

the number of public toilets - people can go to pubs/ cafes. 
153. More efficiency does not necessarily mean reductions, just better working 

practices. 
154. 1. Any expenditure on advertising to attract advertising, vide the ridiculous 

lamppost banners.  Has one of these ever been successful?  2. Any expenditure on 
ludicrous interpretation of human rights legislation/health & safety over-reaction and 
any excess of political correctness 

155. Benefits to people who are able to work. 
156. I'm not sure 
157. Road management to make the city and surrounds flow. Too many 

bottlenecks. 
158. Not aware of any 
159. The council should explain the cost of ''free'' services to people at the point of 

use so that there can be an open and informed discussion about priorities. the 
council should buy a set of portable bike racks for use at all large public events 
which they can use themselves and rent to others running events. This should be 
part of on-going encouragement of people biking or walking rather than using cars. 
Students without mobility issues should pay to bring cars with them to university. 
Households with more than two cars should pay additional council tax. 2 weekly 
refuse collections for houses and flats on flats on streets should be introduced in 
conjunction with fines for persistent littering and fly tipping. Landlords should be 
made responsible for the litter and fly tipping of their tenants. 

160. None reduced there have been enough cuts to public services already. 
161. Adult social care, children and learning support, community safety and 

housing 
162. Information Services, Development and Culture whilst arguably essential in 

delivery of necessary services could possibly be maintained by smaller workforce 
e.g. Museums/Libraries/ Parks etc. kept "in house" but reduced salaries. More input 
from semi voluntary sector e.g. pensioners, post grads or suitable jobseekers (e.g. 
paying a small retainer rather than salaried). 

Page 119



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

44 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

163. Hand-outs to the so-called vulnerable of society create a dependency 
culture. Radically reduce aid to this bottomless pit and invest our money in things 
which we can ALL appreciate.  
 
 
                                                  Stop cutting back on the gardens using green 
rhetoric (Brian Kidd should sue you for using his name outside Southsea Castle!), 
and of course restore repair and modernise the public toilets (just lose a couple 
more unnecessary administrators to pay for this). Accept bids for council projects 
from small local firms, not just your usual expensive groups of cronies. 

164. Services that are not public facing and do not have an impact on residents. 
165. Hand over the management of parks and gardens to local voluntary 

gardening groups. Litter picking could be done by local volunteers. Every street to 
have nominated people. Energy efficient bulbs should be fitted in street lamps plus 
residential street lights should not be left on all night. Recycling: now there is a UK 
depot dealing with tetra packs we should be able to include them. 

166. Cease the additional tax via the brown garden bin waste collection service, 
and provide a composting service that subsidises itself, via the sale of a quality 
composting media/by-products. 

167. I would like to see savings in overhead and admin rather than front line 
delivery. 

168. Reduction in bus subsidies. 
169. I think services need to become smarter with decision making. You hear all 

the time about services making the same mistakes, making silly choices and not 
making the most of the resources in the city, paying over the odds to buy things. 
Get services to get more from the big businesses in op 

170. The use of computers in libraries. If I order a book I am charged £1 which I 
am happy to pay. Why can you not charge a £1 for 30 minutes on the computers? 

171. planning; finance; support services 
172. Housing budget is outrageous and council home occupiers should be 

ENCOURAGED to do more for themselves 
173. Get rid of ceremony around mayor and councillors and scale back their 

spending and allowances, can these be made more transparent? 
174. Marketing and promotion  Support for football club 
175. Green issues, until China and India do something you are just wasting my 

hard earned money. 
176. None - push back to the government who are making the ordinary man pay 

for the failures of the banks. We are also allowing multinational corporations and 
individuals to get away with evading paying their full taxes. Collect al these and we 
won't need to cut public services. The central government cuts are ideological - they 
hate the welfare state. It is not necessary. Remember what happened after WW2! 
We spent our way out of trouble. 

Page 120



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

45 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

177. sell off the museum ,put the exhibits in central library there is so much 
unused space in the building; the civic offices are going to be need replacing the 
Zurich site is available then rehouse the council staff there, sell off the site in the 
guildhall for affordable homes for Portsmouth residents...cut pay and pensions to all 
top level management 

178. Economic development. When times are tough, concentrate on core public 
services and let the private sector sort itself out 

179. I would like to see money for rent given to private landlord go back in to the 
council hands i.e. build more affordable social housing ; at the moment landlords 
are blighting Portsmouth with rundown properties and substandard housing for 
council tenants. If it goes back to the councils you could employ more people and 
get better cheaper accommodation. People who haven't paid in to the system 
should not be given free hand-outs 

180. Reduce subsidies to leisure facilities like the Pyramids, Guildhall, Kings 
Theatre, Theatre Royal etc. 

181. "The coloured lights along the seafront could be reduced, switched on only 
during peak tourist season and/or replaced with much cheaper bulbs than originally 
proposed in the seafront development scheme.  Save money by switching off the 
coloured lights outside tourist season.  Contract other spending on seafront 
developments not fronted by private businesses. 

182. Rely on simple signage rather than installing any interactive media for 
navigation on the streets. 

183. Could consider reducing slightly the discount offered for Portsmouth leisure 
card holders. 

184. Sell current social housing and buy cheaper property elsewhere - many of 
the houses available as social housing are far better than can be afforded my many 
middle earning professionals in Portsmouth. 

185. Simplify planting and gardens - invest in interesting perennial, low 
maintenance designs. 

186. If possible, limit free bus travel to OAPs who are local residents and 
introduce a means-tested fee for the bus pass amounting to at least 50% of the 
price of a bus the average number of bus journeys made by elderly people. 

187. "Could you also consider switching off the irritating television in the Guildhall 
Square and just using it for special events/showings. Nobody watches it and the 
students certainly don't want it as they already have their own gadgets attached to 
their bodies.It spoils the charm and atmosphere of our elegant old square and I can 
no longer enjoy walking across it. Also, could we not switch off some lights 
everywhere for certain times.Street lights, office lights, shop lights.  

188. I have a street- light outside my window which I have to barricade myself 
against so that I can sleep. I would be absolutely delighted if it could be switched 
off.or moved up the road outside the older residents houses. How about alternate 
lights on and off ? Also how much did it cost to put all these information plaques into 

Page 121



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

46 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

the pavements all over town with regard to new mapping coming.?. Why was this 
necessary?. People would find out about it when it happens,whatever it is. 

 
  

Page 122



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

47 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Q3. Which council services would you be prepared to pay more for? 
1. Public services not wage increases 
2. Council tax in proportion to annual inflation. 
3. Public toilets (10p a wee). This will stop the inevitable weeing on the pavement that 

will occur when the human dignity and right to wee is defiled. The diseases that will 
spread due to short sighted penny pinching could be avoided by letting us spend a 
penny. 

4. Toilets to be left for public use 
5. We have two cars; I'd be prepared to pay for the first parking permit in the scheme - 

reduced to £20. Motor bikes should be charged too. Nominal charge for museums. 
6. Those services which affect the greatest number of people which have the smallest 

financial outlay. 
7. Home insulation. Bus travel efficiency not on benefits. Museum entrances. Use of 

sports facilities. 
8. Job creation, particularly for school leavers currently disadvantaged by poor 

education - real jobs or training for real jobs not just council payroll. 
9. The use of public toilets - particularly in parks 
10. Via council tax ensure the city is a clean, tidy, grass cut etc. - make the city a 

pleasant environment to live in. 
11. You could save money (i.e. demolishing of toilets) by not accepting the highest 

bidder by saving £35K on the toilets which are essential. Surely the policy should be 
having free tender for work undertaken. 

12. You could save money (i.e. demolishing of toilets) by not accepting the highest 
bidder by saving £35K on the toilets which are essential. Surely the policy should be 
having free tender for work undertaken. 

13. New service? Waste collected from supermarkets to be prepared in KITCHENS IN 
COMMUNITY CENTRES (AND OTHER PLACES) BY STAFF/VOLUNTEERRS and 
made available to local people. 

14. We have lost our school crossing patrol already and the tree maintenance had been 
reduced. Schools are also buying more services from their DSG this year! 

15. Control and manage poor landlords - would pay to have our streets back. Residents 
parking - we want it in our area and would pay. Management and enforcement of 
Southsea Common and seafront - litter and BBQ. 

16. Proper street cleaning, the gutters are swept but the paths are not. 
17. Museums and libraries 
18. Rubbish collection and recycling. Children's crossing control. - If they need a boost 

to keep them running as well as they already do - any increase would eventually be 
paid back by the increase in efficiency. 

19. Live outdoor entertainment, e.g. The Bandstand. Music in the shopping areas. 
20. I would gladly pay a small transaction fee in libraries providing that money was used 

to keep libraries open and well resourced. It is also vital that regeneration continues 
to encourage businesses and investors into the city. 

Page 123



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

48 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

21. Toilets! The current situation is a disgrace and a show up! Tourists won't come back 
- re-open toilets! 

22. Our council tax is already high. We should seek savings first but small year on year 
increases are acceptable (though wages have not increased) 

23. I would be willing to pay for the use of public toilets. A town with so much history for 
tourists without public loos is a disgrace. 

24. Keeping public toilets. The tourists and residents deserve better than hoping to find 
a café or pub that will let non customers use their toilets. Not all of them have a 
disabled facility anyway. 645,000 hits on website. Were they looking for a toilet in 
the city? 

25. A small quibble in the state of the planting in Southsea shopping precinct - a bit 
disappointing and neglected for such a busy area for both visitors and residents. 

26. Traffic and transportation: where I love, parking is a nightmare! Despite parking 
issues we have caravans down our road, people who do not use their garages or 
park in front of them and we have people who do not live in our area, parking down 
our street so they can use the snooker club and takeaway shops etc. I work shifts 
and sometimes do not get home to early hours of the morning and drive round and 
round to park, walking a long distance late at night home. Please, please, please 
introduce permit parking to encourage others to walk or use public transport. Or a 
weekly park and ride service in and out of Portsmouth. 

27. None! It is time that some were reduced, i.e. the increase in parking fees. Plus the 
plan for additional parking meters. Therefore why ask if we are prepared to pay 
more for services when you make us pay more at your own pleasure. 

28. Public toilets! They are really necessary! (Visit Portsmouth) Perhaps I could get a 
pre-paid card to use or something and/or you could come up with a super plan to 
save them! 

29. Enhancing the environment. Music in the open, Trees, flowers and light plants. 
30. Toilets for one, I am very concerned re the proposal closing many toilets knowing 

full well we have many elderly residents and with many visitors to our city. 
31. Museums, Art galleries and Libraries 
32. I would be prepared to pay a little more for sporting facilities until the budgets 

improve. 
33. Pay PARCS more so they can increase the valuable work they offer to the 

community - this impacts and helps people with their future and out society. 
34. PARCS 
35. Residents parking permits should be £15 each per year. 
36. I am fortunate to have a free bus pass - however I realise the cost to the council 

and so I would suggest any Senior Citizen who uses public transport pay 50p per 
trip - anywhere - any distance - I believe this is a fair price to pay and the council 
would save money still. 

37. We pay too much for an already awful services. 

Page 124



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

49 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

38. Litter picking and clearance, there is a huge problem with this and dog fouling and it 
really makes areas look awful and uncared for which has an accumulative effect on 
how people feel about the city. 

39. On a strict budget myself so would find it very hard to pay anymore. 
40. Difficult as increasing payments in certain areas will always make someone 

annoyed. 
41. Improving the vision of Southsea seafront, bandstand and Palmerston Road 
42. Keeping toilets open in the community. 
43. Early years education services as this will hopefully prove to be a long-term 

investment with benefits for whole communities, i.e. less money needed for e.g. 
prison/substance support services. 

44. None - you have to be efficient with what you have and get rid of wastage (of which 
there is plenty) and corruption. 

45. PARCS has been providing services in Portsmouth since 1981. It is professionally 
constructed and effective. The staff and volunteers are highly trained. The service is 
a specialist one, invaluable for survivors of rape and sexual abuse and DV. The 
impact of this crime is far reaching and long term. Lives and families are disrupted 
and changed. However with appropriate support and skilled therapeutic intervention 
this does not have to be the case long term. PARCS has a record of positive 
outcomes. It is important to remember that in law, rape is second only to murder. 

46. The telephone help services leave a lot to be desired. It is frustrating to be kept on 
hold for up to half an hour with repeated recorded messages that all your staff are 
too busy dealing with customers. Most businesses aim to answer calls after 3 rings. 

47. Counselling, Child care 
48. Therapy 
49. Maybe empower someone to check and collect names of cyclists on pavements! 
50. Culture (not Sports) It is culture that makes us civilised - without it we remain mainly 

skilled savages 
51. PARCS services are valued very highly to myself and many others. I have used this 

service for over a year and it has made a huge difference to how I am as a person 
and look forward in my life. 

52. Donation boxes at the museums/civic offices to help with running costs - as a thank-
you for really good service. 

53. The vulnerable need help and assistance - they must come first so SureStart, Off 
the Records, Meals on Wheels should be protected or face the consequences. 

54. Public conveniences, entrance to museums, abolish free swimming. For money for 
all the nursery places. Are the kids learning real skills to give them speedy entry to 
3 x Rs? 

55. Introduce a fee for mis-using bus lanes such as £60 fine. Also for parking on Cycle 
Lanes. 

56. All heritage related activities, e.g. tourism, museums and local history services and 
activities. 

57. Specialised organisation as above 

Page 125



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

50 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

58. Housing only if it is for Portsmouth families who have been on waiting list for some 
time and are long term residents. Not people who came here wanting everything!!! 

59. Those who wish to participate in events should be charged accordingly (council tax 
payers should not subsidise) 

60. Parking.  Enforcement of laws/bylaws (e.g. littering, dog control orders, barbeques, 
parking violations) although this should be self-funding through fines. 

61. I would be prepared to pay at least a 2% increase in Council Tax and possibly 3% if 
current services across the board could be maintained. 

62. The Visitors Service department is a great asset, a real must keep, and they are 
great ambassadors for Portsmouth. Don't make more cuts to this service, tourist still 
rely on our Visitor Information Centres. 

63. Out-reach services such as Parks or services for elderly/youths plus help for young 
adults who are working & trying to find accommodation (there is too much for young 
mothers but males get turned away ~ unless named on birth certificate) 

64. Proper traffic free! cycle paths 
65. Support for the elderly to stay at home/extra care homes  Swimming/Leisure 
66. Services for the elderly and children. Meals and home-care for the elderly and infirm 

should be provided directly by the council and not by third parties, as this is the 
most cost-effective method of delivery and prevents corrupt business practices and 
care abuses.. 

67. Children's services / troubled families - all research shows that early intervention is 
key. Young people are tomorrow's adults, so ensuring parents are supported in 
bringing up healthy, educated children is key. Addressing factors which put children 
and young people at risk is vital for the long term. 

68. The council spends virtually nothing on the arts, and yet in my view this is the key to 
creating an environment in which businesses will want to invest. 

69. None, we pay enough. You generally give a good service but need to get better at 
not wasting money. 

70. I absolutely believe that children's social care services, early years and services for 
the vulnerable should be protected. I am not sure what this question actually 
means- does it mean pay directly or protect/increase budget for. While I welcome 
this consultation, please ensure that next year the questionnaire is devised by 
specialists as the questions in this version are very vague and blunt- sophisticated 
collection of data is important in such a process 

71. If necessary I would be prepared to pay more council tax if it was made clear what 
the increase was for 

72. I would like to see a large funding pot given to Portsmouth Abuse and Rape 
Counselling service. The work they do is outstanding. Not only do help people with 
the abuse they have suffered they are constantly keeping up to date with the 
children of Portsmouth with their outreach team and now with their Domestic Abuse 
Counselling. Not only is there a paid team who work beyond their weekly hours but 
there is a large volunteer team who give an enormous amount of time and energy in 
help others. 

Page 126



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

51 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

73. Nothing 
74. Museums, galleries 
75. none 
76. The Arts 
77. Social care - particularly for the elderly or infirmed. 
78. Public toilets privatise them or charge for use. Do not close! Unless viable 

alternative. All we see is that only customers can use cafe/pub/shop toilets. We 
have witnessed people on continent urinating on streets and would not like to see 
that here. Gives gives flashers green light. 

79. Toilets 
80. None, I pay my full tax already. 
81. Council housing rents should be means tested, supporting those who have little 

income but asking for a bigger contribution from those who can based on, some 
council tenants have two full time incomes yet get subsidised rents compared to 
private rental market. 

82. In the city budget  of the people there is no room to increase the costs of any 
service until we the people have a update to wages or pensions 

83. More children's groups at the Surestart centres. Increase in the items the recycling 
centre can accept. Continued funding of the pyramids centre 

84. none 
85. Education and social care (especially for vulnerable children and older people) 

which should at least be ring-fenced. 
86. Do not feel equipped to answer 
87. any service that support children 
88. Culture and leisure 
89. The Arts. 
90. We pay enough for everything already 
91. Residents' parking.  Charge £10-£15 per year for a residents' permit and only 

consider installing a parking scheme when 35% of residents return survey forms. 
92. Culture, tourism, parks - services that improve the quality of life for all ages and 

groups 
93. Health care, education, police - all at the ground level.  Not for consultancies. 
94. Give us examples first. 
95. Libraries and children's services 
96. Pest Control - for some services I would be prepared to pay more.    The parking 

permit system should be expanded to the whole of Portsea Island. 
97. Anything that enables tourists to arrive onto the island and enjoy the experience, 

thus bringing desired funds to the area. This includes elements relating to the 
Heritage of the area, as once gone, it will be gone forever. 

98. Culture, specifically libraries 
99. education and culture and parks 
100. None. 

Page 127



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

52 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

101. Depends, I would need more information on what services are at direct risk, 
which could be re-organised, etc. 

102. museums, records offices libraries and theatre 
103. Tourism 
104. A little tongue in cheek but to see more notices, bins and bag dispensers and 

ultimately penalties for those allowing dogs to foul the streets. 
105. Education, social services, libraries, museums, public toilets, parks, 
106. AS 1 
107. Heritage/Arts 
108. PARCS (Portsmouth and Abuse Rape Counselling Service) - an essential 

service that, particularly for vulnerable people that relieves much of the burden that 
would otherwise fall on local mental health services. Community centres - 
supporting the vulnerable, elderly and unemployed.    Funding for community 
groups amongst vulnerable groups, such as LGBT people, and community centres 
for the unemployed and elderly.  Both types of organisation often need venues, and 
modest budgets for service promotion and volunteer expenses. 

109. Makin sure Portsmouth is a nicer place to live - tackle waste and antisocial 
behaviour, student properties etc. 

110. None 
111. The flower baskets that we had last year on the lamp-posts 
112. All services. Council tax is too low. Council tax bands need to be reformed. 

Money needs to be redistributed from central funds to poorer areas such as 
Portsmouth which has lower value housing base. 

113. Tourism - seafront services, especially if it helps do something to improve the 
Pier and former nightclubs area. 

114. Social care, Housing services,   Road safety, 
115. No comment 
116. Better public transport routes and a greater number of better prepared cycle 

lanes 
117. Cultural Services 
118. Deaf and Blind Services 
119. None, I pay enough already. 
120. Maybe the council tax or housing benefit dependent of administration of 

terms financial  strategy there are numerous portfolios  saving targets  so I don't 
know exactly how I can be affected although the council financial position:  - 
increase income  - reduce costs  - review the policies  for whom maybe be eligible  
In to remind the budget protection for these services are limited. 

121. Culture, leisure & sport as the city is so big and we could do much more with 
it culture wise. 

122. Policing, schools, hospitals. 
123. Public toilets should be kept open, as has been widely publicised.  I want to 

cycle more in Portsmouth. There's a bit of an anti-cycling culture her.  My sons are 
getting close to secondary school and I'm not happy with the choice of schools 

Page 128



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

53 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

nearby. Compared to the rest of Hampshire, they are quite poor. Charter seems to 
have done well, can this be replicated elsewhere? 

124. Free cultural events in either the theatres or outdoor, such as on the 
common. Open air film screenings on South sea common in the evenings in 
summer for example. Not sure whether this should cause higher council taxes, 
though - it's not expensive to set up.  See number 5 - reducing traffic in residential 
areas would be great. Castle Road is being abused by speeding cars (particularly 
cabs) in the early hours of particularly the weekends. Can we please have sleeping 
policemen in the road? 

125. Environmental issues (refuse, recycling, graffiti, etc.).  Toilets.  Parks. 
126. A 20 pence entry fee to use toilets.  The proceeds to be ploughed back into 

them 
127. any service that was also improved 
128. Garden re-cycling service as above. 
129. counselling services 
130. Early years interventions for troubled / struggling families and education 

services, as this should prove to be a valuable investment with long-term benefits 
for whole communities. 

131. Funding for support services for adults who have experienced trauma such 
as for services support people who have experienced domestic violence, sexual 
abuse, drugs and alcohol and health and disability problems. 

132. Domestic abuse and sexual violence 
133. Education and counselling for vulnerable populations - PARCS. 
134. Increase funding for PARCS & the important services they provide which are 

not only cost effective but also say the public purse in the long term. 
135. Leisure, seafront, culture and vulnerable people 
136. none 
137. Parking 
138. Adults and children's social services. These are the staple issues that affect, 

or will affect, every single resident. Investing more in these areas will also knock-on 
to other departments because residents dealing with health and social care issues 
almost always struggle with other aspects of their life. E.g. housing, employment, 
council tax, education. I would also be prepared to pay more to keep real jobs - we 
should be setting an example to other organisations in the city to be an equal 
opportunities employer, and to be providing work. Replacing library staff with self-
service machines tells every other organisation that it's ok to cut costs through staff. 
Particularly at a certain level, so there are few jobs for lower-skilled workers, which 
increases dependence on benefits. This expense could possibly be mitigated by 
reducing the useless jobs detailed above. Also we could also be doing more to 
improve the culture of acceptance and understanding of different cultures, 
disabilities etc. in the council, so that we attract a more diverse range of applicants. 
I've worked with people who were completely ignored at work by colleagues - not 
through racism or ignorance, just because people were afraid of saying something 

Page 129



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

54 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

wrong. Our "equalities and diversity" training tells us not to say certain words 
(encourages fear of saying the wrong thing) and that we should be "tolerant" of 
others (accepts prejudices instead of challenging them) - when what we need is 
understanding and acceptance. The One City Many Cultures booklet was handy for 
those who bothered to read it - but unfortunately wasn't adopted very wideley. It 
should be updated, and then used as the textbook for the equalities & diversity 
training. Apologies if this makes no sense, the boxes are very small so it's hard to 
edit. 

139. None - for the £2000 council tax I pay a year I think I pay more than enough 
140. I already think it is expensive but I would be prepared to pay to keep public 

toilets open. 
141. Access to independent community advocacy is essential to empower 

individuals and communities. 
142. Acute services for vulnerable people. 
143. You could ask for donations rather than setting fees (as some people would 

not be able to afford it and they need to have these services) by users of the Sure 
Start centres, the children's splash parks and the city's libraries. 

144. I feel passionately that PCC should continue to fund services that support 
victims of sexual abuse such as Portsmouth Abuse and Rape Counselling Service. 
PARCS is such a lifesaving service who are working with victims of crime for free. 
To take away this support would not only increase pressure on mental health 
services within NHS but would leave Portsmouth as the only city in South East 
Hampshire who are not providing this service. 

145. Regenerating the City is key, and the Culture and tourist industry will be so 
important in Portsmouth to help bring this about. 

146. Child care 
147. Planning - this should be being run as a combination between social 

enterprise and frontline service, with increased contributions made by private 
sector.  Business support - same as above. Free service to start-ups and small 
businesses (dependent on earnings) and paid services to larger businesses. 

148. Although I'm working and we don't claim any benefits bar tax credits, as a 
family we have less than £20k a year (before tax is deducted) to live on and I 
couldn't afford to pay more for anything! 

149. See above 
150. None currently. 
151. Special needs education and seafront development 
152. None 
153. I would be prepared to pay more to see public toilets remain open, and be 

converted to have turnstiles installed, with a 'pay as you enter' system.  There 
would be an initial cost, but this would be recovered in time, and they would 
become self-funding.  I think that the residents have already 'paid through the nose' 
over many decades for a long-promised Library and Community Centre, with no 
delivery. 

Page 130



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

55 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

154. Rubbish collections to remain the same. Police, fire brigade, libraries to 
remain open. Social services. 

155. Recycling collections, arts and culture, promoting tourism 
156. protecting weekly household waste collection 
157. Reasonable time for Older people Personal care 
158. Parking permits - free for the first car, then pay for any more and for visitors' 

cars. 
159. The amount of money paid in council tax, rental income etc., should already 

provide enough to cover all services. 
160. Public conveniences.  Their current removal is scandalous, and all public 

complaints made by ratepayers are totally ignored.  I have never seen a council 
response to justify their closure 

161. Cycling lanes. Road awareness. Since there is so much traffic in Portsmouth, 
this really needs to be addressed. Addressing this would increase cyclists' 
confidence and therefore more cyclists would cycle and not use their cars. 

162. Substance misuse and the homeless 
163. none as the tax to pay for services should be enough to cover all services 

and improve them anyway 
164. None; already overstretched. 
165. I would be prepared to pay more, through council tax, for children's services 

and arts/culture, e.g. libraries and events 
166. The council tax should rise at least with inflation, better services are more 

important than a marginally low bill 
167. The council tax should rise at least with inflation, better services are more 

important than a marginally low bill 
168. None 
169. The above, as not everyone uses them. Are they are a privilege rather than a 

right? I personally would pay extra to use them and thereby retain them. 
170. council tax if things such as toilets are kept, this is such an important part of 

a tourist city, and free ones stand the city as standing out from those not offering 
this, able people from benefit pool could be part of this. 

171. Seafront Services 
172. - Events i.e. Southsea show, food markets, family events, Victorious.   - Adult 

and Children Social services: More staff/services to support the vulnerable back to 
recovery. 

173. None. 
174. I don't currently think this council provides value for money as it is. When it 

can convince the electorate via full transparency of its finances that it is in fact a 
viable business organisation, and can properly justify the additional cost for services 
I would be prepared to answer this question. 

175. I would tolerate an increase in council tax to retain services such as weekly 
bin collection. I know a lot of smaller charities are supported by PCC and believe 
many of these provide good value for money and hidden savings for PCC. E.g. 

Page 131



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

56 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Relate can help keep relationships together thereby saving the council rehousing 
costs. Please don't cut the grants to these organisations. CAB is another worthwhile 
example. 

176. City Centre Parking. 
177. paying more of preventing our children and young people from later 

problems, such as worklessness, poor health and crime. It is really important we 
motivate positive choices while our residents are young. We need to also prevent 
our older residents relying on social care services by keeping them well and in work 
longer, preventing falls and poorly managed care homes. Getting more from 
volunteers in the city. 

178. Ordering a book from the library £1.50 would be a fair price to pay. 
179. social care; education and environmental services 
180. We need our toilets 
181. Nothing, happy s it is. 
182. I would be prepared to pay a bit more council tax say another £40-50 p.a. My 

first suggestion though is that you ask CT payers and business rate payers to pay 
additional voluntary contributions to finance any one of a range of projects that you 
set out before them for which the extra funds would be ring fenced. Perhaps you 
could then also persuade central govt. to match the additional voluntary 
contributions received. 

183. Helping people get jobs, particularly young people. 
184. None 
185. Toilets 
186. keeping Portsmouth clean and gardens to attract the visitors and investment 
187. allotments and beach huts., museums 
188. Health and Social Care. Community Safety. Culture leisure and sport. 
189. Bin collections, keeping Portsmouth green. 
190. None 
191. "PARCS (Portsmouth and Abuse Rape Counselling Service) - an essential 

service that, particularly for vulnerable people that relieves much of the burden that 
would otherwise fall on local mental health services.Community centres - supporting 
the vulnerable, elderly and unemployed. Funding for community groups amongst 
vulnerable groups, such as LGBT people, and community centres for the 
unemployed and elderly.  Both types of organisation often need venues, and 
modest budgets for service promotion and volunteer expenses. 
 

 

 

  

Page 132



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

57 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Q4. Which council services do you value most and would like protected? 
1. Weekly bin collection! Portsmouth is densely packed with houses and very small 

gardens, it would be a real health risk to withdraw this weekly service. 
2. Public toilets to remain open. 
3. Street Cleaning 
4. Street lighting, Waste collection. 
5. Public toilets should remain open. On no account should Paradise Street toilets be 

closed as it is the most well used in Portsmouth. Drayton toilets must remain open 
as they are the only one in that area and older people especially need somewhere 
to go. 

6. A late night bus route through Paulsgrove would be nice so we could go out at night 
again and not be isolated (like you provide in posh areas). 

7. Weekly bin collections 
8. Weekly rubbish collection. Social care budget (esp old and disabled), Library 

opening hours and residential parking. 
9. Elderly care. Support for young people. Domestic violence, children's centres and 

child protections. Mental health, Housing, Playgrounds for children, Alcohol and 
drug therapy, flood defences. 

10. Parks, gardens, hanging baskets, beach, promenade - the army of street and park 
cleaners do a great job in cleaning the town of its casual/fast food rubbish - as a 
cyclist, glass is a real problem. Litter campaign? 

11. Waste collections. Again public toilets. If the City want to attract and keep visitors 
coming back 

12. Public conveniences - all should be re-opened, not demolished and FREE paid for 
by council tax - Community toilet scheme has failed. Public libraries. Service for the 
elderly and those with special needs. 

13. Waste disposal - they do a valuable job for the community. Also the road sweepers. 
They are keeping out city tidy clean. 

14. Bus passes, public toilets (particularly pier), introduce local pound to be used by 
traders. Ensuring profits are spent in Portsmouth 

15. Safeguarding - adult mental health and child, community wardens, parks and open 
spaces. Most of the portfolios need protecting but need to be managed efficiently. 

16. Street cleaning, Flag, the common and libraries 
17. Rubbish collections (weekly) and road - pavement maintenance 
18. Noisy neighbours (mostly students) Being supported after complaining. Flagship. 

Those that read this and inwardly digest. 
19. Surestart/Children's Services and public toilets. 
20. Museums - essential for tourism, attracting visitors to city. Libraries - asses to 

informal education, enjoyment for less well-off. 
21. Rubbish collection and recycling. Children's crossing control. 
22. Mix plants and planting. Colour to 'open' areas. 
23. Libraries and museums - they are vital for the education of the city. It is also vital 

that regeneration continues to encourage businesses and investors into the city. 

Page 133



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

58 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

24. Refuse collection! From 4 to 3 to 2 loaders per crew. Are you only going to be 
happy when they start dropping dead in the streets? Have a go yourself! 

25. We should NOT seek to sell off homes and other assets for vulnerable people. We 
value the Leisure and cultural events and services…these put Portsmouth on the 

map! 
26. I would like to see the community wardens and school patrol people looked upon 

with more care. In Paulsgrove we have hardly any trouble thanks to them. 
27. Keeping community wardens in all areas. In Paulsgrove we have had so much less 

anti-social behaviour. Also in North End where my family live, the difference in the 
two communities is very noticeable. Police and PCSOs hardly ever come here it is 
mainly the community wardens that have been so successful. 

28. Green waste collection - as I pensioner I/we are deeply disturbed at the introduction 
of a fee-paying collection service for Green Garden Waste. Many pensioners who 
have a garden/small patio - have no transport and are thus reliant on a collection 
service. They will often be reluctant to ask hard pushed neighbours to dispose of 
their extra green waste. I/we think there should be a concessionary rate at least for 
pensioners - many pensioners are on different credit. I feel there will be fly tipping or 
disposal in the household waste. The targets for recycling this Garden Waste could 
surely be reduced a little to accommodate a concessionary rate (for pensioners and 
the unemployed). If not many of the more vulnerable citizens in Portsmouth will 
surely be criminalised but paying or not paying fines over the coming years. AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL TEAMS KEPT EVEN BUSIER COLLECTING FLY TIPPED 
WASTE! 

29. The senior bus pass - which is of enormous personal benefit in terms of active 
getting around to food shops (health and socialising (mental health) 

30. Culture, leisure and sports - the Bandstand is a highlight of the summer and my 
family all go down there, just to be great to mix the weekend up a bit each year. Our 
culture in Portsmouth is what builds our economy and attracts tourism - it's 
important to protect our history etc. The pier could be a great revenue for the city, 
as a wedding venue, concert venue, the old market used to be fantastic and rides 
with seaside stalls at the back - why did it all get flattened? Really need to make 
Southsea pier part of the culture. Short term spend for long term profit! 

31. It would appear that whatever was raised - would be ignored by the council unless it 
had some purpose or value to this city's councillors.  

32. Public toilets - I don't actually know if I could leave the house and go anywhere 
without them. Also the weekly refuse collection is valued. (Are we or are we not a 
civilised society?!) 

33. As we have almost no services in Drayton and Farlington it is difficult to say what 
should be protected - refuse collection and road sweeping. 

34. Road sweeping and flower beds 
35. Parks and gardens all praise to those who care for them - better facitlities. The 

common is becoming patched and dangerous but well maintained otherwise by 
Parks and Gardens committee. 

Page 134



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

59 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

36. Please protect those listed in Q3 - museums, art galleries and libraries and help 
retain the history of our great city. They are vital for visitors to this area and to 
educate our children and future generations. 

37. Portsmouth Abuse and Rape Counselling Services (PARCS) 
38. At present I am using the PARCS counselling service and I am finding it invaluable. 

Many vulnerable people need this service to help them cope, understand and move 
on from tragic situations. This service equips people for a better future and helps to 
prevent drastic action such as suicide. 

39. Adult and children social care. Environment - rubbish collection, protection of areas 
of wildlife interest. Culture and arts. 

40. Community workforce. Making people proud to be involved in their city, street 
cleaning, and weekly rubbish collections. 

41. Some sort of subsidised bus service and fee doable car parking at council run parks 
etc. 

42. You do not provide a good service in our area - lights dimmed and removed, icy 
pavements left untouched. Pedestrian walkways unstable and full of cyclists - we do 
not value any council services.                                                

43. Litter picking clearance of rubbish plus all obvious ones such as care of anyone 
who needs it. 

44. Libraries and museums - have used these myself. Children and grandchildren. 
Useful learning and of interest to visitors. 

45. The services that support people and the services that help improve quality of life. 
46. Plants/Flowers and Lights and art work. 
47. Weekly dustbin collection and fortnightly recycling collection. Road sweeping. 

Implement litter fines and pavement fouling more rigorously. 
48. PARCS to continue to be funded by PCC 
49. PARCS is a fantastic service and it is a credit to the city that such support is 

available free of charge. Education/Children's/Young person's services 
50. All of those that help the most vulnerable in the city. DO NOT cut grants and 

support to charities that have to pick up the places left due to council cuts. 
PARCS/Off the record/ CAB are a few examples and are valuable and much 
needed. 

51. PARCS, Libraries (Cosham) and Toilets 
52. PARCS, Noise and antisocial issues 
53. PARCS, Drug and Alcohol misuse, Child protection services 
54. Libraries and bus pass for over 60s 
55. Toilets - especially for tourists and people who live here. 
56. Flower displays, free bus passes 
57. Culture 
58. Those services that help promote the city and foster a 'feel good' good factor or 

local people. Flowers, colour, clean streets, public spaces, free events, 'disguised 
frontages for empty shops, Flagship. These are often viewed as extras but are very 
important morale boosters. 

Page 135



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

60 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

59. Public toilets are a necessity of life and should be available in all parts of the city, 
not just for visitors. Local parks need as much attention as the seafront - gardens, 
decent flower beds are required. 

60. Road maintenance which gives Portsmouth a much improved appearance over 
neighbouring towns. Regeneration which is about future jobs but are you liaising 
with local colleges to ensure the right courses for Portsmouth young people, so 
Local people can get jobs? 

61. Carers Services 
62. Education, Social Services and those which promote the city externally to attract 

inward investment and income. 
63. Police, fire and ambulances 
64. Children's services and education. They are our future. Teach and educate them to 

be responsible citizens who are healthy and fit. Too late for their parents in many 
cases families do this will just perpetuate Portsmouth problems? 

65. children and family services including family centres, adult and elderly social care, 
schools, mental health and learning disability services, carers services, libraries, 
telecare, OT. 

66. Adult Social Care - especially protect people who have learning disabilities (and 
their carers) and who benefit greatly from attending day centres and respite centres.  
Culture, Leisure & Sport - especially Libraries, Museums and Parks. 

67. Visitor Information Centres and there staff, tourism brings in millions to Portsmouth, 
we would be worse off without them 

68. Libraries, splashpool, parks , Eastney swimming pool - but of course the less 
glamorous services to the elderly and vulnerable are very important too. 

69. Weekly refuse collection  Street cleaning  Garden and park maintenance  Library  
Eastney Swimming pool 

70. Services to the elderly and children 
71. Surestart, Children's services in general and community safety / public health 
72. Those supporting the most vulnerable in our society; elderly, young, disabled 
73. As previous, I value those services which support the vulnerable- including early 

years and children's services. These must be protected. However, as I highlighted 
earlier, there may be ways of protecting the service but still bringing efficiency- i.e. 
reviewing private partnerships and market driven care arrangements. 

74. Social care- which is a statutory responsibility anyway  Libraries and maintenance 
of the seafront are non-statutory services I value most 

75. As I've already stated Portsmouth Abuse And Rape Counselling Service needs to 
be protected they should not be placed into fighting for funding this charity should 
have the full backing of the council through their work they take a huge amount of 
pressure off NHS, A&E depts. and also doctors through their dedication to the 
people of Portsmouth South East Hants. Abuse is not going away and as a council 
you should be behind PARCS. 

76. Weekly bin collection. Citizens' advice bureau. 
77. Libraries, museums, galleries, heritage and local history elements 

Page 136



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

61 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

78. Roads 
79. The Arts, Libraries, Museums, Adult Education. 
80. Education  Care for the elderly and infirmed 
81. Weekly bin collection/toilets. 
82. Council Housing.  Going over to Private Landlords just does not work. 
83. Think the children services and counselling services are very important.  As when I 

worked for local government in family services, the families would have been lost 
without these very important support systems.  If these are taken away, where 
would families turn for help?  One example is: - Portsmouth Abuse and Rape 
Counselling Service is an organisation based within Portsmouth City that works with 
people who have been sexually violated at any time in their lives no matter how 
long ago.   PARCS provides free specialist counselling and psychotherapy to 
women and men, aged 13+ who are resident in Portsmouth and South East 
Hampshire and who have experienced any form of sexual violation at any time in 
their lives.  The charity delivers a number of outreach workshops (to young people, 
teachers and carers) covering the impact of sexual bullying, sexting, internet safety 
(delivering CEOP Ambassador training), the delay programme and developing 
empathy and listening skills. The Outreach Worker has also designed ‘bespoke’ 

workshops responding to the particular needs of individual schools using a variety 
of methods including art and drama. These workshops are delivered to all 
Portsmouth schools.  Also they promote healthy relationships and alleviate the 
physical, emotional and mental distress associated with sexual abuse and 
interpersonal trauma through the provision of education, training, support and free 
therapy to women and men (aged 13 and above) resident in Portsmouth and South 
East Hampshire.  Many of the families I worked with over the years working for Sure 
Start, benefited by this service.  Help to provide a support system so they could 
recover to gain further skills in their lives.  Which had positive effects in the home, 
work, lives and their long term relationships? Which had a positive effect in the way 
they parented they own children. Which in the long run is a sustainable piece of 
work that helps to prevent further issues happening...? So families have gone as far 
to say “ PARCS “has helped to save their lives.  If the families in Portsmouth feel 

they have some where to turn in a time of crisis then that has a positive knock on 
effect on the community.  Supported families mean supported communities.  
PARCS has a community Facebook page and has been doing lots of work in the 
community and with families and children, with the view of preventive work for 30 
years.    This is one service I know makes a big difference in people's lives and 
needs to continue, so this is one of the services that need to be protected alongside 
with the other family counselling services out reach. 

84. Weekly waste collection, schools budget, school crossing patrols, toilets, street 
cleaning 

85. Free bus service after 09-00 for the retired and long term sick 
86. Refuse collection, the bandstand summer season, free opera in the park, street 

lighting and children's groups at Surestart. 

Page 137



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

62 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

87. I think the work of Portsmouth Area Rape Crisis is essential for the city and should 
be protected. In my job (with the NHS) I visit families at home and see how directly 
the issue of sexual assault is linked to the high levels of domestic violence, violent 
crime, deprivation and poor education levels that sadly, still afflict Portsmouth. The 
service for all groups (teens, men and women) needs to be funded as it impacts on 
so many other areas. I do realise many services could argue this, but we have an 
excellent system here with workers having an in depth understanding of the city of 
Portsmouth, its people, culture and needs and expertise in dealing with these. It 
would be terrible to lose this service and I believe it would greatly impact other local 
authority services and budgets such as housing, education, young people's 
services, public health, offending behaviour and social care. 

88. Education.  Maintaining leisure facilities and libraries and museums also important. 
Despite my comments about the Civic Offices and Ferry Port, let's not sell of too 
much of the family silverware (especially playing fields) which may be regretted 
later, when the economy improves.   Weekly refuse collections at least during the 
summer should be maintained. Perhaps savings could be made if collections 
become fortnightly for limited winter months - November to February say. 

89. All 
90. Culture, arts, sports facilities, children's centres, libraries, public events 
91. libraries and children services 
92. I love going to the Guildhall - it's a brilliant venue, attracts great acts and puts 

Portsmouth on the map. 
93. The Arts. E.g. the Guildhall, Museums and libraries. 
94. refuge collection and street lighting 
95. Anything that promotes community "togetherness" and helps to make people aware 

of their impact on society / the world.  This includes everything from social 
meetings, healthy walks and events, cycling, children's' activities etc.  Services that 
improve our environment and transport, making Portsmouth a city to be proud of.  
Looking after older people. 

96. Museums and libraries 
97. The arts always seem to be hit by cuts but should be protected. 
98. We know there are priorities, but small ones count to do not totally dispose of art 

and museums. 
99. Libraries and museum. Bin collection. 
100. Children ,s services 
101. Cultural investment should be protected - it is incredibly important for 

changing the perceptions of the city, is great for attracting investment and gives 
visitors other reasons to come to the city. 

102. Anything related to the Heritage of the area, thus encouraging tourists and 
also locals to get out and enjoy the environment. Also, care for the elderly who are 
so often forgotten. 

103. Libraries 
104. see number 3 

Page 138



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

63 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

105. 1. Rubbish collection and road cleanliness.  2. Open space and sports 
grounds.  3. Anti-social behaviour.  4. Public toilets. 

106. Libraries, Museums, Parks, Housing, Social Care. 
107. Museums library and theatre facilities 
108. Heritage  Culture 
109. Museums, Libraries, children's centres, cultural festival. 
110. Education, social services, libraries, museums, parks, the arts 
111. Refuse Collection, Parks & Open Spaces, Public Toilets & Museum & Arts ( 

not TV`s in Guildhall Squares or Performance Art (too Elitist or crackers to warrant 
much attention) 

112. Arts Programmes which promote healthy living and culture in Portsmouth  
Heritage- museums/libraries  Youth work/outreach 

113. The Records Office - this is a valuable source of information not easily 
available elsewhere that supports University and independent research.    Historic 
monuments - the square and round towers and other ancient monuments. 

114. Social care   Education 
115. Social care, environmental, planning and preservation of city. 
116. The daily collection of litter bins in Southsea. 
117. Value all services but culture has endured many years of cuts predating the 

current austerity and should not be an easy target. Portsmouth History Centre, and 
the museum and library services are very important to me. 

118. Tourism, Education and Environment & Public Protection. 
119. Housing services, Social care, Planning, Public protection,  Licensing, 

Trading standards, 
120. Recycling, parks and cycle routes 
121. Specialist services for deaf children in Portsmouth. With the appalling 

changes to DLA provision made by the current government that effect deaf children 
hugely, the provision of specialist services for deaf children play an even greater 
role in their everyday lives? These specialist services need to be valued greatly and 
protected and enhanced where possible 

122. Cultural Services 
123. Maintenance and expansion of cycle routes around the city and on the 

seafront. Schools. Sure start centres. Parks and commons. Midwives. The council 
services which look after and preserve old historic buildings and our city's heritage. 

124. The service which I value most and I would like to be protected are mixed in 
various department in the council services  could be in health and social care, 
planning , resources , traffic  and transportation .  In my view there are various 
services where I still to research what are good services for my expectations. 

125. Culture, leisure & sport. Children and education. 
126. Police, school, hospitals. 
127. I use Portsmouth and Southsea libraries a lot. I use the public parks such as 

Canoe Lake and the seafront. I don't use any other services that I'm aware of 
except the obvious: bins, roads etc. 

Page 139



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

64 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

128. Weekly bin collection is great. 
129. Weekly refuse collections.  Graffiti removal/assistance.  Enforcement.  

Library.  Cemeteries. 
130. I value most of the services as they all help the city. It's a shame you took 

your eyes off the ball when Gunwharf was being developed and let the seafront go 
into decline. 

131. PARCS, Street cleaning, Refuse collection 
132. Keeping our seafront clear of rubbish and dangerous items like broken glass 

is paramount. So regular rubbish picking on the beach regardless of the time of 
year would be good, it is as though it is only done for visitors 

133. Portsmouth Abuse and Rape Counselling Service 
134. I value council social services and I would like them protected and it would 

be beneficial to increase the resources they have available to them 
135. Please protect the creative and cultural offer. It is vital that these are given 

the support they deserve. So many cities in the UK are going through the 
'sameness' model and there is a revolt of the high street. Trends suggest that 
people no longer go to cities for the same offer - they go for the unique. If we do not 
grow the cultural offer we will be left behind. The city has so many highlights and 
wonders that need to be promoted a lot better. Many residents love the city in a 
very different way to how it is currently promoted by the tourism sector. Try to up 
the game and promote to a much higher realm. No to travel lodge and yes to the 
Ritz. 

136. Counselling - PARCS. 
137. PARCS funding 
138. Musuems, libaries, parks 
139. Refuse Collection 
140. Bus services 
141. Community toilets  Community advocacy and signposting services  Parks, 

gardens and community access  Community wardens/rangers 
142. Mental health, Advocacy, Older Peoples Services, Day centres, Schools, 

Maternity Services 
143. Free nursery places, ability to send children to their first choice schools 

especially if in catchment area, support to the vulnerable, working with the police to 
reduce crime, victim support, city cleanliness. 

144. Free counselling to people who have experienced sexual and domestic 
abuse 

145. The Culture budget has been hit hard in recent years, and this needs to be 
protected and spent wisely to help the important cultural assets, such as theatres, 
museums and parks 

146. Rubbish collection. Public toilets. Parks and Gardens 
147. Community safety; housing services; cultural services; social services for the 

most vulnerable. 

Page 140



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

65 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

148. Weekly rubbish collections input into state education and (although we don't 
use them) services to vulnerable groups (adults, children and the elderly). 

149. Cultural, art, literary activities of all kinds and sorts. Museums and library 
services; expand into other activities and community services 

150. Those that cannot help themselves 
151. Special needs support. Education, city tidiness, cultural and sporting events 
152. I value all council services 
153. Social care for the disabled and the elderly.  Libraries and Community 

Centres.  Allotments.  Youth clubs (There has been no replacement for the Moat 
Club, which the Council sold off.) 

154. Rubbish collection. 
155. Arts and culture, particularly music 
156. weekly household collection, and green waste collection was a good idea 
157. Education 
158. 1. Eastney beach - a Site of Special Scientific Interest and should be 

protected from developments such as Costa Coffee cafes.  2. Parks and open 
spaces   3. Libraries  4. Weekly rubbish collection  5. Museums - keep entry free.  6. 
Free events on the Common, Castle field, bandstand etc. 

159. Rubbish collection, public conveniences, street lighting, road maintenance 
160. bin collection 
161. Alcohol Services 
162. Drug and alcohol services 
163. Arts and recreation for free. 
164. Arts - e.g. libraries, museums and events; children's services 
165. Adult care and social services, education and culture, leisure & sport. 
166. all essential services such as waste collection etc. plus I feel the work done 

to support our communities such as substance misuse, AIT, social care offer real 
value for money in terms of the money saved through these interventions 

167. Environment 
168. I personally don't use Public Conveniences but in the interests of hygiene 

and comfort and privacy I think they should be retained. Maybe we need to look at 
smaller single phone box cubicle type.  I value refuse ,street lighting, Ferry Port 
revenue, Tourism, education, social services, emergency services, sensible traffic 
management .environmental health. 

169. Toilet supply, free or almost, no one has right change for paying ones, and 
it's something that cannot be put off, and should be provided free in a tourist 
important place like our fair city. Keeping the city clean, bright, vibrant and 
welcoming. 

170. Bin collection, toilets, seafront maintenance 
171. - Education - Adult and Children Social Services - Events - Family and 

children services/centres.  - Public protection 
172. Libraries, public transport. 
173. Weekly refuse collections, and recycling. 

Page 141



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

66 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

174. Weekly bin deliveries  Funding for organisations such as Relate 
175. Libraries and our weekly bin collection. 
176. Our public health service as they can offer other areas of the council 

efficiency opportunities by keeping the population well for longer. I also value to 
schools, young people's services and community warden who should do more to 
keep our younger people on the right path. And also the legal and contracts team 
who should prevent the services making poor choices and encourage the best 
value for money. 

177. The local library. 
178. social care; education environmental 
179. Rubbish and recycle collection 
180. Recycling collection.  Education. 
181. Personally, the culture, leisure &sport services, and recycling and waste 

collection services. 
182. support for the voluntary and community sector 
183. Development of Portsmouth...it's great! 
184. All of them 
185. All of them! 
186. the rubbish collections ,road sweepers, libraries ,pcos, wardens, 

environmental team 
187. Libraries and elderly care. 
188. Environment and community safety, Health and social care. 
189. I value the library service most . the library service is providing the best 

service for money taken out of council tax. 
190. I have a bee in my bonnet about just two things.  First, the prospect of cutting 

back grants to theatres.  I know it's easy to classify dramatic arts as something of a 
luxury for the elite. But in my experience, theatre offers great opportunities for 
engagement, community outreach, therapeutic activity (especially for less 
'academic' young people) and genuine social mixing.  It would be a real shame to 
see any of our theatres go to the wall for lack of sustained council support: please 
be careful! 

191. Some Council Services that I value are:- Safeguarding and making available 
information about Portsmouth and its people in Archives, Libraries and Museums. - 
Helping cash-poor owner occupiers to maintain their homes through equity release. 
- Supporting infants and their mums from conception to school. - Planting and 
maintaining trees. Providing independent advice to worried citizens. Supporting 
Pompey as a community owned football club. 

192. The Records Office - this is a valuable source of information not easily 
available elsewhere that supports University and independent research. 

193. Historic monuments - the square and round towers and other ancient 
monuments. 

Page 142



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

67 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

194. The council services I would most like protected are the dustbin collections 
weekly. I think the numerous flower planters that are put out through the city could 
be reduced without being noticed too much.. . 
 

 
  

Page 143



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

68 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Any other comments 
1. Due to its closure policy of toilets. There is not a public convenience from 

Portsbridge for the whole length of Copnor Road to Milton Park. It is a disgrace. 
2. More done to protect pedestrians from cyclists (not being done at present) 
3. Invite Tate to create Tate Portsmouth, Invite business sponsorship of cycling 

environment and license more sea-front café (learn from our French cousins) 
4. If you were to tell us the cost of producing and distributing the FLAGSHIP we would 

tell you how to save the amount of money. Freeing our green bin of junk mail. 
5. Grass tennis courts at Canoe Lake should not be closed as they are the only grass 

courts left in Portsmouth. I see these and the two hard courts there every week and 
so do many other people. The pedestrianizing of Palmerston road should be 
reversed as traders do not want it and there is too much traffic (i.e. buses, vans 
unloading and cyclists) so there cannot be a cafe culture. 

6. Your cycle lanes are dangerously unclear. Someone will get seriously hurt sooner 
or later and there will be a big compensation day out. Save money by spending 
some on making pavements safe for pedestrians. 

7. Do the main drains in our residential roads still get cleaned out? Some drains do 
smell really bad. 

8. Other councils have comprehensive recycling schemes e.g. Lichfield Staffs - where 
everything is recycled. Portsmouth must be able to expand its recycling. 

9. That all councillors regardless of politics work together for the greater good of the 
people of Portsmouth. 

10. Run car boot sales to raise funds or subsides other events. Make better use of 
empty shops. 

11. In general, it’s a default position to say the council does not do a good job, having 

lived in Germany and Yorkshire, Portsmouth/Southsea is a good place to love. 
Good access to ward councillors. 

12. Enforce the 20 mph-this road is a racetrack. Chase up those who owe council tax - 
how much is owed? 

13. Concentrate on Old Portsmouth, Gunwharf, and Historic Dockyard area. Expect all 
15 senior managers to live in the city and use services. Councillors should ensure 
all plans dreamt up by officers are thought through properly and not just 'rubber 
stamped'. Reduce capital schemes and plans the city cannot afford them. 

14. Have just come back from a holiday in wonderful Weymouth and seen the 
franshishes handed out for cafes and entertainment on the beach. Surely those 
franchises can be adopted for Eastney end. Even if you close at a say night. 
Eastney is very bleak and needs tidying up and come life through it. 

15. Capital project - producing better facilities for local people. Has an indoor market 
been considered? Swansea market has 700 small businesses. We don't need more 
shops and cafes run by multiples who take their profits out of Portsmouth and the 
UK. Job opportunities - work employment opportunities - profit spent in Portsmouth 
plus pay taxes locally. 6 or 7 day a week 

Page 144



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

69 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

16. The presentation explained the dilemma of PCC, however who is championing the 
council within the government - civil service. Deprivation factor and unitary authority 
are two huge factors to be stressed. 

17. I was under the impression that the council were to ease this area by not allowing 
more houses to be turned into student lets - not happening and would like some 
written assurances. 

18. Councillors and employees need to have more contact with residents regarding 
issues in the areas and more consultation. 

19. Flagship is an excellent means of disseminating information about PCC - keeps it 
going.   

20.     
 
 

21. The plant planters in Palmerston Rd by the Lord Palmerston  Drift bar a waste of 
money. Used as ashtrays people set on edge pulling plants! 

22. On the whole, I am very happy with the council's expenditure. However, savings 
can still be made without causing people too much harm. I'd like to see greater 
proactivity in creating growth and jobs. 

23. Atop housing benefits for drug and/or alcohol dependents. This is a lifestyle choice 
the rest of us shouldn't be paying for! 

24. Portsmouth is a great place to live and work…the UK's only island City. We have to 

pull together to get through the recession and ensure there is good local economy. 
Encourage more volunteers e.g. Green and Clean (after events) Etc. 

25. Endeavour to keep Portsmouth an age friendly city 
26. Well done Portsmouth City Council - thank you for keeping us informed by Flagship, 

which is so professional and the newsletters of Councillor Peter Eddis are also very 
informative. 

27. I like the plans for Old Portsmouth but am concerned about the parking there. What 
happened to the little train that went along the seafront? We have so much going on 
right from Old Portsmouth up to Royal Marines Museum but unless you park up 
again or walk can take a while to get to each. The little train could make money and 
make everything accessible. e.g. £5 for roundtrip from Old Portsmouth to Royal 
Marines Museum. £1 for every single journey. 

28. Portsmouth and Southsea are becoming a joke. Dirty, scruffy and general ignored.    
We travel to various areas in Hampshire frequently and when we return to 
Portsmouth we notice what a dirty scruffy place it is. We are not the only people to 
feel this way. Visitors and acquaintances feel the same way.                                                                 

29. I very much appreciate the libraries also. How much does this lovely looking 
Flagship cost to produce and deliver? Perhaps you could save the money by doing 
it in black and white? Parks are a top priority too and they are very good (smilie face 
added) 

Page 145



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

70 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

30. The entrance into Penarth Avenue and Penrhyn Avenue from Havant Road leaves 
much to be desired as the Havant Road is cambered and cars dip into this and then 
buck up into the Avenues. 

31. Well done for organising Cosham bridge works so well. 
32. Reduce traffic speed in residential areas. Palmerston Road needs improving. Lights 

and colour becoming stale. 
33. I am a born and bred Portsmouth girl and I am proud of my city and all which been 

achieved by them. We are and have been a world famous city Let us all be ready 
for forthcoming international events and caring which you do so well, excuse my 
writing, I am 91 and a bit doddery. Regards to you all Thank you. 

34. PARCS provides specialist services of rape and abuse and the support of 
Portsmouth City Council is vital as these services are not available through the 
NHS. 

35. There are many valuable Councillors. If practical equipped building to deliver 
services, yet PARCS service if limited to funding - how disappointing for such an 
important service in our area! 

36. Due to its closure policy of toilets. There is not a public convenience from 
Portsbridge for the whole length of Copnor Road to Milton Park. It is a disgrace. 

37. Please advertise clearly the proposed New Park and Ride services from Stamshaw 
to Gunwharf. Please make road improvements from M275 to Gunsharf. When using 
free bus services around Portsmouth I have noticed that in the majority of cases the 
boarding stage bus stop printed on the ticket is at least 3 stops previous. My 
question is - do the council pay per trip or distance - if it is the latter that the council 
could be paying more than it should. Many other passengers have noticed the 
same. 

38. Too many houses being built, but not for local people. Many Portsmouth born 
people have been taken off the housing register as they do not have children          
                           despite being on the register for quite a number of years and 
having paid their council tax. 

39. I walk about around my area and other areas and everywhere I go I see where litter 
has not been picked up thoroughly, it's in and under bushes, on roadsides and it 
looks disgusting and reduces respect for my city. 

40. Public toilets should not be closed essential especially for young and old, residents 
and visitors 

41. Think lines has littering and dog fouling should be improved but as the cleaning up 
of this costs money… 

42. Enhancing a better visual vision in what we see! 
43. Increase bus passes and taxi tokens to over 70s. Sell advertising space in Flagship 

- there are not longer any free newspapers giving 100% penetration - a unique 
opportunity for advertisers. 

44. Some suggestion to reduce the vehicle congestion on this small island. 1/ Move the 
IOW vehicle ferry to the new ferry port at the Albert Joneson Quay. 2/Prohibit all 

Page 146



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

71 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

vehicles with a total capacity of 7.5 tonners from the Island between 0600 and 2100 
hrs each day. 

45. Recycle more, reduce plastic bags, dog fouling and littering 
46. It would be advisable to gradually pay off loans to reduce future borrowing costs. 

This could save millions of pounds each year, i.e. Non-controllable spending - could 
be reduced 

47. The new parking on Southsea Seafront is an accident waiting to happen. No 
consultation happened! St Mary's hospital now very much reduced in capacity 
forcing most patients to attend Queen Alexandra Hospital which has a 10/12 mile 
journey there and expensive parking. Again no consultation! 

48. Pavements - many people have fallen over from uneven paving 
49. Please don't let bus companies change routes and numbers anymore! 
50. On the whole, I think you are doing a good job indeed. 
51. Need to encourage visitors and additional spend in Portsmouth to be able to fund 

developments and on-going maintenance. This summer's initiative to have a park 
and sail to Gunwharf was excellent. So tidy up the seafront, Forget the overblown, 
expensive ideas in the seafront strategy (a waste of money). Don't change the Rose 
Garden or move the bandstand. Instead properly maintain the attractions such as 
the museums and the historic sites. Interlock and cross-market with the 
Dockyard...there is nothing in the Dockyard to tell the visitor (Or local) what else 
there is to see and do in Portsmouth. Losing the Tourist Information facility outside 
the Dockyard gates was a false economy - D day is well off the beaten track. The 
gardens are a great asset however I feel that the bowling greens and other land will 
be left to get overgrown whereas these green areas around Canoe Lake and the 
seafront make the area special. A quality cafe at Canoe Lake (such as East Beach 
cafe in Littlehampton and there is a similar venture in Hove) is needed. The new 
Tennis Pavilion Cafe is a great addition. Let's hope the new mapping coming soon 
isn't another 'when's my bus coming' project. It currently seems to be a series of trip 
hazards. Please not a mobile phone app! 

52. seems to be a series of trip hazards. Please not a mobile phone app! 
53. Continue support to encourage more community involvement/management e.g. 

Help with governance, finding funding streams…social enterprises. Keep the Help 

Desk 
54. I valued and appreciated the help through counselling that I received from PARCS. I 

believe it’s a fantastic service that the council should continue to support. 
55. There is far too much emphasis made of Gun wharf and the Dockyard. The seafront 

has been allowed to decline to such a state that much needs attention. The pier is a 
disgrace and the land opposite. The pier is a disgrace and the land opposite. 
Improve what is there; don't build numerous outlets and huts. 

56. Support for alcohol; costs money. Yet the licensing committee always approves 
extensions to opening hours for sales of alcohol. Start at the root causes of 
problems. Reduce availability of the cheapest alcohol i.e. from shops. How many 
people did the council have to support 20 years ago. 

Page 147



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

72 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

57. Discussed at Milton Neighbourhood forum 
58. Keep up all the consultation that you do - even when you get discouraged - We lead 

the UK on it! 
59. I have been very lucky to have seen one of the councillors at PARCS and after 45 

years of having counselling I am able to come to terms with my past. Please keep 
this amazing open. 

60. Possibly look into a blanket 20% off all services. That way we are all taking a share 
of the cuts without one service being penalized more than others. 

61. I do not think that at times of austerity we should be thinking of improvements such 
as you suggested for Osbourne Road 

62. This city has many problems. We have above average levels of everything bad. 
High levels of ignorance, obesity, smoking, teen pregnancies, drug & Alcohol 
misuse, anti-social behaviour, child drink problems. Spend money widely! Too much 
wasted on bus shelters that never worked. 

63. Invest in and protect practitioners (do not allow burnt out and emotionally damaged 
practitioners become promoted to manage services ) 

64. Why not create an online suggestions site for people to make casual suggestions 
for making savings or maximising council revenue, where questions are posted and 
answered online for all to see. It will also serve to reassure people that money they 
see being spent is done so wisely 

65. It's so depressing that so many deep cuts to PCC services have to be made for 
years to come.  I hate the Government's uncaring and aggressive attitude towards 
local authorities - e.g. policies which are designed to alienate local authorities from 
the people they serve and the way they are slowly destroying the expert guardians 
of the local community. 

66. Please lets have the beach huts and further businesses at Eastney, and the 
seafront as a whole - saw some wonderful beach huts elsewhere which had 
incorporated small businesses into some such as kite shop, ice cream, vintage, 
beach goods  Also understand problem with South Parade Pier and costs could we 
just reduce it and call it half a pier !! I have visited the longest in Southend and the 
shortest in Burnham - maybe we could market ours as something special half a 
pier! WE must sort out that part of the seafront. 

67. Review the impact of student population on local rents/first time buyers. Consider 
change of use of empty offices (e.g. Baltic House) for conversion into student 
accommodation.  Leave Northern Qtr. development until sure of benefits- Don't 
undertake a cheap & cheerful development or produce a " last decade" shopping 
centre.  Do not put PCC money into South Parade pier  Protect unspoilt areas of 
seafront 

68.                                                      Councillors should no longer be paid to serve the 
City but should do this voluntarily. There are plenty of people in Portsmouth who 
would volunteer to run the Council and who would make a much better job of it that 
those who are currently drawing large salaries from a shrinking public purse for very 
little work. 

Page 148



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

73 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

69. It is very hard to give feedback, especially given the information provided on the 
budget.  It gives us some brief explanation of how the budget is split, and says there 
is a small amount that we can 'tweak', however in the examples given on what the 
council spends money on, it is not clear what is in that 'changeable' category.  
There are ring-fenced elements such as childcare for 2 year olds.  To give an 
informed response on what I'm prepared to give up, or pay more for, I need to be 
able to find out more about what are things that I am allowed to give up, and that 
aren't enforced by the Gov't etc. 

70. As I pointed out at the Guildhall consultation, the accounts identify a fall in the cost 
of providing services to the public this year and a sum of 5.3 million is available to 
'smooth the course of cuts'. I would strongly support this course of action as 
opposed to moving it into spend and save projects. Thank you for increasing the 
breadth of consultation this year. It will be interesting to see if this impact as the 
budget process in real terms. All Councillors should be given access to the 
information. Please put the personal details page at the front of the questionnaire as 
it is disheartening to find that, on spending time on providing my views may not be 
taken it not account if I am unwilling to provide my details. 

71. The cycle lane on seafront was a big expensive mistake. People no longer park 
there, resulting in loss of parking revenue. People with young children or elderly find 
it dangerous. Would have been better on other side of road or on prom. Fine cyclist 
not using it. The Pier area is the Jewell in Portsmouth's crown; money must be 
raised to rejuvenate area. Owing to the British weather it would be nice to see more 
indoor activities like the Pyramids which are a wonderful resource for the children of 
Portsmouth. Long term planning   for a concert/arena hall at the Hard for national 
venue. Look at Cardiff or Liverpool. 

72. NHS is reviewing all contracts; look for better value for money in all outsourcing. 
73. With elections due locally and nationally Councils, Government and would be 

Government should not make promises they cannot carry out just to gain power and 
control. The elector has very little trust in present day politics and those in power. 
Those given power to rule should be whiter than white but often they prove over 
and over the opposite is sadly more likely to be true. No greater trust can be given 
to any man than to allow him to govern, let those who do be more like Saints then 
bent Sinners or Charlatan. 

74. Thanks for asking for our views. Some controversial thoughts - not without the 
potential for political fall-out! But you did ask.  Like many others, I try very hard to 
recycle properly using the green box BUT I find it very frustrating that to recycle 
glass I have to have a car to drive to leave bottles and jars in an appropriate place 
(and I understand the reasons for this, but it damages the environment that the 
same scheme is trying to protect).  WHILST I UNDERSTAND MY RESPONSE 
MAY BE PASSED TO COUNCILLORS, I DO NOT WISH MY NAME TO BE USED 
IN ASSOCIATION WITH ANY PUBLIC DOCUMENT WITH RELATION TO THIS 
MATTER. Thank you. 

Page 149



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

74 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

75. The Mountbatten centre is great but puts everybody in Southsea at a disadvantage. 
Closing Victoria swimming pool was a mistake and some sort of replacement 
should be provided.    Children's centres should be reopening. There was a huge 
demand for them. 

76. Too many managers - very few of whom are efficient 
77. BE HONEST. 
78. The reason the bin collection needs to be protected is because it is truly awful at the 

moment and further cutback would result in chaos. 
79. Ask people what exhibitions they would like to see at the city museum 
80. I was horrified to read in The News that the cost of the Meals on Wheels service in 

Portsmouth was going to shoot up to over £5 a meal when PCC withdraws its 
subsidy to the service from December 1. I appreciate that the cuts need to be made 
somewhere but I question whether this is really the right place to make a cut. Older 
people are on a fixed income so will not be able to absorb this increase and it might 
mean that they have to choose between having a hot meal and putting the heating 
on. Is there no other way that this service could be paid for so that the older people 
could continue to pay the amount they currently pay? I know I wouldn't want my 
grandmother, or any vulnerable older person for that matter, having to choose 
between eating and keeping themselves warm. Please could you reconsider this 
proposed cut in subsidy? 

81. For any large project in the future, engage the appropriate people that can ensure 
costs do not run out of control and that delivery is on time and within budget. Some 
people still are smarting over the debacle of the Spinnaker tower, wonderful to have 
now but was one of the poorest examples of how to run a programme of work. 

82. 1. The closure of public toilet facilities is not welcomed whilst more signs and the 
Guildhall Square big screen remain.  2. Council tax should not be increased. 

83. Create better coordination with water gas electric and telephone companies etc. 
regarding the all too frequent road digging and upheaval caused and subsequent 
cost of both materials and labour costs for relaying.  Provide car parking for the 
Kings Theatre and Albert Road shopping facilities and link same with park and ride 
system. 

84. Getting really thin in museums No languages guides either Southampton really 
dynamic!  Southampton caring about tourists 

85. Cutting any services diminishes people's lives in many ways. An individual example, 
one of thousands I am sure. My mother, who is elderly and needs access to toilets 
at short notice, will become virtually housebound because her local public toilet has 
been shut. 

86. The above are all linked & must be maintained by the people (the Council) for the 
people (us). 

87. Portsmouth is finally becoming a city of arts/culture which promotes wellbeing, life 
learning and provides platforms for people of all ages. Be a shame for all the hard 
work and creative development to cease due to funding cuts. Can more in-kind 
support be provided where necessary to support the city's work? 

Page 150



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

75 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

88. Portsmouth was once a vibrant, attractive and interesting city which has been 
allowed to decline. Attracting investment into restoring it needs to be given a 
priority. 

89. Please contact me for any more comments. - CAN BE SUPPLIED IF REQUIRED 
90. Toilets and cleanliness in central library need to be improved. 
91. Outsourcing services is the key this will make for lower costs, lower energy bills, as 

schools are moving away from council controls they will buy services from the 
private sector for example IT services at much lower prices, the Council IT 
department is just a middle man adding costs and has not the expertise of the 
private sector who will run rings round them. 

92. No comment 
93. I think more money should be put aside for a vastly improved safe off road cycle 

network. This is the only viable course for the transport solution in the city. It would 
solve two problems: future and certain gridlock on the roads, and obesity and other 
health problems. And the future city would thank any visionary who implemented 
this solution. 

94. Just I need to have adequate consultations in the planning for to make sure I am 
aware of proposal by the governance's services. 

95. Make more schools in Portsmouth. My daughter's been on the waiting list for 11 
months for a school 5 minutes' walk home because we moved last October. This is 
ridiculous! 

96. Having access to your current budgets would help with this exercise. 
97. I'm not keen on the pedestrianisation of Palmerston Road. It's really gone downhill 

since cars weren't allowed. English boozers aren't like continental ones really. The 
whole thing has been handled badly; the council seems to be too autocratic on 
these things. Especially the way Lennox Road was randomly closed off and re-
opened. I frequently drop a friend's son off from school on Auckland Road and 
found myself driving round in rings to go a tiny distance.  I would support more 
cafes like the Coffee Cup along the seafront. It can be so bleak in winter there, we 
need some little bolt holes.  We need to be more up-market, everywhere else is 
going that way.  The pier is a big eyesore, but I'm not sure how to solve that. 

98. See before. Re think the Hot Walls development.     Castle Road is becoming a 
through road, more and more cars (particularly cabs) use it and it is causing real 
disturbance, particularly in the early hours, particularly on the weekend. 

99. Litter is a serious problem in this city and you appear to do nothing to address this 
problem. 

100. Get Hilsea Lido up and running not just the pool, have more attractions there. 
i.e. crazy golf, miniature railway 

101. Please stop closing off roads to the seafront 
102. Parcs is a very much needed specialized counselling service available to 

Portsmouth people, the counselling and helpline help us sort our lives out and give 
us the opportunity to learn how to trust, rebuild self-esteem and be in healthy 
relationships in our futures... please protect this service Portsmouth City Council. 

Page 151



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

76 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

103. It is vital to protect organisations that carry out an indispensable role in the 
community. Portsmouth Abuse and Rape Counselling Service should continue to be 
funded as they offer such an important service that improves residents' lives. It is a 
real asset to Portsmouth and is something we are greatly proud of. 

104. "Innovative cities welcome and anticipate the social and technological shifts 
that have reshaped how people interact in the 21st century" AIA   Culture is at the 
heart of public policy in world cities - 
http://www.worldcitiesculturereport.com/overview 

105. PCC does a good job but too much money is spent on raising the City's 
profile by concentrating on things that do nothing substantial for the City.  Education 
would be a good place to begin. 

106. If possible it should be increased 
107. Reopen toilets 
108. If you cut bus services supported by the council it will impact on commercial 

bus services with the loss of those as well it will mean even more loss of our ability 
to get around and participate in life. 

109. We need to encourage a sense of community, being able to access 
information and advocacy.  Also to be able to enjoy community events and local 
clubs and networks to encourage community involvement. 

110. I think the Council does on the whole a good job - there could be more 
community wardens to stop dog litter and fly tipping etc. 

111. I am surprised at the high percentage of households in Portsmouth receiving 
benefits (over 1/3).  I would like to understand what the £73m adult social care is 
made up of. Overall, I think the council does a great job. 

112. I've lived and worked in the city for years, and although I now live outside the 
city, I still commute daily to it for work. It's a great place, where much has changed 
for the better in recent years, but more needs to be done to regenerate it fully 

113. Encourage Local people and businesses back to Southsea.  Make the 
university provide enough halls of residence for the amount of students in the city.  
Stop giving buildings away to university.  Make university accountable for anti-social 
behaviour of their students without the onus being on local people to have to fight 
for peace and quiet. 

114. I am happy for councillors to contact me. 
115. I think you are in an extremely challenging situation, where someone will be 

angry whatever you do and I wish you well. 
116. Thank you for this opportunity to comment which comes through my link to 

the New Theatre Royal. I met a Portsmouth resident who regularly travels across to 
Gosport to attend language clubs and other activities in the Discovery Centre there 
as she said there was nothing like that in Portsmouth. I realise that is County 
Council, but as a large city with such a diverse background and present cultural 
mix, shame on you Portsmouth! At least, surely, you could set up a Polish chat club 
for people to learn conversational Polish! Why not approach the Catholic 
Cathedral? And use the various Theatres for such things, so helping them out. 

Page 152



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

77 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

117. When asked why I chose to stay in Portsmouth the last twenty odd years the 
answer is; the sea, the common with all its summer events, the variety of shops 
[Marmion, Albert Roads to Gunwharf, the Aspex gallery but most of all the music. 
How could I leave a city which has the Wedgewood Rooms in it? 

118. Transport and construction have had an impact on the education of the most 
vulnerable young people in Portsmouth.  The closure of toilets is misguided 

119. Lib Dems should pull out of the coalition with the Tories to prevent any 
further cuts. 

120.                   
 
 
                                              So much for service!  I would like the Council to take 
preventative action so that Havant Road does not become Portsmouth's 'Bexhill', 
and reject any more planning applications to build retirement complexes.  We 
already have the old Futchers site, and two McCarthy and Stone site within sight of 
each other, and the prospect of two more.  The City Council should be listening to 
what the residents say, not just listening to the sound of the developers' money!  
The Council made a lot of money by the redevelopment of the old Futcher's School 
site, but it pleads poverty when we ask for the promised Library and Community 
Centre to be delivered.  When money can be found to pour money into the 
Pyramids, why can't some be found to spend in Drayton? 

121. The council seems very well run 
122. Generally, I think Portsmouth Council is doing a good job. 
123. More Project facilitators could be encouraged to work in cooperation with 

Community centres etc. on the Health and Wellbeing Model as developed by the 
original model of Walking Friends Portsmouth.  This project was all about Project 
Management, Networking, Innovation, Listening and not about Specialist Fields 
Maybe it could be given to the "Rising Stars"  Main Stream Projects should all have 
Steering Committees which include Voluntary Sector representation.  More funding 
should be directed to voluntary Projects rather than being controlled by PCC  I have 
now moved to Denmead but still operate in the City as a Volunteer (Portsmouth 
born and bread) 

124. The council organises many good events and local markets in the city. 
125.     

 
 

126. no 
127. The council should impose a 1% charge on all developments in the city to go 

toward community/regeneration projects. Higher than national environmental 
standards on developments should be encouraged plus the use of solar or photo 
voltaic panels on all new and council owned.  properties 

128. it is unfortunate that at this time we are required to focus on reducing 
essential services in the city as I feel that saving a few % on a budget will end up 

Page 153



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

78 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

costing more in the long term in both environmental and the impact on our 
community as well as on the pressures placed on a reduced staff team, which will I 
feel ultimately lead to increased sickness and inefficiency in work quality. 

129. Portsmouth is overcrowded it has always been a "poor" city. It has a rising 
immigrant population many of whom are apparently well educated, where is the 
employment? More investment required in upgrading this city. And a halt on 
piecemeal development and fill in housing plots, enough is enough. 

130. The most important one, keeping the councillors expenses in control, this 
must be transparent, as for us to be onside with council, we have to see that it is not 
all onesided - team effort, will work. 

131. You've spent our money on another "seafront master plan", now budget to 
make it happen quickly (or guess what, we'll need another expensive plan!). 

132. Encourage businesses to let the public use their toilets. Reopen all public 
toilets and charge 20p entry. 

133. The council takes great pains to publicise its spend, albeit in as vague terms 
as possible, so that nobody can actually understand where it goes to. In the 
interests of constructive public feedback, and in order to gain citizen trust I would 
like to see much more transparency around the detail. I would also like to see how 
much income is generated by the council and where that money is being spent to 
benefit local people. We were promised a revenue stream from the electricity 
generated by the incinerator, but to date I have yet to see that itemised in the 
Council annual report and accounts. I would also like to see greater emphasis by 
the council on revenue generating projects. Including green energy generation via 
tidal driven turbines, or geothermal wells, solar arrays, wave generation, or wind 
farms on the local hills.  Rather than rely on the electorate to increase their 
contribution from their meagre over taxed income, the council ought to be looking at 
ways of delivering more for less!  Please also stop relying on polls and 
questionnaires to help you fulfil process and procedure and tick off your internal 
targets lists and start talking to the electorate, and above all listen to what they are 
telling you! 

134. The council services needs to work better at working together to provide 
better services and better value for money. 

135. The public demands on services will grow in the future and you will need to 
meet this higher demand with potentially less money. You need to be looking at 
what the city will need say in 20 years and anticipate. everything you work on 
should be sustainable now and in say 20 years' time 

136. Perhaps I have missed them, but I am not aware of the Mountbatten 50m 
swim pool having been used much for national / regional swimming / water polo/ 
synchronised swimming competitions to attract visitors & revenue to the city. Also 
as a user of the pool I notice some lanes are closed due to insufficient poolside 
staff- why not ask local clubs if they can provide qualified national pool lifeguards as 
volunteers in return for free swims for those volunteers. More lanes might attract 
more swimmers. 

Page 154



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

79 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

137. the council continues to be overstaffed with unnecessary managerial and 
administrative posts 

138. Please reduce traffic lights...many are not needed. 
139. This consultation has poorly worded questions that fail to allow proper 

consultation to be allowed by the manner of the questions 
140. I repeat - push back to central government. They said there was no money 

left in the coffers yet they were just prepared to spend millions on illegal and 
unnecessary military action in Syria! Their policies are down to right wing ideology 

141. Portsmouth has seen the rise of so many rented properties, it is not hard to 
spot them as you walk around the city...if you want to attract professional people to 
the city and raise its profile do more to bring landlord to do their duty and keep their 
buildings in good repair so the city at least looks as if it's doing well as a opposed  a 
city down at heel .It would benefit all, renters ,investors and a good place to want to 
come and live .At this moment it looks what it is full of renters and unscrupulous 
landlords making money out of people who have no other choice. 

142. The council should concentrate on its core services - health, social care, 
community safety and children. 

143. management posts could be reduced along with their salaries and pensions 
144. …I'm sure there will seem to be far more pressing things on your plate at the 

moment but I feel the need to write to you for the first time.Under the swingeing 
austerity cuts of this government, our local council in Portsmouth, like others across 
the country, is under severe pressures to cut costs and, where possible, protect 
front-line services. It therefore dismayed me to find a sign had recently been 
erected in my street, Clarence Road, indicating an alleyway between houses, 
leading to Beach Road, as a ""public footpath"".It is wrong for several reasons:1. It 
is unnecessary - it is so obviously a path for the public to use. It has existed since 
before I moved to the street in 1984 and I have never seen any body debating the 
rights and wrongs of using it as a throughway. 2. It costs money - money we could 
use on our struggling NHS, or Sure Start centres. 3. It is ugly....we all know that 
there has been a move in recent years to remove unnecessary signage from across 
the country. As a rule, the more signs you have. the more confusion.   

145. Please accept my email as support for continued funding for PARCS, which 
provides a valuable counselling service for a vulnerable and hidden part of 
our society.  Violence against women continues and is, on the whole, ignored by 
mainstream organisations.  It is the women, who continue to be the caregivers to 
the next generation, who bear the brunt of the psychological, emotional and 
physical trauma meted out to them.  It is difficult, mostly impossible, 
to verbalise and process the damage done on an individual basis without a 
dedicated support structure. Mainstream counselling is NOT equipped to deal with 
this vulnerable population  and without the continued funding of PARCS' selective 
and sensitive counselling, the acceptance of violence towards women 
will continue because women will not be able to find a refuge and understanding of 

Page 155



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

80 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

their situation.  It will continue to be a generational problem unless there is 
intervention and women are given the confidence to be able to stem this abuse 

146.        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
147. My wife and I have a large family with many young children, many of who 

visit us regularly, most of them travelling long distances. They, along with many 
friends in Portsmouth and Southsea, are concerned at the proposed closure of 
public conveniences. We are asking if this initiative can be reviewed on the basis 
that the use of public toilets is a fundamental right and to take them away will 
encourage more people to urinate in public places, particularly where there is no 
access to shops or pubs. More and more council tax payers are finding it hard to 
understand where their council tax is spent and to remove something as basic as a 
public toilet can only lead to more disillusionment. 

148. Concerning print leaflets/booklets from each department within PCC-there 
are so many and while I agree they are very informative I do think some of them 
could be amalgamated this could be a saving on paper/printing costs across all 
departments, etc which must be huge. I attend many functions which  PCC depts 
representatives are present and I find I am armed with a load of leaflets when 1 or 2 
could have included all necessary information.   This may only be a small saving 
cost but it is the little costs that add up. Stop altering roads in the city especially in 
Southsea it is costing £1000's and is unnecessary ,if it is an accident black — yes 
but otherwise — no.  It is also taking the character out of the area.  Living in a lot of 
areas in the city we have to put up with some inconvenience( as a resident living in 

Page 156



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

81 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

a cul-de-sac road in Southsea I speak from experience.  I would rather money was 
spent on necessary things such as Social services  — looking after the Elderly in 
the City - the council encourages the elderly to stay in their homes as it works out 
cheaper for PCC ,so make it financially and as easy as possible for them and their 
carers by not cutting essentials such as;  - Meals on wheels and other services they 
have to use; after all most of them have worked hard for the city and this country. 
May I also suggest that money is spent on providing for the youth of the city —  
maybe an ice-rink (this would be a venue which could be use by all age groups but 
of course a lot of research would be needed before the money was spent?   The 
youth need activities that keep them off the streets.  

149. 1 Take a long hard look at the contracts with private firms who do work for 
PCC.                                                                    . My impression is that they 
could/should be altered in the interests of efficiency and savings. 2. Parking service 
could be paired down. There appears to be room for economies in street 
sweeping..see above 4. Adult social care, although I would still look closely at how 
the £73 million (?) is spent. Would not like to see preventitative measures for 
vulnerable older people removed/reduced, even though those with greater needs 
should have priority 60+ festival is well appreciated even at budget funding rate! 
Also the help in modestgrant and in kind which PA receives 5. Last year's capital 
budget seemed to me to be barely touched by the 'need' for austerity. I believe 
savings could be made on it and thus pressure relieved on revenue spending 

150. PPA will be pleased to comment when we see budget papers in the new 
year.... 

151. I would like to record the importance of maintaining the present Museum, 
Libraries and Records Service. The Council should recognise the importance of the 
city’s heritage as a unique selling point; it should be seen as part of an engine room 
for the city’s growth and not just a cost to be cut. The evidence for this can be seen 

with the opening of the Mary Rose Museum and the resultant increase in visitor 
numbers and footfall across the city. More can be done to link other heritage sites to 
these increasing visitor numbers, such as Southsea Castle and the impressive 
waterfront, which is full of historical interest. The Southsea Library is another 
example of success that can be achieved with imagination and initial investment; I 
would strongly urge that potential links between the central library and the 
University library service should be investigated. There is also a great opportunity to 
build on the Sherlock Holmes story and the Richard Lancelyn Green legacy. 
 

  

Page 157



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

82 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

APPENDIX 3 
Staff Consultation Responses 
Although staff were given the same options and asked to respond in the same way, their 
knowledge of how the council work has given them a slightly more realistic view in what 
could be achieved within their various departments, they have unique insight into how 
things work and don't work which members of the general population simply could not 
have. Therefore their responses have been separated out. 
Q1. How do you think the council could become more efficient? 

1. Cut back on duplication of paper and computer records 
2. Stop throwing things away that can be used by others. The binroom is often full of 

things that other sections are purchasing. Slim down management. Lower top 
wages and up the lower wage brackets. 

3. more communication, not wasting money, if places close then offer to those who 
want to pay for items, not just throw away, 

4. Stop internal trading - this simply moves money around the organisation and 
causes tension between teams. Teams should work more corporately and support 
each other, i.e. planning, legal and procurement should work to find solutions which 
benefit PCC and help departments achieve their objectives. 

5. Not so many managers in a small department like parking. 
6. Join up departments in their planning so decision making and costs are minimised - 

and the process from a-z is considered not just their part then its someone else's 
job. Stop selling off stations in the community, services should be community based 
to be accessible. stop moving pods, desks, computers at large costs when depts 
move around the civic, assets can be costed, and any difference refunded between 
depts, a pod contents could go in a carrier bag and moved by the owner to their 
new place, so minimising costs. And reduce the number of meetings, reduce 
number of managers + increase number of people working directly with the 
community. Consult with the community, take their thoughts on board and actually 
implement them - acknowledging that some adaptions may need to be made. 

7. I think the council should have either a Chief Executive or strategic directors - I do 
not understand the need for both with Section Head managers who manage their 
departments and understand the dynamics of them in Policy, Business plan and 
strategic diversity. 

8. More staff involved in face to face work with the public less or more efficient 
meetings 

9. L&D -   Stop spending money on the external trainer for management training when 
there are talented trainers who could deliver the training and also a Leadership and 
Management Co-ordinator who could deliver this. 

10. By changing the amount of councillors for each ward to two instead of three. 
Possibly down to one councillor and asking for lay representatives to support with 
council business. 

11. Listen more to staff suggestions, whatever level they are. 

Page 158



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

83 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

12. Not spend money on things that don't need changing (prime example is the 
proposals to change the band stand area along the sea front).  Really put more 
effort into more flexible working e.g. staff working from home/desk sharing 

13. Make good use of staff that already exist, give them more responsibility.  The 
Helpdesk and frontline operatives 

14. By joining up some services, for example social care and housing.  Reason for this 
is that social care are seriously cash strapped whereas Housing services have ring 
fenced protected money.  By combining services, this may release some of the ring 
fenced money to be used for social care who are seriously affected by the cuts (I do 
not work for social care!!) 

15. There are too many small Departments which have their own hierarchy pyramid.  
Therefore 3 Managers have 2 Managers managing them, and one more manager 
manages everyone.  The only productivity to be visible is the lower grades who 
actually do the work.  Cut out the pyramid it is only there for promotion anyway, and 
is only for the chosen few. 

16. Move more workers into civic to reduce running costs of other building and generate 
rental income from other buildings.  Time and motion study of employees. 

17. Make pay more performance based.  Manage people who have 'I'm being paid 
anyway' attitudes. 

18. By reducing the services like the wardens and ESOs as they both do the same job 
should we not merge them both. 

19. Collect more bulky waste at a cost. For instance rubble. I recently paid Â£50 to 
have 1 tonne rubble removed. 

20. Stop "improving" schools. Why not have just essential maintenance for the next few 
years instead of building new sports halls etc. When I was at school I didn't see 
constant improvement and I was happy with my schools the way they were. 

21. Simplified process for raising invoices and simplifying/updating travel expenses 
invoices. 

22. Stop spending money on consultants that tell us what we already know. Cut 
salaries of overpaid managers. 

23. Reduce the level of sickness payments 
24. Strip out more middle management 
25. Changing the election process to be once every four years 
26. Lose another Strategic Director and more Heads of Service, Share Chief Executive 

with Southampton City Council 
27. By using latest possible technology, being paperless and streamlining processes 
28. Needs to be leaner, work together more, plan a head and be prepared for any 

difficulties. 
29. use resources correctly, outsource if cheaper. IE Printing leaflets Etc. 
30. Recognise that fewer staff ultimately cannot produce the same amount of work that 

the previous workforce did.  Some staff are so over worked and pressured, they 
cannot possibly maintain the level or indeed the standard to which they are 
accustomed and expected. 

Page 159



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

84 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

31. By working across departments more closely, rather than maintaining silo working. 
32. By having staff who are committed to their jobs and productive in post.  There are 

some staff who have a very poor work ethic; they ought to be managed out of PCC 
33. A lot of money is wasted on one use envelopes for correspondence being sent 

between different departments internally.  The introduction of envelopes that can be 
reused (ladder envelopes) would make a saving. 

34. less senior managers, outsource specialist work to local specialist i.e. arts and 
culture 

35. Consolidate services within the Civic, introduce a consistent policy on hot-desking 
and do away with staff having to have a desk making an appropriate reduction in 
desks, IT, etc., develop the traded services offer to schools and extend this to other 
organisations with an emphasis on covering costs as a minimum but making a 
surplus wherever possible which can be re-invested in essential and statutory 
services to children and young people 

36. Listen more to what the customers want and if they don't value a non-statutory 
service, get rid of it.   Carry out a zero based budget exercise.  Use VFM analysis 
as a can opener for further investigation into areas of high expenditure/poor 
performance. 

37. Increased hot-desking and working from home 
38. Bring all temporary accommodation provisions in house Single point contact for all 

residents i.e. - when paying council tax will be flagged if money is owed elsewhere 
why build a hub when the civic is not at full capacity?  Teenage pregnancy 
strategies 

39. Employees hot desking, working from home with equipment provided, looking at 
senior management levels, in relation to staff line managing. 

40. Acting like a business and look at generating income instead of cutting services 
41. Greater focus on cross directorate savings and long term strategic planning. Rather 

than silo focused working and focus on single service cuts 
42. Do 5 year planning with the relevant budgets to match. It is time instead of 

continually cutting a review is held and only provide services that are statutory and 
not politically correct. 

43. Cut through processes and procedures, such as how long it takes to place a child 
into care. 

44. Promote working from home more. 
45. The council should adopt a clear budget reporting policy. Open to all and 

transparent to the public, with the true aim of each manager and service becoming 
"Accountable" for respective spends.  The idea being to become more business 
orientated and move away from a blameless culture, which would not be tolerated 
in the private sector. With the current challenges, the budgets need to be isolated 
from political intervention until each year end. Enabling managers and services the 
full opportunity to carry out and achieve the goals and targets set forward at the 
beginning of the year.   The budget spend should be backed up by a firm business 
case, and each manager should be able to demonstrate at year end "exactly" where 

Page 160



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

85 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

the money has been spent by an "independent" internal audit panel. Mangers like 
the NHS, should be accountable and therefore moved on if they cannot perform, 
ensuring strong and accountable leadership in turbulent times.  The council needs 
to consider stepping over the line and become a profit based organisation to survive 
the longer term maintaining the city services and wellbeing, or face the slow decline 
of its services through financial constraint and hardship.  Revenue generation could 
be increased via a "pro Active" marketing team looking for businesses large and 
small to promote their services on larger building spaces, like they do in London. 
Currently roundabouts do have spaces available to let, which begs the question are 
we waiting for people to call us? 

46. All to adhere to council policy and procedures instead of hiding behind 'Manager's 
discretion' 

47. fewer managers and more ground/front line staff 
48. Rather than changing plants at the sea front when it is scheduled, maybe do it when 

the plants need changing. This year a lot of plants at the seafront were disposed of 
and replaced even though they were in full bloom 

49. Reduce wasteful spend (even if within budget) 
50. I would suggest that there could be a lot more focus on trying to make money for 

the organisation in order to safeguard services. (As an example, we could make 
more of the assets we have in the long run -  the council tends to have a short term 
view (e.g. making money through land disposals), while in the long run, keeping 
hold of land can be more sustainable as it remains as an income stream.)  I think 
there is a recognition that we need to become more business-like, but the skills are 
still lacking.    There are very few officers in the council who have any kind of 
business sense, because in the past this has not been necessary.  Recruiting staff 
at a high level and across all services that have private sector experience and can 
create a more business-like approach to council working practices would be a great 
help. 

51. Nationally - Looked after children and all things to protect them should be funded 
and transferred to a new national service.  It shouldn't be local authority. This and 
ASC cost the most - can never offer savings it's always pressures and I don't think 
this should be a LA service.  A decent robust reporting system - EBS is awful since 
the upgrade. 

52. We're top heavy in too many areas, this should be where the cuts come from.Too 
much money and time is spent on foolhardy projects we can never cater for i.e. 
back the Bid, city of culture etc. 

53. Pre-birth to 5 services (LA Children's Services).  School transport.  Support for 
workforce development is spread across the council.  More imaginative use of the 
HRA. 

54. Working geographically - e.g. completing visits in one area on one day so basing 
oneself in that area reducing travel time.   Reducing duplication of documentation.   
Reduce meetings - are they really necessary. 

Page 161



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

86 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

55. Employ more apprentices which also will help with the high levels of youth 
unemployment.  Look at using work placements to get boring, mundane but 
important work completed like scanning/ filing completed 

56. Cutting down on the distribution of Flagship. Can it be emailed to people as a PDF? 
Also, cut it down so it doesn't come out so frequently. 

57. Sharing staff resources throughout the peaks / troughs of a normal workload. 
58. by employing the right people for the right jobs, too many people don't know what 

they are doing and create work 
59. - I think this question should be about becoming more 'effective' rather than 

'efficient' (doing the right things, rather than doing the same old things 'right').    - 
Massive focus on performance development.  Too few staff have PDRs, and fewer 
still have. 

60. I think there needs to be more opportunity for people to volunteer. For example, 
there is a job being advertised for a gardener at the moment. There are plenty of 
people who enjoy gardening as a hobby, particularly those who are retired. Perhaps 
this role could be offered to somebody like this just to keep them busy and play an 
active role in the community. It is not entirely necessary to pay somebody a salary 
for a task like this. There are tennis courts in Drayton Park (and probably 
elsewhere!) which have become overgrown and unused because nobody is making 
the effort to tidy it. This again could be a community project. People want facilities 
like these; maybe they would be willing to pull up a few weeds if it means having 
something to do in the evenings and weekends.    If people commit housing benefit 
fraud, do not keep paying their housing benefit until the debt is cleared.     Train the 
staff to work as one team, one council. For example, people in asset management 
could provide information regarding who owns the lease to a property in order to 
collect non domestic rates and council tax, which ultimately brings money in to the 
council. There needs to be wider information sharing.    Local Taxation and Central 
Debt Recovery are two departments which are worlds apart but unnecessarily. The 
way work is dealt with on either side contradicts each other, and it seems like the 
overall goal is being missed. Why does a council tax bill need to be correct? So 
people pay their council tax. Why do we need people to pay their council tax? So 
staff can get paid and services can be provided.     Some people in the council only 
look at what is directly in front of them without thinking about, or caring about, the 
bigger picture and the effect that doing minimal work does. There is a lot of re 
visiting things which could have been prevented! 

61. Be able to have autonomy to make decisions about the local area, without central 
government control 

62. 1) Invest in a CRM and streamline customer contact so anyone engaging with a 
customer can see the contact history and help with anything outstanding - this 
would also improve customer service and is a basic in business world.   2.) Increase 
staff flexibility, for example so frontline staff (in front offices, area offices, libraries, 
community centres and on the street, including parking, community wardens) can 
help customers with more than one thing - links to having a proper CRM  3. Invest 

Page 162



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

87 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

in proper info sharing/knowledge management, including access to market 
research, so service design is based on data rather than whim (in some areas)  4. 
Insist upon proper performance management data linked to tangible and meaningful 
objectives, to make sure services make an impact - although it's painful and runs 
contrary to the services I personally value as a resident (like parks and events, and 
libraries), realistically we need to reduce those services that have little or no impact 
(while maintaining a city that is an attractive place to live) 

63. Councillors to listen to professional staff and their recommendations to avoid 
spending money on things we don't have money for, to the detriment of others 
worse off.  Reduce number of Ward Councillors from 3 to 2 per ward? 

64. More streamlining of processes - sharing information between AIS and RIO more 
easily. 

65. Doing more research into new developments i.e. Palmerstone Road Pedestrian 
Precinct. An eyesore for residents and visitors, visitors are hardly going to stay and 
spend in said area. 

66. Simplify processes and make those processes clearer for staff to follow - 
sometimes it's hard to find the correct process or area of responsibility in Intralink so 
it some work takes longer to do. 

67. Attract better Councillors who understand the importance of running a large 
business and have some experience of it. 

68. I think we are going to have new mfd's hopefully, with a scanner.  Scanning & 
emailing between asc and heath for example would save on faxes, paper, time, etc. 
For archiving it would save on storage etc.  Council could email invoices to people 
with pc's, instead of posting if this doesn't already happen. 

69. well trained staff ,energy efficiency 
70. Increase the number for front line staff 
71. Properly defining peopled roles and making sure that there is cooperation between 

departments rather than repetition of work 
72. Preventing duplicate work/campaigns/jobs. Services having to prove each 

significant spend is worthwhile, using proof from past examples. A lot of services 
spend their budget toward the end of the financial year in the fear that it will get cut 
further if they don't, so they waste money on unnecessary things. I think this is 
ridiculous! There must be a better way of going about it. 

73. Centralising purchasing for arms-length organisations. Being less bureaucratic and 
rigid with processes, allow some professionals a small amount of leeway. 

74. Continue to filter down the homeworking/flexible working to all staff, this seems to 
be for managers only in my service, and I think a number of benefits could be seen 
for other staff to work from home as/when required. 

75. It appears to be top heavy, too many chiefs. 
76. In services where there are pressures due to reduction in staff and the remaining 

staffs work load increases a review on how to streamline processes to help. 
Training as they may take on new tasks which they may not have done before. 
Support not only for those made redundant but those who remain.  Wellbeing 

Page 163



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

88 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

benefits not all of them cost the authority money but staff may be able to get 
discount e.g. corporate discount. Provide services for outside organisations either 
other local authorities or private organisations. Promote career development 
although we are cutting services if someone feels like they are being invested in 
they will feel valued and positive therefore reducing stress and anxiety. It also 
means that when people are made redundant or leave that knowledge that they 
hold doesn't disappear with them but is retained by the authority. Use bumping for 
in cases of redundancy, enables those who want to leave and those that want to 
remain. 

77. More staff on the frontline so that customers can get through to the departments 
they need to speak with, I have had complaints of people waiting an hour on the 
phone when wanting to pay council tax arrears - many would not wait meaning we 
have to spend more money chasing them    More opportunities for people to 
volunteer i.e. gardeners, further education, etc.    Secure debts correctly when 
money is lent such as Home Improvement Grants    Merge council tax debt 
recovery with the council tax department to increase efficiency and improve working 
practices, thereby improving the council tax collection rate. 

78. Better collaboration and or communication between sections with overlapping areas 
of interest 

79. Look at middle managers - how efficient/effective are they 
80. By looking at scrapping the process of internal charging - some departments do, 

some departments don't. I've worked in other authorities where no such regime 
exists; everyone is working towards the good of the authority. So all the people 
currently spending hours and hours putting together fees, managing internal 
transfers etc. would be freed up to assist the ever decreasing workforce to get the 
day job done. For example, if our internal architects were not forced to fund 
themselves through fees, they could be engaged on all city council development 
schemes, meaning no money is lost to outside firms where they sometimes offer a 
cheaper service. Work could be prioritised by managers on a corporate need basis 
rather than delivered on a who can afford to pay the internal fee basis. 

81. Make more use of mobile working 
82. Look at middle managers - how efficient/effective are they 
83. A standardised central data base containing regularly used documents letters etc. 

would also help with corporate identity.  A one stop point for residents to inform 
PCC of change of address so that departments have up to date details to contact 
residents. 

84. streamlining departments 
85. Sometimes there have been jobs advertised on the intrlink regarding youth adviser/ 

family support. Also banardos secured some finance from the council to deliver a 
NEET project? In addition to this there are NEET workers in housing? there is an 
ITYSS team that can often do all this work that I have seen and surely extending 
this team to take on more instead of spending more money outsourcing would be 
money well saved. 

Page 164



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

89 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

86. Streamline accommodation by reducing outstations. Those that have to stay in the 
community should be merged into 1 office. i.e. Housing office / children's centre 

87. ensure it is charging reasonable, fair but commercially sound rates for its premises 
and managing its commercial premises properly 

88. Spend less on consultants and more on in-house services 
89. Charge Â£50 for all parking permits, first second etc., so our costs are directly 

covered and it is fair on shared tenancies.  Make tenants pay rent and council tax 
by direct debit and charge extra for taking payments over the counter. 

90. Reduce duplication of effort by centralising and standardising processes where ever 
possible. 

91. Printing off hard copies only when necessary. Also using electronic documents 
more 

92. Fewer layers of management. 
93. I don't know if this is something we already offer - but we should have contractors 

who do gardening for residents that the resident pays for - not as in council property 
but using a PCC Garden Maintenance project - if residents want their garden done 
but don't want to do it themselves they can phone up and arrange an appointment.  
That would bring in some more revenue depending on how many contractors you 
have. 

94. Cut back on second and third tier managers 
95. Streamlining processes and better defined job roles - too many people getting 

involved in areas that don't concern them and not enough working with those that 
should concern them. Also, income generation and traded services. 

96. Address long-term fragmentation of service delivery into small specialist teams with 
programme of long-term consolidation and multi-skilling. 

97. Reduce number of highly paid managers. Monitor spending more closely. We see 
waste and knee jerk projects which should never happen.  Get rid of staff incentives 
such as healthy living paid for walking for health which cost each dept Â£100s but 
some depts not allowed to join in. Better to make it equal and not pay for some 
staff's healthy incentives which surely they should make a personal responsibility. 
We should make it our personal goal to share skills with each other to benefit our 
well-being. Make more staff part-time? 

98. Co-locating services so delivered from fewer buildings (e.g. children's - community - 
library centres + incorporating museums too where appropriate).  Reducing Help 
Desk Enquiries through improved communication by other means (website etc.). 

99. by working as a team 
100. Make it a policy for all managers to include the perspectives of front line staff 

in decision making.  This would lead to better quality decision making and cost 
savings. 

101. By continuing to act more like a business, thinking about the income benefits 
of everything they do. 

102. We need to improve the way we work with other related organisations. 

Page 165



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

90 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

103. In my opinion I feel that certain services are top heavy in management 
paying huge salaries that could be used on the frontline staff.  I note that there are 
too many pen pushes rather than front line workers. In the housing department 
services have been re-designed so that the public receive better services. IE 
Systems thinking style of delivery. Although a rigid model of this way of working 
would not work for every service a similar model could be followed. 

104. Giving services more autonomy would reduce the amount of time spent 
adhering to policies and procedures that often slow us down.    Reducing the 
number of managers and skilling up staff on lower grades to work more 
independently-most council officers are experts in their field and/or very 
experienced. Constant referral upwards for often even the smallest decisions is not 
cost efficient in terms of time or activity, certainly not in salaries.     More staff say 
about how budgets are spent: often see examples of money being spent when staff 
on the ground can see a way of getting the same result for less cost.    Stop 
employing external consultants to advise when the council is already employing 
knowledgeable individuals.    Let services keep the income they generate to 
incentivise them to make more. This is not currently the case-why struggle to make 
money when someone takes it away from you? 

105. Some services have been protected during the budget cuts but even though 
they provide essential services to residents that doesn't mean they work in the most 
efficient way. There are a lot of cases across the council where processes are 
carried out in the way they always have been regardless if it's inefficient and could 
be done quicker, easier and cheaper. By leaving these services alone they do not 
have to address areas which are not working in the best way. 

106. More joined up working, particularly around payments across budgets. A lot 
of time is spent trying to pass costs between services/departments as managers 
are measured by this but it's frequently coming from the same pot in the end 

107. Cutting front line workers will not help the council become more efficient in 
the long term. 

108. Create incentives for staff. 
109. Some departments can be more self-sufficient, they have personnel already 

qualified to do some tasks, which are presently undertaken by another department 
(i.e. below) 

110. Some departments have already gone through all items i.e. post, stationary. 
All departments need to look at all of their sections costs no matter how small. 

111. Sending emails rather than letters to remind people they have library books 
overdue, particularly on children's items where there is no overdue fee to collect 
that can contribute to the cost. 

112. Use the front line staff that are already ground operational to fill gaps in other 
departments to enhance those service. Thus reducing the creation of jobs and 
saving other departments jobs.  An inverse pyramid of management is in effect at 
the Council and will topple as front line staff are being stripped to the bones. Start 
looking at department management as you don't need 2 managers to manage a 

Page 166



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

91 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

department. Look at merging smaller departments to reduce overheads.  
Departments that have the capability to create revenue regardless how small, 
should be given the flexibility to be able to.  If we have to pay people off then do so. 
If we have long term work related sick then get rid of them as the job is not for them 
and we would be helping them to get better by removing them for their benefit and 
ours. 

113. Merge departments, such as Community Warden Service, Enforcement, 
EPP, Community Engagement officers, Parking, Estate  Service Officers More in 
house marketing to be done. Community Wardens to deal with security contracts 

114. Concentrate on the money generating side of things (by allowing staff who 
work in these areas to focus on these areas rather than the non-income generating 
cases) i.e. prioritise cases 

115.     
 
 
 
 

116. 1)Be more pro-active with driving people to the web for channel shift and 
reduce cashiers availability e.g. open 11- 2 - this has been adopted by London 
councils and has a very possible impact on channel shift. Get councillors to 
understand that current channels although ideal cannot be sustained if budgets cuts 
are to be achieved...  2)Introduce the facility to enable customers to pay their 
council bills in local convenience stores e.g. co-op , Tesco's  3)Act upon services 
recommendations ; ensuring services actually implement changes rather than 
select the bits they like and dismiss the rest.  4) Be consistent with sick / friends and 
family across the authority.   5) Review jobs - there are still a number of fantasies/ 
made up roles / titles.  6) Compulsory closure of civic building over Christmas 
period.  7) Manage poor performance and reduce the red tape to dismiss staff.  
8)Reduce the number of councillors and frequency of elections  9)Stop wasting 
money on projects that do not go anywhere , for example Northern quarter or 
projects that simply are not needed - car parking along the seafront - why change it 
if it is not broken ?  10)Sell off assets  for example Pyramids  11)Make all housing 
area offices full customer service offices , not exclusive to housing - invest and add 
pc's in the reception areas encouraging people to self-serve.  12) Educate 
councillors in that if they pass a policy that then they need to uphold it when 
engaging with their community and not waste time appealing a decision when they 
have been responsible for agreeing and implementing it.  13) Introduce residential 
parking across the entire city. 

117. When services are allocated annual budget it would seem that some 
services feel the need to spend the capacity to ensure they do not loose funding the 
next year.  This may lead to some services spending money inappropriately. 

118. More home/satellite working. Better training at the front end to reduce error 
later in the system. 

Page 167



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

92 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

119. By concentrating on its core duties that we are experts at e.g. why do we try 
to run catering operations.  When we agree to cut services let's stick to decisions - 
pyramids/toilets. Also when we make staffing cuts let's not try to still do the same 
work 

120. Cutting down on the amount of travel that staff are involved in / general 
expenses / lunches / dinners 

121. Cutting down on the amount of travel that staff are involved in / general 
expenses / lunches / dinners 

122. Three libraries, Central, Southsea and one in the north of the city  
Assessment of all business areas to clearly identify statutory obligations and why 
we collate/record certain information 

123. Take on full time staff not temporary staff. 
124. Carry out a zero budget exercise to start again with service budgets and 

analyse all expenditure to re-shape services.     Stop the end of year spend rush 
where managers buy IT equipment and other items to use up their budget.    Joined 
up services that act as one council rather than separate services. 

125. Linking up more with other services, and working collaboratively e.g. 
NHS/private sector/community & voluntary sector. Other org's are struggling to 
survive/justify the need and run parallel to the potential development of other 
services. Savings seem to have been more around front line staff rather than senior 
management and now structure seems too top heavy. 

126. Look at the A to Z of services offered by the council and it becomes obvious.  
7 pages of hundreds of services.  We are trying to do too much and control the 
whole city.  Why, in the current climate, is there a section for twinning?  With its own 
phone number?!!!  Efficiency would be created by one help desk number, less 
separate services (why is Pathway maintenance and pavements in 
separately???Same for pest control and insect control) and stop promoting and/or 
offering some of the services which are of less impact (archaeology etc.).  Efficiency 
will come when people start looking at the whole, rather than the sum of far too 
many parts 

127. buy in bulk more 
128. Stop changing strategies.  Stop bringing in highly paid consultants to report 

what the staff have been telling you anyway. 
129. There is a widely accepted notion within society that more efficiency within 

public services can always be achieved which may not in itself be that different a 
notion from that of the outside 'commercial' world as such particularly in today's 
more business-minded economic necessity.  My point is that how far can a 
business, if we are having to see it as such, go to drive ever-downwards to achieve 
without sacrificing quality? 

130. By making sure that information passed from one service to another has all 
relevant details. By having emails from a CSA on the help desk signed with that 
person's name, not a number which, apart from being terribly impersonal, means 
help desk staff having to check the ID then see if the person is available, all of 

Page 168



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

93 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

which can take up the time of PCC staff in other departments. By having Northgate 
adapted so that information added in one place can be seen in all other places, also 
by making sure that information for direct debits, addresses etc. doesn't have to be 
input twice or more. By simplifying the processes for adding or subtracting details in 
Northgate, I have never known such long winded processes!! 

131. Too many managers: In my department (Learning & Development) we have 
too many manages i.e. 3 managers managing around 14 staff. One person on a 
management grade doesn't even manage staff. Plenty of scope there to be more 
efficient by cutting down on manager posts. This sort of thing is a council wide 
problem.    We spent god knows how much on an external trainer for the LAMP 
suite of courses, which could have been delivered in house at a fraction of the cost 
whilst also working on other priorities. I.e. employee a temp trainer on between 
Â£26k to Â£29k per year.    Some courses the external trainer delivered only had 
three delegates plus a member of L&D staff observing/shadowing..... Where is the 
financial sense in that?      I would like to see more courses on e-learning and virtual 
learning and a better learning platform for these courses to be hosted and 
employees learning records to be kept. MLE is not user friendly and there are still 
too many members of staff not using it. Let's get the right system this time and 
actually include the end users in any production testing and evaluation. (I.e. don't let 
managers who do not use the system as much make the decision without 
consultation). 

132. Ensure council buildings have proper insulation, reducing fuel bills.  Reduce 
office over-crowding, it's causing distraction and impeding employees' ability to 
concentrate. 

133. Stop throwing out good furniture, consolidate people into the Civic Offices 
and sell other offices like Chaucer House and other buildings in the vicinity.  Don't 
allow more admin offices to open which involves relocating people out of the City 
Centre - such as in The Hub.    Bring departments together to provide services - like 
Financial Services which is currently split up with teams servicing different 
managers.    Move the Central Library into the Civic Offices where it is going to be 
let. Move the City Museum into the Central Library and sell the City Museum Site. 

134. Spending less time on projects that don't move forwards. Sometimes a 
significant amount of staff time is put into a proposal made by a party/Councillor 
only for it then to be dropped when the political will changes. Think carefully before 
committing valuable staff time to ideas and projects and get the message across to 
our Councillors. Too many services are still trying to do everything they once did 
with less staff - look at services offered and see where they can be delivered jointly 
or consider dropping some elements of a service that only benefit a few.   Get more 
services and payments online and make our website easier to use to aid this.   
Invest as much as we can on getting businesses into the city- this will help the city 
as a whole.  Be braver that when you make a decision go ahead with it and accept 
there will be some criticism- example being the Children's Centres- the proposal 
suggested of a reduced but by no means was drastic cut to the number of centres 

Page 169



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

94 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

reversed because of some negative publicity - this then means other areas have to 
suffer. Any decision you make is going to be unpopular with somebody.  Do we 
really need so much put into corporate communications and staff who liaise with the 
press? Often the service concerned has to become involved anyway so the work is 
duplicated. 

135. 1) Reduce the number of editions of Flagship delivered to homes in 
Portsmouth. Why not just have one or two editions a year which lists all the contact 
numbers for services.  2) Do away with hard copies of papers for all meetings and 
instead have information up on a screen and people can take their own notes. 
There is still far too much paper being used in the council. 

136. By taking a more holistic view of dealing with reductions in funding - all staff 
above 22K take a percentage pay cut - then we would all be in it together.  The 
Council could be more efficient by retaining experienced staff.  The council could 
become more efficient by senior managers not considering themselves more 
important or deserving of a job than ANY other member of staff.  The council could 
become more efficient by serving the people of Portsmouth rather than themselves, 
I would rather see the old, young and vulnerable maintained while the Councils 
''higher'' staff sit comfortably.  If we are all in this recession together then let's see it 
- or will the council still maintain the politicians and bankers approach of passing the 
trouble on to lower paid people while we still pay their high wages.   

 
Queens Road resurfacing?  When Company's are 

hired to do a job, make them do it - Tower lift? 
137. Explore more shared services with other Local Authorities. 
138. Cut the amount of managers 
139. Putting more services in house. 
140. More means testing 
141. The council needs to be strategic and proactive rather than reactive. A 

resident will contact a councillor and complain about an issue and more often than 
not management and councillors will insist this issue is resolve even if there is no 
data or evidence to suggest that the problem exists or is of the scale that the 
resident suggests. Trusting an officer to carry out their job and produce an evidence 
and data based response to a resident complaint/query and accepting that 
sometimes residents cannot have everything they want would be very useful. 

142. By taking every effort to fully understand the type and frequency of the 
demands placed on its services analysing the data to establish 1) what is the 
purpose of the service in customer terms and 2) how much customer contact is 
because we don't deliver what is required. Then decide what the remit of the service 
should be and analyse the current systems with total honesty and integrity to 
identify the things we are resourced to do that don't add value to the customer 
purpose/remit.  Make sure that we build the right measures to tell us how well we 
achieve the purpose. In a nutshell don't make up plausible service delivery 

Page 170



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

95 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

decisions divorced from accurate knowledge surrounding demand - cost - failure to 
get it right - and the variation of all of these things over time. 

143. Put in a park and ride scheme and charge staff who unnecessarily drive into 
the city and park 

144. Currently many department and even teams within departments work in 
silos. There is duplication of work and in some cases more processes than there 
needs to be taking time and a body to action. We need to be prepared to operate 
like a commercial business rather than public service. Measure success and learn 
from it and roll out. Learn from our mistakes and let others see and if necessary 
take action to clear out dead wood and underperforming teams or people. 

145. Less senior managers, more effort to reclaim debts (e.g. from housing rent 
arrears, parking fines, social care non-payments etc.). Make more income from 
renting out PCC spaces for functions e.g. city museum. 

146. Less buildings, perhaps do not deliver what the private sector can do (i.e. 
pest control?), unless it makes us money. 

147. Less buildings, perhaps do not deliver what the private sector can do (i.e. 
pest control?), unless it makes us money. 

148. Less buildings, perhaps do not deliver what the private sector can do (i.e. 
pest control?), unless it makes us money. 

149. Targeting priority services 
150. encourage more home working for all staff, 
151. We need to re-think the strategic objectives of the Council and align services 

to that rather than in small chunks. We should consider the need to outsource 
central services, such as IT, Payroll and HR, making the processes geared towards 
a modern working environment. 

152. Review effectiveness of centralised corporate services.  The service 
provided does not necessarily represent value for money to individual services for 
the amount service are expected to contribute 

153. Reduce the number of generic mangers and project managers and allow 
professional and experience staff to get on with their jobs!  Stop political 
interference. 

154. Listening to staff and working with internal and external partners.  Identifying 
creative solutions by working with private and vole/community sector. 

155. less use of consultants/agency staff 
156. Improved IT, corporate thinking not silo, CRM, information sharing, sick 

absence policy, improved management 
157. control duplication as best possible within services in the council 
158. Reduce the amount of paper that is generated   Turn off appliances when not 

needed including fans etc. 
159. Cut out the remaining duplication in areas such as ASC and Health. Remove 

the bureaucratic layers of authorisation in ASC, and empower staff rather than 
control them.     Embrace innovation and stop being so risk averse.     Make 

Page 171



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

96 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

decisions and stick to them - particularly at senior level.       Deal with poor 
performance 

160. Stop getting rid of people with experience and replacing them with people 
who have no idea what they are doing on larger salaries 

161. look at the amount of managers there are  We have a manager and 
controller for four staff when we used to run ourselves 

162. Change the procurement rules so I can buy a roll of cellotape for 50p instead 
of paying Â£3 through a company contracted with us 

163.  
164. 1) follow through the commitments of Transformation  2) Put decision making 

in the hands of the people who know the business- remove the hierarchical 
bureaucracy of ASC where managers sit on top of managers but can't make 
decisions  3) Get out of the 25year Colas contract- the work is low standard and the 
cost too high  4) Community schemes to keep the roads/ areas clean and tidy- 

165. Benchmark our services against Hampshire County Council and look to 
procure from them where cheaper. Consider some mergers with HCC. Not 
everything to do with being a unitary authority is necessarily more efficient. Schools 
library service could be merged for instance with the conversion of one head 
librarian into a part time admin. 

166. Less buildings 
167. Stop people spending their budget at the end of the year on frivolous stuff to 

maximise next year's allocation. Allow money to be carried over to next financial 
year, or traded with another department who have a shortfall.    Stop academy 
schools from going to a competitive market for services that we can provide at a 
cost to them. 

168. Re-evaluate the effectiveness of centralised services, as whilst they may be 
deemed as 'cheaper' the quality of services to other departments does not 
represent value for money. 

169. By ensuring senior managers are more in the work, instead of managing in 
ivory towers!  They would see what is going on in the front line.  My head of service 
never ever comes to our department to enquire or speak to the staff 

170. Re-negotiate contracts to provide leaner specifications  Provide more 
support to the voluntary sector in order to enable them to provide some of the 
Council's lower risk services 

171. Become more of a business and embrace a private sector working mentality 
172. Discourage complacency. There are too many officers who are too 

comfortable in their role and are not looking at ways to ultimately make the council 
more efficient - Have all staff on temporary contracts and more results driven.    Try 
to make every single role have a clear and measurable impact on income 
generation or expenditure saving in some way. 

173. Working in Partnership internally and externally. Being longer sited, ensure 
we are considering the long term outcomes are the swaying factor when making 
decisions. Tight contract management, getting the most out of our commissioned 

Page 172



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

97 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

services. Also providing support for our commissioned services so we are making 
the most of them (e.g. linking with other services internally and externally) 

174. review amount of managers 
175. review amount of managers 
176. Concentrate on core issues like alcohol, domestic violence and hate crime 

and not so much on things that could happen rather than are happening. 
177. Not spending money on things that are not necessary- i.e. office moves, 

renaming conference rooms, being aware of the impact of possible decisions before 
finalising them. 

178. The council could look very carefully at some job roles and the way that they 
overlap with others. Consider further rationalisation, look at services which are nice 
to have (HIDS) (Sure Start) (Sports Development)(Carbon Management)(Behaviour 
Change)(Road Safety) make the core aspects of these roles part of existing job 
descriptions. Some higher band roles "strategy advice" "dedicated project 
management" could be easily folded into existing department management 
structures. 

179. By pooling resources where similar jobs are completed across departments, 
such as welfare benefit advice, financial assessments, administration and share 
common tasks rather than being completed by two different departments for two 
different client groups. 

180. Fewer managers. Only doing what's actually necessary, not all the added 
extras. Thinking and acting more like a business by doing our statutory 
requirements only and nothing more. 

181. Improvements to increase the efficiency of communication between council 
staff and the public. 

182. Consider bulk purchasing of common goods across similar services, with 
negotiation of better discounts e.g.  residential units 

183. Less councillors - 'more with less'    critical evaluation of all services 
measuring use of resources. From my experience there are a number of services 
that are greatly overstaffed. 

184. Get better at decision making across the board. By this I mean - make 
decisions at a senior level and stick to them and empower staff at junior levels to 
make decisions. In areas such as ASC decisions and associated paperwork go 
through hoops and loops.    Make managers more accountable and if they are 
rubbish get rid of them 

185. Sell wood from tree and hedge trimming to owners of open fires - 1 cubic 
metre currently costs Â£95 elsewhere.  Install toll booths for people driving in from 
out of the city (unless residents) 

186. Cutting down on staff attendance of conferences / training/ travel and any 
other mis staff expenses (e.g. meals, lunches). Turning the lights out rather than 
keeping them on when nobody is in the office. 

187. Too many senior/middle managers 

Page 173



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

98 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

188. Apart from inflationary increases, pay rises should be on merit, not just a 
progression through a scale. 

189. I feel that the transformation vision and supporting guiding principles and 
ways of working cover, very extensively what needs to be done in PCC but 
unfortunately these initiatives have not been embedded in the organisation. 
Implementing that degree of change is never easy, especially in a large public 
sector organisation but I believe that it (or the changes outlined within it) will be 
critical to achieving our goals and would suggest that we revisit things with a view to 
re-launching the project. Having not been with PCC during the original launch but 
having had experience of similar launches in the past I would be happy to offer any 
assistance if it were to be welcomed. 

190. By having more front line services, to deal with issues before they escalate, 
this should prevent the need to employ as many people at a senior level to then 
have to deal situations when they become more complex. 

191. We all work for the council yet, if you come from a department with a very 
tight budget you may have no money or very little budget for comms or IT or other 
services within the council. Are we not one council yet we have a two tier system 
depending which department you work for. 

192. Still too many managers and not enough workers doing face to face work. 
Far too many meetings and talking not enough doing. 

193. Services (e.g. adult social care) should be  provided according to the needs 
of individuals rather than as part of a set menu. Commissioning makes the same 
mistake of limiting services to what can be specified in advance and does not meet 
individual needs. 

194. The service needs to review PRRT as the service is fragmented and this has 
caused complications in delivery. PRRT must become streamlined and work 
together to meet criteria. 

195. Start with a clean sheet of paper pretend you're designing a council from 
new. Then;    1. identify what services the old council provides.  2. decide what 
services the new one wants to provide.  3. prioritise these services.  4. identify level 
of income in each of the next 15 years.  5. Spec out how each service in stage 2 
can be delivered in the most cost effective way and how much this would cost.   6 
Put services in a list of priority.  7. Start adding from the top of the list until all the 
resource in stage 4 has been utilised.  8. Result - efficient use of money in meeting 
priorities 

196. letting workers not mangers have a say in what is happening 
197. 1.  Effective senior management with meetings monitored for effectiveness 

(outcome focussed).  2.  Working from home should be more carefully monitored for 
productive work outcomes.    2.  Reduce the outsourcing of services (i.e. purchase 
of consultancy) where existing staff can provide it. 

198. Sell you buildings/land for proper prices.  Understand the difference between 
wants and needs of the people of Portsmouth.  To ask people what they need just 
gives people the opportunity to demand what they want.  You need to consult on 

Page 174



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

99 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

the needs of the people NOT consult on what people think they need (which 
ultimately mean what they want!!!). 

199. Less managers  Time and study motions 
200. Stop wasting money on staff benefits that we can no longer afford (paying for 

first 3 days sick, sandwich days at Christmas). Spend money on the clients. 
201. Cut councillors salaries 
202. Reduce the number of councillors 42 is over the top for a city this size.  Only 

hold one election for councillors rather than the split that we have at the moment.  
Concentrate on its core business and drop the 'nice to haves' or encourage others 
to pick those up.  ensure it makes the most of external funding opportunities e.g. EU 

203. Lovely and useful as a lot of it is - reduce the amount of literature we publish 
in paper form  Shared facilities/services  Curb pay rises that might be at the 
expense of essential services - more important to have these things (and the jobs to 
provide them)     More sponsorship / advertising form the private sector. e.g. 
flowerbeds, recreation facilities even certain buildings "sponsored by" 

204. the charges for stationery appear to exceed what can be obtained on the 
high street with a little shopping around 

205. I don't really think it can. It can cut services, but this isn't synonymous with 
efficiency. 

206. More responsibility, less pay - reduction in the number of band 12+. More 
flexible working. 

207. Tackle benefit fraud  Postpone major projects until better economic times 
208. Supporting staff to work at home more.  Allowing more people to work part-

time. 
209. Merge central debt recovery team(financial services) with Council Tax (revs 

and benefits service) we do the same job but are split over two separate 
directorates put us together so the post that have not been filled by either 
directorate can be covered by those already in post. Also all departments that bill 
for services should be required to bill more efficiently time and time again we see 
invoices that are issued for payment months after the event. If you want to bring 
more money in to the council you have to bill and collect more efficiently. 

210. Improved IT services to allow better working at home. WRAP service is slow. 
Does not have APP. Taking work laptop home is heavy and a nuisance as I do not 
drive. When at home working via my laptop and VPN - APP is incredibly slow.                                                        
Allow services more freedom in choosing suppliers.     Hot-desking is not used 
throughout all services.     Moving other services into the civic is working, however 
the continuous removing of services from one area of the civic to another costs time 
money and resources. 

211.                                                                                              . Making sure that 
they don't get paid per job, or extra for call outs.     Making private contractors 
accountable and having a Works Inspector to oversee things in order to ensure we 
are getting value for money.     Prompt billing, less managers/team leaders and 
ensuring services are paid for before they are used or given out.    Also, electronic 

Page 175



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

100 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

billing rather than paper billing is far more effective and saves on postage.    
Occupancy audits would help us use our space efficiently and find out which 
services are the most used.       Bringing Council Tax Debt Recovery back into 
Revenues and Benefits to form one Council Tax Department.     Closer/joint working 
between Social Care and Telecare, as customers usually use both services.    
Close 'The View' and franchise out the space,    Chasing owed monies harder.     
Having more admin staff at the front end to process work, having streamlined at the 
top end will make the business more efficient. 

212. Ensure they got market prices for buildings and land that they sell. 
213. No Strategic Directors     No Admin Managers    A longer working week    

Less HR 
214. Teams doing the same type of work being situated together. - For example, 

there are several accountancy teams based all around the Civic Offices. - If they 
were situated together, this may improve the use of current staff resource and 
reduce the need for expensive agency staff. 

215. Avoid headed paper throughout the whole council and let the MFD print PCC 
local.    Limit flower hanging baskets etc. in summer    Paperless environment in 
Housing - reduces storage space so more space for desks and reduce costs of 
paper/printing etc. 

216. Outsource 
217. By putting money into communities 
218. Reduce all the managers and staff in the Housing department as the 

department has increase dramatically over the last 5 years. Less agency staff 
219. Less bureaucracy and more systems thinking solutions. 
220. Far too many managers most of the work they do can be filtered down the 

line. 
221. making more use of income generation where possible, and thinking in terms 

of cost effectiveness more. Also staff tend to work on a 'silo' basis and protect and 
inflate their own roles, which whilst understandable on a personal level does not 
always help the bigger picture 

 
  

Page 176



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

101 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Q.2 Which council services would you be prepared to see changed or reduced? 
1. Climate change - a global not a local authority concern. IT employees. 
2. All of them. 
3. I think that the service has been reduced either in adult social care, it's the service 

users who are suffering,, if you cut some of the top managers who's wages are so 
high, you could save the money, and our service users who need the service would 
not suffer 

4. Planning, Legal and Finance are the experts in their fields. They should be leading 
the way to find new commercial opportunities. All services should outline whether 
they can work in partnership with other council departments, or whether they are 
external agencies with similar objectives. 

5. none - see above , but maybe a list here would help as a trigger for best answer 
from all who take the survey, not just the first service that they can think of -just a 
thought, not a criticism 

6. Strategic Directors should be taken out as feel that they are not required - the 
services are top heavy and ineffective. 

7. Senior managers team 
8. Chipping stray dogs should not be paid for by council 
9. Customer service. Every time I have made contact it has taken ages to reply and 

nothing has been done. 
10. Introduce small charges for current free services such as museums.  Keep the 

public toilets open and levy a nominal charge to use them.  Be robust in fining 
people for dropping litter.  Get people serving community service to do street 
cleaning/bin collections/other basic tasks. 

11. Parking - traffic wardens 
12. Housing Service.  There should be a review of what the housing service provide to 

their tenants and what tenants should realistically provide for themselves.  Savings 
could be made by managing tenants expectations on the service and not giving in 
to the constant unrealistic demands of some service users.  Common sense should 
be applied to what and how we offer services to tenants and perhaps a little of the 
reality approach might not go amiss, i.e. if you work and own your own home and 
something goes wrong, if you can't afford to fix it, it doesn't get fixed or you carry 
out some general maintenance yourself.  I am not, for one minute suggesting that 
you let your housing stock run into disrepair, but the days of someone ringing and 
demanding someone come and fix something same day or a new kitchen fitted 
whenever they want one, should be coming to an end.  I do believe that part of the 
problem is that because their budgets are protected to some degree, there is not 
the urgent need to address this.  On a social level, I don't think the current system 
helps motivate tenants to aspire to work and own their own property.   Let's face it, 
why should they when they can ring up and get everything for nothing.  We make it 
too easy for them. 

13. Staff who wish to go to University or higher education should pay at least half the 
costs. After all they will reap the benefits when they qualify - and they will probably 

Page 177



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

102 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

leave then for a better paid job. If they did this training before they started work (as 
a Uni student) they would have to pay ALL the fees themselves. 

14. Unsure - not particularly happy with dangerous cycling route on seafront or 
pointless closure of southern end of Palmerstone rd. 

15. ASB department 
16. Withdraw free swimming for under 16's and over 60's.  Withdraw leisure cards.  

Make free bus passes for over 65's not over 60's.  Consider charging for library 
internet usage after a free period. At the moment 4 hours a day are free. Make the 
first two hours free and charge a small amount for every half hour e.g. Â£1 for every 
half hour. Other library authorities charge so this could at least be considered.  
Close Paulsgrove and Portsea library as they are hardly used by the public and 
both have other libraries within close proximity.  If the public are not using libraries 
in sufficient numbers after 6pm then withdraw the late night openings. Also Sundays 
at Southsea Library. It doesn't need to be open 7 days a week.  Cap the number of 
hours of free childcare that is available especially for 2-3 year olds.  Stop painting 
ridiculous cycle paths everywhere. The cycle network doesn't work and painting a 
path that leads onto a pavement is ludicrous. 

17. Museums 
18. Reduce "partial bicycle routes, they are confusing and a pointless waste of money. 

The Red tarmac cycle way down the Eastern Road was lifted only to be replaced 
with Black. Where is the value in that sort of thing? 

19. Elected members 
20. Corporate Communications team can be reduced 
21. Pay meter, reduced parking. Anything that makes day to day life more complicated. 
22. Very hard question to answer, different services are crucial in different ways. 
23. What services I know are good, everyone just be efficient. IE Lig 
24. Portsmouth 
25. No further reductions - there have been too many already. 
26. Home-to-school/college transport - reduce provision  The View - increase profit or 

review contact  Senior management - further reduce  Libraries - reduce  Office 
accommodation - flexible working/work from home 

27. Fortnightly refuge collection BUT introduce refuse wheelie bins.    Lose distribution 
of flagship - online access only  ?? artefacts owned by the council that are not on 
museum display - sell on to larger museums (so artefacts can be seen by members 
of the public) 

28. Unsure. 
29. strategy teams 
30. Anything that doesn't explicitly contribute to the core vision of enabling people to 

stay well and healthy, including in that the wider determinants of health i.e. 
reduction in poverty.   Reduce council subsidies 

31. All that is not statutory. 
32. The services that have been identified that lose money or make bad decisions, such 

as road works that do not need to happen, stop ring fencing money. 

Page 178



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

103 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

33. Senior managers, school crossing patrols - go back to the responsibility of schools 
34. none 
35. HR 
36. More services complimenting each other and supporting rather than desperately 

trying to hold on to their own clients. 
37. All of them 
38. PCMI manufacturing 
39. There seems to be a lot of overlap with different departments offering the same type 

of services such as those to do with childcare, could be more streamlined. 
40. The Education service needs significant overhaul and move rapidly to a charging 

model for services. 
41. All services can be subject to change - that is necessary in this climate. I worry 

about high caseloads for social care workers (70 including inactive cases). 
42. I don't know - it would be handy to have a list of them here so that we could number 

our priorities or is that too simplistic? Really surprised at free school dinners coming 
in for primary school children as this is not something either myself or my friends 
have been wanting.  My daughter likers her packed lunch.  Particularly at a time 
when there are visibly less lollypop people. 

43. Not sure.  Need to manage roads better though; all access to Portsmouth is a 
nightmare. 

44. none 
45. I'd say, apply the above across the board and those services not adding value 

would become apparent. As a resident, I am not sure why we have so many library 
buildings or museum buildings and think the amount of bricks we have to maintain 
could be reduced and the money saved used to boost the book fund, expand e-
book lending (via the web maybe?) and improve the way our museum collections 
are presented. 

46. Better enforcement of parking regulations and improved transport alternative 
allowing quicker journeys and more business coming into Portsmouth - not just Gun 
wharf.  Make visitors feel welcome. 

47. Events the maintenance and updating of council properties. The cost could be 
shared by the householder. 

48. All services should be efficient and changed to be efficient - no services should be 
protected and allowed to be inefficient or over staffed/over spending just because 
their area of responsibility is sensitive 

49. The inefficient ones like Adults and Children's social care and HR. 
50. parking officials 
51. Any 
52. Some elements of Health Improvement and Development don't seem to do much 

more for the general public than existing national campaigns already do.    
                
 
 

Page 179



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

104 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
                                                   This is separate from their work with those with 
learning disabilities, which I think is a fair cause but could definitely be run better. 
As far as I know they do not generate income for PCC (which, if they wanted to 
present as a competitive supplier they could do easily) and are kept afloat by 
council funds. I think at a time when all services are experiencing cuts and frontline 
services are feeling squeezed, the last thing PCC should be doing is funding a 
failing print enterprise when there are many other better value and quality 
competitive services out there. 

53. Stop building and funding white elephants like community centres; they are not 
going to generate any economic or cultural capital for the city. 

54. Senior managers and heads of service 
55. Couldn't say 
56. Adult education, I note from our website that many of the courses offered are 

subsidised by the council, a minimum charge would negate the need for this 
subsidy 

57. Home visiting services - introduce families to Children Centre were ever possible - 
are some home visiting services financially viable? How expensive are they? 

58. Parking Services 
59. Home visiting services - introduce families to Children Centre were ever possible 
60. Housing 
61. Harbour schools? (not sure if under the remit of PCC) 
62. Reduce the number of libraries in the council. Whilst inclusion is all well and good, 

there are 5 libraries within a 15 minute walk of the town centre. surely these are not 
all require 

63.      
              External providers provide a far superior service, price and quality. Why 
keep it running in this capacity, wasting other services money and time to keep it 
afloat? 

64. Housing, Social Services and Education 
65. Switch the regional libraries to every other day service and use the same staff over 

2 sites. 
66. Housing 
67. Social care - Not so much reduced, but changed. Social care takes up a huge 

amount of the council's yearly budget and the money needs to spent more wisely. 
This could perhaps be done with an internal review. 

68. Accountancy 
69. Libraries, sustainability, waste/recycling, schools, parks, council housing 

maintenance 
70. Adult Social Care. 
71. Combine senior managers in all areas. Charge a small amount for special 

exhibitions at City Museum? 

Page 180



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

105 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

72. I think emphasis should be on education / learning and services for children rather 
than adult social care (so we can break the need cycle by empowering people to 
make positive life choices through education). 

73. TO MANY MANAGERS 
74. HR 
75. A reduction of management especially at a senior level 
76. 1. Would be prepared to have bi-weekly rubbish collection.  2. Fewer traffic wardens 

working what are clearly overtime hours, this must cost the council a fortune.  3. 
Turn the street lights off at night or at least some of them: after 12.00? This always 
used to be the case.  4. Libraries: I don't use them and I can receive the services 
they deliver (books, DVDs, internet) at home. Also, some, such as Southsea are 
glorified coffee shops with few books and lots of computers and meeting spaces.  5. 

77. I would question whether we actually need a Lord Mayor. How much does this 
department cost each year for a role that is purely a luxury? 

78. I think housing could become a lot more efficient. For example how much is spent 
on electricity lighting up so many blocks of flats walk ways when nobody is present. 

79. Building Procurement & Finance Department 
80. Any that have not gone through all costs no matter how small 
81. Adult social care, I don't understand why the council should be responsible for 

caring for the elderly, this should be an individual or family responsibility 
82. Housing should lose the ESO's  as the Housing Officers should get out more and be 

proactive in meeting the Community to solve problems and not just debt collect. 
Also Housing revenue is Council revenue and SHOULD NOT be ring fenced and 
SHOULD be used to protect some departments. Or departments should be able to 
bill Housing for time spent in those areas. 

83. Merge smaller teams to reduce management overheads and not create project 
development roles. Don't form new teams in departments without consultation and 
the consideration into merging and increasing responsibility of staff 

84. Community centres: The trustees should be encouraged to make these facilities 
self-funded, e.g. a nursery operating from one should pay the same rates as any 
other private nursery in the area and the income could be set against repair costs 
etc. 

85. Stop building massive play parks in LA Housing area's children from all 
backgrounds should have the same facilities in their areas. Stop the staff magazine. 
Hampshire Police newspaper is only available on line these days due to cost of 
printing. Stop using Taxis to send people to look at possible rental properties 
(Housing Options). 

86. Reduce/change in city strategizing. We have strategic directors, why do we 
have/needs dozens of other strategy roles/titles.  Traffic management , we swing 
backwards and forwards with road changes that are a waste of money for example 
the Eastern road ; 1 lane , 2 lane , 1  lane , 2 lane . This has happened regularly for 
the last 30 years and has become laughable. 

Page 181



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

106 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

87. To make the significant cuts we are facing we need to look hard at the higher 
spending services.  Yes Adult and Children's Social care are extremely important 
but when have we done a proper review from outside of the service. Why don't 
other heads of service look at each other's services to take out the emotion of 
decisions? Yes protect some services to some extent but do we spend every pound 
efficiently?  Lose the view and replace with Costa machines - I bet they would pay 
us! 

88. resident participation  housing  HR 
89. resident participation 
90. Minimum, as above it depends on what is identified as a result of Q1 
91. middle management 
92. No service should be immune to cuts or changes. 
93. I'm sure the above suggestion would work across all services. 
94. Social care seems very protected and not open to full scrutiny from others within the 

council. 
95. None essentials could be reduced or charged for 
96. Backing up businesses that are not viable. stick to those such as the football club 

who only need a short-term loan that will be repaid. 
97. None is the short answer.  I feel the decision to close various toilet facilities in the 

city was outrageous to put it mildly.  Saving money in this way is, I think, an action 
which has been taken with little thought as to the consequences of the need for 
human dignity for us all and particularly the needs of the vulnerable living in the city 
as well as those who work/visit the city. 

98. Asset Management needs reform, we sometimes waste money and/or time 
because projects are not completed to the required standard and have to be 
revisited and problem solutions chased. 

99. Subsidies to the Pyramids, Guildhall, New Theatre Royal, Kings Theatre.  Shut 
down the Big Screen - except for major events.    Experimental road schemes 
should be done using temporary changes until they are proven to prevent re-
instatement works being needed. 

100. Make the over 60s bus pass an over 65s bus pass - most of the 60 year olds 
I know using the pass are in work and can afford fares.  Less Children's Centres 
and use some savings for more work with teenagers and young people.  Make 
more parks self-sustainable by making them wilder planting schemes- these can 
look just as attractive as formal planting and take less time maintaining. 
Alternatively recruit volunteer help to keep parks in order.  Have less community 
centres and keep the ones we do have in good condition or merge them with 
another building e.g. a museum.  Look at running the Museums in the way the 
Guildhall is now run as a Trust. Or in the way the Dockyard is run more as a 
business. Charge entrance for the Museums.  The Information Service seems to 
have an extraordinary number of staffing levels and Managers/specialists.  Don't 
fund the Pyramids - if it cannot support itself as a viable business then it should not 

Page 182



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

107 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

be supported. It is not adding to the cultural life of a city in the way a theatre/library 
or museum does. 

101. 1) Cut down on the number of councillors overall. Think about redistributing 
councillors to where they are most needed, as some wards are busier than others.  
2) Amalgamate the Typing Pool, Members' Secretaries and Lord Mayor's Office 

102. Why services?  Why not staff wages, why not senior manager's personal 
assistants - they are paid well enough to do their own job and not need additional 
money for a PA. Why must the public loose out? 

103. Senior managers and excess managers in dept 
104. Means tests on council housing. There is no housing shortage. There must 

be significant numbers of people in social housing who could leave and go to 
private housing just like the rest of Portsmouth. It is unfair that such people should 
be entitled to such a luxury when PCC is otherwise stringent on housing benefit 
payments and overpayments. 

105. Scale down the Civic Offices as planned, transfer as many functions on line 
as possible. 

106. Less frequent grass mowing on common grounds might save some money 
during spring and summer months 

107. Have we thought about changing the way we run some of the events? 
Perhaps rather than bearing the cost for Bandstand, Opera in the park etc. we 
should be looking for local companies to provide sponsorship or looking at how we 
can get businesses along to these events so we can charge them to operate, i.e. 
maybe someone doing a weekly hog roast at the Band stand, or someone selling 
Opera CDs or whatever it might be. We should be looking at income generation 
alongside service provision. This could even be extended to include things like 
children centres, local businesses could be charged to advertise on the notice 
board. Anything we think we might lose - we need to see if it could be altered to 
make it commercially sustainable. 

108. non-essential services such as leisure & culture, 
109. Pest control (unless it makes money), the Pyramids, 
110. Some of the landscaping and gardening services 
111. sell off the pyramids, too much wasted money has been invested into this  

Children's centres, though this has been looked at as a service, staff that have 
reapplied for their jobs have actually had an unnecessary pay increase for doing the 
same job therefore no or little saving has been made. 

112. We have too many central service teams when money should be spent on 
frontline services. Therefore teams like Strategy, HR, and payroll should be reduced 
accordingly. 

113. Those services or elements of service which do not provide a statutory 
function 

114. All - country cannot afford to carry on with this waste. Housing benefit. 
115. Many services exist because of historical reasons.  Some services have 

gone, some have been retained.  Sometimes this is more due to happenstance 

Page 183



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

108 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

rather than for good reason.  Many of our services can be changed or reduced.  We 
need to ensure we support vulnerable people of all ages.  We need to ensure 
Portsmouth continues to be an economically active and vibrant city where people 
will be happy to live and work. 

116. Housing, Finance 
117. I have noticed that many managers look for the latest gadget whether it is 

blackberry mobile phone, tablet, ultra laptops, etc., etc. Often these gadgets are 
nothing but a boy's toy and I think more control and more stringent business cases 
should be put for spending money on such technology. 

118. learning and development 
119. I do not know enough about other areas to make a valid comment. I am sure 

all areas can reduce the amount of printing that they do. 
120. Reduce support services to what frontline services need. 
121. Education & schools. Directors 
122. Recycling dept etc. 
123. Options for outsourcing HR, LD and Finance- they do less and less for the 

business and no longer are fit for purpose especially HR and LD 
124. Maintenance of green areas. Woodland is cheaper to maintain than grass 

and more beneficial to cities so convert as many areas of grass (especially verges) 
to woodland 

125. The Pyramids - it should not be subsidised - it is actually very outdated now.  
It is going to go eventually - put it out of its misery! 

126. Those services or elements of them which do not provide statutory functions 
127. I don't think ASC could be reduced any more.  It already is impacting on 

vulnerable clients. 
128. Reduction in Community Wardens  Close low usage Libraries  Cease 

subsidising non-commercial bus routes 
129. Look to combine income generating teams and where synergies exist 

combine them, for example Highways and Major Projects with elements of AMS 
such as landscaping or structures to have an income generating design 
consultancy. 

130. Weak outreach programs: too many uninspiring people standing around 
displays in the town centre - make them proactive and engaging or get rid of them.     
Children Centres. Having worked there I cannot find a single reason, other than 
superficial, for what they offer. Don't get me wrong, they deliver great work to those 
who need it, but to too few. There is STILL too many staff delivering non-essential 
work to a ridiculously tiny amount of people in expensive buildings. It does not need 
to be a single service, rather than a small team of well-trained workers working 
alongside Children's Social Care. 

131. I think all services should work more at building up community networks, 
partnerships and volunteers/champions to save money on commissioning 
communications, regular expensive promotion. Where we need promotion get 
sponsorship by other businesses who provide social benefits to our residents. 

Page 184



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

109 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

132. community safety 
133. community safety 
134. Kennels as there is the RSPCA in Fareham.    Reduce the hours spent out 

for community wardens, make them 8-8 rather than to 10. 
135. Parking. Reduce the cost to park- it will attract more revenue with more 

visitors.  Allow Staff to work from home if they are able to-this will reduce the 
overhead costs and traffic congestion. 

136. Switch to a bi weekly refuse collection; remove special collections to those 
on benefits. Rationalise some adult social care services. 

137. Culture and arts reduced, Leisure card stopped as it doesn't reward those 
who work and contribute to council tax out of their own pockets. 

138. Recycling services need to be drastically improved, as well as further 
improvements made to green spaces. Both enlarging them and improved 
maintenance. 

139. Support services should be reduced across the board and only deliver what 
frontline services need.    More shared working or by in as needed for support 
services 

140. parking 
141. Do the council still pay for the services of consultants? If so then the council 

should stop this. The Housing Service needs to be looked at. 
142. no reductions 
143. Provision of subsidised Housing to those who can/should work. 
144. I think that there are still opportunities in teams to save money (see above) 

but I feel that if we need to cut services then we should focus on outcomes e.g. 
which are delivering on their targets and/or achieving their outcomes. My instinct is 
that some services are not currently measuring these things which is clearly 
something else that needs to be addressed as a priority. 

145. There should be a renewed effort to persuade the NHS to cooperate fully in 
joined-up provision for adults. 

146. PRRT 
147. The council don't publish a list of services so not sure. 
148. no reduction in services- cut the wages at the top 
149. As a resident I am happy with services.  We must remember to make our 

City attractive and welcoming to visitors (potential new residents / business 
partners), as these are the life blood of the economy. 

150. Services like Home Check, where staff will go and have lunch for three 
hours, make up problems with in their work to create delays which now means there 
is a ridiculous waiting list for the people of Portsmouth.  I see the workers parked by 
Asda down a side road for hours eating food, smoking and laughing and joking with 
each other. 

151. Streetlighting  public convenience  Off the Record  Flower displays, parks, 
graveyard upkeep  Libraries  Car Parking wardens  Cost of parking in city centre-
prohibitive   Sustainability 

Page 185



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

110 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

152. HR, Training, Recruitment should be outsourced.  Less on community 
development. 

153. learning and development as surely it is not necessary for some courses to 
be all day 

154. I think the time has come to move museums over to a charitable trust rather 
than PCC control.  We spend an awful lot of money and resource on people who 
chose not to contribute much especially in terms of safeguarding children.  There 
ought to be a more proactive and concerted efforts to ensure those who have 
children are encouraged to look after them properly and take responsibility for 
themselves.  I think we have more than our fair share of freeloaders in the city! 

155. Library service. 
156. Public toilets need to be reinstated but I see no problem in them being pay 

toilets. People could perhaps buy some form of season ticket or pay as you go (not 
meant to be a pun) card to be used at any facility. 

157. I don't know about all the services the council provides but I don't see  why 
the running costs of the TV in the civic square should be met by the local authority 

158. Cut back on all of the "branding" and "retail structures." We are a civic 
service and don't need to spend so much developing "our brand." Fewer satellite 
offices; i.e. housing 

159. Nice to have services  i.e. civil contingencies' 
160. Close the local housing offices and bring them back to the civic offices. You 

could release the properties to be sold bringing in additional income. The same with 
the Chaucer house why are PCC staff in a building next door. Sell it off bring them 
back in to the building. 

 
161. Contaminated land (as Portsmouth doesn't have any under the government's 

legal framework), Parks service, Benefits reduction in favour of more online self-
service- with better easier to navigate short forms. 

162. Libraries 
163. Reduce HR further 
164. Library services. - I'm not convinced the demand is here for the number of 

libraries that we currently have. 
165. Any 
166. Social Services  Housing  Procurement  FOI  Cut the red tape  Reduce the 

number of Councillors 
167. Culture 
168. Rubbish collection 
169. Child and Adult services badly need to be looked at for efficiency and best 

use of resources.  HR and IT \ IS both seem to be overloaded especially given that 
their service is poor and they do not consult services on their needs prior to 
changes. I'm not quite sure of the value of a whole department focussing on 
communications - their service is poor and sketchy. Same goes for Community 
Engagement - what do they actually achieve? 

Page 186



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

111 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

170. Green and clean seems to be huge. 
  

Page 187



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

112 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Q3. Which council services would you be prepared to pay more for? 
1. Admission to PCC venues - museums etc. A smaller OAP concession given 
2. The free ones. 
3. Adult social care, 
4. All non-statutory services should be charged for. This is most equitable way of 

allocating budgets. Different categories of residents can be charged different rates 
depending on their circumstances. 

5. child and youth services 
6. This is a difficult question to answer unless you truly understand the dynamics of all 

the services and the impact that they have of the residents of Portsmouth.  As such 
I do not feel truly comfortable answering as I do not hold all the relevant information.  
The section heads of each service should have this knowledge - pull them together 
as the chief executive gain the knowledge and then make a decision. 

7. I am not a resident 
8. meals on wheels 
9. Children's services. 
10. Museums.  Events put on by council services that are free - e.g. family fun days / 

workshops 
11. Improved services from helpdesk and information available in a more speedy 

fashion.  Feedback to people making enquiries and taking part in consultations 
12. Social care.  I would be happy to pay more council tax if it meant that the elderly, 

children and vulnerable people were better provided for. 
13. Older people who fall into the category of having saved for their pension now finding 

that there is no further help out there for them because they are on the border line 
for benefits.   Those who haven't saved get everything given to them and more, so I 
would like to see those in the "rut" helped out a bit more. I.e. reduction in their 
council tax. 

14. I would pay for collection of garden waste and removal of large items of waste. 
15. Collecting bulky waste. 
16. I would pay more council tax if I thought it will save jobs and services. I would be 

happy to pay an extra Â£5-Â£10 per month to save jobs and services and to 
improve the city. 

17. Council tax should rise. 
18. Libraries 
19. Road repairs, street cleaning and more refuse bins in busy areas. People will not 

take their rubbish home so provide somewhere to dispose of it rather than the 
street. 

 
20. I feel Social Care services are important; however I acknowledge others feel not 

relevant to them. 
21. Families need support, that appears to be reducing in services 
22. As a resident - library services, waste collection services 
23. Extra care flats  Early intervention and support to Troubled families 

Page 188



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

113 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

24. reopening of public toilets  sorting our dull and lifeless seafront once and for all to 
generate tourism to our city 

25. Leisure, library 
26. Library service, public toilets 
27. Any as long as there is an open and honest explanation of the reasons and that in 

doing so we are not excluding access to those who need the services the most 
28. Adult Social Care - only if they managed it properly and the service matches the 

funding.  Children Services - as above initially back room operations through the 
council - seen as an easy target yet necessary. 

29. Social care and related services 
30. Rubbish and waste 
31. School improvements/Child development 
32. Urban regeneration, getting empty properties up to scratch. 
33. Social care services that support vulnerable people.   Children's services. 
34. Prepared to pay for public toilets rather than see them closed. 
35. drug misuse services  children's social care 
36. There could be revenue in free events such as the bandstand. There is a website 

for artists and musicians to raise money to put in shows where their fans want, 
maybe something like that. So the show will only happen if enough money is raised 
towards it. Alternatively, pass the promotion of events such as these to students 
looking to build a portfolio and gain experience, and have it done by volunteers. 

37. education, dog fouling prevention 
38. Happy to pay more council tax to support services across the board - I think amount 

paid for services should be based on ability to pay so would rather pay more tax 
than pay at the point of delivery, which often penalises the poorest/most in need. 
However, I think parking charges should increase further and the number of spaces 
in the city centre reduce to drive/encourage sustainable travel (reducing the 
congestion). I would love the opportunity to pay for a resident permit in my street 
but we don't have a resident parking zone (despite being within a five minute walk 
of Fratton Park!). 

39. I think residents would be happy to contribute more if better local consultation was 
available and feedback made available. 

40. Events 
41. Don't know 
42. ICT, it is one of the most effective mechanisms to make an organisation more 

efficient and ours is very good, they could do much more if they were supported and 
their value recognised. 

43. Library. 
44. None 
45. better cycle facilities, parking for bicycles (including undercover) 
46. I'd happily pay more to see better provisions for young people and families in 

residential areas. Our parks need a lot of TLC and the seafront needs some serious 

Page 189



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

114 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

regeneration if we are to present ourselves as a tourist destination - at the moment 
it's embarrassing at best. 

47. I already pay full council tax, and I receive no discounts for any of the Council's 
services. I'm not the sort of person that should be paying more for services... 
perhaps the discounts should be cut for benefits claimants, etc. 

48. None, I think we pay more than enough already, sometimes for quite a poor service 
49. None at this time as austerity measures have affected everyone's pocket, not just 

the council's 
50. Couldn't say 
51. Seafront events 
52. Social Services, S/W 
53. toilets 
54. outsourcing is not always the best option as with anything you get back what you 

are prepared to put in 
55. Would be nice to see some kind of protection in parks to prevent foul language 

being used by the minority around small children. More wardens, park keepers or 
surveillance. 

56. Leisure and cultural services 
57. Leisure facilities 
58. I would pay more to keep a weekly bin collection. On an island as overcrowded as 

this one, having bin collections fortnightly would likely turn the island in to a bastion 
of fetid squalor. 

59. Planning, cultural services, 
60. None 
61. I would pay more for leisure access/events and adult social care and learning 

opportunities for older people. Parking. 
62. I think we should pay more council tax rather than cut services. 
63. HOUSING 
64. Front line services 
65. Services that work with young people. Although the service on the east of the city is 

ok there is a huge whole for young for services on the west side of the city 
66. 1. Museums: this city is increasingly becoming diverse and exciting culturally-but we 

need to be cautious before discarding the city's own unique heritage in favour of the 
large charging organisations within the city. For example, our free museums mean 
that people on low incomes can access art and exhibitions that have direct 
relevance to them and their children's' education for free. Not everyone can afford 
to go to the Dockyard and what does this teach anyone about the history of the city 
rather than the Navy? In terms of what the museum service costs and what it 
provides it is very good value. I would be delighted to pay more for it.  2. Roads: 
they are heavily used and clearly need continuing investment 3. 

67. I worry that cultural services will be hit hard by the cuts. It is an important part of 
what makes the city great and also generates income by attracting visitors. 

68. N/A 

Page 190



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

115 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

69. Community Safety 
70. Street cleaning 
71. I would pay a nominal fee to get into some of the free museums 
72. ASB, Alcohol, Drug and Homeless/ begging related Asb problems, youth nuisance 

related ASB. Dog Fouling and Cycling on the pavement.   Which takes me to all the 
above to make the Council Effective ,Streamlined and meeting residents 
expectations. 

73. Early intervention and front line services. 
74. As a non-resident I can't comment 
75. Public conveniences. Eastern Road to be put back to 2 lanes into city. It must cost 

the city thousands because people will not queue they will shop elsewhere. 
Safeguarding children and education but it must be safeguarded from Head 
Teachers who think they can run a business. 

76. Residential parking schemes across the entire city I would be prepared to pay an 
increase in council tax if I had confidence in it were being well spent. 

77. None we should be able to balance the budget if we look properly right across it 
78. Social care and elderly care. 
79. None 
80. Culture. I think the power that cultural buildings, activities and events in the city 

have on people's wellbeing in the city is undervalued and underutilised. 
81. Happy to pay a small entry fee for museums and or to attend events i.e. firework 

display 
82. I would need to know more about what the various cost implications this has in the 

various areas. 
83. I think there should be increases in the costs of some services, such as planning 

applications and taxi licensing.    I would be prepared to pay a little more for waste 
collection, if it means keeping weekly collections. 

84. Museums 
85. Would be prepared to pay more Council Tax if it meant local jobs were more 

secure.   Charge for Museum entrance. If this wasn't deemed comfortable perhaps 
make them free to residents and charge tourists a fee or on proof of residence a 
reduced entrance? There are very few places bar London I visit where I expect free 
entrance to a Museum.   Put cafes or gift shops into parks and the Common to 
make them more enterprising.   Lose the Leisure card - surely it is far better to have 
services available than have to risk losing them because we are allowing so many 
to enter them free or at a reduced rate? It's a nice thing to offer but in this climate I 
find it difficult to justify why we offer it.   Consider the implications of recruiting more 
volunteers and work placements- the staff time involved in training and supporting 
these people often outweighs financial benefits - keep local people in work! 

86. Anything supporting the old, young or vulnerable or that actually responds to the 
needs of the local communities rather than what a manger who lives in the Civic 
offices thinks would be a good idea 

87. Children's services intervention projects and residents participating 

Page 191



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

116 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

88. Cultural activities 
89. Nothing. Things are wrongly prioritised. Further to answer in question 2, too much 

time is spent on looking to build new housing. I would prefer to see more attractions 
on the outdated South sea seafront. 

90. Waste Collection and increase in council tax 
91. None because I'm entirely unconvinced that the costs of services are inflated by 

failure and poor system design addressing this could mean I would not have to pay 
more. 

92. Police, schools (we need more of both) 
93. I would like weekly recycling collections - or for it to be easier in some way. I 

currently have to drag a narrow wheelie bin through my house - a wider one would 
not work - and I have usually filled it in the first week. I would recycle more if we had 
weekly collections and for this I would pay more like the garden waste scheme. 

94. Slight increase in residents parking permits, 
95. children's services, education, the Seafront needs investment 
96. children's services, education, the Seafront needs investment 
97. children's services, education 
98. Social care & education 
99. Education and Social Care. 
100. Adult Social Care  Children's Social Care  Revenue and Benefits  LA 

Housing 
101. Roads Street cleaning, dog wardens, generally making the place look tidy 

and less shabby. 
102. Care of vulnerable people of all ages.  Preventative interventions that have 

outputs attached. 
103. housing 
104. Refuse disposal; education; library; general cleaning 
105. Most frontline services 
106. Legal, roads, planning, housing 
107. Residents participation  Children's services 
108. The obvious would be Education add ASC but I think some areas should 

contribute more such as Housing 
109. None. Staff are complacent that they already work really hard. They don't, 

they just haven't been in the private sector to realise how hard and efficient work 
can be. 

110. The seafront (South Parade pier area), crime prevention, substance misuse 
services, social services 

111. Parking enforcement officers. I see so many cars around that could be 
ticketed, but no patrols in the area. 

112. It is less about paying more, and more about delivering statutory functions 
effectively and appropriately 

113. I don't know if anyone can afford to more for anything.  But not neglecting the 
elderly in favour of the young upsets me. 

Page 192



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

117 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

114. Residents Parking Zones  Care for the elderly  Increase the Council Tax by 
2% 

115. I don't access hardly any of the free services that are offered and I 
understand that on-the-whole poorer people do. I feel that the services that I do pay 
for, particularly parking are on the expensive side. 

116. Multi-faceted services (providing benefits, efficiencies for wider areas of the 
council) such as Health Trainers, Teenage Pregnancy Prevention, Schools and 
education, careers. 

117. education 
118. education 
119. recycling 
120. Older persons Care plans with more time allocated to each individual. 
121. none - look at private funding 
122. Services such as Day care for the elderly are currently capped at Â£40 per 

week no matter how much income an individual has, I would propose this is raised 
to Â£50 

123. Improvements in recycling schemes. 
124. None 
125. Most of them 
126. none 
127. already pay council tax for services 
128. The council should only be doing the core activities it has to by law.  There 

should not be a postcode lottery though. 
129. As previous point, I feel that generally people are more willing to pay where 

there a service is delivering e.g. people moan about paying their road tax because 
of all the pot holes. For me at the moment the focus should be on activities that 
bring economic investment. 

130. I would prefer not to pay for any more services 
131. social services 
132. This should be an absolute last resort (i.e. after 1 and 2 above have been 

introduced) 
133. 1. A new service to help schools reduce class sizes through a transfer of 

money from council to schools on a per pupil basis. 
134. There should not be costs for council services- this would just mean the 

wealthy have access and not low paid workers such as me and my colleagues. 
135. My Council Tax is already £200 a month and as a staff member I continue to 

see waste here in the Council, so I think we should tackle that first.  We should 
perhaps introduce a charge for car parking - it isn't really fair that essential users 
pay nothing, especially as many of these are the higher earners within the Council. 

136. Where a service costs more to run, I would be willing to pay more for that 
service.  This would need to be shown clearly and evidence of the costs broken 
down. 

137. none 

Page 193



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

118 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

138. Adult social care, children's and families. 
139. adult care 
140. Adult Social care - this is a growing need due to the increase in older people 

but gain proactive services aimed at promoting independence are what's needed. 
141. see above  Weekly refuse collection is great and |I don't think anyone would 

object if Council Tax was raised a little to cover this  Raise the cost of services such 
as pest control, bulky items 

142. Charge for PC usage in the libraries; raise the price of parking permits. 
143. Refuse collection (but not recycling) 
144. green and clean and rubbish collection and dilapidated streets / pavement 

improvements 
145. Public toilets, as long as a fee was advertised clearly. 
146. Public events 
147. Early intervention with families- i.e. Children centre 
148. Waste collection. - I would pay more to keep a weekly collection. 
149. Social Care 
150. None 
151. Road maintenance/education 
152. Social Services 
153. Estate services Wardens, Community Wardens, Enforcement 
154. none 

Page 194



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

119 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Q4. Which council services do you value most and would like protected? 
1. Rubbish collection. Tourism. Maintaining seafront to a high standard 
2. All of them. 
3. Adult care, pds 
4. Those departments which are genuinely competitive in commercial markets and 

generate income to support other services. Services which offer early intervention 
should be protected as they prevent far higher costs in the long run, i.e. Family 
Intervention, Substance Abuse courses, training and employment projects. 

5. Social care 
6. Parks, community centres, youth service and children activity services, and social 

care and preventative service. 
7. Services for vulnerable people 
8. children's and vulnerable adults safeguarding 
9. Refuse collectors. Once a week. They are most needed. 
10. Most existing services need protecting - there is little more to cut!! 
11. Gardens because when people are poor they at least have some things they visit 

and treasure. It improves the physical environment and increases feelings of 
wellbeing. In council properties and parks/gardens. Attracts tourists and money into 
the city. 

12. Children's services.  However, to avoid a Baby P episode, we should make sure we 
employ only those people who show an aptitude for spotting deficiencies.  Too 
many of them tick a box without looking behind the eyes. 

13. Schools  Bin collections  libraries  community safety  community wardens 
14. Environmental Health service night noise team 
15. Libraries  Schools  Community wardens 
16. Culture and education 
17. Parks and Street Cleaning 
18. Children's Services 
19. Asset Management 
20. Adult Social Care, any service for people. 
21. Children, family services. They can't always speak or their views heard. 
22. Services that support residents (including vulnerable people) in parenting and 

making life choices. Some of these will be preventative in nature, but the cost gain 
long term is most often better value than response to serious situations. 

23. Clean streets and public toilets.  Free parking for Portsmouth residents. 
24. Arts and Culture 
25. As a resident I value all of the services provided but particularly in relation to 

amenities, waste collection, schools and social services for children and adults 
26. Health and social care - particularly social workers  Regeneration 
27. library services 
28. Health, education, social care 
29. Social Care 
30. Those that are focused in helping people find their way out of the poverty trap 

Page 195



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

120 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

31. Back room  Front line services that give value for money 
32. Social care, community projects and education 
33. Highways, dog kennels, waste management. 
34. School improvements/Child development and payroll 
35. early intervention 
36. street cleaning and waste collection 
37. Social care, education, 
38. Waste Collection; Culture & Seafront (events, open spaces; street scene) 
39. Not sure 
40. Children's Social Care 
41. social care 
42. Protection of the venerable, health, education, policing, although I don't necessarily 

think they should be totally protected. 
43. social care 
44. - Those that focus on prevention/improvement/enrichment (i.e. the kind that are 

usually cut in difficult times).  The council should be about improving quality of life 
for everyone - not just managing the social problems of the minority 

45. community alarms, home check, council housing 
46. We need to protect the services that make the biggest difference to residents who 

are most in need - and not just assume that because something lives in social care 
it is making a difference - but we need to balance that with services that make this 
city an attractive place to live because we need people to want to live here. 

47. Weekly rubbish collections, maintenance of parks and public areas, transport and 
environment improvements.  A good environment promotes pride in our city and 
wellbeing generally. 

48. Short breaks for Children with a disability (personal)  Payroll (Professional) 
49. Tourism, environment, community safety. 
50. Services to vulnerable people in society, however not at the expense of efficiency 
51. ICT, Customer Service, Community Safety, any that bring profit in. 
52. Social Services  Education  Weekly Refuse Collection 
53. culture, tourism, child services, elderly care and housing 
54. Rubbish collection 
55. Ones that encourage families to get out and about together, such as free museums, 

sure start centres 
56. I think the carer's centre and support is brilliant and should have better provisions 

for promotion. I think PCC offers great support to families (CHAT, FIS) and that 
should continue. 

57. The Arts. Many people in Portsmouth would benefit from cultural experiences, 
rather than simply watching television. 

58. Social care services and community volunteer services supported 
59. Couldn't say, each have their own part to play 
60. Waste Collection, Road Maintenance, Seafront Services, Adult Social Care 
61. Education 

Page 196



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

121 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

62. Social care 
63. I value very highly our parks and open spaces. 
64. departments that look after visitors to the town such as seafront events museums 

and visitor information 
65. children's social care and supporters IE YOT, ITYSS 
66. Open spaces. i.e. the common 
67. Education 
68. Highways / Transport 
69. As a single male in my mid-twenties who doesn't drive, I am not a great user of any 

council services. As I said previously, emptying the bins and keeping traffic flowing 
are both important, as is keeping the seafront clean. I would also protect Housing 
Options. 

70. Services for young people  Services for LGBT people  Care Home 
71. social care, waste and recycling, street environment 
72. Children's Social Care & Safeguarding 
73. Culture - Museums, Archives. 
74. To ensure a positive future for the city we need to protect shared public spaces and 

the cultural offer - these are the things that make Portsmouth a great place to live 
and work and will ensure future investment. No culture - no future.  Other than that 
learning / education shd be given priority over adult social care. However, this 
country is wealthy enough to afford both ... 

75. HOUSING FOR YOUNG AND OLD 
76. Front line services 
77. I value the wide variety of museums and events which make Portsmouth an 

interesting, vibrant and exciting city to live and visit. We mustn't forget how much 
income is generated from tourism to the city and visitors to the city won't get a vote 
in these cuts as they are not residents. Visitors won't want to visit Portsmouth if we 
don't continue marketing ourselves and keeping our museums and Visitor 
Information service going. 

78. 1. Parks and the environment: in a very crowded city maintaining green spaces is 
extremely important-we have hundreds of trees and this adds to the appeal of the 
city as a place to live. This service should be protected.  2. Museums and archives: 
recently been dis-united which is a mistake, especially in terms of service to the 
public, a retrograde move.  3. Education: clearly we will be nothing without 
educated children, so essential.  4. Health and social care: always important. 

79. I don't think any service should be protected because they should all be looking at 
how they can work more efficiently. Frontline services in social care need not be 
affected if they focus on streamlining their support services and reducing levels of 
management. 

80. Front like workers like the youth play service and community wardens who help 
keep Portsmouth Safer, Cleaner and stronger. 

81. weekly refuse collection  fortnightly recycling 

Page 197



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

122 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

82. Those services which collect money for the LA & government. Those services 
which help & advise venerable persons (children, disabled, elderly etc. 

83. Refuse collection, street cleaning, parks maintenance. 
84. Abs related departments. Alcohol, drug, and rehabilitation. All FRONT LINE STAFF, 

City Help Desk, Licensing, benefits, transportation, health. Safety. 
85. Social Services, Health Safety and Licencing, 
86. Weekly rubbish collection.  Education  Community health 
87. Social care - adults and children 
88. social care and sheltered housing 
89. Weekly refuse collections. 
90. Culture!! As this is the most likely to be affected. See previous comments. I value all 

of PCC's services and feel they should be kept within local authority context for best 
practice and for the sole purpose of the care of the public. Also, if all PCC services 
worked colder together, more could be achieved - e.g. relationships between social 
care & culture could benefit both services. 

91. Basics i.e. waste collection and environmental health, Schools, Museums and other 
educational establishments 

92. Schools. Care of the elderly and those with special needs. Museums, tourism and 
other revenue generating offers 

93. Please see question 2. 
94. Weekly rubbish collections 
95. Museums  Libraries 
96. Public Toilets, open spaces, community sports facilities, libraries 
97. Adult social care must be maintained - help for the elderly who are isolated, help for 

the disabled, help for people with complex issues must be maintained and should 
never become business operated.   Support for children from abusive backgrounds 
or at the poverty level.  Consider using libraries and community centres and 
children's centres as information points and payment points. 

98. All are valuable and all need to be protected. 
99. As above 
100. Children services and residents participation toilets and sure start centres 
101. Museums and cultural events. 
102. I do not value nor de-value any service in particular. 
103. Libraries - offer helpdesks manned by council staff at all libraries not just 

Southsea to reduce the need for Civic Offices.  Parks - the green spaces need to be 
protected. 

104. Only those services that we know the people of Portsmouth value, because 
we are fully connected to their demands for that service.  Clearly statutory services 
have more of an obligation to understand demand and the ability of the system to 
meet it, because they are statutory.  Some of the most breath taking examples of 
poor system design and management can be found in these services 

105. I can't narrow it down to one because all council services are worthy but 
would definitely like to see library services protected 

Page 198



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

123 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

106. Libraries and Children's care 
107. Adult social care, weekly bin collections, children's services 
108. Crime prevention, early intervention in health and supporting families. 
109. Education 
110. the free summer bandstand   children's social care 
111. Education and Social Care 
112. Statutory services 
113. Services for vulnerable people of all ages especially older people and 

children/young people under 18. 
114. leisure services, social care and education 
115. dial ride  housing 
116. Fostering/adoption; education 
117. Adults, Children's, Education and Culture - with the proviso that poor 

performance and bureaucratic barriers PCC put in are removed 
118. anything that supports vulnerable residents and helps residents 
119. The rubbish collection service is excellent 
120. Development and culture of the city are paramount for jobs and tourism- 

investment is a must 
121. I do not value any above the rest. Efficiencies need to be wrung out of all 

departments. 
122. Substance misuse, schools, 
123. City Helpdesk, Libraries, Schools 
124. ASC and Housing 
125. Museums, Libraries and Adult Social Care 
126. Contracts teams, tight commissioning teams. Schools, Youth Teams, Public 

Health, Independents and Wellbeing, housing. Social Care for our most vulnerable. 
127. social care, 
128. Social Services for older people at home.  Looked after children - more 

opportunities for study and nurturing. 
129. waste, police and fire 
130. Housing benefit/council tax support.  FAB team.  Money advice team.  

Housing Options 
131. Library service 
132. Social services and education. We must protect the weakest in society and 

educate our children. 
133. children services, in particular disability services 
134. adult social care 
135. everyone values the services they use, just because I don't use ASC 

services doesn't mean I want them cut 
136. Refuse collection and street cleaning. 
137. Like most people education is key but I also think that as a community, 

opportunities for residents to gain access to low cost sports and leisure activities is 

Page 199



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

124 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

very important as it often has a knock on effect in so many other areas e.g. health, 
crime reduction, community development and general  well-being. 

138. Education and Social care 
139. public health 
140. Services for vulnerable people 
141. The council don't produce a list of service so I don't know for sure. But I do 

like the bin collection, street cleaning, street lighting and dog fouling enforcement 
services. All in this probably represents about Â£100 per year of my council tax. 
Also children and vulnerable adults must be cared for properly.  My suspicion is that 
the council have hundreds of other odd services that are not publicised or even 
know about by council officers. 

142. the youth service... ops it's been devastated... all services!!!  Cut the wages 
at the top!! 

143. Support for children and young people so that disadvanatage is tackled, e.g. 
through education.    Support for vulnerable families and adults - we have a lot in 
the city.    Rubbish collection.  Everything that makes the city an interesting place to 
live, including parks and gardens, bandstand, etc. 

144. Education, Early Support 
145. adult social care 
146. Adult and children's social care. 
147. Adult social care, children's social care, refuse collections, environmental 

services 
148. Housing. 
149. Adult and Child Social Care  Education  Leisure and Tourism - is the 

lifeblood of a city such as hours  a good service for Housing tenants and 
Leaseholders 

150. All social care, education and libraries 
151. Children's Social Services, Education, Culture 
152. Housing 
153. I think all services which promote the most disadvantaged to build skills and 

take ownership of their lives should be strengthened, for the long term advantage of 
the local area.  A small example would be the Go for It Centre - the staff used to be 
able to collate information on local part-time jobs for young people - they now do not 
have the capacity to do this.  Young people also have reduced access to careers 
guidance in the centre (council cuts) and also a much greater reduction in school 
careers advice (the Govt passing this duty to schools, which some schools have 
taken and others haven't provided this at all).  There needs to be much more youth 
support services for all young people - not less, or only targeted to those on tiers 3 
and 4.  Having worked with teenagers in Portsmouth for 7 years, I am depressed at 
the number who go on to be teenage parents, on benefits and in social housing.   I 
think we need to put a lot more resources into supporting young people to avoid 
this.  This will hopefully save us money in the long term. 

154. Social services older persons care should be protected. 

Page 200



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

125 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

155. Social Care, Road and Pavement maintenance and weekly bin collection. 
156. Early Years and Children's services 
157. Waste collections 
158. Housing, Social Care 
159. Parking wardens 
160. Education/community/family  learning 
161. Social Services 
162. Culture, Parks, any services that deliver directly to the public. 
163. Housing 
164. Housing, Social Services and Education. However just because some 

services are more 'important' than others does not mean that they shouldn't become 
more efficient 

 
  

Page 201



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

126 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Any other comments 
1. To save costs please can individual units, buildings be responsible for their own 

heating.  This would save on excess heating and difficult and overheated working 
conditions when lesser or no heat would suffice 

2. think the working in an office and working with vulnerable adults the sickness policy 
should be different,  having a cold over a computer is not as bad as coughing over a 
service user who could die if they caught it, 

3. The council should not be in the business of handing out grants with seemingly no 
terms and conditions attached. Instead, we should think about providing venture 
capital to local start-ups and expanding businesses. The capital should be provided 
on the basis of short payback periods and reasonable interest rates. The council 
should also consider adopting a strategic approach to acquiring commercial 
properties - Hampshire CC has been very successful at this but we seem very keen 
to give away all of our assets to trusts who then ask for financial help year after year. 
Kingston Prison would be a good place to start! 

4. If we are being made redundant let us know more quickly as it is very unsettling. 
Counsellors need to make decisions 

5. Overall I am pleased with most of the council and feel it works well. There is just the 
odd department who lets it down. 

6. Just because someone moves offices, this does not mean they have to have new 
desks etc.!  Do privileged people pay for the parking of their cars in the underground 
car park? If not perhaps they could.  Pensioners in warden controlled flats pay a very 
small amount for their heating.  Their rent is nearly always subsidised, and bills are 
low.  Why then are they still entitled to the annual heating allowance from the 
Government? 

7. Would it not be better to reduce the amount of Cllrs and only have 1/2 per ward this 
would save money for the council 

8. Object to the council charging for green waste collection as sustainability is 
essential.    The council could look into using open-source operating systems and 
software.      
 
 
                                                                                 . Along with not being good for 
residents, why doesn't the council bring the facilities back in-house and reap the 
financial gains?    PCC should also cut the budget for grass-mowing, as long-grass 
meadows are not only more pleasing, but also better for biodiversity. The same goes 
for flowers - PCC should move away from planting hybrid varieties and move 
towards wildflowers, which are not only cheaper but also better for bees etc. 

9. I believe some councillors managers and staff would benefit from an understanding 
of budgeting in the private sector and a realisation that there is no PCC money tree 
growing in Victoria Park. 

 
10. Look after Portsmouth people, to give now generation & future generation the best 

we can. 

Page 202



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

127 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

11. N/A 
12. Please allow us to keep buying annual leave  Early retirement for 60+ age group 
13. Need strong leadership and tough decisions to be made to radically change services 

across the council and NHS 
14. It is time for the blank piece of paper and PLAN for the future instead of waiting for it 

to come. CX once stated don't waste a good crisis....we just have! 
15. Cost savings will only be found by understanding 'functions' rather than services.  

Savings within a 'service' without looking how you can streamline functions with 
others services will not work. 

16. We need to look at the cost of moves within the civic offices - every time a team 
moves around there is a cost implication. Balance between how many people can be 
shoehorned into the civic and the need for space to work. 

17. Would like to see more home working and being able to buy annual leave. Whilst 
being offered this last year I was subsequently refused.  Should apply across the 
board. no excuses 

18. - We need to make sure that any cuts we make aren't short-sighted, considering not 
just the short term risks, but also the long-term implications for all concerned. 

19. It may only make a small difference, but I think we should look at utilising loyalty 
cards to increase income (or use points to provide prizes for Lord Mayor's appeal, 
etc.).  Lots of staff use company purchase cards in high street stores, and we are 
missing a trick by allowing the loyalty points to be wasted. 

20. Only that local authorities are in an impossible position. 
21. Money and proper consultation is needed around parks and play areas.  As much of 

the funding can be met by charities, it is the consultation that is needed first. 
22. Reduce the number of Members and elections. 
23. Thought needs to be put into the effect this will have on staff of PCC - not only do we 

have to do more for less, many are face-to-face with the public who don't always 
separate the "Person in front of them trying to help" from the "Council who keeps 
charging them more money".  The staff need support and the public need proper 
information on what the Council is doing and how it is also affects the staff (many of 
whom are residents themselves) 

24. The Council should look to other countries, like the Netherlands, where they have a 
guaranteed youth employment scheme to ensure that there are no under 25s NEET. 

25. Too much money being spent on the likes of investigation of MPs like the recent one 
when this money                    could be saved and ploughed back into the community. 

26. I don't know enough to answer the questions I've left blank. I have only got first-hand 
experience of my own area of work 

27. As a non-resident of Portsmouth I felt unable to comment on items 2 and 3. 
28. I believe that more should be done to encourage use of empty buildings that are 

rapidly becoming an eyesore. Examples are the large multi storey by the park in the 
centre of town with its broken windows and the large office block opposite gunwharf. 
If shops are empty they should have window coverings that give the illusion of a full 
shop. We say that we have a lack of accommodation in the city but some of these 

Page 203



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

128 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

large buildings could be utilised for short term accommodation on a budget hotel 
type set up. 

29.  
30. Temporary suspension of civic events like Mayor making for this period of budget 

pressures. 
31. Not applicable. 
32. We need more joined-up thinking and shared costs moving forward. Less in-house 

rivalry between teams and services - corporate message should be that we've all got 
each other's best interests in mind. Less spending on redundant and unused 
products and services. More flexibility in some areas (such as IS) could arguably 
lead to increased productivity in some/all areas. 

33. We need trained professional staff to assist volunteers if they are to take an active 
role in our services. This takes a lot of time and nurturing. 

34. Hard choices to make 
35. What would happen if the Council refused to make any further cuts? 
36. The continued freeze on council tax is unsustainable, inflation alone must mean that 

it should go up and to expect it not to is unrealistic. 
37. There has been mention of a centralised admin resource and I think this would be a 

good way to reduce duplication across services. 
38. I have found it impossible to answer without knowing how much Â£ or % of budget is 

spent on each service, 
39. I would like to see office closures over Christmas brought in to save money and the 

saving from buying additional annual leave going to the services we work for not into 
the central pot. 

40. Look at departments and cases that they are dealing with to quantify value, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

41. More needs to be done to create revenue through use of fpn  Ring fenced money in 
profit making departments should be distributed to needed departments 

42. Tackle the subsidies offered across the council to make them more transparent and 
obvious so each department is aware of what has been offered by PCC in its entity 

43. Civic Offices should be moved from town centre location to cheaper premises in 
outskirts but retain presence in town centre using Guildhall for public drop in facility 

44. Members need to be more realistic and accountable. They should be doing the best 
for Portsmouth and not just trying to protect their seats. 

45. Concerned that the lights are always on at the Civic. Also not happy that external 
consultants have been / are employed  
 

46. Though I work for IS it must be remembered that efficiency savings in many areas 
centres around better use of data/systems... maintenance and support of these does 
not come free. We have seen an exponential increase in work as a result of this 
despite still seeing cuts.  Having seen some of the outputs from the transformation 
team, I don't believe they have had sufficient knowledge/time to produce meaningful 

Page 204



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

129 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

outputs for all services, and in some they seem hell-bent on trying to adopt HCC 
processes. 

47. This really could be an opportunity to bring services together to deliver many 
objectives and perhaps find savings in the senior management structure across PCC 
by doing so. In my opinion, Portsmouth CC has always been a unique authority for 
finding innovative solutions and delivering excellent services. 

48. This organisation has still not transformed to where it needs to be.  Too many 
sloping shoulders, not enough business thinking.  Too many officers thinking that 
working in a political organisation means we should act like politicians.  Too many 
barriers which are created by our own policies rather than the law.  In an age of 
austerity you can't please all of the people all of the time...but that is what we are 
trying to do 

49. Look at management levels and try to cut out some of the red tape.  Enabling front 
line services to be maintained 

50. There is much I would like to discuss which could be included that are perhaps 
beyond the scope of this survey.  I do think a great deal of this city in positive ways 
and think it's' people and the services which could be provided for them could add 
massively to the life experiences of each of us. 

51. Museums are essential to promote inward investment - being part of the perception 
that Portsmouth is a good place to work and live.  Museums are a key player in 
tourism, a real magnet for visitors.   Libraries have an important role to play in 
continuing education and are a valuable resource for older people. 

52. Spend some Capital money on the exterior of the Civic Offices to make it fit for 
purpose if it is being kept.    Look at support services and realise that their work does 
not diminish as much when front line services are cut so savings targets are too high 
if they are across the board. 

53. Have fewer buildings so that we can properly staff and manage and keep clean the 
ones we do have! 

54. All of the above 
55. Look at management levels I have a manager and a controller and we only have 

four in the team 
56. Re-emphasise the importance to means test on social housing. 
57. They're very few services left to scale down and streamline, it is now about spending 

the funding wisely and not in a reactive manner on works that will benefit an 
individual resident and not the wider community. 

58. Know the true costs of the services we deliver, which will be different to the budget 
book entry because so much of the cost is in the flow of the work (the things staff 
have to do to get the job done) and not unit costs.  For example I.T. that sounds 
plausible but actually perverts the flow of work or deploying staff in needless activity 
because that the way the policy drives it.    Remember! Capacity to do the work and 
deliver the service = all the essential work, plus all the extra effort putting the wheels 
back on when it all goes wrong.  Right first time means the capacity to do the right 
work goes up and the costs come down.  You do more for less. 

Page 205



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

130 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

59. We need to act more commercially but keep the end user in mind. Too many 
members of staff moan and complain about their situation but ultimately forget what 
we are trying to acheive; if their heart isn't in it maybe they should look elsewhere to 
work. Making service viable does mean making changes and if you cannot then this 
won't be the place for you over the next few years. 

60. Spending a huge sum of money on the Pyramids does not seem a good use of 
money. 

61. Better provision for children with emotional and behavioural needs 
62. More social activities such as victorious festival would help to attract visitors to the 

city and increase income. 
63. Inspire your staff show leadership, stop going through this ridicules bureaucratic 

nonsense. ''I know that let's ask them, put forward a few stooges, and then say it 
was the staff's idea''. The worlds changing get real! 

64. I have just witnessed a service redesigned and senior staff have had their posts 
deleted.  I am now able to think the unthinkable.  There must be similar services that 
can go under this level of transformation.  There is now nothing so sacred that it 
cannot be looked at for outsourcing to private/vol and community sector.  I "get" it 
and pray that what comes next meets the needs of our residents with little or no 
waste of time and resources.  Those of us left to deliver these services (either within 
PCC or by another organisation) must be aware that we are delivering a public 
service to keep our residents safe, well and able to live life to the full without fear of 
debt and poverty.  We must not let society slip backwards to where it was before 
1948. 

65. on the whole I believe that The Council completes a good job for the public and with 
any establishment improvements can be made if looked at carefully 

66. What we do today will affect future generations 
67. When quotes are obtained we should be able to go back to suppliers and drive 

prices down further. I know for certain I could have got a better price (AND a better 
service) for PCC if I was able to do this ... 

68. University to be more culpable for the additional cost of students to Health, 
Emergency services, council services 

69. Other countries have made savings by merging the post of the chief executive and 
the mayor. We should consider this. Also we don't a valuable special number plate 
so it should be sold. 

70. I think PCC has done a good job in trying to protect services, it is just frustrating as 
an employee to not be valued in your job at times 

71. Seriously consider income generating teams being 'given' the opportunity to set 
themselves up as social enterprises or public sector mutuals. It will require a certain 
element of being 'let go' by senior management, but only by operating as a social 
enterprise and / or public sector mutual can these teams operate independently and 
be at their most cost effective state. 

72.  

Page 206



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

131 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

73. We need to become more efficient at working together as a city council and with the 
wider workforce if we can truly generate efficiency savings. 

74. These two aspects are the backbone of our society. 
75. Address the problem of a lack of government funding rather than cut services 
76. Individuals who are not pulling their weight should be tackled, rather than tarring all 

with the same brush. 
77. There are some great people in PCC but I believe that they are often underutilised 

as a result of weak management failing to exploit their skills and abilities. 
78. I think the LA has cut back so much that a further reduction in services will have an 

even bigger impact on the people in Portsmouth than it already has 
79. would prefer anonymity in replying to these surveys 
80. Ban the use of under desk fan heaters. Some people have these on even in the 

summer. We work with old people telling them not to use these but the civic offices 
is full of them. They must cost thousand as a way to heat the civic. I have sat at my 
desk with a t shirt on boiling while 5 of these heaters are on around me. They also 
regularly get left on which is also a fire hazard. 

81. We need a decent pay rise!! all this reorganisation and pay freeze etc. is destroying 
moral 

82. The city appears to have a dispropotionate amount of disadvantaged people and a 
high number of temporary residents (students) - all of these are costly to some 
services ... do we make enough money out of our population? 

83. I have a serious concern over question 6!  Why will my comments NOT be taken in 
to account if I don't supply my name and service?  Some staff may be critical about 
services but they have the right to be as they will witness the concerns that they are 
raising BUT may want to remain anonymous. 

84. good luck 
85. Stop hurting the residents of Portsmouth and start looking at staff perks; we can no 

longer afford to pay staff time and a third for 6 months if sick. It is morally wrong to 
cut services while protecting pay and perks. 

86. At present we hold elections three of every four years.  This is not an effective use of 
the staff or money.  Although it may be seen politically as a good thing, I would 
question this, as it stops the council from making bold and inspired moves, though 
sometimes they can be initially unpopular or seen as politically sensitive at the time, 
even if it is a short term hurt for long term game.   
Wouldn't it create more political stability if all councillors were voted in for the same 
term at the same time?  As per most councils?  Below is a rough break down of the 
costs that PCC incur each year an election is carried out.  Numbers have been taken 
from PCC's own information, and though this was for the Police Commissioner 
position, the costs, I believe would have been the same for normal elections. 
(http://intralink/Services/8623.html) lf clerks paid £137.00 each equals £23564.00 - 
78 presiding officers paid £215 each equals £16770. This is without the cost of 
people counting the votes, for a ball park figure of 100 people working for 5 hours at 
£7.00 per hour would equal £3500.00. These staffing costs of the election comes to 
approximately £43,834.  That is without the additional costs of heating and lighting at 

Page 207



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

132 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

the various locations around the city, the cost of advertising the election and the 
candidates in the local press and the other associated costs, which would easily 
bring the cost to over £45,000 per election.  Therefore for every four years PCC 
could save at least £90,000, or  when spread across, the potential saving would be 
£22,500.00 each year. With a council set for four years it will help political stability, 
councillors and officers will be more able to make long term plans as well as helping 
with budget planning.  It could only be seen as a positive outcome for all parties. 

87. At present we hold elections three of every four years.  This is not an effective use of 
the staff or money.  Although it may be seen politically as a good thing, I would 
question this, as it stops the council from making bold and inspired moves, though 
sometimes they can be initially unpopular or seen as politically sensitive at the time, 
even if it is a short term hurt for long term. Wouldn't it create more political stability if 
all councillors were voted in for the same term at the same time?  As per most 
councils?  Below is a rough break down of the costs that PCC incur each year an 
election is carried out.  Numbers have been taken from PCC's own information, and 
though this was for the Police Commissioner position, the costs, I believe would 
have been the same for normal elections. (http://intralink/Services/8623.html) lf 
clerks paid £137.00 each equals £23564.00 - 78 presiding officers paid £215 each 
equals £16770. This is without the cost of people counting the votes, for a ball park 
figure of 100 people working for 5 hours at £7.00 per hour would equal £3500.00. 
These staffing costs of the election comes to approximately £43,834.  That is without 
the additional costs of heating and lighting at the various locations around the city, 
the cost of advertising the election and the candidates in the local press and the 
other associated costs, which would easily bring the cost to over £45,000 per 
election.  Therefore for every four years PCC could save at least £90,000, or  when 
spread across, the potential saving would be £22,500.00 each year. With a council 
set for four years it will help political stability, councillors and officers will be more 
able to make long term plans as well as helping with budget planning.  It could only 
be seen as a positive outcome for all parties. 

88. I have a bee in my bonnet about just two things.  First, the prospect of cutting back 
grants to theatres.  I know it's easy to classify dramatic arts as something of a luxury 
for the elite. But in my experience, theatre offers great opportunities for engagement, 
community outreach, therapeutic activity (especially for less 'academic' young 
people) and genuine social mixing.  It would be a real shame to see any of our 
theatres go to the wall for lack of sustained council support: please be careful Some 
Council Services that I value are:- Safeguarding and making available information 
about Portsmouth and its people in Archives, Libraries and Museums. - Helping 
cash-poor owner occupiers to maintain their homes through equity release. - 
Supporting infants and their mums from conception to school. - Planting and 
maintaining trees. Providing independent advice to worried citizens. Supporting 
Pompey as a community owned football club. 

89. The Records Office - this is a valuable source of information not easily available 
elsewhere that supports University and independent research. Historic monuments - 
the square and round towers and other ancient monuments. The council services I 

Page 208



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

133 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

would most like protected are the dustbin collections weekly. I think the numerous 
flower planters that are put out through the city could be reduced without being 
noticed too much.. . 

 

Page 209



Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

   

 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 There are no new critical exceptions highlighted in this report for 2013/14 Audit Plan. 
  
1.2.  There are 155 planned Audits for 2013/14 made up of 127 new reviews and 28 follow 

up audits. Of these 76 (49%) have been completed or are in progress as at 18th 
October 2013. This represents 37 audits (24%) where the report has been finalised, 7 
audits (5%) where the report is in draft form and 32 audits (20%) currently in progress.  

 
1.3 In addition to the planned audits there are 12 areas of on-going work and 5 of 

continuous audits which contribute to risk assurance. 
 

1.4 Areas of Assurance are shown in Appendix A.     
 

1.5 166 days of reactive work have been undertaken to 18th October 2013, with 245 days 
set aside in the 2013/14 Audit Plan.  

 
2. Purpose of report  

 
2.1  This report is to update the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee on the 

Internal Audit Performance for 2013/14 to 18th October 2013 against the Annual Audit 
Plan, highlight areas of concern and areas where assurance can be given on the 
internal control framework. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Annual Audit Plan for 2013/14 has been drawn up in accordance with the agreed 

Audit Strategy approved by this Committee on 24 January 2013 following consultation 
with Heads of Services, Strategic Directors and the Chair of this Committee.  

 
4. Recommendations 
 
4.1 That Members note the Audit Performance for 2013/14 to 18th October 2013. 

 

                                              Agenda item: 8 
Decision maker: 
 

Governance & Audit & Standards Committee 

Subject: 
 

Audit Performance Status Report to 18th October 2013 for Audit 
Plan 2013/14 

Date of decision: 
 

7 November 2013 

Report by: 
 

Chief Internal Auditor 

Wards affected All 
Key decision (over 
£250k) 

No 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 211



2 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

4.2 That Members note the highlighted areas of control weakness for the 2013/14 Audit 
Plan. 

 
4.3 That Members note the changes in the Audit Plan. 

 
 

5. Audit Plan Status 2013/14 to 18th October 2013 
 

Percentage of approved plan completed  
 

5.1 49% of the annual audit plan has been completed or is in progress as at 18th October 
2013, slightly below the equivalent period last year but the same as the year before. 
Despite some already significant time spent on special investigations, providing there is 
not a significant number of further ones, there is currently no reason why the Plan 
cannot still be met. Appendix A shows the completed audits for 2013/14.This 
percentage is made up as follows;  

 
· 32 new reviews (21%) where the report is finalised, 7 (4%) in draft form and 29 

(19%) currently in progress.  
· 5 planned follow ups (3%) where the report is finalised and 3(2%) work in progress.  

 
5.2 As requested by Members of the Committee a breakdown of the assurance levels on 

completed audits is contained in Appendix A. 
 
Changes to the Audit Plan 

 
5.3 In total there are now 155 Audits in the Plan as opposed to 156 originally. 

 
5.4 A Transformation review audit has been removed from the 2013/14 audit plan. The 

transformation programme has been successful in delivering significant savings, but 
much of the activity has now become business as usual.  Current transformation work 
includes significant projects just as Working Anywhere, Social Work Matters and Super-
Connected Cities.  Where necessary, these will be subject to a separate audit.  
  

5.5 An additional follow up of the Family Support Team Audit has been added to the 
2013/14 audit plan. 

 
5.6 LSFT Grant, to do with Transport has been added to the 2013/14 audit plan as it is a 

requirement of the grant conditions that it is audited prior to the return to the relevant 
Government Department. 

 
5.7 The MMD audit programme was previously reported as 4 Full Audits and 4 Follow up 

audits. This has now been finalised and will consist of 2 Full Audits and 5 Follow up 
audits.  

 
5.8 The Audit of Trusts is part of the annual audit plan. At planning stage the Council was 

undertaking a number of pieces of financial, legal and other work on behalf of various 
trusts. The undertaking of the work was mainly historical and work was being carried out 
for no charge. 

 
The audit was set to take place in September and ground work across the Council 
services determined what work the council still carries out on behalf of Trusts. 

Page 212



3 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

It appears that most of the Trust work has or is now in the process of being handed 
back to Trusts to undertake themselves. Some work is undertaken by services for 
Academies which is carried out on an SLA/charged basis. There is also a new 
arrangement with The New Theatre Royal for which the audit planning work has 
prompted some valuable discussion. 

 
As there is an absence of trusts to effectively conduct an audit assignment, the audit is 
being taken out of the audit plan. Internal Audit will however pursue the New Theatre 
Royal Trust as a separate piece of work and consider whether there should be a 
strategy for taking on additional responsibilities of this nature to ensure that requests 
(usually by members or by trusts) are dealt with consistently. As grant income is being 
cut there may be new demands for some kind of service in kind, which could put the 
Council back to where they were a short while ago with a number of responsibilities on 
behalf of third parties.  

 
The risks are around the Council's liability for areas of work they have no control over 
and also putting council employees into a position where they may have a conflict of 
interest as they would (if they were a trustee, have to work in the Trust's best interest as 
well as the Council's best interest as a council employee and there may be conflicts).  

 
 

Reactive Work 
 
5.9 245 days have been allowed for reactive work and investigations in 2013/14 and 166 

days have been used to 18th October 2013.   
 
5.10 The 166 reactive days were used for: 
 

· 13 special investigations 
· 32 items of advice 

 
As well as the following unplanned reviews: 

· DECC LA Fuel Poverty Grant 
· Troubled Families Grant 
· Energy & Climate Change Grant 
· Pilots National Pension Fund verification of contributions 

 
Exceptions  

  
5.11 Of the programmed reviews completed so far this year the number of exceptions in 

each category have been: 
 

· 2 Critical  
· 89 High Risk 
· 19 Medium Risk 
· 4 Low Risk (improvements) 

 
5.12 The table below is a comparison of the audit status figures, up to August 2013 for this 

financial year and the previous two years. 

Page 213



4 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 *52 of the high risk exceptions relate to Schools where full review programmes are 
being carried out in 2013/14 that were not carried out in the previous two years. 

  
On-going Areas  

 
5.13 The following 12 areas are on-going areas of work carried out by Internal Audit; 

· Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA)- authorisations and training 
· Anti-Money Laundering review of Policy and training 
· Investigations (included in the 245 days of reactive work) 
· Financial Rules, review, waivers, training 
· National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by the 

Audit Commission 
· Internal Data Matching of the Council's own data 
· National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow up 
· Counter Fraud Programme 
· Policy Hub project to ensure that all Council policies are held in one place and staff 

are notified of the policies relevant to them 
· G&A&S Committee reporting and attendance and Governance, Audit Planning and 

Consultation 
· Risk Management 
 

Continuous Audit Areas 
 

5.14 The following 5 areas are subject to continuous audit (i.e. regular check to controls) and 
feed into overall assurance;   
· Legionella Management 
· Asbestos Management 
· Key risks management in services 
· Performance Management 
· Business Continuity/Emergency Planning 

 
 

 6.  Areas of Concern 
 

Concerns identified since the last meeting 
 

6.1 There are no new areas of concern (critical exceptions) highlighted in finalised reports 
to services since the previous status report to this Committee from this year's Audit 
Plan.  

 
 

 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/14 

% of the audit 
plan progressed 

41% 53% 49% 

No. of Critical 
exceptions 

0 1 2 

No. of High risk 
exceptions 

41 48 89 

No. of reactive 
days 

242 171 166 

Page 214



5 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  7. Comments on Plan 2013/14 to date  
 

7.1 Whilst only 2 critical exceptions have been identified to date for this financial year the 
number of high risk exceptions seems high but this figure is skewed by the number of 
high risks relating to the Schools Audits.   

 
8. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 

 
8.1 The contents of this report do not have any relevant equalities impact and therefore an 

equalities assessment is not required.   
 
9. City Solicitor’s Comments 
 
9.1 The City Solicitor has considered the report and is satisfied that the recommendations 

are in accordance with the Council’s legal requirements and the Council is fully 
empowered to make the decisions in this matter. 

 
9.2 Where system weaknesses have been identified he is satisfied that the appropriate 

steps are being taken to have these addressed. 
 
10. Head of Finance & S151 Officer Comments: 

 
10.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in this 

report. 
 

10.2 The S151 Officer is content that the progress against the Annual Audit Plan and the 
agreed actions are sufficient to comply with his statutory obligations to ensure that the 
Authority maintains an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting 
records and its system of internal control. 

 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Lyn Graham, Chief Internal Auditor 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Completed audits from 2013/14 Audit Plan 

 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material 
extent by the author in preparing this report: 
Title of document Location 

1 Accounts and 
Audit Regulations  
 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/817/contents/made 
 

2 Audit Strategy 
2013/14 

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/media/gas20130124r7appB.pdf 
 

3 Previous Audit 
Performance 
Status and other 
Audit Reports 

Refer to Governance and Audit and Standard meetings –
reports published online 
http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/yourcouncil/10349.html 
 

 

Page 215



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

A
u

d
it

o
r/

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w

In
te

rn
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 

L
a

w
s

, 
R

e
g

s
, 

R
u

le
s

, 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 o

f 

a
s

s
e

ts

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 o

f 

o
p

s

R
e

li
a

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 

In
te

g
ri

ty

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

a
g

re
e

d

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

a
re

a
s

 w
h

e
re

 n
o

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n

F
in

a
n

c
e

- 
C

h
ri

s
 W

a
rd

B
a

n
k

in
g

F
IN

A
L

1
1

G
R

E
E

N
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
n

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

 

w
it

h
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 
ru

le
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 

re
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
s.

 T
e

st
in

g
 a

ls
o

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

 t
h

a
t 

P
C

C
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
co

n
tr

a
ct

 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 w

it
h

 G
4

S
, 

th
is

 i
s 

b
e

in
g

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 H
a

m
p

sh
ir

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
.

C
o

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 S
ta

ti
o

n
e

ry

F
IN

A
L

1
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
a

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 

ch
a

si
n

g
 o

f 
re

ce
ip

t 
m

e
m

o
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 

st
a

ti
o

n
e

ry
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

H
o

u
s

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t-

 O
w

e
n

 B
u

c
k

w
e

ll

S
e

cu
ri

ty

F
IN

A
L

1
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
a

T
e

st
in

g
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 5

2
7

 o
f 

ID
 s

w
ip

e
 c

a
rd

s 
th

a
t 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 u
se

d
 i

n
 

th
e

 l
a

st
 3

 m
o

n
th

s.

C
le

a
n

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

F
IN

A
L

1
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
o

n
 s

o
m

e
 p

a
ss

e
s 

h
e

ld
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
le

a
n

e
rs

 i
t 

w
a

s 
n

o
t 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

m
.

S
h

e
lt

e
re

d
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

F
IN

A
L

2
3

1
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

a
fe

 a
t 

o
n

e
 o

f 

th
e

 b
lo

ck
s 

w
a

s 
n

o
t 

co
m

p
li
a

n
t 

w
it

h
 

in
su

ra
n

ce
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

a
p

p
o

in
te

e
sh

ip
 

fu
n

d
s 

d
id

 n
o

t 
re

co
n

ci
le

 a
n

d
 i

n
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
se

s 

d
id

 n
o

t 
sh

o
w

 a
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
ce

, 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 

re
v

ie
w

s 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 

b
e

in
g

 r
e

co
rd

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 f
il
e

s,
 c

a
sh

 

h
a

n
d

li
n

g
 i

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

s 
h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n

e
d

 

b
y

 s
ta

ff
, 

m
o

n
e

y
 w

a
s 

b
e

in
g

 h
e

ld
 i

n
 a

 g
la

ss
 

ja
r 

a
t 

o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
e

lt
e

re
d

 b
lo

ck
s 

a
n

d
 g

if
ts

 

a
n

d
 h

o
sp

it
a

li
ty

 s
h

e
e

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 

re
v

ie
w

e
d

 b
y

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
s

s
e

ts
 B

u
s

in
e

s
s

 a
n

d
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
- 

A
la

n
 C

u
fl

e
y

P
e

st
 C

o
n

tr
o

l

F
IN

A
L

0
0

1
0

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s 
n

o
t 

a
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 f
o

r 

th
e

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

u
se

d
 b

y
 P

e
st

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

O
p

e
ra

ti
v

e
s.

 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

- 
R

o
b

 W
a

tt
R

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
a

n
d

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
se

lf
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

F
IN

A
L

0
3

0
0

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 a

t 
o

n
e

 d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 

th
e

re
 i

s 
n

o
 l

o
g

 o
f 

w
h

o
 h

a
s 

k
e

y
s 

to
 t

h
e

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

, 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
 o

rd
e

rs
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

a
is

e
d

 

a
ft

e
r 

in
v

o
ic

e
s 

a
re

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 a
n

d
 l

a
ck

 o
f 

co
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
a

m
e

n
it

y
 f

u
n

d
s.

F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
s

C
li
e

n
t 

A
ff

a
ir

s 
F

IA
N

L
0

0
0

0
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
N

/A
A

ll
 e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

s 
cl

o
se

d

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
F

IN
A

L
0

0
0

G
re

e
n

N
/A

A
ll
 e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

s 
cl

o
se

d

H
R

, 
L

e
g

a
l 
a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
- 

J
o

n
 

B
e

ll

D
B

S
 c

h
e

ck
s

F
IN

A
L

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
N

/A
N

o
 e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

s 
ra

is
e

d

P
u

rc
h

a
se

 c
a

rd
s

F
IN

A
L 

2
1

0
0

A
M

B
E

R
R

E
D

R
E

D
a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

u
rc

h
a

se
 c

a
rd

 

p
o

li
cy

 w
a

s 
o

u
t 

o
f 

d
a

te
. 

T
e

st
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
d

 

b
re

a
ch

e
s 

o
f 

th
e

 P
u

rc
h

a
se

 C
a

rd
 P

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s,
 H

M
R

C
 V

A
T

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
R

u
le

 G
3

8

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s

P
a

g
e

 1

Page 217



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

A
u

d
it

o
r/

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w

In
te

rn
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 

L
a

w
s

, 
R

e
g

s
, 

R
u

le
s

, 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 o

f 

a
s

s
e

ts

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 o

f 

o
p

s

R
e

li
a

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 

In
te

g
ri

ty

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

a
g

re
e

d

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

a
re

a
s

 w
h

e
re

 n
o

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

- 
D

i 
M

it
c

h
e

ll

C
it

y
 B

o
y

s 
S

e
co

n
d

a
ry

F
IN

A
L

5
2

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
a

N
o

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 

V
a

lu
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s,
 d

a
ta

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

, 
la

ck
 o

f 

in
co

m
e

 s
p

o
t 

ch
e

ck
s,

 n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
ru

le
s 

fo
r 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 c
a

rd
s 

a
n

d
 

in
v

e
n

to
ry

.

S
t 

P
a

u
ls

 R
C

 P
ri

m
a

ry
F

IN
A

L
6

G
R

E
E

N
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
a

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 
ru

le
s 

fo
r 

in
co

m
e

, 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
 c

a
rd

s,
 i

n
v

e
n

to
ry

. 
N

o
n

 

co
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 S
ch

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

F
in

a
n

ci
n

g
 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 f

u
n

d
s

N
e

w
b

ri
d

g
e

 J
u

n
io

r
F

IN
A

L
1

1
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
A

M
B

E
R

a

T
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 h
ig

h
li
g

h
te

d
 a

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

IT
 

p
o

li
cy

 i
n

cl
u

si
v

e
 o

f 
p

ri
n

ci
p

le
 7

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

D
a

ta
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 A

ct
. 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 S
ch

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

F
in

a
n

ci
n

g
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 i
n

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 p
ri

v
a

te
 f

u
n

d
s.

M
a

y
fi

e
ld

 S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
F

IN
A

L
1

4
1

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
a

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 
ru

le
s 

fo
r 

p
e

tt
y

 c
a

sh
, 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 c
a

rd
s,

 s
e

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
u

ti
e

s 
in

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 i
n

co
m

e
, 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 

o
rd

e
rs

, 
q

u
o

ta
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
. 

La
ck

 o
f 

M
ID

A
S

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

co
rd

in
g

 o
f 

o
d

o
m

e
te

rs
. 

R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

R
B

 c
h

e
ck

 

a
g

a
in

st
 d

a
ta

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 a
ct

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 S
ch

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

F
in

a
n

ci
n

g
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 

sp
e

n
d

in
g

 l
im

it
 a

n
d

 h
ir

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

rm
s

C
o

ll
e

g
e

 P
a

rk
 I

n
fa

n
t

F
IN

A
L

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
a

N
o

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
s 

ra
is

e
d

. 

M
e

d
in

a
 P

ri
m

a
ry

F
IN

A
L

6
1

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
a

N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 
ru

le
s 

fo
r 

p
e

tt
y

 c
a

sh
, 

in
v

e
n

to
ry

, 
q

u
o

ta
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 c
a

rd
s.

 L
a

ck
 o

f 
cl

a
ri

ty
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 i
n

 

re
la

ti
o

n
s 

to
 t

h
e

 o
d

o
m

e
te

r 
re

a
d

in
g

s 
o

f 
th

e
 

m
in

i 
b

u
se

s

P
a

g
e

 2

Page 218



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

A
u

d
it

o
r/

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w

In
te

rn
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 

L
a

w
s

, 
R

e
g

s
, 

R
u

le
s

, 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 o

f 

a
s

s
e

ts

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 o

f 

o
p

s

R
e

li
a

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 

In
te

g
ri

ty

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

a
g

re
e

d

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

a
re

a
s

 w
h

e
re

 n
o

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s

M
o

o
ri

n
g

s 
W

a
y

 I
n

fa
n

t
F

IN
A

L
9

1
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 c
h

a
ir

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 i

s 
a

ls
o

 t
h

e
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
F
in

a
n

ce
, 

k
e

y
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
re

m
o

v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 s
it

e
 b

re
a

ch
in

g
 

in
su

ra
n

ce
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

u
se

 o
f 

p
e

tt
y

 c
a

sh
, 

p
e

tt
y

 c
a

sh
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
h

a
d

 

g
o

n
e

 o
v

e
rd

ra
w

n
, 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 c
a

rd
 

st
a

te
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

 b
y

 a
n

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 o
ff

ic
e

r,
 i

n
v

e
n

to
ry

 i
s 

n
o

t 
in

 

a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce
 w

it
h

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
ru

le
s,

 p
e

cu
n

ia
ry

 

in
te

re
st

s 
h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

, 
la

ck
 o

f 

q
u

o
te

s 
fo

r 
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
, 

in
co

rr
e

ct
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c 

li
a

b
il
it

y
 

in
su

ra
n

ce
 o

n
 r

e
co

rd
 f

o
r 

a
ft

e
r 

sc
h

o
o

l 
cl

u
b

 

co
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
.

C
h

a
rl

e
s 

D
ic

k
e

n
s

F
IN

A
L

1
0

2
1

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
d

 n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 S
F

V
S
, 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 o
rd

e
rs

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 

ra
is

e
d

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 o
f 

e
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

in
fa

n
ts

 s
ch

o
o

l 
a

cc
o

u
n

t 
h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 

cl
o

se
d

, 
b

re
a

ch
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 a
ct

 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

 7
 a

n
d

 D
P

A
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

in
fa

n
ts

 s
ch

o
o

l 
ce

a
se

d
 i

n
 N

o
v

 1
3

 a
n

d
 

Ju
n

io
rs

 i
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 c

e
a

se
 i

n
 D

e
c 

1
3

, 
B

re
a

ch
 

o
f 

th
e

 P
C

C
 s

ch
e

m
e

 o
f 

fi
n

a
n

ci
n

g
 s

ch
o

o
ls

, 

p
e

tr
o

l 
cl

a
im

s 
fo

r 
m

il
e

a
g

e
 t

h
a

t 
ca

n
t 

b
e

 

a
cc

o
u

n
te

d
 f

o
r,

 b
re

a
ch

 o
f 

D
B

S
 c

o
d

e
 o

f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
, 

b
re

a
ch

 o
f 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
ru

le
s 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 i

n
 i

n
v

e
n

to
ry

. 
N

o
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 

st
a

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 

w
h

is
tl

e
b

lo
w

in
g

 p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
o

f 

p
e

cu
n

ia
ry

 i
n

te
re

st
s 

is
 n

o
t 

k
e

p
t 

u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
. 

C
u

m
b

e
rl

a
n

d
 I

n
fa

n
t

F
IN

A
L 

1
1

G
R

E
E

N
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
d

 t
h

a
t 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 c
a

rd
 

tr
a

n
sa

ct
io

n
 l

o
g

s 
w

e
re

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 s

ig
n

e
d

 b
y

 

a
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

in
v

e
n

to
ry

 h
e

ld
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
a

ll
y

 b
u

t 
n

o
t 

p
a

ss
w

o
rd

 p
ro

te
ct

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

 r
e

a
so

n
 f

o
r 

d
is

p
o

sa
l 
o

f 
it

e
m

s 
w

a
s 

n
o

t 
g

iv
e

n
.

P
a

g
e

 3

Page 219



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

A
u

d
it

o
r/

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w

In
te

rn
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 

L
a

w
s

, 
R

e
g

s
, 

R
u

le
s

, 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 o

f 

a
s

s
e

ts

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 o

f 

o
p

s

R
e

li
a

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 

In
te

g
ri

ty

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

a
g

re
e

d

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

a
re

a
s

 w
h

e
re

 n
o

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

o
c

ia
l 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
- 

S
te

p
h

e
n

 K
it

c
h

m
a

n

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 T

e
a

m

F
IN

A
L

0
6

0
0

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R

T
e

st
in

g
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
st

a
ff

 a
re

 n
o

t 
fu

ll
y

 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

ti
m

e
fr

a
m

e
s,

 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ss
e

t 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

co
n

ta
ct

 b
e

in
g

 m
a

d
e

 i
s 

n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s 

in
 

co
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

ti
m

e
fr

a
m

e
s,

 s
co

ri
n

g
 o

f 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y

s 
cl

e
a

rl
y

 

li
n

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 r

is
k

 o
f 

re
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

, 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 

g
e

n
e

ra
ll
y

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 S
M

A
R

T
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 d

o
 

n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s 

li
n

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

st
 s

co
ri

n
g

 r
is

k
s 

a
n

d
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 

a
re

 n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s 

b
e

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 i

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

m
a

n
n

e
r 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

o
li

cy
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

O
rd

e
rs

 (
R

e
cr

u
it

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

Y
O

T
 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
)

F
IN

A
L

0
1

0
0

G
R

E
E

N
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
cr

u
it

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
d

h
e

re
d

 t
o

o
. 

Lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 I
ss

u
e

s 

R
e

so
lu

ti
o

n
 P

ro
ce

ss

F
IN

A
L

0
0

0
1

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
t 

a
ll
 

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
w

e
re

 b
e

in
g

 r
e

co
rd

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

sa
m

e
 p

la
ce

. 

K
in

sh
ip

 P
o

li
cy

F
IN

A
L

1
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 a

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 

th
e

 F
ri

e
n

d
s 

a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
y

 c
a

re
rs

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

F
o

st
e

r 
P

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
ca

re
 s

e
lf

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

F
IN

A
L 

0
1

1
0

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 a

t 
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 u
n

it
s 

is
 

n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

st
a

ff
e

d
 2

4
/7

, 
h

o
w

e
v

e
r 

th
e

re
 i

s 

n
o

 i
n

tr
u

d
e

r 
a

la
rm

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

a
ll
 s

ta
ff

 h
a

d
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 

tr
a

in
in

g
. 

T
e

st
in

g
 a

ls
o

 h
ig

h
li
g

h
te

d
 a

t 
o

n
e

 

u
n

it
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
o

n
ly

 o
n

e
 s

ig
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

p
e

tt
y

 c
a

sh
 a

cc
o

u
n

t.
 

H
R

 S
a

fe
r 

re
cr

u
it

m
e

n
t 

C
h

il
d

re
n

s 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

F
IN

A
L

0
3

0
0

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 a

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
S

a
fe

r 

R
e

cr
u

it
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

, 
re

cr
u

it
m

e
n

t 
ch

e
ck

s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

o
f 

ca
se

s 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

e
a

m
s

F
IN

A
L 

0
0

0
0

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
a

T
e

st
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll
 p

re
v

io
u

sl
y

 

ra
is

e
d

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
s 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
s 

a
g

re
e

d
.

P
A

C
T

 -
P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
u

rt
 T

e
a

m
s 

q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

p
a

p
e

rw
o

rk

F
IN

A
L 

0
2

0
0

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
le

g
a

l 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 w
a

s 
st

il
l 
n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 s
e

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 f
ra

m
e

, 
h

o
w

e
v

e
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

n
o

w
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 w
il
l 
b

e
 d

e
li
v

e
re

d
 

in
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
.

F
a

m
il
y

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 T
e

a
m

 

F
IN

A
L

1
A

M
B

E
R

a

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 t

e
st

in
g

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

st
ru

ct
u

re
d

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it

 w
a

s 
n

o
t 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 i
f 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
a

re
 

b
e

in
g

 c
o

m
p

li
e

d
 w

it
h

F
o

ll
o

w
 U

p
s

P
a

g
e

 4

Page 220



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

u
n

c
ti

o
n

A
u

d
it

o
r/

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

C
ri

ti
c

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w

In
te

rn
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 

L
a

w
s

, 
R

e
g

s
, 

R
u

le
s

, 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 o

f 

a
s

s
e

ts

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 o

f 

o
p

s

R
e

li
a

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 

In
te

g
ri

ty

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 

a
g

re
e

d

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

a
re

a
s

 w
h

e
re

 n
o

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s

E
C

 R
o

b
e

rt
s 

C
e

n
tr

e

F
IN

A
L

0
1

0
0

A
M

B
E

R
a

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 t

e
st

in
g

 h
ig

h
li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
sp

o
t 

ch
e

ck
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
co

rd
e

d
, 

it
 w

a
s 

th
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
t 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
ct

io
n

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r,
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

- 
L

o
u

is
e

 

W
il
d

e
r

R
e

g
is

tr
a

rs

F
IN

A
L

1
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
st

a
ff

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
r 

si
g

n
e

d
 

th
e

 c
a

sh
 h

a
n

d
li
n

g
 i

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

s

C
it

y
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 -
 S

te
p

h
e

n
 B

a
il
y

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
/ 

P
ro

je
ct

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

F
IN

A
L 

0
5

2
0

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 n

o
n

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y

. 
i.

e
. 

n
o

 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 r
o

le
s.

 N
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 

w
it

h
 s

co
ri

n
g

 m
e

th
o

d
  

P
u

b
li
c

 H
e

a
lt

h
T

ra
n

sf
e

r 
o

f 
S
ta

ff

F
IN

A
L

0
1

1
A

M
B

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

a

T
e

st
in

g
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
P

C
C

 p
a

y
ro

ll
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 t
o

 p
a

y
 m

il
e

a
g

e
 t

o
 P

C
T

 

st
a

ff
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
 c

o
m

p
li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 f
il
li
n

g
 

o
f 

p
o

st
s 

in
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
p

o
li

cy
.

P
O

R
T

C
a

m
b

e
r 

le
tt

in
g

- 
a

g
e

n
t 

co
ll

e
ct

in
g

 

H
a

rb
o

u
r 

d
u

e
s

F
IN

A
L

2
G

R
E

E
N

A
M

B
E

R
A

M
B

E
R

a

T
e

st
in

g
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 w

e
a

k
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

n
 

w
o

rk
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 a

g
e

n
t 

a
t 

th
e

 C
a

m
b

e
r,

 t
h

e
 p

re
v

io
u

s 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

ch
e

ck
s 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 f
o

ll
o

w
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 a
g

re
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 
N

o
n

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 

se
ct

io
n

 4
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

ci
a

l 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

th
e

 

co
n

tr
a

ct
.

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t-

 

S
im

o
n

 M
o

o
n

P
u

b
li
c 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 R
e

te
n

d
e

r
F

IN
A

L 
0

0
0

0
G

R
E

E
N

N
/A

N
o

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
s 

ra
is

e
d

C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

F
IN

A
L

0
0

0
0

G
R

E
E

N
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
N

/A
N

o
 e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

s 
ra

is
e

d

H
ir

e
 C

a
rs

F
IN

A
L 

0
3

1
0

A
M

B
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

G
R

E
E

N
A

M
B

E
R

a

T
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 h
ig

h
li
g

h
te

d
 l

a
ck

 o
f 

ch
e

ck
s 

o
n

 

d
ri

v
in

g
 l

ic
e

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 h
ir

e
 c

a
r 

re
q

u
e

st
 

fo
rm

s,
 a

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
sy

st
e

m
 t

o
 r

e
co

rd
 m

il
e

a
g

e
, 

d
a

m
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 f

u
e

l 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
. 

 N
o

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

h
ir

e
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

La
ck

 o
f 

se
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

d
u

ti
e

s 
w

h
e

n
 c

o
n

fi
rm

in
g

 i
n

v
o

ic
e

s.

P
a

g
e

 5

Page 221



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

   

   

Decision maker: 
 

Cabinet 
City Council 
 

Subject: 
 

Treasury Management Mid Year Review for 2013/14 
 

Date of decision: 
 

7 November 2013 (Governance, Audit & Standards Committee 
–    Information only) 
2 December 2013 (Cabinet) 
10 December 2013 (City Council) 
 

Report by: 
 

Chris Ward, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: No 
Budget & policy framework decision: Yes 

 

 

1. Summary 
 

 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines 
Treasury Management as “The management of the organisation’s cash 
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the 
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit 
of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. The risks associated 
with Treasury Management include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk 
and refinancing risk. The report contained in Appendix A reports on the City 
Council’s treasury management position as at 30 September 2013. Appendix 
B contains proposed changes to the Council’s approved investments.  

2. Purpose of report  

 The purpose of the report is to inform members and the wider community of 
the Council’s Treasury Management position at 30 September 2013 and of 
the risks attached to that position, and to revise the list of approved 
investments.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 223



2 

 

 

3. Recommendations 
 

1. That the following actual Treasury Management indicators for the second 
quarter of 2013/14 be noted:  

(a) The Council’s debt at 30 September was as follows: 

Prudential Indicator 2013/14 Limit 

£M 

Position at 30/9/13 

£M 

Authorised Limit 469 444 

Operational Boundary 447 444 

 
(b ) The maturity structure of the Council’s borrowing was: 
 
   

 Under 1 
Year 

1 to 2 
Years 

3 to 5 
Years 

6 to 10 
Years 

11 to 20 
Years 

21 to 30 
Years 

31 to 40 
Years 

41 to 50 
Years 

Lower 
Limit 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Upper 
Limit 

25% 25% 25% 25% 30% 30% 30% 70% 

Actual 4% 1% 3% 5% 9% 13% 11% 54% 

 
(c) The Council’s interest rate exposures at 30 September 2013 were: 

 
   

 Limit 

£m 

Actual 

£m 

Fixed Interest 320 258 

Variable Interest (320) (163) 

 

Page 224



3 

 

(d) Sums invested for periods longer than 364 days at 30 September 2013 were: 
 

Maturing after Original Limit 

£m 

Actual 

£m 

31/3/2014 218 87 

31/3/2015 208 45 

31/3/2016 198 30 

 
2. That the investment limit for registered social landlords (RSLs) be set at £80m in 

total. 
 

3. That investments be placed with RSLs on the basis of a single credit rating. (A 
credit rating from at least two credit rating agencies will be required for other 
institutions). 

Page 225



4 

 

 
4. That investment counter party limits and duration limits be amended as shown in 

the table below: 
    

 Current 
Maximum 

Investment in a 
Single 

Organisation 

Recommended 
Maximum 

Investment in a 
Single 

Organisation 
Category 1 
United Kingdom Government including the 
Debt Management Office Deposit Facility 

Unlimited 
investments for 
up to 5 years 

Unlimited 
investments for 
up to 5 years 

Category 2 
Local authorities in England, Scotland and 
Wales 

£20m for up to 5 
years 

£26m for up to 
5 years 

Category 3 
Banks with a short term credit rating of 
F1+ and a long term rating of Aa-. 
Aaa rated money market funds 

£20m for up to 
732 days 

£26m for up to 
5 years 

Category 4 
Banks with a short term credit rating of F1 
and a long term rating of A+. 
Building societies with a short term credit 
rating of F1 and a long term rating of A. 
Corporate bonds with a long term credit 
rating of Aa- 

£15m for up to 
732 days 

£19m for up to 
5 years for 
banks and 

building 
societies. £19m 
for up to 4 years 

for corporate 
bonds. 

Category 5 
Banks with a short term credit rating of F1 
and a long term rating of A. 
Building societies with a short term credit 
rating of F1 and a long term rating of A-. 
Corporate bonds with a long term credit 
rating of A+ 

£13m for up to 
364 days 

£13m for up to 
5 years for 
banks and 

building 
societies. £13m 
for up to 4 years 

for corporate 
bonds. 

Category 6 
Banks with a short term credit rating of F1 
and a long term rating of A-. 
Corporate bonds with a long term credit 
rating of A 

£10m for up to 
364 days 

£10m for up to 
5 years for 

banks. £10m for 
up to 4 years for 

corporate 
bonds. 

Category 7 
Corporate bonds with a long term credit 
rating of A- 

£6m for up to 
364 days 

£6m for up to 4 
years 

Page 226



5 

 

 

 Current 
Maximum 

Investment in a 
Single 

Organisation 

Recommended 
Maximum 

Investment in a 
Single 

Organisation 
Category 8 
Building societies with a BBB credit rating 

£10m for up to 
364 days 

£10m for up to 
364 days 

Category 9 
Building societies with single credit rating 
and unrated building societies 

£6m for up to 
364 days. 

Smaller building 
societies have 

lower investment 
limits. 

£6m for up to 
364 days. 

Smaller building 
societies have 

lower 
investment 

limits. 
Category 10 
Banks with a short term credit rating of F3 
and a long term rating of Bbb- 

£6m for up to 95 
days. 

No investments 
permitted 

Category 11 
RSLs with a double A long term credit 
rating 

New Category £26m for up to 
5 years or 10 

years if secured 
Category 12 
RSLs with a single A long term credit 
rating 

New Category £20m for up to 
5 years or 10 

years if secured 
 

5. That the Council resumes investing in the Euro zone. 
 

4. Background 

 CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code requires a Treasury Management Mid 
Year Review to be considered by the City Council. The report in Appendix A 
covers the first six months of 2013/14. 

Page 227



6 

 

 
5. Reasons for Recommendations  

 
It is felt that the risk climate has improved and the proposals within this report 
also seek to diversify the Council's approved counter party list.  
 
Some of the fears surrounding the continued existence of the Eurozone have 
now subsided following the decision by the European Central Bank to 
announce unlimited support for Governments who request external aid. 
Although no country has, as yet, sought help, just the offer of such backing 
has seen yields on peripheral government bonds fall back materially. 
 
There were two major UK funding announcements in 2012. The first was the 
Extended Collateral Term Repo facility which provided institutions, via regular 
auctions, with access to 6 month funding at Bank Rate plus 0.25%. The 
second was the Funding for Lending Scheme (FLS) which also allowed 
financial institutions access to low cost funding for an extended period.  
Returns on cash deposits declined quickly from June 2012 after the Bank of 
England announced the FLS. The FLS was designed to stimulate lending to 
individuals and companies by offering cheap funding to the banking sector. 
The influx of cheap Bank of England cash reduced banks’ demand for cash 
from other sources and consequently placed downward pressure on market 
rates so that London Inter Bank bid rates (LIBID) are now 0.39% for 3 month 
deposits, 0.46% for 6 month deposits and 0.75% for 12 month deposits. 
Consequently the return on the Council’s investments has fallen from 0.96% 
for 2012/13 to 0.62% for the first six months of 2013/14 as existing 
investments made prior to June 2012 mature and are replaced by new 
investments at the lower rates now prevailing. In order to obtain better 
interest rates it is necessary to invest beyond the duration of the FLS.  
 
Increasing the overall duration of the investment portfolio will increase risk, 
but it is felt that the risk of financial institutions collapsing is much reduced 
compared to during the height of the banking crisis. Increasing the duration of 
the investment portfolio will also enable risks to be spread over more sectors 
of the economy including registered social landlords (RSLs) and commercial 
companies through investments in corporate bonds. 
 
There is currently a duration limit of 732 days for banks with a double A credit 
rating and 364 days for banks with a single A credit rating. The current 
duration limits for building societies are 732 days for societies with a credit 
rating of Aa or A+, and 364 days for societies with a credit rating of less than 
A+. It is recommended that the maximum duration of investments in banks 
and building societies with at least a single A credit rating be increased to five 
years.  

Page 228



7 

 

 
Corporate bonds are tradable debt instruments issued by commercial 
companies. A corporate bond can be purchased from either the company 
that issued it or from another investor in the secondary market. Having 
purchased a corporate bond, the Council can either hold it to maturity and 
receive a fixed return or sell it to another investor prior to maturity. The 
market price of corporate bonds is influenced by movements in interest rates 
and the credit quality of the company that issued it. The Annual Investment 
Strategy approved by the City Council on 19 March 2013 allows for 
investments to be made in corporate bonds with a AA credit rating that 
mature within two years and corporate bonds with an A credit rating that 
mature within one year. On 30 September 2013 the Council held one 
corporate bond valued at £2.3m. In practice there has been an inadequate 
supply of corporate bonds of the credit quality and duration required by the 
existing Annual Investment Strategy. It is therefore recommended that the 
maximum duration for corporate bonds with at least a single A credit rating 
be increased to four years reflecting the lower likelihood of Government 
support in the event of a commercial company collapsing. 
 
There are over 30 registered social landlords (RSLs) with a single or double 
A credit rating. RSLs are subject to Government regulation but their debts are 
not guaranteed by the Government. As RSLs own houses, lending to RSLs 
can be secured by a charge against the RSLs properties. However RSLs are 
normally only rated by one credit rating agency and typically borrow large 
amounts of money, £20m or more over a minimum of five to ten years. It is 
recommended that RSLs with a double A credit rating be given a counter 
party limit of £26m and that RSLs with a single A credit rating be given an 
investment limit of £20m. It is also recommended that investments be placed 
with RSLs that have a credit rating from a single credit rating agency. The 
requirement for other institutions would continue to be a minimum of two 
credit ratings from different agencies. It is recommended that the maximum 
duration of investments with RSLs be 5 years or 10 years if the investment is 
secured by a charge against the RSLs properties. 

Page 229



8 

 

 
Published default rates suggest that the Council’s current counter party limits 
for counter parties with a double A credit rating could prudently be increased. 
The global corporate average default rates (1981 to 2012) published by 
Standard and Poor suggest that a double A rated counter party is three times 
less likely to default than a single A rated counter party on a one year 
investment. The current Annual Investment Strategy provides a counter party 
limit of £13m for banks with an A credit rating. On this basis the counter party 
limit for banks with a double A credit rating could be increased to £39m. 
Whilst this would not increase the probability of a default, it would increase 
the severity of the consequences of a default as an investment in a double A 
rated bank could represent 15% of the Council’s investment portfolio. It is 
therefore recommended that the counter party limit for double A rated banks 
be increased by £6m from £20m to £26m. This would represent 10% of the 
Council’s investment portfolio at 30 September 2013. It is recommended that 
the counter party limit for triple A rated money market funds also be 
increased to £26m. It is also recommended that the counter party limit for 
banks with an A+ credit rating; building societies an A credit rating; and 
corporate bonds with an Aa- credit rating be increased by £4m from £15m to 
£19m. 
 
It is currently the Council’s practice not to place investments with institutions 
domiciled in the Euro zone. Whilst there are still risks arising from the 
sovereign debt crisis in the Euro zone, a degree of stability appears to have 
been achieved. Therefore it is recommended that the Council resumes 
investing in the Euro zone. This will increase the number of banks the 
Council can lend to and also increase the number of corporate bonds that will 
meet the Council’s investment criteria. It is recommended that the Council 
continue to restrict its investments to institutions domiciled in countries with a 
sovereign credit rating of at least AA+. This will restrict the Council’s 
investments in the Euro zone to the stronger economies such as Finland, 
France, Germany and the Netherlands. 

Page 230



9 

 

 
When the Annual Investment Strategy was approved by the City Council on 
19 March 2013 the Co-operative Bank’s lowest short term credit rating was 
F3 and its lowest long term credit rating was Bbb from Fitch. In June Fitch 
downgraded the Co-operative Bank’s short term credit rating to B and its long 
term rating to Bb-. The downgrade reflects the rating agencies concerns that 
the bank’s capital requirements are greater than originally anticipated. The 
bank indicated that it required £1.5bn of additional capital – with the rating 
agency expecting £1bn to come from the bail-in of junior bondholders and the 
remaining £0.5bn from the Co-operative Group in 2014. Fitch also considers 
the negative reputational impact the press has had on the banking franchise, 
with depositor and investor confidence waning. The other credit agency that 
rates the Co-operative Bank, Moody’s, has also down graded the bank to 
below investment grade. It is therefore recommended that the Council should 
not place investments with the Co-operative Bank. The Council’s main 
current accounts are with the Co-operative Bank and there will be balances 
on these accounts although these should not exceed £300,000.  The Council 
has no other funds placed with the Co-operative Bank.  
 
The effect of the above recommendations on the Council’s investment 
counter parties is shown in Appendix B.  
 

6. Options considered and rejected 
 

Returns could also be improved by investing in triple B rated banks, 
increasing investment limits with lower rated institutions, or investing in banks 
domiciled in countries that do not have a sovereign credit rating of at least 
Aa+. 
 
Published default rates suggest that a triple B rated institution is substantially 
more likely to default than a single A rated institution. The global corporate 
average default rates (1981 to 2012) published by Standard and Poor 
suggest that a triple B rated counter party is three times more likely to default 
than a single A rated counter party on a one year investment. Triple B rated 
institutions typically pay around 0.1% more interest than single A rated 
institutions. It is felt that the additional 0.1% interest does not justify the  
additional risk. 
 
It is recommended that the investment limits for double A rated corporate 
bonds, A+ rated banks and A rated building societies has been increased to 
better reflect published default rates with the proviso that investments in a 
single counter party should be limited to approximately 10% of the 
investment portfolio. However, increasing the investment limits of lower rated 
institutions would not be consistent with the published default rates, so no 
recommendations are made in this regard. 

Page 231



10 

 

 
Investing in institutions domiciled in countries that do not have an AA+ 
sovereign credit rating could generate a return that is around 0.2% greater 
than an institution with a similar credit rating in a country that does have an 
AA+ sovereign credit rating. The additional risk attached to investing in 
institutions domiciled in countries that do not have an AA+ sovereign credit 
rating is difficult to quantify, but the removal of this criteria could result in 
funds being invested in non-core Euro zone counties exposing the Council to 
the economic weaknesses of those economies and funds being invested in 
politically volatile regions such as the Middle East.  
 
Funds could also be invested in share capital or property through collective 
investment vehicles. However this is not recommended as it would put the 
capital sum at risk through movements in prices. 
 

7. Implications 
 

The net cost of Treasury Management activities and the risks associated with 
those activities have a significant effect on the City Council’s overall finances. 
Effective Treasury Management provides support to the organisation in the 
achievement of its business and service objectives.   

 
 

` 8.  Equality impact assessment (EIA) 
 

A preliminary equalities impact assessment on Treasury Management Policy 
has been carried out. 

 
9.  City Solicitor’s Comments 

 

The Section 151 Officer is required by the Local Government Act 1972 and 
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 to ensure that the Council’s 
budgeting, financial management, and accounting practices meet the 
relevant statutory and professional requirements. Members must have 
regard to and be aware of the wider duties placed on the Council by various 
statutes governing the conduct of its financial affairs. 

Page 232



11 

 

 

10. Head of Finance’s comments 
 
All financial considerations are contained within the body of the report and 
the attached appendices 

 
 
…………………………………………………………………. 
Signed by Head of Financial Services & Section 151 Officer  
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A: Treasury Management Mid Year Review 2013/14 
Appendix B:  Investment Counter Party List 
 

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 

 

The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to 
a material extent by the author in preparing this report: 

 
Title of document Location 

1 Treasury Management Files Financial Services 
2   

 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ 
deferred/ rejected by the City Council on 10 December 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Leader of the Council 
 

Page 233



12 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REVIEW OF 2013/14 

1. GOVERNANCE 

The Treasury Management Policy Statement, Annual Minimum Revenue Provision for 
Debt Repayment Statement and Annual Investment Strategy approved by the City 
Council on 19 March 2013 provide the framework within which Treasury Management 
activities are undertaken.  

2. ECONOMIC UPDATE 

The quarter ended 30 September saw indicators suggest that the economic recovery 
accelerated; household spending growth remaining robust; inflation falling back 
towards the 2% target; the Bank of England introduce state-contingent forward 
guidance; 10-year gilt yields rise to 3% at their peak and the FTSE 100 fall slightly to 
6460; and the Federal Reserve decide to maintain the monthly rate of its asset 
purchases. 

3. INTEREST RATE FORECAST 
 

The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following 
forecast: 
 

  

Dec-
13 

Mar-
14 

Jun-
14 

Sep-
14 

Dec-
14 

Mar-
15 

Jun-
15 

Bank rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 

5yr PWLB 
rate 

2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80% 

10yr PWLB 
rate 

3.70% 3.70% 3.70% 3.80% 3.80% 3.90% 4.00% 

25yr PWLB 
rate 

4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.50% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 

50yr PWLB 
rate 

4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 

 
Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts in late 
September as a result of an increase in confidence in the economic recovery, chiefly in 
the US, but more recently, also in the UK and Eurozone.  The latest forecast now 
includes a first increase in Bank Rate in quarter 3 of 2016 (previously quarter 4).   

 
 

Page 234



13 

 

 
 
 
 
After the Bank of England's previous Inflation Report included a somewhat 
encouraging shift towards optimism in terms of a marginal upgrading of growth 
forecasts, the August Inflation Report was published in the midst of a welter of 
economic statistics which suggest a major simultaneous shift up in gear for the 
economy in all of the three sectors of services, manufacturing / industrial and 
construction.  It is therefore not surprising that the Report upgraded growth forecasts 
for 2013 from 1.2% to 1.4% and for 2014 from 1.7% to 2.5%.  However, Bank 
Governor Mark Carney put this into perspective by describing this welcome increase 
as not yet being “escape velocity” to ensure we return to strong and sustainable 
growth, after what has been the weakest recovery on record after a recession. As for 
inflation, it was forecast to be little changed from the previous Report – falling back to 
2% within two years and staying there during year three. 

 
In addition to the stimulus provided by Quantitative Easing (QE), the Funding for 
Lending Scheme (FLS) is aimed at encouraging banks to expand lending to small and 
medium size enterprises.  The FLS certainly seems to be having a positive effect in 
terms of encouraging house purchases (though levels are still far below the pre-crisis 
level), and causing a significant increase in house prices – but only in London and the 
south east.  The FLS is also due to be bolstered by the second phase of Help to Buy 
aimed to support purchasing of second hand properties, which is now due to start in 
October.   
 

The Bank of England also issued forward guidance with the Inflation Report which said 
that the Bank will not start to consider raising interest rates until the jobless rate 
(Labour Force Survey (LFS) / International Labour Organisation (ILO), i.e. not the 
claimant count measure has fallen to 7% or below.  This would require the creation of 
about 750,000 jobs and was forecast to take three years. The UK unemployment rate 
currently stands at 2.5 million i.e. 7.7 % on the LFS / ILO measure.  The Bank's 
guidance is subject to three provisos, mainly around inflation; breaching any of them 
would sever the link between interest rates and unemployment levels.  This actually 
makes forecasting Bank Rate much more complex given the lack of available reliable 
forecasts by economists over a three year plus horizon. The Capita Asset Services 
view is that the recession since 2007 was notable for how unemployment did not rise 
to the levels that would normally be expected in a major recession. The latest Inflation 
Report noted that productivity has sunk to 2005 levels.  Capita Asset Services are, 
therefore, concerned that there has been a significant level of retention of labour, 
which will mean that a significant amount of GDP growth can be accommodated 
without a major reduction in unemployment.   

Page 235



14 

 

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing on 
the UK. Major volatility in bond yields is likely during the remainder of 2013/14 as 
investor fears and confidence ebb and flow between favouring more risky assets i.e. 
equities, and safer bonds.  

Near-term, there is some residual risk of further QE - if there is a dip in strong growth 
or if the MPC takes action to do more QE in order to reverse the rapid increase in 
market rates, especially in gilt yields and interest rates up to 10 years.  This could 
cause shorter-dated gilt yields and PWLB rates over the next year or two to 
significantly undershoot the forecasts. The failure in the US, over passing a Federal 
budget for the new financial year starting on 1 October, and the expected tension over 
raising the debt ceiling in mid October, could also see bond yields temporarily dip until 
any binding agreement is reached between the opposing Republican and Democrat 
sides. Conversely, the eventual start of tapering by the Fed could cause bond yields to 
rise. 

The longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to the high volume of 
gilt issuance in the UK, and of bond issuance in other major western countries.  
Increasing investor confidence in economic recovery is also likely to compound this 
effect as a continuation of recovery will further encourage investors to switch back 
from bonds to equities.   

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently weighted to 
the upside after five months of robust good news on the economy. However, only time 
will tell just how long this period of strong economic growth will last; it also remains 
exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key areas.   

 Downside risks currently include:  

· The conflict in the UK between market expectations of how quickly unemployment 
will fall as opposed to the Bank of England’s forecasts 

· Prolonged political disagreement over the US Federal Budget and raising the debt 
ceiling 

· A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major 
disappointment to investor and market expectations. 

· The potential for a significant increase in negative reactions of populaces in 
Eurozone countries against austerity programmes, especially in countries with very 
high unemployment rates e.g. Greece and Spain, which face huge challenges in 
engineering economic growth to correct their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

· The Italian political situation is frail and unstable. 
· Problems in other Eurozone heavily indebted countries (e.g. Cyprus and Portugal) 

which could also generate safe haven flows into UK gilts. 
· Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western economies, 

especially the Eurozone and Japan. 
· Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU and US, 

depressing economic recovery in the UK. 
· Geopolitical risks e.g. Syria, Iran, North Korea, which could trigger safe haven flows 

back into bonds 

Page 236



15 

 

 

The potential for upside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially for longer 
term PWLB rates include: - 

· A sharp upturn in investor confidence that sustainable robust world economic 
growth is firmly expected causing a surge in the flow of funds out of bonds into 
equities. 

· A reversal of Sterling’s safe-haven status on a sustainable improvement in financial 
stresses in the Eurozone. 

· Further downgrading by credit rating agencies of the creditworthiness and credit 
rating of UK Government debt, consequent upon repeated failure to achieve fiscal 
correction targets and sustained recovery of economic growth which could result in 
the ratio of total government debt to GDP to rising to levels that undermine investor 
confidence in the UK and UK debt. 

· UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, causing an 
increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

· In the longer term – an earlier than currently expected reversal of QE in the UK; this 
could initially be implemented by allowing gilts held by the Bank to mature without 
reinvesting in new purchases, followed later by outright sale of gilts currently held. 

Page 237



16 

 

 

4.  NET DEBT 

The Council’s net borrowing position excluding accrued interest at 30 September 2013 
was as follows: 

  1 April 2013 30 September 
2013 

 £’000 £’000 

Supported Borrowing 185,802 184,933 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Self Financing (Unsupported) 

85,665 85,264 

Other Unsupported Borrowing 86,706 86,300 

Sub Total - Borrowing 358,173 356,497 

Finance Leases (Unsupported) 4,538 4,176 

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
Schemes (Supported) 

73,349 73,240 

Waste Disposal Service Concession 
Arrangement (Unsupported) 

10,872 10,558 

Sub Total Service Concession 
Arrangements (including PFIs) 

84,221 83,798 

Gross Debt 446,932 444,471 

Investments (246,068) (260,969) 

Net Debt 200,864 183,502 

 

Page 238



17 

 

Prior to 1 April 2004 local authorities were only permitted to borrow to the extent that 
the Government had granted credit approvals. When the Government granted credit 
approvals it also increased the Council’s revenue grant to cover most of the cost of the 
resulting borrowing. This is known as supported borrowing and accounts for £185m (or 
52%) of total borrowing.  

From 1 April 2004 the Council was permitted to borrow without government support, 
known as unsupported borrowing. On 28 March 2012 the Council made a capital 
payment of £88.6m to the Government under the HRA Self Financing arrangements in 
order to avoid future and greater payments to the Government. This was funded by 
unsupported borrowing. 

Revenue grants from the Government also cover most of the £73m financing element 
of the Milton Cross School, highways and learning disabilities facilities private finance 
initiative (PFI) schemes.  

In essence the Government funds most of the financing costs associated with 58% of 
the Council’s debt. 

The Council has a high level of investments relative to its gross debt due to a high level 
of reserves, partly built up to meet future commitments under the Private Finance 
Initiative schemes and future capital expenditure. However these reserves are fully 
committed and are not available to fund new expenditure. The £84m of borrowing 
taken in 2011/12 to take advantage of the very low PWLB rates has also temporarily 
increased the Council’s cash balances.  

The current high level of investments increases the Council’s exposure to credit risk, ie. 
the risk that an approved borrower defaults on the Council’s investment.  In the interim 
period where investments are high because loans have been taken in advance of 
need, there is also a  short term risk that the rates (and therefore the cost) at which 
money has been borrowed will  be greater  than the rates at which those loans can be 
invested. The level of investments will fall as capital expenditure is incurred and 
commitments under the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes are met. 

5. DEBT RESCHEDULING 

 Under certain circumstances it could be beneficial to use the Council’s investments to 
repay its debt. However this normally entails paying a premium to the lender, namely 
the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). Debt rescheduling is only beneficial to the 
revenue account when the benefits of reduced net interest payments exceed the cost of 
any premiums payable to the lender. Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited 
in the current economic climate and by the structure of interest rates following increases 
in PWLB new borrowing rates in October 2010. 

No debt rescheduling was undertaken during the first half of the year. 

Page 239



18 

 

6. BORROWING ACTIVITY 

The graph below shows the movement in PWLB rates for the first six months of the 
year: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PWLB certainty rates, quarter ended 30th September 2013 

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Low 0.98% 1.95% 3.17% 4.19% 4.27% 

Date 18/07/2013 18/07/2013 18/07/2013 18/07/2013 18/07/2013 

High 1.17% 2.6% 3.79% 4.48% 4.51% 

Date 18/09/2013 11/09/2013 11/09/2013 11/09/2013 11/09/2013 

Average 1.07% 2.27% 3.47% 4.32% 4.37% 

No borrowing has been undertaken in the first six months of 2013/14. 

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 25 Year Target

 

Page 240



19 

 

The Council’s debt at 30 September was as follows: 

Prudential Indicator 2012/13 Limit 

£M 

Position at 30/9/12 

£M 

Authorised Limit 469 444 

Operational Boundary 447 444 

 It is anticipated that further borrowing will not be undertaken during this financial 
year. 

7. MATURITY STRUCTURE OF BORROWING 

In recent years the cheapest loans have often been very long loans repayable at 
maturity.  

During 2007/08 the Council rescheduled £70.8m of debt. This involved repaying 
loans from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) early and taking out new loans 
from the PWLB with longer maturities ranging from 45 to 49 years. The effect of the 
debt restructuring was to reduce the annual interest payable on the Council’s debt 
and to lengthen the maturity profile of the Council’s debt.  

£50m of new borrowing was taken in 2008/09 to finance capital expenditure. Funds 
were borrowed from the PWLB at fixed rates of between 4.45% and 4.60% for 
between 43 and 50 years.  

A further £173m was borrowed in 2011/12 to finance capital expenditure and the 
HRA Self Financing payment to the Government. Funds were borrowed from the 
PWLB at rates of between 3.48% and 5.01%. £89m of this borrowing is repayable 
at maturity in excess of 48 years. The remaining £84m is repayable in equal 
installments of principal over periods of between 20 and 31 years. 

As a result of interest rates in 2007/08 when the City Council rescheduled much of 
its debt and interest rates in 2008/09 and 2011/12 when the City Council undertook 
considerable new borrowing 54% of the City Council’s debt matures in over 40 
years time.  

The Government has issued guidance on making provision for the repayment of 
debt which the Council is legally obliged to have regard to. The City Council is 
required to make greater provision for the repayment of debt in earlier years. 
Therefore the City Council is required to provide for the repayment of debt well in 
advance of it becoming due. This is illustrated in graph below. 

Page 241



20 

 

Principal Repayment of Debt

0.00

5,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

15,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

25,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

35,000,000.00

1 5 9 13
 

17
 

21
 

25
 

29
 

33
 

37
 

41
 

45
 

49
 

Years

£

Debt Repayments Provision for Debt Repayments
 

This means that it is necessary to invest the funds set aside for the repayment of 
debt with its attendant credit and interest rate risks (see sections 10 and 12). The 
City Council could reschedule its debt, but unless certain market conditions exist at 
the time, premium payments have to be made to lenders.   

CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice which the 
City Council is legally obliged to have regard to requires local authorities to set 
upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of their borrowing. The limits set by 
the City Council on 19 March together with the City Councils actual debt maturity 
pattern are shown below. 

 Under 1 
Year 

1 to 2 
Years 

3 to 5 
Years 

6 to 10 
Years 

11 to 20 
Years 

21 to 30 
Years 

31 to 40 
Years 

41 to 50 
Years 

Lower 
Limit 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Upper 
Limit 

25% 25% 25% 25% 30% 30% 30% 70% 

Actual 4% 1% 3% 5% 9% 13% 11% 54% 

 

Page 242



21 

 

 

8. INVESTMENT ACTIVITY 

Investment rates available in the market have continued at historically low levels 
and have fallen further during the quarter as a result of the Funding for Lending 
Scheme.   

The Council held £261m of investments as at 30 September 2013 (£246m at 1 April 
2013). Returns on cash deposits declined quickly from June 2012 after the Bank of 
England announced the Funding for Lending Scheme (FLS). The FLS was 
designed to stimulate lending to individuals and companies by offering cheap 
funding to the banking sector. The influx of cheap Bank of England cash reduced 
banks’ demand for cash from other sources and consequently placed downward 
pressure on market rates so that London Inter Bank bid rates (LIBID) are now 
0.39% for 3 month deposits, 0.46% for 6 month deposits and 0.75% for 12 month 
deposits. Consequently the return on the Council’s investments has fallen from 
0.96% in 2012/13 to 0.62% for the first six months of 2013/14 as existing 
investments made prior to June 2012 mature and are replaced by new investments 
at the lower rates now prevailing. 
 
The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2013/14 is £1,646k, and performance 
for the year to date is £42k above budget. 

 
 
9. INVESTMENT COUNTER PARTY CRITERIA 

 
It is felt that the risk climate has improved and the proposals within this report also 
seek to diversify the Council's approved counter party list.  
 
Some of the fears surrounding the continued existence of the Eurozone have now 
subsided following the decision by the European Central Bank to announce 
unlimited support for Governments who request external aid. Although no country 
has, as yet, sought help, just the offer of such backing has seen yields on peripheral 
government bonds fall back materially. 
 
 

Page 243



22 

 

 
There were two major UK funding announcements in 2012. The first was the 
Extended Collateral Term Repo facility which provided institutions, via regular 
auctions, with access to 6 month funding at Bank Rate plus 0.25%. The second was 
the Funding for Lending Scheme (FLS) which also allowed financial institutions 
access to low cost funding for an extended period.  Returns on cash deposits 
declined quickly from June 2012 after the Bank of England announced the FLS. The 
FLS was designed to stimulate lending to individuals and companies by offering 
cheap funding to the banking sector. The influx of cheap Bank of England cash 
reduced banks’ demand for cash from other sources and consequently placed 
downward pressure on market rates so that London Inter Bank bid rates (LIBID) are 
now 0.39% for 3 month deposits, 0.46% for 6 month deposits and 0.75% for 12 
month deposits. Consequently the return on the Council’s investments has fallen 
from 0.96% for 2012/13 to 0.62% for the first six months of 2013/14 as existing 
investments made prior to June 2012 mature and are replaced by new investments 
at the lower rates now prevailing. In order to obtain better interest rates it is 
necessary to invest beyond the duration of the FLS.  
 
Increasing the overall duration of the investment portfolio will increase risk, but it is 
felt that the risk of financial institutions collapsing is much reduced compared to 
during the height of the banking crisis. Increasing the duration of the investment 
portfolio will also enable risks to be spread over more sectors of the economy 
including registered social landlords (RSLs) and commercial companies through 
investments in corporate bonds. 
 
 
There is currently a duration limit of 732 days for banks with a double A credit rating 
and 364 days for banks with a single A credit rating. The current duration limits for 
building societies are 732 days for societies with a credit rating of Aa or A+, and 364 
days for societies with a credit rating of less than A+. It is recommended that the 
maximum duration of investments in banks and building societies with at least a 
single A credit rating be increased to five years.  

Page 244



23 

 

 
Corporate bonds are tradable debt instruments issued by commercial companies. A 
corporate bond can be purchased from either the company that issued it or from 
another investor in the secondary market. Having purchased a corporate bond, the 
Council can either hold it to maturity and receive a fixed return or sell it to another 
investor prior to maturity. The market price of corporate bonds is influenced by 
movements in interest rates and the credit quality of the company that issued it. The 
Annual Investment Strategy approved by the City Council on 19 March 2013 allows 
for investments to be made in corporate bonds with a AA credit rating that mature 
within two years and corporate bonds with an A credit rating that mature within one 
year. On 30 September 2013 the Council held one corporate bond valued at £2.3m. 
In practice there has been an inadequate supply of corporate bonds of the credit 
quality and duration required by the existing Annual Investment Strategy. It is 
therefore recommended that the maximum duration for corporate bonds with at 
least a single A credit rating be increased to four years reflecting the lower 
likelihood of Government support in the event of a commercial company collapsing.  

 
There are over 30 registered social landlords (RSLs) with a single or double A credit 
rating. RSLs are subject to Government regulation but their debts are not 
guaranteed by the Government. As RSLs own houses, lending to RSLs can be 
secured by a charge against the RSLs properties. However RSLs are normally only 
rated by one credit rating agency and typically borrow large amounts of money, 
£20m or more over a minimum of five to ten years. It is recommended that RSLs 
with a double A credit rating be given a counter party limit of £26m and that RSLs 
with a single A credit rating be given an investment limit of £20m. It is also 
recommended that investments be placed with RSLs that have a credit rating from a 
single credit rating agency. The requirement for other institutions would continue to 
be a minimum of two credit ratings from different agencies. It is recommended that 
the maximum duration of investments with RSLs be 5 years or 10 years if the 
investment is secured by a charge against the RSLs properties. 
 
The extent to which the duration of the investment portfolio can be increased will be 
determined by the Council’s cash flows. The Government’s statutory Guidance on 
Investments requires the Council to consider the security, liquidity and yield of 
investments in that order. The extent to which the duration of the investment 
portfolio can be increased will be determined by the Council’s future cash 
requirements. 

Page 245



24 

 

 
Published default rates suggest that the Council’s current counter party limits for 
counter parties with a double A credit rating could prudently be increased. The 
global corporate average default rates (1981 to 2012) published by Standard and 
Poor suggest that a double A rated counter party is three times less likely to default 
than a single A rated counter party on a one year investment. The current Annual 
Investment Strategy provides a counter party limit of £13m for banks with an A 
credit rating. On this basis the counter party limit for banks with a double A credit 
rating could be increased to £39m. Whilst this would not increase the probability of 
a default, it would increase the severity of the consequences of a default as an 
investment in a double A rated bank could represent 15% of the Council’s 
investment portfolio. It is therefore recommended that the counter party limit for 
double A rated banks be increased by £6m from £20m to £26m. This would 
represent 10% of the Council’s investment portfolio at 30 September 2013. It is 
recommended that the counter party limit for triple A rated money market funds also 
be increased to £26m. It is also recommended that the counter party limit for banks 
with an A+ credit rating; building societies an A credit rating; and corporate bonds 
with an Aa- credit rating be increased by £4m from £15m to £19m. 

 
It is currently the Council’s practice not to place investments with institutions 
domiciled in the Euro zone. Whilst there are still risks arising from the sovereign 
debt crisis in the Euro zone, a degree of stability appears to have been achieved. 
Therefore it is recommended that the Council resumes investing in the Euro zone. 
This will increase the number of banks the Council can lend to and also increase 
the number of corporate bonds that will meet the Council’s investment criteria. It is 
recommended that the Council continue to restrict its investments to institutions 
domiciled in countries with a sovereign credit rating of at least AA+. This will restrict 
the Council’s investments in the Euro zone to the stronger economies such as 
Finland, France, Germany and the Netherlands. 

 
When the Annual Investment Strategy was approved by the City Council on 19 
March 2013 the Co-operative Bank’s lowest short term credit rating was F3 and its 
lowest long term credit rating was Bbb from Fitch. In June Fitch downgraded the 
Co-operative Bank’s short term credit rating to B and its long term rating to Bb-. The 
downgrade reflects the rating agencies concerns that the bank’s capital 
requirements are greater than originally anticipated. The bank indicated that it 
required £1.5bn of additional capital – with the rating agency expecting £1bn to 
come from a bail-in of junior bondholders and the remaining £0.5bn from the Co-
operative Group in 2014. Fitch also considers the negative reputational impact the 
press has had on the banking franchise, with depositor and investor confidence 
waning. The other credit agency that rates the Co-operative Bank, Moody’s, has 
also down graded the bank to below investment grade. It is therefore recommended 
that the Council should not place investments with the Co-operative Bank. The 
Council’s main current accounts are with the Co-operative Bank and there will be 
balances on these accounts although these should not exceed £300,000.  The 
Council has no other funds placed with the Co-operative Bank.  

 
The effect of the above recommendations on the Council’s investment counter 
parties is shown in Appendix B.  

Page 246



25 

 

 
Returns could also be improved by investing in triple B rated banks, increasing 
investment limits with lower rated institutions, or investing in banks domiciled in 
countries that do not have a sovereign credit rating of at least Aa+. 

 
Published default rates suggest that a triple B rated institution is substantially more 
likely to default than a single A rated institution. The global corporate average 
default rates (1981 to 2012) published by Standard and Poor suggest that a triple B 
rated counter party is three times more likely to default than a single A rated counter 
party on a one year investment. Triple B rated institutions typically pay around 0.1% 
more interest than single A rated institutions. It is felt that the additional 0.1% 
interest does not justify the additional risk. 

 
It is recommended that the investment limits for double A rated corporate bonds, A+ 
rated banks and A rated building societies be increased to better reflect published 
default rates with the proviso that investments in a single counter party should be 
limited to approximately 10% of the investment portfolio. However, increasing the 
investment limits of lower rated institutions would not be consistent with the 
published default rates, so no recommendations are made in this regard.  

 
Investing in institutions domiciled in countries that do not have an AA+ sovereign 
credit rating could generate a return that is around 0.2% greater than an institution 
with a similar credit rating in a country that does have an AA+ sovereign credit 
rating. The additional risk attached to investing in institutions domiciled in countries 
that do not have an AA+ sovereign credit rating is difficult to quantify, but the 
removal of this criteria could result in funds being invested in non-core Euro zone 
counties exposing the Council to the economic weaknesses of those economies 
and funds being invested in politically volatile regions such as the Middle East.  

 
Funds could also be invested in share capital or property through collective 
investment vehicles. However this is not recommended as it would put the capital 
sum at risk through movements in prices. 
 

10.  SECURITY OF INVESTMENTS 

The risk of default has been managed through limiting investments in any institution 
to £20m or less depending on its credit rating and spreading investments over 
countries and sectors. It is recommended that the maximum investment in any 
single institution (apart from the UK Government for which there is no limit) be 
increased to £26m (see Section 9). 

At 30 September 2013 the City Council had on average £6.1m invested with each 
institution. 

Page 247



26 

 

 

The chart below shows how the Council’s funds were invested at 30 September 2013. 

Where the Council's Funds Are Invested

Unrated 
Building 

Societies

BBB Building 
Societies

A Building 
Societies

AA Singapore 
BanksA UK BanksAA UK Banks

Local 
Authorities A Corporate 

Bonds
AAA 

International 
Money Market 

FundsAA UK Banks

A UK Banks

AA Singapore Banks

A Building Societies

BBB Building Societies

AAA International Money Market Funds

A Corporate Bonds

Local Authorities

Unrated Building Societies
 

Page 248



27 

 

The credit rating agencies publish default rates for each rating category. Multiplying 
these default rates by the amount invested in each credit rating category provides a 
measure of risk that can be used as a benchmark to determine whether the City 
Council’s investment portfolio is becoming more or less risky over time as shown in the 
graph below. 

Relative Risk Profile

130

135

140

145

150

155

160

Apr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju

ly

Aug
us

t

Sep
te

m
be

r

£
k

 

The City Council’s investment portfolio became relatively less risky over the first two 
quarters of 2013/14. This is largely due to an investment in a triple B rated building 
society maturing in September. Although the Council was able to increase its returns by 
lending to triple B and unrated building societies, the FLS has enabled these institutions 
to obtain cheap funding from the Bank of England and the interest offered by such 
institutions is now much reduced. The above graph should be read in relative terms. A 
default occurs when sums due are not paid on time. A default does not mean that the 
sum invested will be lost permanently.  

Page 249



28 

 

 

11. LIQUIDITY OF INVESTMENTS 

The weighted average maturity of the City Council’s investment portfolio has fluctuated 
between 285 and 306 days in first half of 2013/14. The maturity profile of the investment 
portfolio has been lengthened in the second quarter to obtain better rates of return in an 
economic environment where interest rates are low and are not expected to rise by 
much before 2016. This is shown in the graph below.  

Weighted Average Maturity at Month End

260
265
270
275
280
285
290
295
300
305
310

Apr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju

ly

Aug
us

t

Sep
te

m
be

r

D
a
y
s

 

The 2013/14 Treasury Management Policy seeks to maintain the liquidity of the 
portfolio, ie. the ability to liquidate investments to meet the Council’s cash requirements, 
through maintaining at least £10m in instant access accounts. At 30 September £31.2m 
was invested in instant access accounts. Whilst short term investments provide liquidity 
and reduce the risk of default, they do also leave the Council exposed to falling interest 
rates.  

Page 250



29 

 

Under CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code it is necessary to specify limits on the 
amount of long term investments, ie. investments exceeding 364 days that have 
maturities beyond year end in order to ensure that sufficient money can be called back 
to meet the Council’s cash flow requirements. The Council’s performance against the 
limits set by the City Council on 19 March 2013 is shown below. 

Maturing after Limit 

 

£m 

Actual 

 

£m 

31/3/2014 218 87 

31/3/2015 208 45 

31/3/2016 198 30 

 
12. INTEREST RATE RISK 

This is the risk that interest rates will move in a way that is adverse to the City Council’s 
position.  

The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-
Sectoral Guidance Notes require local authorities to set upper limits for fixed interest 
rate exposures. Fixed interest rate borrowing exposes the Council to the risk that 
interest rates could fall and the Council will pay more interest than it need have done. 
Long term fixed interest rate investments expose the Council to the risk that interest 
rates could rise and the Council will receive less income than it could have received. 
However fixed interest rate exposures do avoid the risk of budget variances caused by 
interest rate movements. The Council’s performance against the limits set by the City 
Council on 19 March 2013 is shown below. 

 Limit 

£m 

Actual 

£m 

Maximum Projected Gross Borrowing – 
Fixed Rate 

355 356 

Minimum Projected Gross Investments – 
Fixed Rate 

(35) (98) 

Fixed Interest Rate Exposure 320 258 

 

Page 251



30 

 

 

The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-
Sectoral Guidance Notes also require local authorities to set upper limits for variable 
interest rate exposures. Variable interest rate borrowing exposes the Council to the risk 
that interest rates could rise and the Council’s interest payments will increase. Short 
term and variable interest rate investments expose the Council to the risk that interest 
rates could fall and the Council’s investment income will fall. Variable interest rate 
exposures carry the risk of budget variances caused by interest rate movements. The 
Council’s performance against the limits set by the City Council on 19 March 2013 is 
shown below. 

 Limit 

£m 

Actual 

£m 

Minimum Projected Gross Borrowing – 
Variable Rate 

- - 

Maximum Projected Gross Investments – 
Variable Rate 

(320) (163) 

Variable Interest Rate Exposure (320) (163) 

 

The City Council is particularly exposed to interest rate risk because all the City 
Council’s debt is made up of fixed rate long term loans, but most of the City Council’s 
investments are short term. Future movements in the Bank Base Rate tend to affect the 
return on the Council’s investments, but leave fixed rate long term loan payments 
unchanged. This could favour the City Council if short term interest rates rise. 

The risk of a 0.5% change in interest rates to the Council is as follows: 

Effect of +/- 0.5% 
Rate Change 

2013/14 
(Part 
Year) 

£’000 

2014/15 

 

£’000 

2015/16 

 

£’000 

Long Term Borrowing - 2 55 

Investment Interest (74) (688) (733) 

Net Effect of +/- 0.5% 
Rate Change 

(74) (686) (678) 

 

Page 252



APPENDIX B

INVESTMENT COUNTER PARTY LIST

Category Counter Party

Minimum 

Long 

Term 

Credit 

Rating * Comments

Investment 

Limit

Maximum 

Term Changes

£

1
United Kingdom Government including investments 
explicitly guaranteed by the UK Government AA+ Unlimited 1,825 days

2 All local authorities in England, Scotland & wales n/a 26,000,000   1,825 days
3 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Commonwealth Bank of Australia AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 National Australia Bank AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Westpac Banking Corporation AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Royal Bank of Canada AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Toronto Dominion Bank AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 DBS Bank AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Overseas Chinese Banking Corp AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 United Overseas Bank AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Rabobank Nederland NV AA- 26,000,000 1825 days New counter party

3 Bank of New York Mellon AA- 26,000,000 1825 days
Up graded from 
category 4

3 Wells Fargo Bank NA AA- 26,000,000 1825 days New counter party
3 Nordic Investment Bank AAA 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Inter-American Developmemnt Bank AAA 26,000,000 1825 days
3 IBRD (World Bank) AAA 26,000,000 1825 days
3 Council of Europe Developmenmt Bank AAA 26,000,000 1825 days New counter party
3 Eurpopean Bank for Reconstruction & Development AAA 26,000,000 1825 days New counter party
3 Eurpean Investment Bank AA- 26,000,000 1825 days New counter party

3 Global Treasury Funds Plc AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instant 
Access

3 Morgan Stanley Funds Plc AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access

3 Short Term Investment Company (Global Series) Plc AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access

3 Goldman Sachs Sterling Liquidity Reserve AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access

3
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership Global 
Liquidity Sterling Fund

AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access

3 BNY Mellon Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access

3 Citibank AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access

3 Deutsche Global Liquidity Series Plc AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access

3 Morgan Stanley Funds Plc AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instatnt 
Access New counter party

3 Standard Life Sterling Liquidity Fund AAA
Money 

Market Fund
26,000,000

Instant 
Access

4 Standard Chartered Bank A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
4 HSBC Bank plc A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
4 Bank of Montreal A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
4 Bank of Nova Scotia A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
4 Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
4 Pohjola Bank Plc A+ 19,000,000 1825 days New counter party
4 Nordia Bank AB A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
4 Svenska Handelsbanken A+ 19,000,000 1825 days

4 Swedbank AB A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
Up graded from 
category 5

4 JP Morgan Chase Bank NA A+ 19,000,000 1825 days
Up graded from 
category 5

4 DNB Bank A+ 19,000,000 1825 days

5 Nationwide Building Society A- 13,000,000 1825 days
Down graded from 
category 4

5 BNP Paribas A 13,000,000 1825 days New counter party
5 Deutsche Bank AG A 13,000,000 1825 days New counter party
5 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken (SEB) A 13,000,000 1825 days
5 Credit Suisse A 13,000,000 1825 days
5 UBS AG A 13,000,000 1825 days

5 National Bank of Canada A 13,000,000 1825 days
Up graded from 
category 6

5 Coventry Building Society A- 13,000,000 1825 days

Page 253



6 Lloyds TSB Bank plc A- 10,000,000 1825 days
6 Societe Generale A- 10,000,000 1825 days New counter party
6 ABN Amro Bank NV A- 10,000,000 1825 days New counter party
6 ING Bank NV A- 10,000,000 1825 days

6 Barclays Bank Plc A- 10,000,000 1825 days
Downgraded from 
category 5

7 Restricted to corporate bonds A- 6,000,000 1640 days

8 Leeds Building Society A-
Short term 
rating F2

13,000,000 364 days

8 Yorkshire Building Society BBB 10,000,000 364 days
9 Nottingham Building Society BBB Single rating 6,000,000 364 days
9 Progressive Building Society Unrated 6,000,000 364 days
9 Cambridge Building Society Unrated 5,000,000 364 days
9 Furness Building Society Unrated 4,000,000 364 days
9 Leek United Building Society Unrated 3,800,000 364 days
9 Monmouthshire Building Society Unrated 3,700,000 364 days
9 Newbury Building Society Unrated 3,400,000 364 days
9 Hinckley & Rugby Building Society Unrated 2,900,000 364 days

9 Darlington Building Society Unrated 2,600,000 364 days
Investment limit 
decreased from 
£2.7m

9 Market Harborough Building Society Unrated 2,100,000 364 days
Investment limit 
decreased from 
£2.2m

9 Melton Mowbray Building Society Unrated 1,900,000 364 days
9 Tipton & Coseley Building Society Unrated 1,800,000 364 days
9 Marsden Building Society Unrated 1,700,000 364 days

9 Hanley Economic Building Society Unrated 1,600,000 364 days
Investment limit 
decreased from 
£1.7m

9 Scottish Building Society Unrated 1,700,000 364 days
9 Dudley Building Society Unrated 1,600,000 364 days
9 Loughborough Building Society Unrated 1,400,000 364 days
9 Mansfield Building Society Unrated 1,400,000 364 days
9 Vernon Building Society Unrated 1,200,000 364 days
9 Stafford Railway Building Society Unrated 1,100,000 364 days
9 Buckinghamshire Building Society Unrated 1,100,000 364 days New counter party
9 Harpenden Building Society Unrated 1,100,000 364 days New counter party
9 Swansea Building Society Unrated 1,000,000 364 days New counter party

10 Co-operative Bank plc CCC+ Nil 0 days

Investments are no 
longer madfe in this 
category

11 Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) AA- 26,000,000
1825 days or 
3650 days if 

secured
New category

12 Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) A- 20,000,000
1825 days or 
3650 days if 

secured
New category

Notes

* The long term credit ratings shown are adjusted to take account of possible future actions resulting from 
negative watches & outlooks. All negative watches & outlooks are assumed to result in a one notch 
downgrade.

Page 254



1 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

          

 
 

1 Background  
 

1.1 Members will be aware that a complaint has been made that Councillor Mike Hancock 
has failed to comply with the Portsmouth City Council's Code of Conduct. The   
complaint has been referred for consideration by the Governance and Audit and 
Standards Hearings Sub-Committee which is to meet on 15th November 2013. 

 
1.2 The procedure which is being followed is in accordance with the arrangements which 

were approved by Council on the 17th July 2013.  
  

1.3 In accordance with those arrangements the consideration and determination of 
complaints is delegated to Sub-Committees of Governance and Audit and Standards 
Committee. The Sub-Committee's powers arise out of the delegations given to it by 
Governance and Audit and Standards Committee and confirmed by Council.  It has the 
power to decide the procedure to be adopted in each case. 

 
1.4 An issue has arisen in relation to the consideration of the complaint which is not 

provided for within the existing delegation to the Sub-Committee. Members of the 
Assessment Sub-Committee who decided that the complaint should be referred for 
investigation queried whether they had the power to postpone the investigation of the 
complaint. The concern which was raised was whether it was reasonable to proceed 
with the investigation of the complaint when a claim based on similar facts was the 
subject of High Court proceedings. The Advice of Ian Wise QC was sought on the point. 
His advice was that the Sub-Committee had no power to postpone the investigation of 
complaint.  (Appendix A) 

 
1.5 The investigation has now been concluded and Elizabeth Laing QC's further advice has 

been sought on whether or not it would be reasonable for the Sub-Committee to 
adjourn the  hearing of the complaint pending the outcome of   the proceedings in the 
High Court. Her advice is attached at Appendix B. 

 
 
 

                                              Agenda item: 11 
Decision maker: 
 

Governance & Audit & Standards Committee 

Subject: 
 

Consideration of a preliminary issue in relation to a Complaint 
against a Member 
 

Date of decision: 
 

7 November 2013 

Report by: 
 

Strategic Director and City Solicitor  

Wards affected N/A 
 

Key decision (over 
£250k) 

No 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 255



2 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
1.6 Counsel is of the view that this is a decision which the Sub-Committee could make. In 

reaching a decision a relevant consideration which they could take into account is that if 
the Sub-Committee concluded its determination before the High Court case is 
concluded there is a risk of that decision being inconsistent with the High Court 
decision. That could lead to injustice as there is no mechanism by which the Council's 
decision  could be reconsidered.  

 
1.7 As stated in paragraph 29 of Counsel's advice this is not necessarily a decisive factor. 

Other factors include:- 
 

· The greater suitability of the High Court procedure for determining contested issues 
of fact. 

· The desirability of quick decision making in standards cases. 
· The fact that the complainant and not the councillor issued the High Court 

proceedings. 
· The fact that in contrast to disciplinary proceedings in other fields the council's 

powers to protect the public are limited. 
 

1.8 Whatever decision is reached this is one for the Sub-Committee to make having heard 
the views of the two parties who may raise other material considerations. 

 
 2 Purpose of Report   
 

2.1  To seek the delegated authority to the Hearing Sub-Committee to decide as a 
preliminary matter whether or not, following representations from both the Complaint 
and Councillor Hancock, to postpone the final determination of the complaint until such 
time as the High Court proceedings are concluded. 

 
3 Recommendation 
 
3.1 That Members ask the Hearing Sub-Committee to consider as a preliminary matter 

whether or not to postpone the final determination of the complaint until such time as 
the High Court proceedings are concluded. 
 

 
4 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 

 
4.1 The contents of this report do not have any relevant equalities impact and therefore an 

equalities assessment is not required.   
 
5 City Solicitor’s Comments 
 
5.1 The City Solicitor's comments are included in this report.  
 
6 Head of Finance & S151 Officer Comments: 

 
6.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations set out in this 

report. 
 

 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Michael Lawther Strategic Director and City Solicitor  

Page 256



3 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Advice of Ian Wise QC 
Appendix 2 - Advice of Elizabeth Laing QC 

 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material 
extent by the author in preparing this report: 
Title of document Location 

1 The City Solicitor's 
file in relation to 
the complaint  
  

City Solicitor's  Office  

 

Page 257



Page 258

This page is intentionally left blank



          Appendix 2 

  

 

 

PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

COMPLAINT ABOUT COUNCILLOR MIKE HANCOCK 

 

 

------------ 

ADVICE 

------------ 

 

 

 

(2) would it be reasonable for the GASHS to decide to postpone the investigation? 
 

24.  It is not for me to say what the GASHS should decide. A decision whether or 
not to postpone the investigation pending the resolution of the High Court 
claim is a decision made in the exercise of a procedural discretion. Provided 
that the GASHS takes into account relevant considerations, and ignores 
irrelevant considerations, the decision is for it to make. 

 
25.  So the question is what considerations would be material to the exercise of 

that discretion. I do not consider that there is any risk that, if the GASHS were 
to decide to hold a hearing that would be a contempt of court. The decision of 
the Court of Appeal in Attorney-General v Hislop1 is distinguishable, largely 
for the reasons given by the complainant’s solicitors in their letter of 12 August 
2013. Essentially, the complainant’s claim will be heard by a professional 
judge, not a jury, and a finding following a hearing under the Council’s 
procedures would not amount to the exertion of improper pressure 
on the councillor not to defend the High Court claim, nor would it be remotely 
likely to influence the judge who hears the High Court claim. 

 
 
26.  That is not the only relevant consideration, however. In their letter of 24 June 

2013, the councillor’s solicitors referred to the risk of inconsistent decisions. 
This is a relevant consideration. While it is true that the issue for the Council is 
a different legal issue from the issue for the High Court, the factual allegations 
which are relevant to both issues are the same. 

 
27.  The Council could conclude, after a hearing that there had, or had not, been a 

breach of the code, and the High Court could decide, after a hearing, that the 
complainant’s factual allegations were, or were not, made out. There is a risk, 
therefore, of inconsistent decisions about the underlying facts. The upshot 
could be, either, that the Council will decide that there was a breach, and 
punish the councillor, only for the High Court to decide, later, that the 
underlying allegations were not made out, or that the Council could 
decide there was no breach, only for the High Court to decide that the 
allegations were made out. 

Page 259



28.  It does not seem to me that the Council could re-visit its decision in either 
case, as it would be functus officio. Nor, it seems to me, would an application 
out of time for judicial review of the Council’s decision be likely to succeed, as 
in each case, the decision would have been correct at the time it was made. 
This could mean that the Council loses an opportunity to find a breach of the 
code of conduct and to punish the councillor where the allegations are 
subsequently upheld by the High Court, or that the councillor is found guilty of 
a breach, and punished for it, in circumstances where the High Court later 
finds that the allegations were not made out. In neither case would the 
Council, or the councillor, have any remedy for that injustice. 

 
29.  That is not necessarily a decisive factor, but it is one which the GASHC 

should take into account in reaching a view. Other relevant factors are the 
greater suitability of the High Court procedure for determining contested 
issues of fact, the desirability of quick decision making in standards cases, the 
fact that the complainant, not the councillor, issued the High Court 
proceedings, the fact that if a hearing takes place, the GASHC 
is likely not to hear any evidence from the councillor, the fact that in contrast 
to disciplinary proceedings in other fields, the Council’s powers to protect the 
public are, by the terms of its own procedure, limited. There may be other 
relevant considerations which emerge from the parties’ contentions, if the 
GASHS decides to hold a preliminary hearing at which it hears argument from 
the parties, and then decides, whether or not to postpone the hearing of the 
complaint. 

 
(3)  is there any reason why the member of the GASAS should not be a member 

of the GASHS? 
 
30.  There is no evidence that a member of the GASAS has leaked confidential 

information. What there is, rather, is the fact that confidential information has 
been leaked, but no-one knows who leaked it. I do not consider, in those 
circumstances, that there is any reason why the member of the GASAS who 
is the subject of an allegation that she has leaked information should not be a 
member of the GASHS. 

 
conclusion 
 
31.   I have two broad conclusions. 

(1)  Now that the independent person has produced his 
report, the 

GASAS has no further role. Under the Council’s 
procedure, the 
complaint is very likely to be referred to the GASHS for a 
hearing. In that situation, the GASC could decide that an 
appropriate way forward would be for a preliminary 
hearing to be 
held by the GASHS, at which the parties can make their 
submissions about postponement, and the GASHS can 
then 

Page 260



decide whether or not the hearing before it should be 
postponed 
pending the determination of the complainant’s High 
Court claim. 
  

(2)  There is, at present, no reason why any member of the 
GASAS should not sit as a member of the GASHS. 

11 

Page 261



Page 262

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

  
Agenda item: 12 

Title of meeting: Governance & Audit & Standards Committee 
 

 

Date of meeting:  7 November  2013 
 

 

Subject:  Data Security Breach Reporting 
 

 

Report by: Helen Magri - Corporate Information Governance Officer 
 

 

Wards affected:  All 
 

 

Key decision:  
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 
 
1. Purpose of report  
  

To inform the Committee of any Data Security Breaches actions agreed/taken 
since the last meeting. 

 
 
2. Recommendations 
 

It is recommended that Members of the Governance & Audit Committee 
note the breaches that have arisen and the action determined by CIGP. 

 
 
3. Background 
 

In 2011 PCC signed an Undertaking following a reportable data breach to the 
Information Commissioner's Office (ICO). The ICO followed this with an onsite 
audit of which one recommendation was to establish a central body for 
Information Governance. The Corporate Information Governance Panel (CIGP) 
was formed chaired by Michael Lawther in the role of Senior Information Risk 
Owner (SIRO).  
Administration of this panel is by the Corporate Information Governance team 
(Peter Harding/Helen Magri) and it has representation from most business 
areas. 
The Terms of Reference (briefly): 

· To establish policy and procedures for Information Governance; 

· To maintain a log of data breaches and determine onward action.  

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 263



 

2 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

4. Reasons for recommendations 
 
 N/A 
 
  
 
 
5. Equality impact assessment (EIA) 
 
 An equality impact assessment is not required as the recommendation does not 

have a negative impact on any of the protected characteristics as described in 
the Equality Act 2010." 

 
 
6. Legal Implications 
 
 The Council is required to ensure that it has robust procedures in place to 

comply with its obligations under the Data Protection Act.  Bringing this report to 
the Committee's attention assists in meeting those requirements. 

 
 
7. Finance Comments 

The ICO can issue fines of up to £500,000 for serious breaches of the Data 
Protection Act and Privacy and Electronic Communications Regulations. The 
size of any monetary penalty is determined by the Commissioner taking into 
account the seriousness of the breach and other factors such as the size, 
financial and other resources of the data controller. Any breaches put the City 
Council at risk of the unbudgeted cost of  a financial penalty which would have 
to be met from the service responsible for the breach. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 
 
 
Appendices:  One Exempt Appendix 
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Page 264



 

3 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Title of document Location 

Nil N/A 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 265



Page 266

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 26 September 2013
	6 Draft Equality and Diversity Strategy 2014-17 - (INFORMATION ONLY ITEM)
	gas20131107r6actionplan
	gas20131107r6draftv2

	7 2013 Budget Consultation Report - Residents (INFORMATION ONLY ITEM)
	8 Audit Performance Status Report to 18 October 2013 for Audit Plan 2013/14
	gas20131107r8appA

	9 Treasury Management Mid Year Review for 2013/14
	gas20131107r9AppB

	11 City Solicitor Report - Scheme of Delegation
	gas20131107r11app2

	12 Data Breach Reporting

